
SOLTERRA RESORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Advanced Meeting Package 

Regular Meeting 

Date/Time: 

Thursday 

October 27, 2022 

9:30 a.m. 

Location: 

Solterra Resort Amenity Center 

5200 Solterra Blvd., 

Davenport, FL 33837 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 

considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption. 



Solterra Resort Community Development District 
c/o DPFG Management & Consulting LLC 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 

Lake Mary, FL  32746 

321-263-0132 x742

Board of Supervisors  

Solterra Resort Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Solterra Resort Community Development 

District is scheduled for Thursday, October 27, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. at Solterra Resort Amenity 

Center – 5200 Solterra Blvd., Davenport, FL 33837. 

The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 

your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact the District Manager at (321) 263-
0132 X 749 or lkrause@dpfgmc.com. We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 

Sincerely, 

Larry Krause 
Larry Krause 
District Manager 

Cc: Attorney  

Engineer 

District Records 

mailto:lkrause@dpfgmc.com


Page 1 of 3 

Revised 10/26/2022 Denotes Return to Agenda Link 

SOLTERRA RESORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Meeting Date: Thursday, October 27, 2022 

Time: 9:30 a.m. 

Location: Solterra Resort Amenity Center Dial-in Number: 1-904-348-0776 

5200 Solterra Boulevard Phone Conference ID: 862 156 243# 

Davenport, Florida  33837 (Mute/Unmute: *6) 

Agenda 
For the full agenda packet, please contact:  sconley@dpfgmc.com 

I. Roll Call:
S1: S2: Sharon Harley S3: Jon Seifel S4: Brad Walker S5: Candice Smith 

  (Vice Chair) 

II. Audience Comments – Agenda Items
(Limited to 3 minutes per individual for agenda items)

III. Business Items

A. Vendor Reports

1. Aquatic Maintenance – Steadfast Environmental Exhibit 1 

2. Landscape Maintenance – Dana Bryant, Yellowstone Landscape

a. Consideration of Yellowstone Mulch Proposal - $55,782.00 Exhibit 2 

3. Amenity Manager – Kyla Semino, Evergreen Lifestyles Management

a. Consideration of Admiral Furniture Fabric Canopy

Replacement Proposal - $20,343.25

Exhibit 3 

b. Consideration of One Day Masterpieces Sign Replacement

and Road Stencil Proposal - $6,432.19 

Exhibit 4 

c. Consideration of Pool Maintenance Vendors Exhibit 5 

i. Power Pool - $2,800/month

ii. Samdri Pool Service - $6,500/month

iii. T&S Swimming Pool Services - $8,000/month

d. Discussion on Café Equipment Exhibit 6 

i. Icemaker Exhibit 7 

ii. Fryer Exhibit 8 

iii. A/C

e. Consideration of Amenity Center Printer Replacement Exhibit 9 

B. Public Hearing

1. Open Public Hearing

2. Presentation of Amenity Rules & Policies Exhibit 10 

3. Public Comments

4. Close Public Hearing

C. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2023-01, Amending Amenity

Rules & Policies

Exhibit 11 

l



SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT October 27, 2022 Agenda 

Page 2 of 3 

Revised 10/26/2022 Denotes Return to Agenda Link 

III. Business Items (Continued)

D. Consideration of Top Guard Amenity Center Additional Sidewalk

Grinding Proposal - $1,129.00

Exhibit 12 

E. Consideration of Updated Fee Schedule for DPFG District Management

Services 

Exhibit 13 

Exhibit 14 

Exhibit 15 - Under 
Separate Cover

Exhibit 16 

F. Consideration of Updated Fee Schedule for DPFG Field Services

G. Consideration of Contract for Security Monitoring

1. Envera

2. Tekwave

H. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2023-02, Recognizing a 
Contribution to Off-Set Assessments

I. Ratification of Acceptance of Real Property – Quitclaim Deed with Grant

and Reservation of Easements (Solterra Phase 2D) 

Exhibit 17 

J. Ratification of Acceptance of Construction and Maintenance Easement

(Fence, Tract B-1, Solterra Phase 2D) 

Exhibit 18 

K. Consideration and Ratification of Acceptance of Real Property – 

Quitclaim Deed (Tract F, Solterra Phase 2C-1, and Tract B-2, Solterra 

Phase 2B Replat) 

Exhibit 19 

L. Consideration and Ratification of Easement Agreement (Solterra Phase

2B Replat)

Exhibit 20 

M. Consideration and Ratification of Easement Agreement (Oakmont Phase

1, Oakmont Townhomes Phase 1, Solterra Phase 1, Solterra Phase 2A1, 

Solterra Phase 2C-1, Solterra Phase 2C-2, & Solterra Phase 2D) 

Exhibit 21 

N. Ratification of Acquisition of Improvements and Work Product and

Approval for Staff to Process the Following:

Exhibit 22 

1. Requisition for 2013 Acquisition & Construction, $15,740.26

2. Requisition for 2014 Acquisition & Construction, $5,872.21

3. Requisition for 2018 Acquisition & Construction, $2,710.72

4. Requisition for 2018 Acquisition & Construction (DSRF Release),

$154,610.93

O. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2023-03, Declaring 2013

Project, 2014 Project, and 2018 Project Complete

Exhibit 23 

P. Consideration of Supervisor Appointment

1. Acceptance of Supervisor Resignation Exhibit 24 

2. Appointment to Vacant Seat

3. Oath of Office Exhibit 25 

4. New Supervisor Information/Form 1 Exhibit 26 

5. Sunshine Law (FL Ethics Commission Guide to be E-mailed)

l



SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT October 27, 2022 Agenda 

Page 3 of 3 

Revised 10/26/2022 Denotes Return to Agenda Link 

Exhibit 27 

Exhibit 28 

Exhibit 29 

Exhibit 30 

III. Business Items (Continued)

Q. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2023-04, Designating

Officers

R. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2023-05, Designating

Signatories

S. Update on Roadway Improvement Project - Kimley-Horn

T. Discussion on Maintenance Supervisor Position

IV. Staff Reports

A. District Counsel – Meredith Hammock, KE Law Group

B. District Engineer – Tonja Stewart, Stantec

C. District Manager – Larry Krause, DPFG

1. Field Operations Report

2. SWFWMD Permits Approved for Transfer to Operation Phase

a. Phase 2A (43026971.007)

b. Phase 2B (43026971.012)

c. Phase 2C (43026971.008)

d. Phase 2D (43026971.015)

e. Phase 2E (43026971.013)

V. Consent Agenda

A. Consideration For Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors

Regular Meeting Held August 25, 2022

Exhibit 31 

B. Consideration For Acceptance – The September 2022 Unaudited

Financial Report

Exhibit 32 

C. Ratification of Proposal Approvals Exhibit 33 

1. Envera Main Gate Card Reader Replacement - $602.00

2. Exercise Systems Fitness Equipment Repair - $1,095.50

3. Envera Main Entrance and Tag Camera - $2,127.00

4. Onsight Street Signs Repair - $2,194.80

VI. Audience Comments – New Business
(Limited to 3 minutes per individual for non-agenda items)

VII. Supervisor Requests
(Includes Next Meeting Agenda Item Requests)

VIII. Action Items Summary
(To Be E-mailed to Supervisors and Staff)

IX. Next Meeting Quorum Check
Confirmation of Quorum for Next Meeting Scheduled for 9:30 a.m. on November 24, 2022 at the

Solterra Resort Amenity Center (5200 Solterra Blvd., Davenport, FL  33837)

Following meetings scheduled for December 22, 2022 and January 26, 2023.

X. Adjournment

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1  

l



Inspec n Date:

Prepared by:

WWW.STEADFASTENV.COM
813-836-7940

STEADFAST OFFICE:

9/9/2022 10:39 PM

Kevin Riemensperger

Solterra Resort CDD Aquatics

Account Manager

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 Comments: 

SITE:

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

1

2

Cattails

Technicians continue to maintain a buffer between perimeter vegetation and the
shoreline. Treatments for vegetation must be reduced at this time to avoid
damaging grasses currently submerged below the high water mark.

Small amounts of surface vegetation algae are present in the maintained buffer
area. To be hit during the upcoming maintenance event.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 Comments: 

SITE:

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

5

3

Primrose willow

There are broken patches of surface filamentous algae present along the southern
end of the pond. These will be treated during the next visit, to occur soon.

Similar to pond 1, interior vegetation is being prevented from spreading towards the
shoreline. Treatments for vegetation are being reduced at this time, until the rains
recede. Algae was noted here, and has been logged to be treated during the next
maintenance event.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

4

6

Broken patches of algae are present in a few locations. Easily treated during the
upcoming maintenance event.

Some debris was collected here.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

7

27

Minimal amounts of nuisance grasses are present between the beneficial
vegetation on this pond, which is helping to reduce algal growth. Technicians
continue to spot-treat for these grasses while avoiding collateral to the plants.

Some debris was collected here.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

19

18

Some debris was collected here.

Some debris was collected here.

l



 

       STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATIONS

90

As September continues, so does the the rainy season. High temperatures and abundant Floridian sunshine
cause any effluents washed into the ponds to cause rapid algae blooms in some ponds. Hopefully as the
season shifts, we will see a change in the conditions that influence the ponds. The days will continue to
shorten in length as the temperatures begin to cool, both working in favor of the pond's aesthetics, as these
will result in decreased growth rates for surface algae. Additionally, the seasonal rain events that were
commonplace will taper off as the season progresses, which will have the effect of lowering water levels
across most ponds.

Assuming temperatures decrease, and dissolved oxygen levels in the water lower due to decreased rainfall
stagnating pond waters, it is possible that the changing conditions result in some fish kill events. It is
important to be aware that these events are caused by the water quality of the ponds, and are not due to
treatments targeted against nuisance algae and vegetation.

The community on this visit was something of a mixed bag. Many ponds were in excellent condition, though
there were also outliers. Mostly ponds which were shallow and catch many nutrients during the seasonal
rains. In most ponds, algal activity was confined to small amounts of subsurface algae, not unusual for
stormwater retention ponds during this time of year.  There were a few ponds which were noted to host new
growth. These be addressed during the next maintenance event.

Debris was noted in many ponds in the community. However, the previously submitted debris collection
proposal was approved and a debris collection visit is to occur sometime mid-month.

Continue to treat for algal activity to prevent/treat local bloom events.

Continue managing grasses, below the high water mark, though treatments may be reduced during the rainy
season to avoid damaging stabilizing grasses on the upper bank.

Watch out for debris items being washed into the ponds. Debris collection visit has been scheduled.

Thank you for choosing Steadfast Environmental

l



 

 

                          

 
 

MAINTENANCE AREA

l



Inspec n Date:

Prepared by:

WWW.STEADFASTENV.COM
813-836-7940

STEADFAST OFFICE:

10/14/2022 10:01 AM

Kevin Riemensperger

Solterra Resort CDD Aquatics

Account Manager

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 Comments: 

SITE:

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

6

18

Beneficial Gulf Spikerush and Pickerelweed growth observed here. The water is
quite turbid.

Aside from the low water level, and a small amount of decaying organics, this pond
is in great condition. Far fewer trash was observed on this pond, than during
previous inspections.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 Comments: 

SITE:

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

19

17

Low amounts of surface and subsurface filamentous algae, as well as some
grasses are present along the perimeter. These are to be treated during the next
scheduled visit to the community.

The recent rise in water level seems to have submerged grasses on the bank.
Technicians will treat grasses below the high water mark during the next visit.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

22

21

Extremely low water level. Uncharacteristic of the ponds in the rest of the
community.

Similar to other ponds in the community, the rise in water level has submerged
grasses along the bank. Technicians will target grasses here which are below the
high watermark, during the next maintenance event.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

20

11

Primrose Willow

Surface filamentous algae is observed in small patches along the perimeter,
alongside decaying Primrose Willow skeletons and grasses, which were both
previously treated.

The extremely high water level has submerged grasses on this pond. Some algae
noted, to be treated during the next scheduled maintenance event.

l



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Comments: 

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

WATER:            ��������������������	�
�����������������������
ALGAE:            ���������������������	
�	��������������	��������������	��������������	��������������
� ������������� ������������������������������������������������������������
�������
GRASSES:        ���������������������������������������������������������	
�������
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
��������������������������������������������������������� �
���������������������!������������� �
����������"���������������������������������	�!� ����������#�!��$

12

3

In a similar condition to the previously reviewed pond. Some debris collected here.

The return of water to this somewhat shallow pond has improved it's appearance
tenfold. There is still some work to be done regarding interior grasses, but this will
be whittled away with each maintenance visit.

l



 

       STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATIONS

85

With October finally here, the conditions that influence the ponds are seeing a slight turn. Nights & mornings
are already cooling off, and as temperatures drop and days shorten growth rates for surface algae and
nuisance species are decreased. The deluge supplied by this most recent Hurricane certainly helps. A large
influx of water usually has the benefit of resetting pond biology by allowing nutrients in the water column to
exit the pond into the wetlands. Decreased water temperatures and sudden wind and rain are both capable of
stressing fish populations, and putting them at risk of perishing from sudden shifts in water parameters
(nitrogen/phosphorous spikes, sudden storm events). This is normal for early fall and are not primarily caused
by treatments targeted against nuisance algae and vegetation.

At the time of this inspection, many of Solterra Resort’s ponds are in great. New algal growth was observed in
few ponds, with the majority of activity having arisen as a result of recently submerged grasses leechiong
nutrients into the water. On the next visit, technicians will be sure to treat these areas, in a manner that
avoids damaging grassses which work to stabilize the bank. With any algal material to decay over the next
7-10 days, following treatment.

Hopefully as conditions enter a true fall phase, and plant growth slows, technicians will be able to switch from
reactive & preventative treatment methods (which were directly combating rapid new growth) to proactive
treatments & will begin to make headway in overgrown areas of select ponds now that regrowth rates are
starting to slow.

Continue to treat ponds for algae.

Resume regular grass treatments upon the conclusion of the rainy season (awaiting the lowering of high
water levels).

Stay alert for debris items that find their way to the pond's shore.

Thank you for choosing Steadfast Environmental!

l



 

 

                          

 
 

MAINTENANCE AREA

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 

  

l



Proposal #245901
Date: 09/16/2022

From: Dana Bryant

Proposal For Location

Solterra CDD 5200 Solterra Blvd
c/o DPFG
250 International Pkwy
Suite 280
Lake Mary, FL 32746

main:
mobile:

Davenport, FL 33837

Property Name: Solterra CDD

Mulch Install CDD 2022 Terms: Net 30

· Install Mulch In The Solterra Resort Coomunity CDD, to include the BLVD, Parks, & Clubhouse with 
Premium Coco Brown

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY AMOUNT

Mulch (Sub) 1033.00 $55,782.00

Client Notes

SUBTOTAL $55,782.00

Signature SALES TAX $0.00

x TOTAL $55,782.00

Signature above authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and
specifications are hereby accepted. All overdue balances will be charge a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year. Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that
dies due to conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape's control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water
restrictions, etc.) shall not be included in the warranty.

Contact Assigned To

Dana Bryant
Print Name:

Office:
danabryant@yellowstonelandscape.com

Title:

Date:

Yellowstone Landscape | www.yellowstonelandscape.com | 386-437-6211 Page 1 of 1l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

  

l



 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 

  

l



�����������	�
�����
������
����
�������
���������������������
��
��� ���������	�
�����!��
"�#��$#����#
%&'�()�����#��"�$

*+�	�����"��
,��	�

����-�
��+���
���
	��,�.��

,/�%,��%��&'��

0����1�
�0����
2����1�
 ���������	�
�����!��

*3�4%��/4%

��5��5����

*3�4%�%6�&�7��/4%

��5�#5����

4%��,

/�8����������	

���%�%��97

%8�
.
������1��	���������.����	
��"��:���;
�	����/8��+�
:���;
�	����������"#"#

,<&��&'=�/���%,,

,��	�

�
$����,��	�

��9�8�!
��8����
	����������#
,<&��&'=�4�/:>&'=

&',4/���/���%,,

��"��:���;
�	����/8��+�
:���;
�	����������"#"#

:�'4/:4�&'��

>����,�����
>,����� %8�
.
������!��
?���##���������

@ ABCD EBF GHD GIJKALC BHBMNOPCQLNIOBMQR BMQMSNC

� CTUVWTXYOZ[\TO]̂_UỲOÛOXYaYTU � %�b c"$�!�� c"$�!�� 7
�"d����������b�	����d���	������.�	����
��	����		���������b����

���"e�b�.b���e��f+�
�����	����.����	���b�


� ghYiUiOCTUVWTXYOZUYTX[_ � %�b c���!�� c���!�� 7
��#ed�"e��������8��	����

=3%,4,

� KYi[̀YTUiOCTUVWTXYOZUYTX[_ � %�b c�"$!�$ c�"$!�$ 7
�$#ed�"e��������8��	����

�%,&�%'4,

" jk[UYOl[\kOm[iOJW[TUOn̂VON[TYiOoOpOq � %�b c#�!�� c#�!�� 7

$ r̂ OKhTT[T\ � %�b c���!�# c�$�!�� 7
��d������������.�	����
��	����		�������
�+������
��
�!

�e��f+�
����+���+�����	�����	���;��s����e���	b��"e����.
�+��!
/11�d�����	b����1�	�����.��
���5���b�
������	���;�+��	�
��	b��
��	!

� t̂ Or̂ UOL_[a]OHTOZ_[̀YOi[\T � %�b c��!�� c��!�� 7
��d���������b�	����d���	����5�
�+������
��
�����.�	����
��	�
��		�������b�����	����
��
���		�b���	����������1�$�e�b���

# Zu[aOMUOF̂ hVOHuTOK[iv � %�b c���!#� c�#�!�� 7
��d������������.�	����
��	����		�������
�+������
��
�!

=��8���w���+�b���������	�+�����	������e���	b��"e����.
�+��!
/11�d�����	b����1�	�����.��
���5���b�
������	���;�+��	�
��	b��
��	!

� t̂ Or̂ UOL_[a]ÔTOUkYOK̂ XviOi[\T � %�b c$�!�� c���!�� 7
��d������������.�	����
��	����		�������
�+������
��
�!

=��8���w���+�b���������	�+�����	������e���	b��"e����.
�+��!
/11�d�����	b����1�	�����.��
���5���b�
������	���;�+��	�
��	b��
��	!

� \W_xWT[yỲOhOXkWTTY_OẑiUi � %�b c��$!�� c���!�� 7
�����b�.��8���w���+�b�����

�� {̂VOF̂ hVOZWnYU|OJ_YWiYOL_̂iYOgWUYOi[\T $ %�b c�#!"� c��#!�$ 7
�d������������.�	����
��	����		�������
�+������
��
�!
/11�d�����	b����1�	�����.��
���5���b�
������	���;�+��	�
��	b��
��	!

��&'4%���'�43%�����/3=��������)��)�#���"���97�00�:�%/4%��97�00 �5�

l



� ���� ��� ��� �	
���� ����������	���� �����

�� ����������������� ����!" # $%&' (#)*+) (,+-*.# /
�,0�+1.12345163738%419:3;8512%88<14%251:=>;6<61&=:;<:?*
@AA30<61B38'1?<4AC8%993;71?&:<B?DB%?'<:?19%3;8<61E4><18=
2%8&'19:3;8*

�, F G�����HIG J����!"� + $%&' (+#*-+ (K+)*+L /
,L0.K19:<C&>81.12341B'38<19M&5163:<&819:3;851M'E18%9<

,CN%:O3;71P=81Q>44
�CR<%&'<61S%9%&38T
,CU;&4<2<;81V<%8'<:
,CS4=?<61W><1X=1Y%3;8<;%;&<
�CV<4&=2<Z

�. [\����]�!"�̂ _� L $%&' (�#+*�L (K.,*#K /

�L �"�� �� ���" � $%&' (�5-�,*#̀ (�5-�,*#̀ /

a/=>:=:6<:3?&=294<8<4T&>?8=2*b=&%;&<44%83=;?=::<A>;6?=;&<c>=8<3?%99:=M<6%;69>83;8=9:=6>&83=;*@44?37;%7<3?8'<
9:=9<:8T=Ad;<W%TY%?8<:93<&<?>;8349%T2<;83?:<&<3M<63;A>44*@;T9:=6>&8;=893&O<6>9%A8<:K̀ 6%T?=A=:6<:&=294<83=;B344
E<163?9=?<61=A1%818'<163?&:<83=;1=A1d;<1W%T1Y%?8<:93<&<?*
aY%;T=A8'<%:8B=:OA34<?B<:<&<3M<:<c>3:<%6e>?82<;8E<A=:<8'<T&%;E<>?<6A=:9:3;83;75%;6?=2<;<<68=E<:<C&:<%8<6
%48=7<8'<:*d>:7>36<43;<?43?8<6E<4=B%:<?>77<?83=;?8='<49T=>%M=36%66383=;%4%:8&'%:7<?%;6D=:%;<08<;6<68>:;%:=>;6832<?*
N4<%?<9:=M36<63738%4A34<?B'<;<M<:9=??3E4<%;63;&4>6<%*96A=:*e9732%7<=AT=>:A34<A=::<A<:<;&<*@6=E<U44>?8:%8=:A34<?f*%35
M<&8=:%:8B=:Og%:<9:<A<::<6*@44A=;8??'=>46E<&=;M<:8<68=&>:M<?f=>843;<?g*b=;C&=;M<:8<6A=;8?2%TE<:<94%&<6B38'%?3234%:
A=;8>;4<??8'<A=;8A34<3?9:=M36<6*@;T:%?8<:32%7<??'=>46E<<2E<66<6=:3;&4>6<6?<9%:%8<4T*@&&<98%E4<Q34<Q=:2%8?%:<h*%3C
@6=E<U44>?8:%8=:5*9?6C@6=E<N'=8=?'=95*96ACN=:8%E4<W=&>2<;8Q=:2%85*<9?i$;&%9?>4%8<6N=?8?&:3985*&6:iS=:<4W:%B5'37'
:<?=4>83=;1*83AA1i1.̀ 1̀6931%81%&8>%41?3j<51'37'1:<?=4>83=;1*e971i1�#̀16931%81%&8>%41?3j<*
aQ3;%49:==A3;73?8'<?=4<:<?9=;?3E3438T=A8'<&>?8=2<:*k<A=:<73M3;7%99:=M%4594<%?<<0%23;<%449:==A?&%:<A>44TA=:8'<%&&>:%&T
=A8'<3;A=:2%83=;9:<?<;8<65%?B<44%?&=::<&8?9<443;759>;&8>%83=;5;>2E<:?5632<;?3=;?57:%9'3&?5&=4=:?%;67<;<:%44%T=>8*XB=
9:==A:<M3?3=;?9<:38<2%:<9:=M36<6%8;=&=?8*@66383=;%49:==A?B344E<E344<6%8(,#9<::<M3?3=;*@;T&'%;7<?2%6<%A8<:9:==A
%99:=M%41B3441E<16=;<1%818'<1&>?8=2<:l?1<09<;?<*
aX'<:<3?%=;<T<%:B%::%;8T=;2%8<:3%4?59%:8?%;64%E=:5<0&4>63;7M%;6%43?253;8<;83=;%46%2%7<5<08:<2<B<%8'<:&=;6383=;?5
@&8?=Am=6%;6329:=9<:&%:<=:2%3;8<;%;&<a*UA&4<%;3;73?;<&<??%:T5>?<=;4T%23466<8<:7<;8?=4>83=;B38'%?=A8E:>?'=:
?9=;7<*n;6<:;=&3:&>2?8%;&<??'=>46%9:<??>:<B%?'<:=:'%:?'&'<23&%4E<>?<6*@44?9:3;O4<:'<%6??'=>46E<63:<&8<6%B%T
A:=2?37;A%&<?*W3:<&8?9:%T3;72%T'%M<%;%6M<:?<<AA<&8=;8'<A3;3?'*@;T6%2%7<:<?>483;7A:=2329:=9<:&%:<=:2%3;8<;%;&<
3?18'<1?=4<1:<?9=;?3E3438T1=A18'<1&>?8=2<:*

aV%::%;8T1<0&4>6<?1&=:=94%?81=:1?3234%:1?>E?8:%8<?
aN4<%?<E<%6M3?<68'%8%44=:6<:?;=88=8%43;7(#̀*̀̀ E<A=:<8%0<?B344'%M<%(�#*̀̀ 23;32>2=:6<:9:=&<??3;7A<<%9943<68=8'<
=:6<:*
aX'<1?'3993;71&'%:7<13?1<?832%8<61%;61B<1:<?<:M<18'<1:37'818=%6e>?8138513A1;<&<??%:T51>9=;13;M=3&3;7*

]\�oo�"!p

]����� �p

] ����� q��r	st�p

��� �p

uv

urwxyz	{|

ux{}	v|

urw}sv	z}

~��"o �J�"���{vv	v�t� urw}sv	z}

]�������p ~��p

�ndX$1,,KLK,51$�$RmR$$b1PUQ$�X/P$�1Y@b@m$Y$bX51̀+D�+D,̀,,

NRUbX$W1db1Xn$51,.1@nm1,̀,,1�.h.+h�)1C̀L̀ 1̀k/1��1SR$@X$W1k/1�� ,D,

l



Qty. (6) No Running Sign 12” x 12”

Qty. (8) A-frame Sign 12” x 12”

Qty. (2) Do Not Climb Rocks Sign 12” x 18”

DO NOT
Climb
on the
Rocks

Qty. (6) Swim at Own Risk Sign 12” x 18”

SWIM AT
YOUR OWN RISK

LIFEGUARD
NOT ON DUTY

Qty. (5) Please Close gate Sign 8” x 12”

For Safety
Please
Close

The Gate
Behind

You

SWIM AT
YOUR OWN RISK

LIFEGUARD
NOT ON DUTY

Qty. (1) Please Close gate Sign 8” x 12”

No
Running

No
correr

Sem
correr

DO NOT
Climb On

Slide

DO NOT
Climb On

Slide

Qty. (5) Absolutely No... Sign 12” x 18”

ABSOLUTELY

NO

SWIM AT
YOUR OWN RISK

LIFEGUARD
NOT ON DUTY

Qty. (2)

PARKING
LOT

FULL

Qty. (1)

REACHED
CAPACITY

Qty. (2)

CLOSED

DUE TO

MAINTENANCE

Qty. (2)

INCLEMENT

WEATHER

Qty. (1)

WELCOME!

l



Stencils

Arrow
30” x 40”
Guests

82.45” x 24”

Arrow
30” x 40”

Residents
125” x 24”

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5  

l



Power Pool Services LLC

l



890 Killarney Lane 

Auburndale, FL 33832 

407-530-7112

powerpoolservices@outlook.com 

POOL SERVICES PROPOSAL AGREEMENT 

Date: 09/12/2022 

Solterra Resort  

5200 Solterra Blvd 

Davenport, FL 33837 

Thank you for giving Power Pool Services, LLC the opportunity to bid on the above property. We 

submit the following specifications and materials for the complete process of commercial pool 

service as per industry standards and guidelines and Florida administrated code 64E-9 for public 

swimming pools.  

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: 

POOL MAINTENANCE: 

- A security check will be made by inspecting any broken floor returns, skimmer plates,

life rings, shepherd’s hook, loose handrails, main drain, etc.

- Maintain inspection report for DH921 as per Health Department.

- Chlorine and pH levels will be recorded on the chemical maintenance log on every

service.

- Chemicals not included.

- Testing and adjusting chemical values as needed. This includes pH, chlorine, total

alkalinity, Muriatic acid, and calcium hardness levels.

- Chemicals (Total Alkalinity, Muriatic Acid, and Calcium Hardness) will be tested once a

week as per Health Department.

- Vacuum / brush floors and walls / net / skim / clean tiles.

- Backwash filters weekly or sooner.

- Clean all filter cartridges and clean all filters at a minimum of weekly or sooner.

- Clean pump and skimmer baskets or any lint traps.

l

mailto:powerpoolservices@outlook.com


- Heated swimming pools: Adjust water volume for heater efficiency.

- Monitor condition of pool and its workings.

- Inform management or owners of any parts that need attention or replacing before

purchase. (Repairs not included)

PROPOSAL PRICING: 

Services will be provided seven days a week at a rate of $2,800.00 per month. If overtime is 

needed due to natural disasters, the rate will be $60 per hour / per personal. Service calls (for 

emergencies) will be provided from 7:00 am to 6:00 pm. Any emergencies that are not in the 

scope of work listed above, are considered a service call. Service calls will be attended to no 

later than one hour from the time the call was requested. Service calls have a cost of $120 per 

call upon arrival and $80 per hour.  

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL: 

Either party may terminate this agreement with 30 days’ notice. All accounts must be paid up 

to date for notice to be given (Should there be a disagreement that cannot be solved). When 

inspected by the local health department Power Pool Services, LLC must receive a legible copy 

of the inspection within 24 hours so that any work needed may be completed by the due date. 

This is a 12-month annual contract pricing, which will then role for the next consecutive twelve 

months, any changes to the contract need to be in writing and accepted by both parties. Non-

service hours should be monitored by onsite maintenance or members. 

All services will be performed by skilled and experienced certified pool operators. All work shall 

be done in a professional manner. Work areas shall be kept clean and free of debris. On 

acceptance Power Pool Services, LLC will start on the date agreed. All team members that work 

on commercial pools and spas are CPO/CPT certified, as required by the state. Please do not 

hesitate to call to discuss any of the above mentioned.  

Lukas Alfalla  

Owner/President 

(407)530-7112

l



Samdri Pool Services LLC

l



Samdri Pool Tech, LLC 

3539 Lady Diana Dr 

Davenport, FL 33837 
Cell: 407-953-4378 

Service Agreement for: 

• Soltera Resort

This agreement is for the weekly pool maintenance and chemical supply for all location (1 Large pool, 1 

Spa, and 1 Lazy River) 

Our services for cleaning and maintain the pools would be 7 Times a week. 
Pool Cleaning Duties: 

• Test water and adjust water chemistry
• Maintain proper water balance (PH, calcium, Chlorine, alkalinity and cya)
• Net, vacuum, brush walls and floor as needed it
• Clean filters to maintain flow required
• Clean tiles as needed it
• Maintain health department records
• Maintain water levels to allow scum gutter to operate at maximum efficiency

• Report any equipment defaults to management (If Samdri Pool Tech can do the
repair we will send a proposal for approval before service is performed)

• Maintain pool equipment are free of debris

Samdri Pool Tech, LLC. is responsible for maintaining the water to Health Department standards. 

If at any time the Health Dept. deems the pool below standards, Samdri Pool Tech, LLC. understands 

the fee charged by the Health Dept. will be deducted from monthly payment. 

The amount for the above-mentioned service for the pools at Soltera Resort is $6,500/month. Samdri Pool 

Tech, LLC is responsible for providing their own workers compensation and general liability insurance as 

well as keeping their licenses current. Payment is due 15 days from the date of the invoice to avoid a 

10% late fee. 

Any Emergency calls such as Human feces, vomiting, etc there will be a charge of $300.00 for the call. 

This agreement defines the understanding of services between Soltera Resort and Samdri Pool Tech, 

LLC. This agreement, should you accept, shall begin (  /  /  ) , unless noted otherwise herein, and 

continue for a period of one (1) year. This agreement will renew on anniversary date under the same terms in 

existence at the time of renewal. In the event of a breach, the allegedly breaching party must be provided with 

written notice of any violation of this Agreement and offered 30 days to cure this violation after receiving this 

notice. If the breach is not cured by the end of the 30-day period, then any previously delivered termination 

notice becomes effective without further notice. 

Samdri Pool Tech, LLC agrees to hold harmless and indemnify or all suits or claims, including but not 

limited to any involving allegations of negligence or malfeasance against Samdri Pool Tech, LLC. 

Venue for any dispute shall be resolved in Mediation between the two parties in Osceola County, Florida. 

Should either party need to seek legal assistance for the enforcement or based upon a breach of this 

agreement, then that party shall be entitled to prevailing party fees and cost, including attorney’s fees and 

costs. l



Acceptance: 
Date: 
Signature: 

Date: 
Signature: 

Samdri Pool Tech, LLC Date: 
Signature: 

Soltera Resort Board of Directors 

l



T&S Swimming Pool Services LLC

l



T&S SWIMMING POOL SERVICES LLC.
The services pool is for weekly pool maintenance to a
Large pool, a Spa, 1 Lazy River located in Soltera Resort.
Amount for Services monthly: $8000 dollars/month

SERVICE DETAIL
At each visit the following works will be carried
out:
*Vacuuming and cleaning background.
*Brushing the pool wall.
*Surface cleaning of water.
*Washing and rinsing of filter.
*Chlorine control and water PH.
*Record of the visit and observations in
general.
Monthly information will be given on the
service delivered via e mail or printed
document.
Maintains pools would be 7 times a week.
Administration of chemicals according to water
analysis. Guanerge Trujillo

Cellphone: 4075419642

1874 Cassidy knoll Drive, kindred, Fl ,34744

l



The following values are considered for swimming pools
with operating equipment pump, filter, lateral aspirations
and skimmer pipes without technical difficulties. If the
equipment is not in optimal condition, it is the
responsibility of the client to keep them in excellent
condition for which they have continuous advice.

We must consider that one of the points that differentiate
us from other services is the interest of providing high
quality in your pool, which translates into giving enough
time for the necessary details of the pool and not
performing maintenance in less time to "win" More "as the
competition. On the other hand, the staff of T & S
Swimming pool services are reliable, friendly, attentive,
respectful and responsible people.
If the pool is contaminated, it is necessary to perform a
Bacteriological Treatment of Water Recovery before
proceeding with the normal Cleaning Plan.

T&S SWIMMING POOL SERVICES LLC.

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 

  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 

  

l



Cheney Brothers

l



****ALL QUOTES MUST BE SIGNED AND ATTACHED TO THE BACK OF A SHAREPOINT
ORDER  WITH THE ITEMS BEING ORDERED WRITTEN ON THE SHAREPOINT ORDER.  NO
ORDERS WILL BE PROCESSED WITHOUT A SIGNED QUOTE***

e se note
Even with a signed contract/quote pricing may be subject to change
due to current extenuating circumstances in manufacturers
production processes and supply sources. We are unable to
guarantee any lead times due to manufacturing delays

***DUE TO CONSTANTLY INCREASING MATERIAL COSTS AND MANUFACTURER PRICE
INCREASES, PRICING ON THIS QUOTE NEEDS TO BE VERIFIED BEFORE PLACING FINAL
ORDER***

l



l



l



l



l



����������	���
� ������������������
�������������������� �
��������!����"�#����$%�������&���������'(��)���%*

&��+�	��,,,*,�%���$���������*�-������-�����-����&������������������������������!�&��"�!���$%�����-�&����������)���%���.�������

*&�-� ���

/0123245670�8/49:;9<=�>?1@567AB�C1D71E�;9F�=7D�8AA?1G�<5?H�I701�8JK1�/01�450L7B1�2�MM:NO�:PM�?KQ/0123245670�8/49:;9<=�>?1@567AB�C1D71E�;9F�=7D�8AA?1G�<5?H�I701�8JK1�/01�450L7B1�2�MM:NO�:PM�?KQ
R15@1�5�D1@71SR15@1�5�D1@71S TUVW�XY�TUVW�XY�Z[\]T̂[_̂ àaZ[\]T̂[_̂ àa bcd�XY�bcd�XY�]Tb̂ [_̂ à]Tb̂ [_̂ à

eVfgUhijhkUlUmjVeVfgUhijhkUlUmjV��nn��dVgUhijhkU�opiqrWVkUdVgUhijhkU�opiqrWVkU��nn��]mWWVjsqht�TsV�opiqrWVkU�hku�lirrtqVg]mWWVjsqht�TsV�opiqrWVkU�hku�lirrtqVg��nn��TsV�bhsvqkVgTsV�bhsvqkVg��nn��aqj�]mmtVu�TsV�bhsvqkVgaqj�]mmtVu�TsV�bhsvqkVg��nn��TsV�bhsvqkVg�aqj�]mmtVu�TsVTsV�bhsvqkVg�aqj�]mmtVu�TsV

bhsvqkVgbhsvqkVg��nn��/0123245670�8/49:;9<=�>?1@567AB�C1D71E�;9F�=7D�8AA?1G�<5?H�I701�8JK1�/01�450L7B1�2�MM:NO�:PM�?KQ/0123245670�8/49:;9<=�>?1@567AB�C1D71E�;9F�=7D�8AA?1G�<5?H�I701�8JK1�/01�450L7B1�2�MM:NO�:PM�?KQ

85D6 941BJ wxxyz{|

����&��}�����~�+��!$��

�����������{���

�iV�Um�h�Whki�hsUijVj�g�rjqsV�qksjVhgV��Uvqg�rjqsV��qtt�qksjVhgV�f��������mk��̂�̂�����

3B?�3B?�

mj�rh�WVkUg�hg�tm��hg���������WmkUv�����z��� ¡

lvqrg��jVV��qUv�

��¢������£¤¥¦§

����x�

l



����������	���
� ������������������
�������������������� �
��������!����"�#����$%�������&���������'(��)���%*

&��+�	��,,,*,�%���$���������*�-������-�����-����&������������������������������!�&��"�!���$%�����-�&����������)���%���.�������

*&�-� ���

/0123�/456346

78946�:;02<0=<4�>?4�@A14BC78946�:;02<0=<4�>?4�@A14BC

D0<E�FG=4

HIJJ�KILM

NOPQRSSRQTUO�VWXYTZWPNOPQRSSRQTUO�VWXYTZWP

K[M\]�̂_�̂̀abcJJcb̂d̀�̂a�\IeeM̀bJf�cgĉJcLJM�_de�fdIe�ceMch� �iOQWX�jNk�lUmW�n

o653G?8�7;46;24po653G?8�7;46;24p

qkl�lUmWr stttuvswwtvv

VxTyyTOzr

{aIcJJf�|[̂}a�̂̀�ut�~MM]a

�̂M��cJJ��\M����cb̂\��̂e�KddJM���\M��c\[̂̀ Ma

�56�B��289��56�B��289� �24p�:<<�>84�B

�2B9��2B8

�

�ed�I\Ma�I}�bd���u�JLh�d_�[cJ_�\ILM�̂\M�}Me��cf�

�̂a[�ca[Me�ac_M��cbMe��̂abêLIb̂d̀�bILM�c̀��}Jcab̂\�_dd��d̀M�}ceba��c]M�\JMc̀^̀��Mcaf�

u�bdI\[�ac̀ b̂̂�̂̀ ��c̀���Ma\cĴ̀���̂̀�̂\cbde����a�̀db̂_f�fdI��[M̀�\JMc̀^̀��̂a�eM�ÎeM��

��̂d̀�c̀b̂�̂\edL̂cJ�}edbM\b̂d̀��â�M�c̀��bd}�M�[cIab��̂a\[ce�M�

uu���

�06��G1�85������� �=0?��¡��¢�� �152�8B£
�̂b[�c�~MLabcIec̀b�¤M�ce�a��̂ac¥�KeM�̂b�Kce�

o6584?8�¦5G6�o653G?8o6584?8�¦5G6�o653G?8
§̈ �̈©ª«¬®¬̄«°


!!���±��--��!�!��������������²��


!!���±��--��!�!��������������#��+�����

�

³ZZWPPUXTWP�́�µyQTUOP

¶

¶

·xRQ�·W�µ̧ W̧X

KdgMec�M�abceb̂̀��cb�¹u��hw��

§̈ �̈¬«�º»ª¬

l



����������	���
� ������������������
�������������������� �
��������!����"�#����$%�������&���������'(��)���%*

&��+�	��,,,*,�%���$���������*�-������-�����-����&������������������������������!�&��"�!���$%�����-�&����������)���%���.�������

*&�-� ���

/0123�456�789:0�;8<1/0123�456�789:0�;8<1

/=1>?>7@08=�A/7BCDBEF/=1>?>7@08=�A/7BCDBEF�G10@8H3�G10@8H3

IJKKLM�NJOL�PQMRSRTUNOQ�IPTVWXVYZ�XV[�UO\�QKK]M̂�OQM�_UQJÒM�aK\�̂MbM̀ Ûc]M�OQM�b\K̂dQNOK̀�Ù �̂U�JKLN�Ka

L_U\N�̂MLOè�aMUNd\ML�NJUN�fO]]�JM]b�gKd\�cdLÒMLL�\d̀�UN�_UhO_d_�MaaOQOM̀Qgi�jJOL�OQM�_UQJÒM�OL�QUbUc]M�Ka

b\K̂dQÒe�db�NK�Wkl�]cm�Ka�JU]a�QdcM�nXop[�h�qop[�h�qop[r�OQM�bM\�̂Ug�Ù �̂ON�MhQMM̂L�M̀M\eg�\Med]UNOK̀L�aK\�OQM

_UQJÒMLs�b\KtÔÒe�LdbM\OK\�MaaOQOM̀Qg�NJUN�fO]]�LUtM�gKd�K̀�gKd\�dNO]ONg�cO]]m�Z]]�OQM�_UQJÒML�\MudO\M�a\MudM̀N

_UÒNM̀ÙQM�Ù �̂Q]MÙÒe�NK�vMMb�NJM_�\d̀ Ò̀e�b\KbM\]gs�LK�ONwL�O_bK\NÙN�NK�QJKKLM�U�_K̂M]�NJUN�fO]]�_UvM

NJOL�b\KQMLL�UL�MULg�Ù �̂UL�aULN�UL�bKLLOc]Mm�PQMRSRTUNOQwL�x]MtUNOK̀�LM\OML�UQQK_b]OLJML�NJOL�cg�_UvÒe�NJM

aKK̂yK̀M�QK_bK̀M̀NL�KdN�Ka�\MQgQ]Uc]Ms�̂OLJfULJM\RLUaMs�Ù �̂z{ZRa\MM�b]ULNOQm�|O_b]g�L̀Ub�MUQJ�bOMQM�KdNs

\d̀�NJM_�NJ\KdeJ�U�̂OLJfULJM\�QgQ]Ms�Ù �̂NJM̀�L̀Ub�NJM_�cUQv�ÒNK�b]UQM�NK�eMN�cUQv�NK�b\K̂dQÒe�OQMi�jJM

M̀NO\M�̂OLULLM_c]g�b\KQMLL�NUvML�_M\M�_ÒdNMLs�fJOQJ�_UvML�ON�MULOM\�aK\�gKd\�M_b]KgMML�NK�̂Ks�Ù �̂U]LK

_UvML�ON�_K\M�]OvM]g�NJUN�ON�fO]]�cM�̂K̀M�fJM̀�NJM�_UQJÒM�\MudO\ML�ONm�Ẑ ÔNOK̀U]]gs�vMg�QK_bK̀M̀NL�dNO]OyM

ZeOK̀�ÙNO_OQ\KcOU]�b\KNMQNOK̀�NK�JM]b�ÒJOcON�JU\_ad]�bUNJKeM̀L�a\K_�e\KfÒe�Ò�NJM�aO\LN�b]UQMm��

jJM�}̀OtM\LU]�|_U\N�YU\̀MLL�QK̀N\K]�cKU\̂�LgLNM_�U]]KfL�MULg�UQQMLLs�Ù �̂b\KtÔML�̂OeONU]�̂OUèKLNOQLs

d̀OtM\LU]�QK_bK̀M̀NL�Ù �̂U�QK__K̀�QK̀aOed\UNOK̀�NJUN�NKeMNJM\�_UvM�ON�MULg�Ù �̂ÒNdONOtM�NK�LMN�db�gKd\

M̀f�_UQJÒMs�Ù �̂NK�aÒ̂ �Ù �̂aOh�U�b\Kc]M_�LJKd]̂�K̀M�U\OLMm�jJOL�N\ÙL]UNML�NK�LJK\NM\�ÒLNU]]UNOK̀�NO_MLs

MULOM\�LM\tOQM�QU]]Ls�Ù �̂_K\M�_K̀Mg�LUtM̂�K̀�gKd\�cKNNK_�]ÒMi�jJOL�UO\RQKK]M̂�_K̂M]�U]LK�Û \̂MLLML�N\OQvg

ÒLNU]]UNOK̀�Q]MU\ÙQM�\MudO\M_M̀NL�fONJ�ONL�d̀OudM�̂dU]RMhJUdLN�̂MLOèi�zMQUdLM�ON�JUL�JKN�UO\�̂OLQJU\eM

tM̀NL�K̀�cKNJ�NJM�NKb�Ù �̂NJM�LÔMs�NJOL�d̀ON�QÙ�cM�ÒLNU]]M̂�Ò�U�fÔM\�\ÙeM�Ka�]KQUNOK̀L�fONJKdN�aMU\�Ka

KcLN\dQNÒe�NJM�MhJUdLNm�PN�dLML�~�V�Z�\Ma\OeM\ÙN�Ù �̂\MudO\ML�U�llW��M]MQN\OQU]�QK̀ M̀QNOK̀m��

��������������������

�ÔNJ��XV�lo�[��

�MbNJ�����lo�[�

YMOeJN���l�lo�[

�������������������������������������K\�_K\M�ÒaK\_UNOK̀�Ù �̂NObL�NK�JM]b�gKd\�̂M]OtM\g�eK�L_KKNJ]gs

Q]OQv�JM\Mm

zMQUdLM�NJOL�ONM_�OL�̀KN�LNKQvM̂�Ò�Kd\�fU\MJKdLMs�b\KQMLLÒes�N\ÙLON�NO_ML�Ù �̂LNKQv�UtUO]UcO]ONg�fO]]�tU\gm�Pa

gKd�̀MM̂�gKd\�ONM_L�cg�U�QM\NUÒ�̂UNMs�b]MULM�QK̀NUQN�dL�b\OK\�NK�b]UQÒe�gKd\�K\̂M\m�xhbM̂ONM̂�LJObbÒe

/=1>?>7@08=
AG�BBDB�DB�

�8�1�E501H�/=1

/=1>?>7@08=���B ¡
/=1�¡05¢@91��8£�>

D���H¤¥

/=1>?>7@08=��CC ¡
/=1�¡05¢@91��8£�>

C¦B�H¤¥

/=1>?>7@08=
�¦¦B ¡�§18£̈5¢=1�

/=1�¡05¢@91��8£�>

b]dL b]dL b]dL b]dL

©�ª¦«�¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

©¦ª¦¶·¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

©¦ªD·B¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

©¦ª̧¹�¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

/=1>?>7@08=
/Aº¦CB»F�¹��¦¬¹�
F8¢�A55H1�

/=1>?>7@08=
/AºDBBEF�DB�
F8¢�A55H1�

/=1>?>7@08=
A/7BDDBEF
H1¼@085£�¡1¢813

/=1>?>7@08=
ºA½B«BF�¦C��F8¢
A55H1�

b]dL b]dL b]dL b]dL

©¹ª·B�¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

©Dª«C¹¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

©DªD¦«¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

©¦ª̧¹�¥BB¬@=:

® °̄°�±²�³́ µ±

l



����������	���
� ������������������
�������������������� �
��������!����"�#����$%�������&���������'(��)���%*

&��+�	��,,,*,�%���$���������*�-������-�����-����&������������������������������!�&��"�!���$%�����-�&����������)���%���.�������

*&�-� ���

/0/12/312145�6/5�0/758�9:�;/<<=4�>?/7/<4::�4@/4�4@1A�14:6�;/<�3:�;/<;:22:B�=CC�=C�4@:�=7B:7�=7�7:4?7<:B�=<;:�14

1A�D2/;:B8

EFGHIHJKLEF�FEJMNOMPK�QRGFQEFGHIHJKLEF�FEJMNOMPK�QRGFQ

S?/<4145 TUV/;@

91B4@ WX�TUY�Z<;@:A

[:D4@ \Y�TUY�Z<;@:A

]:1>@4 \T�TUY�Z<;@:A

6̂DA T_8̀�̂6DA

]:74a bX�]:74a

c@/A: T�c@/A:

d=24/>: TTe�d=24A

\Y�]=?7�Z;:�f1:2B ebT�c=?<BA

g=<B:<A:7�h5D: 1̂7�g==2:B

i:/4?7:A

jĉ�i7::�

k/B:�1<�̂6:71;/�

lmi�n1A4:B

Z;:�h5D: ]/2C�m1a:�g?3:A

o

o

pqrstsuvwxq�yzr{vwx|}�~r�xr����r�qvzx}����~v}xwx�x}�pqrstsuvwxq�yzr{vwx|}�~r�xr����r�qvzx}����~v}xwx�x}�

n:/7<�@=��4=�B:A;/2:�/<B�A/<141a:�5=?7�V2:0/41=<�m:71:A�6/;@1<:8

u|�r��x�r|�u|�r��x�r|�

Z;:���k/41;�V2:0/41=<�m:71:A��[:A;/21<>���m/<141a1<>

Z;:���k/41;�V2:0/41=<�m:71:A�Z<47=B?;41=<

���������� ����������

l



����������	���
� ������������������
�������������������� �
��������!����"�#����$%�������&���������'(��)���%*

&��+�	��,,,*,�%���$���������*�-������-�����-����&������������������������������!�&��"�!���$%�����-�&����������)���%���.�������

*&�-� ���

/01232456/0�0/47897:5�;<10;/01232456/0�0/47897:5�;<10;

=>?@�ABCD EFGHIJGD

=KIDG�LMF@D NOPQ�RST�CDG�UVV�>WMO

ABCD XYD�ZFYTJ[DM

SF\DG�LMF@D U]O]�̂F>>K[M�CDG�UVV�>WMO_̀abcdef�g̀eabhcia�jkc̀b�blha�mfcǹob_̀abcdef�g̀eabhcia�jkc̀b�blha�mfcǹob

:pq�rp�/�stuvw�xy�zv{�stvwz|{}~��z|}~�t|r�rz}y{|}{�}�

AK�TD>C�BK?��J[H�\TD�GJ@T\�WJ[���HJMCD[MDG����FYTJ[D�YK�WJ[F\JK[��KG�BK?G�[DDHM��BK?�>>��J[H��F[?�FY\?GDG�GDYK��D[HDH�JYD�WJ[M�F[H�HJMCD[MDGM

>JM\DH�J[�\TD�SKGRM�SJ\T�J\D�M�K[�DFYT�JYD��FYTJ[D�M�CGKH?Y\�CF@DO��JMCD[MDGM�F[H�JYD�WJ[M�IJ>>�TF�D��F[?�FY\?GDG�GDYK��D[HDH�JYD��FYTJ[DM

>JM\DH�J[�\TD�SKGRM�SJ\T�J\D�M�K[�\TDJG�CF@DMO�X��\TD�WJ[�KG�HJMCD[MDG�JM�IJHDG�\TF[�\TD�JYD��FYTJ[D��FHHJ\JK[F>�FHFC\DGM��HD�>DY\KGM��F[H�KG�\KC�RJ\M

�FB�WD�[DYDMMFGB�\K��KJ[�\TD��FYTJ[D�\K�\TD�WJ[O�=>DFMD�GD�DG�\K�\TD�CGK�JHDH�HKY?�D[\F\JK[�K[�\TD�JYD��FYTJ[D�F[H�JYD�WJ[���HJMCD[MDG�CGKH?Y\

CF@DM��KG��KGD�J[�KG�F\JK[O�

�HHJ\JK[F>>B��FHFC\DG�F[H�HD�>DY\KG�RJ\M�YF[�WD�?MDH�\K��F\YT�?C�JYD��FYTJ[DM�IJ\T�K\TDG�\BCDM�K��WJ[M���HJMCD[MDGMO�STD[�F�FJ>FW>D��>J\DGF\?GD��GK�

\TD��F[?�FY\?GDG�GD@FGHJ[@�WJ[��HJMCD[MDG����FYTJ[D�YK�CF\JWJ>J\B�F[H�FHFC\DG���HD�>DY\KG�RJ\M�JM�F>MK�J[Y>?HDH�K[�K?G�CGKH?Y\�CF@DM�F[H�JM�RDC\�FM

?C�\K�HF\D�FM�CKMMJW>DO�X��BK?�TF�D�F[B��?DM\JK[M��K?G��?M\K�DG��K>?\JK[M�\DF��JM�F>MK�TFCCB�\K�TD>C�

�w��z}�t�qtu{���z�u{��txupstuzvt����trr{r�up�s��vt�u�qzuw�uwz}�zu{s�

ATD�?MD�K��CKKG��?F>J\B��DDH�IF\DG��FB��KJH�BK?G�D�?JC�D[\�M�IFGGF[\BO�ATDGD�KGD��J\�M�J�CKG\F[\�\TF\�BK?G�IF\DG�WD��J>\DGDH�\K�\TD�TJ@TDM\��?F>J\B�F[H

F�YK�CF\JW>D�IF\DG��J>\DG�IJ>>�WD�J[Y>?HDH�ITD[�BK?�FHH�\TJM�CJDYD�K��D�?JC�D[\�\K�BK?G�YFG\O��K?��FB�GD�K�D�\TD��J>\DG��GK��\TD�YFG\�CGJKG�\K

C?GYTFMDO

4��zv{�stvwz|{�wt}��{{|�}wxu�rpq|~�p��|pu�z|�x}{�}z|v{�uw{�03�/�2���}wxurpq|}~�wpq�}wpx�r�/��{}ut�u�zu�

X��BK?G�JYD��FYTJ[D�TFM�WDD[�MT?\�HKI[�KG�[K\�J[�?MD��KG�F�CGK>K[@DH�CDGJKH�\J�D��C>DFMD�GD�DGD[YD�BK?G��FYTJ[D�M�?MDG��F[?F>��KG�F�GDM\FG\

CGKYDH?GD��K�\D[�YF>>DH��SJ[\DGJ�F\JK[O��=>DFMD�GD�DGD[YD�BK?G�?MDG��F[?F>�KG�YK[\FY\�Y?M\K�DG�MDG�JYD�IJ\T�F[B��?DM\JK[MO

�z���uwz}�zv{�stvwz|{�s{{u�s���x}z|{}}�}�zv{�r{st|r�

��DGB�W?MJ[DMM�\BCD�TFM�?[J�?D�HD�F[HM��KG�JYDO�X��BK?�TF�D�F[B��?DM\JK[M�FWK?\�TKI��?YT�JYD�BK?�>>�[DDH�C>DFMD�GD�DGD[YD�K?G�6�y{}�p��/v{

4tvwz|{}�W?BJ[@�@?JHDO

�a �¡c̀f�c¢i�g̀eabhci£

�¤¥¥¦§¥̈©§�ª¤�«¦¬̈¦§¥¬®�̄°©±�²³�́ µ°§̈§¶�·

j̧ne�hi��defhojj̧ne�hi��defhoj

ATJM�J\D��IFM��FHD�J[�\TD�L[J\DH��\F\DM�K����DGJYFO

¹º»�¼haben¹º»�¼haben

ATJM�J\D���DD\M�\TD�M\F[HFGHM�J�CKMDH�WB�½�¾�X[\DG[F\JK[F>��ITJYT��KY?MDM�K[�C?W>JY�MF�D\B��TDF>\T��F[H�\TD�D[�JGK[�D[\O

¿¼�¿º�À�_jijnj¿¼�¿º�À�_jijnj

ATJM�J\D��TFM�WDD[�\DM\DH�F[H��DD\M�MF�D\B�M\F[HFGHM�J�CKMDH�WB�\TD�L[HDGIGJ\DGM�ÁFWKGF\KGJDM�ÂLÁÃ��KG�?MD�J[�\TD�L[J\DH��\F\DM�K����DGJYF�F[H��F[FHFO

¿¼�¼haben�Ä�Å¿¿¼�¼haben�Ä�Å¿

ATJM�J\D��TFM�WDD[�\DM\DH�F[H��DD\M�MF�D\B�M\F[HFGHM�J�CKMDH�WB�\TD�L[HDGIGJ\DGM�ÁFWKGF\KGJDM�ÂLÁÃ�\K��DD\�MCDYJ�JY�CGKCDG\JDM�F[H�F�>J�J\DH�GF[@D�K��TF�FGHM

�KG�CGKH?Y\�MF�D\BO

_Å�¼haben_Å�¼haben

ATJM�J\D��YK�C>JDM�IJ\T�\TD�M\F[HFGHM�J�CKMDH�WB�\TD��K[�KG�F[YD��?GKCDF[�Â��Ã��F�HJ�JMJK[�K��\TD�X[\DG\DR�@GK?CO

ÆÇ��»feeÆÇ��»fee

ATJM�J\D��JM��GDD�K��\TD�YTD�JYF>�ÈJMCTD[K>���ÂÈ=�Ã�F[H�JM�MF�D��KG��KKH�YK[\FY\O

Éjfn¢hfenÉjfn¢hfen

ATJM�CGKH?Y\��?M\�WD�TFGHIJGDH�WB�F�CGK�DMMJK[F>Ê�J\�HKDM�[K\�C>?@�J[\K�F�M\F[HFGH�IF>>�K?\>D\O l



Re andmore.com

l



�

�������	
	����

�l



��������	�
���

�l



��������	�
���

�l



��������	�
���

�l



��������	�
���

�l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 

  

l



Cheney Brothers

l



****ALL QUOTES MUST BE SIGNED AND ATTACHED TO THE BACK OF A SHAREPOINT
ORDER  WITH THE ITEMS BEING ORDERED WRITTEN ON THE SHAREPOINT ORDER.  NO
ORDERS WILL BE PROCESSED WITHOUT A SIGNED QUOTE***
 

e se note
Even with a signed contract/quote pricing may be subject to change
due to current extenuating circumstances in manufacturers
production processes and supply sources. We are unable to
guarantee any lead times due to manufacturing delays

***DUE TO CONSTANTLY INCREASING MATERIAL COSTS AND MANUFACTURER PRICE
INCREASES, PRICING ON THIS QUOTE NEEDS TO BE VERIFIED BEFORE PLACING FINAL
ORDER***
 

l



l



l



�����������	��
� �������������������	��������������������������������	�			� !"

#��$����%%%�%�����������������&�'������(���&�������	�����������(���)�����)�������	�			�����	���������#�&� ��*

+,-./0�12345671�45758�-9:�;/<,=/-�2/>�?-@@=�?=AB=�7�1C8D888�EFG+,-./0�12345671�45758�-9:�;/<,=/-�2/>�?-@@=�?=AB=�7�1C8D888�EFG
HB/IB�/�=BIJBKHB/IB�/�=BIJBK LMNO�PQ�LMNO�PQ�RSTTUVWXYZRSTTUVWXYZ Y[V�PQ�Y[V�PQ�TUVWXY\TTUVWXY\T

]N̂_M̀ab̀cMdMebN]N̂_M̀ab̀cMdMebN��ff��VN_M̀ab̀cM�ghaijONcMVN_M̀ab̀cM�ghaijONcM��ff��keelicm�ghaijONcMkeelicm�ghaijONcM��ff��keOONbnìo�[bpNb_keOONbnìo�[bpNb_��ff��Ù_�[bpNb_Ù_�[bpNb_��ff��+,-./0�12345671�45758�-9:�;/<,=/-�2/>�?-@@=�?=AB=�7+,-./0�12345671�45758�-9:�;/<,=/-�2/>�?-@@=�?=AB=�7

1C8D888�EFG1C8D888�EFG

q/=< 86B0, rsstuvw

x����#�yz	�			{�$��|���

}~���������v���

�=@<B.<�@,=�=@�,.<�=@<B.<��@,=��=@�,.<
r��� w w�

�������������

eb�j̀pONcM_�̀_�oe��̀_���������OecM���~��u���� 

d�ij_�¡bNN��iM��

3B</J-��=J.B3B</J-��=J.B H@KB><��=J.B�2,/=/0<BB
k�̀M�Ze��f�¢£¤�¢�¥¥

���~s�

l



�����������	��
� �������������������	��������������������������������	�			� !"

#��$����%%%�%�����������������&�'������(���&�������	�����������(���)�����)�������	�			�����	���������#�&� ��*

+,-./�+012/02

34502�67,.8,980�:;08�<=-0>?34502�67,.8,980�:;08�<=-0>?

@,4;2,8�A,>

BCDECF�GHIJKLM

NOPQRSSRQTUO�VWXYTZWPNOPQRSSRQTUO�VWXYTZWP

[\M]̂�C_�CL̀aKbbKaCIL�C̀�]EHHMLabc�KdKCbKebM�_IH�cIEH�KHMKf� �gOQWX�hNi�jUkW�l

m21/;n4�37027.0om21/;n4�37027.0o

pij�jUkWq rsHtuvwr

VxTyyTOzq

{CM|�Kbb�{Eb]KL�}K̀�~HcMH̀

�12�>��.45��12�>��.45�

�.>5��.>4

�

tuwu��bef�ICb�]KJK]Cac�

�̀MHw_HCMLFbc�vCbbCdIba�]ILaHIb̀�HMDECHM�LI�MbM]aHC]�\IÎwEJ�

�aKCLbM̀ �̀̀aMMb�]IL̀aHE]aCIL�

�Cs\wbCvCa�̀\Ea�I__�_IH�̀K_Mac��JCbIa�CsLCaCIL�̀c̀aMv�

���wt���FMsHMM�~K\HML\MCa�aMvJMHKaEHM�HKLsM�

�KL̂�eHÈ\��]HEve�̀]IIJ��KLF�]bMKLwIEa�HIF�CL]bEFMF�

�|I�a|CL�̀C�M�_Hc�eK̀ M̂à�|Ca\�JbK̀aC]�]IKaMF�\KLFbM̀�_IH�]Iv_IHa�

r������������LKaEHKb�sK̀�]ILLM]aCIL�HMDECHMF�

��TZ��VxTyyTOz
�̀EKbbc�̀\CJ̀�CL�����PTOWPP�kR��

+0�0�n=����
�19.80�A,>
�1��0n412��1>0

�,28.>80��������
�-,24,� ¡���.�5¢
�0,4�:2=02�£2;>5

�50¤��,>402�¡��
:2=02��80,��3;4
+1/�o.45��,�/80

@1980��50¥.n,8��
1¦§�̈� ���¥�
:2=n81�0�:2=02�3.8

JbÈ JbÈ JbÈ JbÈ

©���§ªª̈«,n5

¬�®̄�°±²®

© ³§ªª̈«,n5

¬�®̄�°±²®

©́§�ª̈«,n5

¬�®̄�°±²®

©�ª§ªª̈�,>0

¬�®̄�°±²®

«,2��;-�41�©�³�§ª��9,n��µ�³¶�ª��-1.�4>·
|Ca\�K�̧MèaKEHKLa�¹M|KHF̀�{C̀Kº�[HMFCa�[KHF

m2140n4�»1;2�m21/;n4140n4�1;�1/;n4
¬�¼²̄®½¾®¿̄À

�

[IdMHKsM�̀aKHaCLs�Ka�ÁrrÂfÃu�

¬�®̄�°±²®

l



�����������	��
� �������������������	��������������������������������	�			� !"

#��$����%%%�%�����������������&�'������(���&�������	�����������(���)�����)�������	�			�����	���������#�&� *�+

,-./01�23456782,-./01�23456782�9:;0<.=�9:;0<.=

>?@AB?C�DEFG?H�EIH?C�DEFG?H�JI�IC?FK@L�ICA?M�IJJMF�HJ�LJNC�ONFHJP?CF�QAHK�HKAF�RN@OES�TUVWXYZT�WXZX[�@D\

SEHNCE@�]EF�I@JJC�ICL?Ĉ�_AHK�ES�JA@�OÈEOAHL�JI�WXZX[�@D\a�HKAF�NSAH�AF�̀EOG?M�QAHK�]C?EH�D?S?IAHF�HJ�PEG?�LJNC

ICLAS]�?b̀?CA?SO?�EF�?EFL�ESM�?IIAOA?SH�EF�̀JFFAD@?\�cJEFHAS]�E�TWd�b�TWd�ICLAS]�EC?Ea�HKAF�HND?ZFHL@?�ICL?C

M?@AB?CF�Te[a[[[�cfg�JI�̀JQ?C�ESM�OJP?F�QAHK�e�HQAS�ICL�DEFG?HFa�FJ�LJN�OES�]?H�HJ�ICLAS]�EF�FJJS�EF�LJN�IA@@

HK?�HESĜ��

hiNÀ̀ ?M�QAHK�NF?CZICA?SM@L�FSÈ�EOHAJS�PA@@ABJ@H�OJSHCJ@Fa�HKAF�NSAHjF�H?P̀ ?CEHNC?�OES�D?�EMkNFH?M�ICJP�e[[Z

W[[�M?]C??F�lEKC?SK?AH�AS�kNFH�E�I?Q�FAP̀ @?�FH?̀F\�m@NFa�HJ�?SFNC?�FEI?HL�IJC�E@@�?P̀ @JL??Fa�E�KAZ@APAH�ASMAOEHJC

FKNHF�JII�HK?�]EF�OJSS?OHAJS�ESM�FHESMAS]�̀A@JH�AI�HK?�JA@�H?P̀ ?CEHNC?F�]?H�HJJ�KA]K\�n�@EC]?�RZFKÈ?M�OJ@M

oJS?�EH�HK?�DJHHJP�JI�HK?�ICL�HESG�̀C?B?SHF�OCNPDF�ESM�JHK?C�M?DCAF�ICJP�DNCSAS]a�QKAOK�?bH?SMF�HK?�@AI?�JI

LJNC�JA@�ESM�G??̀F�̀CJMNOHF�HEFHAS]�]C?EH\�n�T�TpWd�IN@@�̀JCH�MCEAS�BE@B?�PEG?F�JA@�C?PJBE@�E�iNAOG�ESM�KEFF@?Z

IC??�̀CJO?FF\�

cJHK�HK?�OEDAS?H�ESM�ICL�HESG�EC?�OJP̀ CAF?M�JI�CN]]?M�FHEAS@?FF�FH??@�HKEHjF�M?FA]S?M�HJ�QAHKFHESM�HK?�KNFH@?

ESM�DNFH@?�JI�E�DNFL�OJPP?COAE@�GAHOK?S\�fJ�EAM�AS�HK?�O@?ESAS]�̀CJO?FFa�HK?�NSAH�OJP?F�QAHK�E�HESG�DCNFKa

OCNPD�FOJJ̀a�ESM�O@?ES�JNH�CJM\�fK?�DEFG?H�KES]?CF�EC?�E@FJ�C?PJBED@?�IJC�HKJCJN]K�QEFKAS]a�ESM�QK?S

LJN�S??M�HJ�O@?ES�D?KASM�HK?�ICL?Ca�HK?�qd�OEFH?CF�̀CJBAM?�?EFL�PES?NB?CEDA@AHL\�lJC�LJNC�OJSB?SA?SO?a�HKAF

ICL?C�OJP?F�QAHK�DJHK�E�Tped�ESM�rpWd�]EF�OJSS?OHAJS\�fKAF�NSAH�C?iNAC?F�SEHNCE@�]EF�IJC�J̀?CEHAJS\�

stuvwxx�yz{u|}z~|}��

�?IH�HJ�VA]KH��TX�Tped�

lCJSH�HJ�cEOG��r[�TpWd�

�?A]KH��W��Tp�d�

lCLAS]�nC?E��TWd�b�TWd�

�A@��ÈEOAHL��WXZX[�@D\

y�u��~�{w|��w���vuv��v~����z~|�twvzw�z~|}����u�����u��~{�w�z�zxz���vu}~�v�u��~�u|}�vu���z}��wv��z}

}�z�w�xu��~v��~�v�w��xz�w�z~|�

��z}���u{���z�}�tzw��~{{~|��wvvzuv��lJC�PJC?�ASIJCPEHAJS�ESM�HÀF�HJ�K?@̀�LJNC�M?@AB?CL�]J�FPJJHK@La

O@AOG�K?C?\

����������� ¡¢���£¤������������� ¡¢���£¤��

¥NESHAHL TphEOK

_AMHK TX�Tpe�¦SOK?F

>?̀HK r[�TpW�¦SOK?F

�?A]KH W��Tp��¦SOK?F

lCL�mJH�_AMHK TW�¦SOK?F

lCL�mJH�>?̀HK TW�¦SOK?F

cNCS?C�§HL@? fND?

�EDAS?H §HEAS@?FF�§H??@

¨ ¨ ¨ ¨

l



�����������	��
� �������������������	��������������������������������	�			� !"

#��$����%%%�%�����������������&�'������(���&�������	�����������(���)�����)�������	�			�����	���������#�&� ��*

+,-./0�12345671�89:.8+,-./0�12345671�89:.8

;<=<>?@A BC�D�CE�FGH

IJ<@KLJM
N<OJ�?P�QRJL?><�

STI�U?M@JO

V<M�WPFJ@�T?XJ YZB�WP>[JM

SKRGJL�\]�ILA�̂<M_J@M `

SKRGJL�\]�ILA�a\@M b

a\cJL�dA=J S<@KL<F�V<M

T=F?@�a\@ e?@[\K@�T=F?@�a\@

dJR=JL<@KLJ�f<PgJ ÈE�D�BEE�hJgLJJM�I

d\@<F�̂di b̀EjEEE�̂di

dA=J V<M�IF\\L�ILAJLM
klmnopqr�slqmntoum�vwoln�nxtm�yrozl{nklmnopqr�slqmntoum�vwoln�nxtm�yrozl{n

.|}�~������������������

eJGM@<KL<P@�T@\LJ�\]]JLM�>JL@<?P�\=@?\P<F�R\O?]?><@?\PM�]\L�@[?M�?@JRH�W]�A\K�<LJ�?P@JLJM@JO�?P�R\LJ�?P]\LR<@?\P�]\L�R\O?]A?Pg�@[?M�KP?@j�=FJ<MJ�]?FF�\K@

@[?M�]\LRj�8����|��������3�����������j�<PO�<�RJRGJL�\]�\KL�;KM@\R��K\@J�@J<R�c?FF�GJ�?P�@\K>[�?P�bD̀�GKM?PJMM�O<AM�

6������}�������|��|����������|���}��������������|}���|}����}�����}�~��������|�������}���������}��

N<PA�g<M�J�K?=RJP@�R<PK]<>@KLJLM�PJJO�@\�R<_J�<O�KM@RJP@M�@\�@[J�J�K?=RJP@�M\�?@�\=JL<@JM�>\LLJ>@FA�<@�JFJ�<@?\PM�\�JL�̀jEEE�]JJ@H�T\RJ@?RJM

cJ�><P�M=J>?<F�\LOJL�]L\R�@[J�R<PK]<>@KLJL�<PO�[<�J�A\KL�>\\_?Pg�J�K?=RJP@�OJF?�JLJO�LJ<OAD@\Dg\j�GK@�?P�><MJM�c[JLJ�A\KL�KP?@�?M�?P�M@\>_�<PO

c<?@?Pg�@\�M[?=j�A\K�FF�PJJO�@\�[<�J�<��K<F?]?JO�MJL�?>J�@J>[P?>?<P�>\RJ�@\�A\KL�F\><@?\P�<PO�<F@JL�A\KL�KP?@�<@�@[J�@?RJ�\]�?PM@<FF<@?\P�M\�@[<@�?@�?M

>\R=<@?GFJ�c?@[�<�[?g[JL�JFJ�<@?\PH�;\P@<>@�\KL�T=J>?<F��LOJLM�@J<R�=L?\L�@\�=F<>?Pg�A\KL�\LOJLj�<PO�cJ�c?FF�FJ@�A\K�_P\c�c[<@�c?FF�c\L_�GJM@�]\L�@[J

J�K?=RJP@�A\K�<LJ�=F<PP?Pg�@\�=KL>[<MJH

�m �¡olr�o¢u�slqmntou£

�¤¥¥¦§¥̈©§�ª¤�«¦¬̈¦§¥¬®�̄°©±�²³�́ µ°§̈§¶�·

¹̧º»�¼vm�kouuq{ntou¹̧º»�¼vm�kouuq{ntou

d[?M�KP?@�>\RJM�c?@[�<�bZ̀½�g<M�>\PPJ>@?\P�@\�GJ�?PM@<FFJO�GA�<�=L\]JMM?\P<FH

¾¹¿»�¼vm�kouuq{ntou¾¹¿»�¼vm�kouuq{ntou

d[?M�KP?@�>\RJM�c?@[�<�YZB½�g<M�>\PPJ>@?\P�@\�GJ�?PM@<FFJO�GA�<�=L\]JMM?\P<FH

kÀ��ÁÂlq�ÃÂvpqkÀ��ÁÂlq�ÃÂvpq

d[?M�?@JR�[<M�GJJP�>JL@?]?JO�GA�@[J�;<P<O?<P�T@<PO<LOM�QMM\>?<@?\P�Ä;TQÅ�<PO�RJJ@M�<==F?><GFJ�;<P<O?<P�M@<PO<LOM�]\L�<==F?<P>JM�KM?Pg�g<M�\L�=J@L\FJKR�]KJFH

kÀ��ÆqmtÇu�kqrnkÀ��ÆqmtÇu�kqrn

d[?M�?@JR�[<M�GJJP�>JL@?]?JO�GA�@[J�;<P<O?<P�T@<PO<LOM�QMM\>?<@?\P�Ä;TQÅ�<PO�RJJ@M�<==F?><GFJ�iHTH�M@<PO<LOMH

Èvzq�tu��pqrt{vÈvzq�tu��pqrt{v

d[?M�?@JR�c<M�R<OJ�?P�@[J�iP?@JO�T@<@JM�\]�QRJL?><H

ÉÀÃ�ÊtmnqzÉÀÃ�Êtmnqz

d[?M�?@JR�RJJ@M�@[J�M@<PO<LOM�?R=\MJO�GA�STI�WP@JLP<@?\P<Fj�c[?>[�]\>KMJM�\P�=KGF?>�M<]J@Aj�[J<F@[j�<PO�@[J�JP�?L\PRJP@H

l



l



�����������	
��� �����������������	�������������������������� ������	�			�!"#

$��%����&&&�� ����������%%�����'�(�������)���'�����	������������)���*�����*�� ��&+�$�'+��+(�����$ �'�����������������	�			���� ��,

-./0�12345.6�789:;:-.<=86�>8?<@2./6�./A�B=@39/@9:C=<9�D5?A48<@�E?F�7/�><?8GH

I I I I I

JKLMNO�PQRSTU�STVTW�LXY�ZN[K\NL�QN]�̂L__\�̂\̀a\�bc[d�UcLLce_L[�fda\g_][N[�h_O[\_L]�V�PiWjWWW�kfl

m4n8./�opCqr-�qr:rs�ntu�E.<45.n�p.@�vn??5�v5095�F=<w�-=nn=x?n<�yw952?@<.<�z?/<5?n@�:�o{s6sss�|y}

~[ag���P�SP��U Q̂���PQRSTU�Z�f

iPT��k

JKLMNO

PQRSTU

�oq�u{����=<

�BB�y;�z�Cy

�q�u����1.8w

�BB�y;�z�Cy

������������������������l



�����������	
��� �����������������	�������������������������� ������	�			�!"#

$��%����&&&�� ����������%%�����'�(�������)���'�����	������������)���*�����*�� ��&+�$�'+��+(�����$ �'�����������������	�			���� ��,

-./012

345678�96:67;

<=

<=

96:54>7;;�9677>

95>?7@

A7;

0BC-DEF�G�-1C-DHF�G�IJC-D0F

<=

<=

-0KJJF�G�-0KJJF

-DHF�C�ID0F

<:6L@:>�.:;

<=

HJJM�C�0JJM�N

-

1J�OP

N>==@�2=87>

-HJQJJJ

R4�7:;S�T:S�6=�U:V7�W@578�XY5XV74�=@�Z;YQ�:;�T7>>�:;�6Y7�N@74XY�W@57;�=@�XY5[;�6=�\=�T56Y�6Y7UQ�5;�6=�8@=[�6Y7;7�Y:48C]:667@78

=@�XL6�567U;�546=�:�877[�W@S7@K�̂Y5;�T:SQ�S=L�V4=T�6Y:6�6Y7�W==8;�:@7�X==V78�_L5XV>S�:48�6Y=@=L\Y>SQ�:48�@7:8S�6=�;7@?7K�̂Y7

6@5XVS�[:@6�5;�XY==;54\�6Y7�@5\Y6�[57X7�=W�7_L5[U746Q�]L6�W=@6L4:67>SQ�6Y7�̀L>X:4Ca:@6�-./012�.:;�R>>CbL@[=;7�N@S7@�U:V7;�6Y5;

87X5;5=4�:�4=C]@:547@K

c56Y�]=6Y�:�X:]5476�:48�:�W@S�6:4V�6Y:6�:@7�X=4;6@LX678�=L6�=W�;6:54>7;;�;677>Q�6Y5;�W@S7@�5;�]L5>6�6=�>:;6�W=@�S7:@;�=W�X==V54\

?:@5=L;�W==8;�W=@�XL;6=U7@;K�̂Y7�̀�;Y:[78�87;5\4�=W�6Y7�X=>8�d=47�74;L@7;�6Y:6�:>>�X@LU];�:48�87]@5;�T5>>�W:>>�:T:S�W@=U�6Y7

]:;V76;Q�:48�6Y7�6Y@77�Y7:6�7GXY:4\7@�6L]7;�[@=?587�7?74�Y7:6�85;6@5]L65=4�6Y@=L\Y=L6�6Y7�6:4V�;=�[@=8LX6;�:@7�X==V78

[7@W7X6>S�7:XY�:48�7?7@S�65U7K�̂Y7�6:4V�X:4�Y=>8�0J�6=�1J�[=L48;�=W�;Y=@67454\Q�:48�6Y7�]:>>C6S[7�8@:54�?:>?7�U:V7;�56�7:;S�6=

7?:XL:67�=5>�:48�6YL;�X>7:454\�6Y7�6:4V�=L6�:�]@77d7�TY74�477878K�̂Y7�;4:[C:X65=4�6Y7@U=;6:6�X=46@=>;�:@7�7:;S�6=�=[7@:67

:48�6Y7�X:;67@;�>76�S=L�@=>>�6Y5;�:[[>5:4X7�TY7@7?7@�56�T=L>8�]7�6Y7�U=;6�X=4?745746�W=@�S=L�:48�S=L@�;6:e�U7U]7@;K�N=@�:

W@S7@�6Y:6�T5>>�[@=?7�@7>5:]>7�:48�\5?7�S=L�:4�7fX5746�T:S�6=�X==V�XY5XV74Q�Z;YQ�:[[765d7@;Q�:48�N@74XY�W@57;Q�6Y74�[L@XY:;7�6Y7

L̀>X:4Ca:@6�-./012K

�

ghijklmnkop�qrstuv�wxkphoxy

zo{|hjp�}~xjy

��������������������l



�����������	
��� �����������������	�������������������������� ������	�			�!"#

$��%����&&&�� ����������%%�����'�(�������)���'�����	������������)���*�����*�� ��&+�$�'+��+(�����$ �'�����������������	�			���� 
�,

�

-./01234156�789:;<�=>2>?6@

�

AB>51//�CDE>2@DF2@G��

HIJKLMN�OPQRSTU��

VJWMLN�RXQRSYU��

ZI[MLN�\]QRSOU��

_̂̀�abcI�dbefI

gLJh�JMIf�Leh�iIIj�kIlMJmIW�in�MLI�̂ejeWJej�_MejWelWh�̀hhokJeMJoj�p̂_̀q�ejW�fIIMh�e[[bJkeibI�̂ejeWJej�hMejWelWh�rol

e[[bJejkIh�chJjK�Keh�ol�[IMlobIcf�rcIbs

RSYU�teh�̂ojjIkMJoj

gLJh�cjJM�kofIh�uJML�e�RSYU�Keh�kojjIkMJojs

\SOU�teh�̂ojjIkMJoj

gLJh�cjJM�kofIh�uJML�e�\SOU�Keh�kojjIkMJojs

dbool�dlnIlv

dcIb�Mn[IN�jeMcleb�Kehv

RXQRSYU�Vv

dlIIQhMejWJjKv

RY]w]]]�agxv

_MeJjbIhh�hMIIb�keiJjIM�ejW�ROU�y�ROU�rln�Mejzv

OXQX]�bis�oJb�ke[ekJMnv

{JbbJ|obM�MLIlfohMeM�kojMlobhv

guJj�iehzIMhv

Ẁ}chMeibI�kehMIlh�Q�Y�bokzJjKv

RSYU�~Z�S�\SOU��Z�lIel�Keh�kojjIkMJojv

_̂̀w��_dv

VJML�ioML�e�keiJjIM�ejW�e�rln�Mejz�MLeM�elI�kojhMlckMIW�ocM�or�hMeJjbIhh�hMIIbw�MLJh�Jh�icJbM�Mo�behM�rol�nIelh�or�koozJjKv

��hLe[IW�WIhJKj�or�MLI�kobW��ojI�IjhclIh�MLeM�ebb�klcfih�ejW�WIilJh�uJbb�rebb�euen�rlof�MLI�iehzIMhv

gLlII�LIeM�IykLejKIl�MciIh�[lo|JWI�I|Ij�LIeM�WJhMlJicMJoj�MLlocKLocM�MLI�Mejzv

aebbQMn[I�WleJj�|eb|I�fezIh�JM�Iehn�Mo�I|ekceMI�oJb�ejW�MLch�kbIejJjK�MLI�Mejz�ocM�e�ilII�Iv

��������������������l



l



�����������	
��� ���������
���
�������������������	�			����

�  !����"""#���$�  #�%&�'�����(�)�
�&(
�(��()��(*����(��	(			(� � ��


+,-.�/ �0.12345362�7849:-.62�/ �;,--.5<93=�;,,>96?�7849:-.62�/ �;,--.5<93=�@..:�A5B.51�/ �;,--.5<93=�C31�@..:�A5B.51�/

D4=<36�EC0FGH�FG�=I�C31�A5B.5�J�EKLMLLL�NOP

QRSTUV�WXYZ[\�Z[�S]�XÛ�_̀ab̀�c�Wdefeee�ghi

j�kl35.�m�On..2�o�p96�92�q�kl35. p5962�p3?.� L�5.r9.n1

s̀tuRTv�wtubx�DPy;zEC0FGH

p59<.�A5,-{

|}~��}������73<l
�5�A5,-��EF����H,�����Sa��t�

��U�SU]�S�vax�P143==B�kl9:1�96�K�2,�G�N4196.11�@3B1

����������������

;l,,1.�36��:29,6���

�uu�wt��b̀T�US���V�Sb����S�UVTb̂��̀tvbTv�tV��̀t��

�������

 ¡¢£¤¤

¥������

�¥¢£¤¤

¡������

¥�¢£¤¤

¦������

¦�¢£¤¤

@4.�2,�?=,I3=�14::=B�<l396�9114.1M�3<243=�1l9:�29-.�,§�2l91�92.-��Ua��Ùa��̀t��v̈b�b̂v��Uvbu�̈b̀b��p=.31.�<,623<2�41�9§�B,4�n362�2,�r.59§B

,5�2,�©91<411�,2l.5�,:29,61�2l32�-3B�I.�3r39=3I=.�1,,6.5�

ª ª ª ª

E �««�h¬�w�Yh l



�����������	
��� ���������
���
�������������������	�			����

�  !����"""#���$�  #�%&�'�����(�)�
�&(
�(��()��(*����(��	(			(� � ��


+,-./0�123456�45�-7�2/8�9:;<:�=�1>?@???�ABC

DEF�GHIJKL�MNOPQR�STFF�UVKLWXLY�YKU�STZFT�XU�UHTF�V[�\T[WHJF�VE[UF�E[V�KLW�JTXU\Z�]FLH�XVF]U�VEKV�Z[HT�JHUV[]FTU�I[̂F_�DEXU�M̀abaaa�cDd�\FT

E[HT�STZFT�TFKJEFU�VF]\FTKVHTFU�eFVfFFL�̀aagh�KLW�Paagh_�DEF�VF]\FTKVHTF�JKL�eF�KWiHUVFW�fXVEXL�VEF�TKLYF�fXVE�XVU�]XIIX̂[IV�VEFT][UVKV_�DEXU�YKU

STZFT�J[]FU�UVKLWKTW�fXVE�KL�FKUZ�V[�KJJFUU�YKU�UEHVj[SS�̂KÎF�KLW�\XI[V�UKSFVZ�UZUVF]�V[�FLUHTF�eFVVFT�J[LVT[I_

h[HT�JKUVFTU�KII[f�VEXU�GHIJKL�STZFT�V[�eF�FKUXIZ�][̂FW�S[T�VTKLU\[TVXLY�[T�JIFKLXLY_�Df[�JKUVFTU�XLJIHWF�I[JkU�V[�KII[f�VEF�STZFT�V[�eF�I[JkFW�XL�\IKJF

fEFL�XL�[\FTKVX[L_�D[�EFI\�Z[H�]KXLVKXL�VEXU�WFF\�STZFTb�K�VKLk�eTHUEb�JTH]e�UJ[[\b�KLW�JIFKLj[HV�T[W�J[]FU�fXVE�FKJE�HLXV_

+,-./0�123456�9</l,:<8

mVKXLIFUU�UVFFI�STZ�VKLk�fXVE�K�PQ�V[�Qa�IeU_�JK\KJXVZb�Ma�ZFKT�VKLk�fKTTKLVZ

mVKXLIFUU�UVFFI�JKeXLFV

mFV�[S�S[HT�no�KWiHUVKeIF�JKUVFTU�p̀�I[JkXLYq

DfXL�STZ�eKUkFVU�fXVE�\IKUVXJ�J[KVFW�EKLWIFU

h[HT�EFKV�FrJEKLYFT�VHeFU�\[UXVX[LFW�S[T�FKUZ�JIFKLXLY

sXjIX]XV�UEHVj[SS

t[]eXLKVX[L�YKU�UEHVj[SS�̂KÎF�KLW�\XI[V�UKSFVZ�UZUVF]

M_̀Qo�SHII�\[TV�eKII�VZ\F�WTKXL�̂KÎF

DKLk�eTHUEb�UVKXLIFUU�UVFFI�JTH]e�UJ[[\�KLW�JIFKLj[HV�T[W

tmu�mVKTb�tmu�hIK]Fb�vmh�JFTVXwFW

+,-./0�123456�xy<.z{./lz|08

RKLHSKJVHTFT}�GHIJKL

R[WFI}�MNOPQR

t[LLFJVX[L}�~��[T�vKVHTKI

cDdU}�M̀abaaa

PQjQa�IeU_�STZ�VKLk�JK\KJXVZ

�X]FLUX[LU}�P�_MopEq�r�MQ_Qopfq�r��a_̀QopWq

�[TkXLY�sFXYEV}��n_̀Qo

�FXYEV}�̀MQ�IeU_

+,-./0�123456��/::/0l;

M��FKT�~X]XVFW��KTVU

M��FKT�~X]XVFW�~Ke[T

Ma��FKT�DKLk��KTTKLVZ

x<<�6|:<�+,-./0�9:;<:8

���y|:l/0l��:|y��5��0�|:�/lz|0��|:��/-z�|:0z/�3<8z�<0l8

������������������

GI MNOPQRm mE V

��������� ¡��¢£�¢�¤ ¥

l



l



�����������	��
� 
�������������������������������� �!��"���#����$����%�& ��'��

'��("���)))�������������������������������� �!��"���#����(�*	�
�*�+�� ��,

-./0�12�34/5�6251751

8237�9�:/16;75 :/16;75�9�</5/5= -34>>�?00>/4567@ ABC7B@ <770�ABC7B@

84D7�257�12�@7>>E

FGHI�JKLMHNOGP

JKKI�QRSKRT

UVWXYZ[\]�X]̂VZ_̀�Uàb�cYZV�d̀efg

hijkh

hlmn ml

opqrs�tusvwvxyz�{|w}~��~~�y���vx���|�r}sy���srxvu|w
������

���
������

��>645�������

AB77�-145�/5=

�4@�ABC7B
�/@/1�1;7���>645�-12B7

�71�����2��/5@1451>C���4C

�� ¡��¢����025�400B2D4>�£2B

1;7�?34¤25��7¥4B�@��/@4

¦4B�¢

§̈©ª« ��>645

¬©®̈ ©̄° -14/5>7@@�-177>

±²°²̈ -14/5>7@@�-177>

³®́

µ̄´®ª¶̄²ª¶

·̧¹ º̧

¡�¢�¡�»���¢��»

¡¼¢½��/56;7@

³®́

¹®̄¾¿

�À���2�5�@

ÁÂ²Ã�¿̄¶�̄®́

��>645���������������>Ä

Å41�B4>��4@�ABC7B

���>Ä�Å41�B4>��4@�ABC7B

��>645�84B1

������

ÆÇÈÉÊÆËÌÍ

ÎÏÏÐÏÏÑ

ÎÒÓ�ÔÕ�ÖÔ×Ø

µ̄¶Ù²Ú®̈�¶̄́ °̄©̈�̄®́ ¶

� �B/67� �7D/7¥� ¦2>2B� ¦4046/1C� ->2¥�¦22.7B�¦4046/1C�

�B2��61��B4�7� �2¥7B� 8741�-2�B67� �417B/4>� ABC7B��417B/4>�

->2¥�¦22.7B�ÛC07� ÜB45�� Ý/�1;� ¦251B2>@�ÛC07� �417B/4>�ÛC07�AB77�

Å�3Ä7B�2£�8741/5=�Þ>73751@� ��������	
������ ����� �����
����������

����������������������������� ������� ����������

���������� � � �

��
������
������
�������

��		���
�������� !�"#�$�%&�'

()*��������

�	
�����


����������	
���	��	�������������

����������������	�

��	
������ �����	�

������� �����	�

������
��	������	�	�������

������������������
�������

�	��	� !�������������	
��

"##�$�%&'()*(+',�%-$,.

�� /�0 !!

1������2���

3���4��

�56����7������	�����

089:�::

 56����7������	�����

09;��::

1������<	��

4���= >������

0�� /��!!��?�@ABB�CD+EE+,F

�������1��G�

������H���	��������G����	

�����

�� /�0 !!

�
�������

I���9

"J$K',�L'J) ���
�������� M	���H�� ���
��������� N����MO��� P��	���� Q	�����?�M		� 3���?�3��� R�����?�S������ N����T�
��H��

"-- 9 .��. ;3��U���������� SV����2������ 3����������� 1��G��3��	�� 2�����������H	��

N����
C)-)*(�W'X&�$##&)YY

���	�� ������
���&#)&YN����?�Q	���� "**'X,(���Z+Y(Y

N�������	��	 [

l



l



l



l



l



l



Item # C.S.I. Section 11420

F R Y E R S

P.O. Box 696 ■ Louisville, KY 40201 ■ Toll-free: 1-800-814-2028 ■ Local: 502-778-2791 ■ Quote & Order Fax: 1-800-444-0602

 
a division of ITW Food Equipment Group LLC

F45378 (11/17)

Model 1TR45A

SPECIFICATIONS

45 - 50 lbs. capacity free standing gas fryer, Vulcan Model No. 
(1TR45A) (1TR45D) (1TR45C). 70,000 BTU/hr. input. Stainless steel 
cabinet. Set of four 6" adjustable casters (2 locking). Stainless 
steel fry tank with ThreePass™ heat transfer system. ENERGY 
STAR® qualified. SoftStart™ ignition system using 35,000 BTU/hr.  
to extend oil life during start up. Idle rate of 4,318 BTU/hr. to 
maintain cooking temperature. 11⁄4" port ball type drain valve. 
Twin fry baskets with plastic coated handles. Solid state analog 
knob control, digital, or programmable computer control systems 
all standard with electronic matchless ignition. Tank brush and       
clean-out rod included.

Overall dimensions:

151⁄2"w x 301⁄8"d x 471⁄8"h. Working height 361⁄4".

CSA design certified. NSF listed.

SPECIFY TYPE OF GAS WHEN ORDERING

Natural Gas.
Propane Gas.

SPECIFY ALTITUDE

The 1TR45 Series fryer does not require any special adjustments 
for varying altitudes ranging from 0 - 10,000 feet for either Natural 
or Propane gas.

1TR45A: Solid state analog knob control behind the door. Accu-
rate temperature control 200° to 390°F. User selectable 
fat melt modes. Electronic ignition.

1TR45D: Accurate temperature control 200-390°F with digital 
display. Fast recovery. Cook with compensating time 
or actual time. Electronic ignition. Digital temperatures: 
Fahrenheit or Celsius. Three melt modes. Two count-
down timers. Auto boil-out mode.

1TR45C: Programmable computer controls with digital character 
display. 10 menu timers display product name and 
cook times. Offline programming of menu items 
uploaded through USB interface, software included. 
Accurate temperature control 200-390°F with digital 
display. Fast recovery. Cook with compensating time 
or actual time. Electronic ignition. Digital temperatures: 
Fahrenheit or Celsius. Three melt modes. 

STANDARD FEATURES

 ■ 70,000 BTU/hr. input.
 ■ Maintains idle temperature setting with only 4,318 BTU/hr. to 

save energy.
 ■ Energy saving SoftStart™ ignition system extends oil life while 

requiring lower BTU’s.
 ■ Energy Efficient ThreePass™ heat transfer system yielding 

60.9% cooking efficiency and 72% Thermal Efficiency. 
ENERGY STAR® certified.

 ■ Stainless steel fry tank, 45 - 50 lb. capacity. Includes 10 year 
limited tank warranty.

 ■ 11⁄4" port ball type drain valve.
 ■ Stainless steel cabinet.
 ■ Set of four 6" adjustable (2 locking) casters.
 ■ Twin fry baskets with plastic coated handles.
 ■ Hi-limit shut-off.
 ■ Electronic matchless ignition.
 ■ Tank brush and clean-out rod.
 ■ One year limited parts and labor warranty.

ACCESSORIES

FRYMATE-VX15 add-on frymate.
Stainless steel tank cover – doubles as a work surface top.
Connecting Kit(s) – Connects two fryers together (brackets, 
grease strip and hardware included).
Single large basket – 13"w x 131⁄4"d x 51⁄2"h.
Set of twin baskets – 61⁄2"w x 131⁄4"d x 6"h.
3⁄4" Flexible gas hose with quick disconnect.
10" high stainless steel removable splash guard.

OPTIONS

Second year extended limited parts and labor warranty

POWERFRY3™ 1TR45 SERIES
FREE STANDING GAS FRYER

l



P.O. Box 696 ■ Louisville, KY 40201 ■ Toll-free: 1-800-814-2028 ■ Local: 502-778-2791 ■ Quote & Order Fax: 1-800-444-0602

 
a division of ITW Food Equipment Group LLC

F R Y E R S

F45378 (11/17)

POWERFRY3™ 1TR45 SERIES
FREE STANDING GAS FRYER

INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS

1. A gas valve with internal pressure regulator is provided with this 
unit.

 • The supply pressure should be 7-9" W.C. for natural gas and 
11-12" W.C. for propane gas

 • If incoming pressure exceeds 14" W.C. (1⁄2 psig -3.45 kPa),  
a step-down pressure regulator must be installed

2. An adequate ventilation system is required for Commercial Cooking 
Equipment. Information may be obtained by writing to the National 
Fire Protection Association, Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02269. 
When writing refer to NFPA No. 96.

3. All models require a 6" (152 mm) clearance at both sides and rear 
adjacent to combustible construction.All models require a 16" 
(407 mm) minimum clearance to adjacent open top burner units.

MODEL Width Depth

Overall 

Height

Working 

Height Tank Size BTU/hr.

Fry Comp. 

Capacity

Approx.  

Shipping Weight

1TR45A

1TR45D 

1TR45C

151⁄2" 301⁄8" 471⁄8" 361⁄4" 14" x 14" 70,000 45 - 50 lbs. 196 lbs.

This appliance is manufactured for commercial use only and is not intended for home use.

4. This appliance is manufactured for commercial installation only and 
is not intended for home use.

SERVICE CONNECTIONS:

 3⁄4" (19 mm) OD rear gas connection.

 NEMA 5-15P 120 Volt cord & plug supplied with fryers.

NOTE: In line with its policy to continually improve its product, 
Vulcan reserves the right to change materials and specifications 
without notice.

l



Item # C.S.I. Section 11420

F R Y E R S

P.O. Box 696 ■ Louisville, KY 40201 ■ Toll-free: 1-800-814-2028 ■ Local: 502-778-2791 ■ Quote & Order Fax: 1-800-444-0602

 
a division of ITW Food Equipment Group LLC

F45380 (05/17)

Model 1TR45A

SPECIFICATIONS

45 - 50 lbs. capacity free standing gas fryer, Vulcan Model No. 
(1TR45A) (1TR45D) (1TR45C). 70,000 BTU/hr. input. Stainless steel 
cabinet. Set of four 6" adjustable casters (2 locking). Stainless 
steel fry tank with ThreePass™ heat transfer system. ENERGY 
STAR® certified. SoftStart™ ignition system using 35,000 BTU/hr.  
to extend oil life during start up. Idle rate of 4,318 BTU/hr. to 
maintain cooking temperature. 11⁄4" port ball type drain valve. 
Twin fry baskets with plastic coated handles. Solid state analog 
knob control, digital, or programmable computer control systems 
all standard with electronic matchless ignition. Tank brush and       
clean-out rod included.

Overall dimensions:

151⁄2"w x 301⁄8"d x 471⁄8"h. Working height 361⁄4".

CSA design certified. NSF listed.

SPECIFY TYPE OF GAS WHEN ORDERING

Natural Gas.
Propane Gas.

SPECIFY ALTITUDE

The 1TR45 Series fryer does not require any special adjustments 
for varying altitudes ranging from 0 - 10,000 feet for either Natural 
or Propane gas.

TR45A: Solid state analog knob control behind the door. Accu-
rate temperature control 200° to 390°F. User selectable 
fat melt modes. Electronic ignition.

TR45D: Accurate temperature control 200-390°F with digital 
display. Fast recovery. Cook with compensating time 
or actual time. Electronic ignition. Digital temperatures: 
Fahrenheit or Celsius. Three melt modes. Two count-
down timers. Auto boil-out mode.

TR45C: Programmable computer controls with digital character 
display. 10 menu timers display product name and 
cook times. Offline programming of menu items 
uploaded through USB interface, software included. 
Accurate temperature control 200-390°F with digital 
display. Fast recovery. Cook with compensating time 
or actual time. Electronic ignition. Digital temperatures: 
Fahrenheit or Celsius. Three melt modes. 

STANDARD FEATURES

 ■ 70,000 BTU/hr. input.
 ■ Maintains idle temperature setting with only 4,318 BTU/hr. to 

save energy.
 ■ Energy saving SoftStart™ ignition system extends oil life while 

requiring lower BTU’s.
 ■ Energy Efficient ThreePass™ heat transfer system yielding 

60.9% cooking efficiency and 72% Thermal Efficiency. 
ENERGY STAR® certified.

 ■ Stainless steel fry tank, 45 - 50 lb. capacity. Includes 10 year 
limited tank warranty.

 ■ 11⁄4" port ball type drain valve.
 ■ Stainless steel cabinet.
 ■ Set of four 6" adjustable (2 locking) casters.
 ■ Twin fry baskets with plastic coated handles.
 ■ Hi-limit shut-off.
 ■ Electronic matchless ignition.
 ■ Tank brush and clean-out rod.
 ■ One year limited parts and labor warranty.

ACCESSORIES

FRYMATE-VX15 add-on frymate.
Stainless steel tank cover – doubles as a work surface top.
Connecting Kit(s) – Connects two fryers together (brackets, 
grease strip and hardware included).
Single large basket – 13"w x 131⁄4"d x 51⁄2"h.
Set of twin baskets – 61⁄2"w x 131⁄4"d x 6"h.
3⁄4" Flexible gas hose with quick disconnect.
10" high stainless steel removable splash guard.

OPTIONS

Second year extended limited parts and labor warranty

POWERFRY3™ TR45 SERIES
GAS FRYERS

l



P.O. Box 696 ■ Louisville, KY 40201 ■ Toll-free: 1-800-814-2028 ■ Local: 502-778-2791 ■ Quote & Order Fax: 1-800-444-0602

 
a division of ITW Food Equipment Group LLC

F R Y E R S

F45380 (05/17)

Model 2TR45CF

SPECIFICATIONS

Built-in filter system, Vulcan Model No. (# of fryers 2, 3, 4) TR (45, 
65, 85) (control type A, D, or C) F (add suffix-F to fryer battery 
model No., i.e. 2TR45DF). Filter system accommodates maximum 
of four cabinets. Filter vessel constructed of drawn (seamless)  
18 gauge series stainless steel. The 2TR45F filter pan weighs only 
12.2 lbs. and the filter pan for the 2TR65 & TR85F weighs only 
20.5 lbs. 1⁄3 H.P. motor/pump circulates hot frying compound at 
the rate of 8 gallons per minute, activated by a one touch push 
button switch. System provided standard with stainless steel 
mesh filter screen. Optional KleenScreen PLUS® envelopes filter 
out particulate down to .5 micron. Standard equipment comes on 
casters, has a tank brush, and clean-out rod. Hands free oil return 
line connection. Drain valve interlock switch turns fryer's burners 
off when drain valve is opened. Requires 120 volt, 60 Hz, 1 phase 
power supply.

CSA design certified. NSF listed.

SPECIFY TYPE OF GAS WHEN ORDERING

Natural Gas
Propane Gas

SPECIFY ALTITUDE

The TR Series fryer does not require any special adjustments for 
varying altitudes ranging from 0 - 10,000 feet for either Natural or 
Propane gas.

STANDARD FEATURES

 ■ Filter system accommodates maximum of four fryer cabinets.

 ■ Drain valve interlock switch – turns off gas burners 
automatically when draining oil.

 ■ 6" Casters adjustable – 2 locking, 2 non-locking.

 ■ Drawn (seamless) 18 gauge stainless steel filter pan. 70 lbs. 
frying compound capacity on TR45F, 110 lbs. capacity on 
TR65 & TR85F.

 ■ Stainless steel filter mesh screen filters from 2 sides; 
filter area = 270 square inches.

 ■  1⁄3 H.P. motor and pump circulates frying compound at a rate 
of 8.0 gallons per minute.

 ■ One touch push button switch to engage pump and motor.

 ■ Tank brush and clean-out rod.

 ■ 120 volt, 60 Hz, 1 phase (NEMA 5-15P).

 ■ One year limited parts and labor warranty.

 ■ 10 year fry tank limited warranty.

 ■ 6' High Temperature Discard Hose.

ACCESSORIES (Packaged & Sold Separately)

Stainless steel tank cover – doubles as a work surface top.

Micro-Filtration Fabric Envelopes – 6 filters/per package.

“Add-On” Frymate™ – VX15 or VX21S.

Rear oil reclamation discard connection (Factory Installed).

TR45F – Twin Basket Lifts (Factory Installed).

TR65F & TR85F – Single and Twin Basket Lifts 
(Factory Installed).

Prison Security Package (Factory Installed).

Flexible gas hose with quick disconnect.

OPTIONS 

Second year extended limited parts and labor warranty.

REFERENCE MATERIALS

 ■ See 1TR45 Spec Sheet F45378.

 ■ See 1TR65 Spec Sheet F45381.

 ■ See 1TR85 Spec Sheet F45383.

TR KLEENSCREEN PLUS® FILTRATION SYSTEM
BUILT-IN FILTER SYSTEM FOR 2TRF, 3TRF & 4TRF FRYERS

l



Item # C.S.I. Section 11420

F R Y E R S

P.O. Box 696 ■ Louisville, KY 40201 ■ Toll-free: 1-800-814-2028 ■ Local: 502-778-2791 ■ Quote & Order Fax: 1-800-444-0602

 
a division of ITW Food Equipment Group LLC

F45380 (05/17)

TR KLEENSCREEN PLUS® FILTRATION SYSTEM
BUILT-IN FILTER SYSTEM FOR 2TRF, 3TRF & 4TRF FRYERS

INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS

open top burner units.

5. This appliance is manufactured for commercial installation only 
and is not intended for home use.

Service Connections:

 11⁄4" (32 mm) NPT common rear gas connection.

 120 volt, 60 Hz, 1 phase electrical connection (NEMA 5-15P).

NOTE: In line with its policy to continually improve its product, 
Vulcan reserves the right to change materials and specifications 
without notice.

1. An exterior gas regulator has been installed on the incoming gas 
manifold of the fryer and has been preset at the factory for the 
specific gas type – Natural or Propane Gas. 
• Natural Gas 8.0" (203 mm) W.C. 
• Propane Gas 11.0" (279 mm) W.C.

2. An adequate ventilation system is required for Commercial 
Cooking Equipment. Information may be obtained by writing 
to the National Fire Protection Association, Batterymarch Park, 
Quincy, MA 02269. When writing refer to NFPA No. 96.

3. All models require a 6" (152 mm) clearance at both sides and rear 
adjacent to combustible construction.

4. All models require a 16" (407 mm) minimum clearance to adjacent 

Model

Filter Pan 

Capacity

Filter Area / 

Fabric 

Envelope Motor Pump

Electric 

Amps

Electric 

Power

Battery Dimensions (Widths)

2 

Fryers

3 

Fryers

4 

Fryers

TR45F 70 lbs. 270 sq. in 
350 sq. in

1⁄3 HP 
1750 RPM 8 Gal/Min 115V 6.0A 115V 60Hz 1Ph 31" 461⁄2" 62"

TR65F

110 lbs. 270 sq. in 
350 sq. in

1⁄3 HP 
1750 RPM 8 Gal/Min 115V 6.0A 115V 60Hz 1Ph 42" 63" 84"

TR85F

This appliance is manufactured for commercial use only and is not intended for home use.

Views 

Front, Side and Top

2TR45F, 2TR65F, 2TR85F

2TR45F
31.000" (787)

2TR65F, 2TR85F
42.000" (1067)

3.000" (76)

6.000"
(152)

9.000"
(288)

36.250"
(921)

47.250"
(1200)

TR85F
34.375"

(873)

TR45F,
TR65F

30.125"
(765)

TR85F
54.500"
(1384)

TR45F,
TR65F

50.250"
(1276)

l



Specifically designed for high capacity, 
reliability, versatility and efficiency

Frymaster’s H55 is a premium open-pot fryer 
that combines state-of-the-art technology 
with decades of frying experience and 
customer satisfaction to set the standard for 
high-efficiency frying. The ENERGY STAR® 
rated H55 fryer saves thousands of dollars 
annually on energy costs. H55 fryers have 
long been the trusted choice of chains and 
independent operators worldwide because 
their efficient, state-of-the-art heat transfer 
system, precise controls and durability have 
stood the test of time.

Infrared burners and blower system delivers 
an ultra-refined air-gas mixture so the fryer 
operates well in any gas application such as 
at high altitudes, in environments where air 

circulation is sub-optimal or when the heating 
value of the gas is diminished.

The split-pot model has all of the features 
and options of the full-pot H55 and gives the 
operator the discretion of using only half the 
fryer.

The optional stand-alone spreader cabinet 
can include a holding station with heat lamp 
option. The holding stations are available 
with cafeteria-style pan or scoop-type pan.

*Liter conversions are for liquid shortening @70°F.

Specifications

Standard Features
 PH155  PH155-2

Models

 and i cienc
as Fr ers o estic port

 and 
i

cienc
as Fr

ers
o

estic
port

Project

Item

Quantity

CSI Section 11400

Approval

Date

ptions ccessories
• pen pot desi n split or full  is eas  to clean
• 50-lb (25 L) oil capacity per full frypot; 25-lb. 

(12 L) per split frypot
• 80,000 Btu/hr. input (20,151 kcal) (23.4 kw) 

(84.4 MJ/hr) per full frypot; 40,000 Btu/hr. 
input (10,075 kcal) (11.7 kw) (42.2 MJ/hr) per 
split frypot

• Frying area:  14” x 15” x 4-1/2” (35.6 x 38.1 x 
11.4 cm) per full frypot; 6-1/2” x 15” x 4-3/4 
(16.5 x 38.1 x 12.1 cm) per split frypot

• CM3.5 controller
• Stainless steel frypot, door and cabinet
• Center-mounted, RTD, 1° compensating 

temperature probe
• Deep cold zone with forward-sloping bot-

tom and 1-1/4” IPS full-port, ball-type drain 
valve

• Infrared burners ensure state-of-the-art 
heat transfer

• Electronic ignition
• Automatic melt cycle and boil-out 

temperature control
• Two twin baskets
• 8-1/2” (22 cm) adjustable legs
• 3/4” gas connection
• Drain safety switch

Stand-alone spreader cabinet
Digital or SMART4U® 3000 
controllers
Basket lifts (except Australia) (units 
with basket lifts require casters to be 
purchased also)
Frypot cover
Casters
Foam deck basket banger
Triplet basket
Full basket
Chicken/Fish tray
Sediment tray

See Frymaster domestic price list for 
other available options and accessories.

H55
Shown with optional casters

8700 Line Avenue  

Shreveport, LA  71106-6800

USA

Tel:  318-865-1711

Tel:  1-800-221-4583

Fax:  318-868-5987

E-mail: info@frymaster.com

www.frymaster.com

Bulletin No. 818-0499

Revised 8/17/17

H55H55-2

Unique frypot 
design with deep 

cold zone and 
turbo charged, 

infrared burners.

Approved for 
Australia

Approved for 
Korea

l



 a
nd

 
i

cie
nc

as
 F

r
er

s
o

es
tic

po
rt

8700 Line Avenue  
Shreveport, LA  71106 -6800
USA

Tel:  318-865-1711
Tel:  1-800-221-4583
Fax:  318-868-5987
E-mail: info@frymaster.com

www.frymaster.com
Bulletin No. 818-0499
Revised 8/17/17
Litho in U.S.A. ©Frymaster

MODEL 
NO.

OIL CAPACITY OVERALL SIZE (cm) DRAIN 
HEIGHT

(cm)

NET 
WEIGHT

**APPROXIMATE SHIPPING INFORMATION
WIDTH DEPTH HEIGHT WEIGHT CLASS CU. 

FT.
DIMENSIONS (cm)

PH155
PH155-2

50 lbs. (25 L)
25 lbs. (12 L)

ea. side

15-5/8”
(39.7)

*29-5/8”
(75.3)

*45-5/8” 
(115.8)

10-1/4” 
(26.1)

160 lbs.
(73 kg)

202 lbs.
(92 kg)

85 22 W
22”

(55.9)

D
36”

(91.4)

H
47”

(119.4)

DIMENSIONS

POWER REQUIREMENTS
NOTES
• 120 V 5 ft. (1.5 m) grounded cord set provided.
• 1-1/2” (3.8 cm) kitchen main manifold gas supply 

line required. Should flexible gas line be used, 
it must be CSA approved, commercial type and 
sized per the gas line size in above drawing. 
See service manual and/or plumbing codes for 
proper pipe sizing. Recommended minimum 
store supply pressure to be 6” W.C. for NAT Gas, 
and 11” W.C. for L.P. Check plumbing codes 
for proper supply line sizing to attain burner 
manifold pressure of 3.0” W.C. natural or 8.25” 
W.C. L.P. 

• Natural gas only for New Zealand.

• DO NOT CURB MOUNT

FRONT VIEW

TOP VIEW

SIDE VIEW

OPTIONAL BASKET LIFT
IN RAISED POSITION

10.7
 [271]

17.9
 [455]

36.6
 [930]

32.7
 [831]

W/BASKET
LIFT

8.5
[216]

54.9
 [1395]

49.2
 [1250]

45.6
 [1159]

29.6
[752]

W/OUT BASKET
LIFT 5.0

[127]

REAR VIEW

7.7
 [196]

3/4" NPT GAS LINE
POWER

CORD

15.6
[395]

MODEL 
NO.

BASIC DOMESTIC OPTIONS
CONTROLS/

FRYPOT
BASKET LIFTS/

FRYPOT
PH155

120V 1 A 120V 3 A
PH155-2

BASIC EXPORT OPTIONS
PH155 220V 1 A

230V 1 A
240V 1 A
250V 1 A

220V 2 A
230V 2 A
240V 2 A
250V 2 A

PH155-2

Check www.frymaster.com for updates.

*Without basket lifts.

CLEARANCE INFORMATION
• A minimum of 24” (61.0 cm) should be provided 

at the front of the unit for servicing and proper 
operation, and 6” (15.2 cm) between the 
sides and rear of the fryer to any combustible 
material.

HOW TO SPECIFY
The following description will assist with ordering the features desired for this 
equipment:
PH155 50-lb. (25 L) high-efficiency, open-pot gas fryer with CM3.5 controller, 

electronic ignition, melt cycle, boil-out temperature control and center-
mounted (RTD) 1° compensating temperature probe.

PH155-2 Split pot with same features as full pot. Dual controls operate each 
split pot independently

C  CM3.5 controller
BL Basket Lifts

**Information is APPROXIMATE and may vary at time of shipment due 
to options/add-ons per customer request.

l



Project  ______________________________________

Item  _________________________________________

Quantity  ____________________________________

CSI Section 11400

Approved  ___________________________________

Date  _________________________________________

FootPrint® Filtration for
Single H55 Gas Fryers

www.frymaster.com
Bulletin No. 7801
Revised:  09/29/2020

Tel:  318-865-1711
Tel:  1-800-221-4583
E-mail: info@frymaster.com

8700 Line Avenue
Shreveport, LA  71106-6800
USA

Designed for trouble-free filtering of H55 single fryers
without wasting valuable space 

Frymaster’s renowned, built-in filtration puts filtration 
where it’s most convenient to use -- right within
the fryer -- eliminating the need for additional floor 
and storage space.

The filtering process is fast and easy,
encouraging frequent filtering -- a critical part of maxi-
mizing oil life, especially with trans-fat free oils.  It is 
engineered with features that allow added convenience, 
easier serviceablilty and allows for using three different 
filter mediums with one pan.

This filtration is enhanced with a gravity draining sys-
tem that allows residual oil to drain into the filter pan 
so that drain lines are always open. The filter, housed 
beneath one Frymaster H55 fryer is capable of filtering 
the fifty-pound fryer in less than five minutes.

This filter comes standard with a powerful 4 GPM pump 
to maximize filtering efficiency and minimize clogging. 
A large sump with secure hold-down ring ensures 
proper vacuum and superior oil filtration. The stainless 
steel filter pan slides out easily over floor mats and 
uneven floor tiles.

Filtration process is two steps:
Step one: open drain valve, open return valve to acti-
vate filter pump.
Step two: close drain valve; close return valve to turn 
off pump

Specifications

Standard Features
• 50-lb (25-liter) oil capacity
• Space-saving filter fits inside fryer cabinet
• Filter pan is lightweight and easy to 

remove for cleaning
• Filter pan designed on rails to clear 

floormats for easy cleaning
• Sloped drain pan leaves minimal oil in the 

pan after filtering
• Filter cycle is complete from start to finish 

in less than 5 minutes
• 1-1/4” (3.2 cm) IPS ball-type drain valve on 

full frypot
• 1” (2.5 cm) IPS ball-type drain valve on 

split frypot
• Drain safety switch on all Frymaster filter 

system fryers
• Rear oil flush
• 1/3 H.P. filter motor
• 4 GPM pump
• Filter starter kit
• Casters
• Gas connection - 3/4”

Models

FootPrint ® Filtration for Single H
55 G

as Fryers

Model Shown:
FPH155

Options & 
Accessories

   FPH155   FPH155-2*  *Not available for CE.   

Shown with optional CM3.5 controller
and legs on front

   SDU for oil disposal

See H55 gas spec sheet for fryer
options.

See Frymaster domestic price list for
other available options and accessories.

l



el ilt reser es t e rig t to a e c anges to t e design or speci cations it out prior notice

Fo
ot

Pr
in

t®
 F

ilt
ra

tio
n 

fo
r S

in
gl

e 
H

55
 G

as
 F

ry
er

s

www.frymaster.com
Bulletin No. 7801
Revised: 09/29/2020

Tel:  318-865-1711
Tel:  1-800-221-4583
E-mail: info@frymaster.com

8700 Line Avenue
Shreveport, LA  71106-6800
USA

POWER REQUIREMENTS FOR FILTER ONLY:
AMPERAGE FOR FILTER ONLY -- Filter Motor -- Domestic: 
120V 7.5 A; Export/CE: 220V - 250V 5 A

NOTES:
Contact Customer Service at 1-800-221-4583 inside 
USA: +1-318-865-1711 outside USA for other voltages.
FOR FRYER SPECIFICATIONS, FEATURES AND OPTIONS, 
SEE H55 SPEC SHEET.

CLEARANCE INFORMATION:
A minimum of 24” (61.0 cm) should be 
provided at the front of the unit for servicing 
and proper operation, and 6” (15.2 cm) 
between the sides and rear of the fryer to 
any combustible material.

DIMENSIONS

MODEL
DRAIN 

HEIGHT
NET 

WEIGHT
SHIPPING INFORMATION

FPH155
FPH155-2

10.88”
(27.6 cm)

235 lbs.
(107 kg)

WEIGHT CLASS CU. FT.
DIMENSIONS

(cm)

265 lbs.
(121 kg)

85 31.95
W

25”
(63.5 cm)

D
47”

(119.4 cm)

H
47”

(119.4 cm)

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 

  

l



����������	

�����������������������

�

������������������������	��
���� !������"#$%#$�$$�"&$�&$	�'(

)*+,*�'-*,,.,/0
1234�56786�9:688;8<=�34�>63==8<�3<�?@AB3<�C<:A342?D�128�>E674�FGH�B<7�FGHI�68J86�=E�=28�KL4=E;86M�=28�>E674�NOM�HP�B<7�GHI�68J86�=E�QGRSTU�VSRGWXU�YHPSROPP�

ZGWHXSGRP�[\Z\]\̂�_RT\M�3<̀AL73<:�3=4�4La4373B6384�B<7�B:8<=4D

bcd0e.,*�f/ge*.h0ie/

jek0,**h�l,de*0�b++
m=8�nop

qrp�s�@AB<=�m=

s3<=86�tB678<M�uv�norwrxqyyo

z*e+c{0&�|,}i{,�~�jeg0�h*,

��������������������������mEA=866B��84E6=�K77M��qrp�s�@AB<=�m=M��s3<=86�tB678<M�uv�norwrxqyyo

�������������������AB�m8;3<E�M��w�n���orxywny

z*e+c{0�|,d{*i�0ie/ �ch/0i0� z*e+c{0�be/gi-c*h0ie/

�3�2La�Ko�p3��8JL6a34287

��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

����� �3�2La�Ko�p3�o��@�;�KEAE6��J�

����� �J���8A3�86��K2B6:8�x�v8�8A�1>E

����� �B43̀��8=>E6��m86�3̀8�x��<4po

(hi/0,/h/{,�j,*}i{,d�

��������!������������������5<8��B=8  ¡¢£¤��¥¦�������

��������������1E<86M��3:3=BA�KE<<8̀=87�mL��E6=�M�m=B�A84M��E�§<�186;�9<<LBA�C4̀BAB=3E<

§<4=BAAB=3E<�vÈB=3E<�x��̈��mEA=866B��84E6=�K77M��qrp�s�@AB<=�m=M��s3<=86�tB678<M�uv�norwrxqyyo

�0�

©ikk�

zkh/�ª��,|,}i{,
zh-,d�
f/{kc+,+

«���������¬������������

�®�����̄°¦��±���������� � ����±��� ���������
��������!������������������������������������������������

²³id0i/-�́i/h/{ihk�be/di+,*h0ie/d

µ�����������������±���������������������

1234�683;aL648;8<=�34�a83<:��6E�3787�B4�B�4�8̀3BA�3<̀8<=3�8�=E>B674�=28�=28��L6̀2B48¶J3<B<̀3<:�EJ�B�<8>��6E7L̀=¶486�3̀8D�s8�B:688�=E�68;3=�=28�§<̀8<=3�8�9;EL<=�4��=E�=28�

KL4=E;86��8;3==B<̀8�9776844�42E><�a8AE>�L�E<�68̀83�=�EJ�JL<73<:�3<�JLAA�JE6�=234�56786�9:688;8<=D��s8�>3AA�<E=�a8�A3BaA8�=E��EL�E6�B<��=2367��B6=��B4�B�684LA=�EJ�=234�683;aL648;8<=�

=6B<4B̀=3E<D

�f/{,/0i},�'.ec/0 ²³�kh/h0ie/

�·nppDpp� �8aB=8

¹̧º»¼½¾¿�À¿ÁÂÃ¹ÄÂ�Å̧Æ�ÇÈȨ́ ÊËÌÍÎÉÏÐÑÎÒÇÓÉÎȨ̂ ÒÐÎÔÓÐÌËÕÇÇȨ̀ ÒÏ

l



����������	

�����������������������

�

����������������������� 	��
����!"������#$�%$�����#&��&�	�'(

��)*+,--./0*�'112*33�456*0,.7�8/0*/-,9*:

;<=>?@@A�@?;<@>�BCC

;DEFG�HIJ

�KLJ�M�N=AO>�;>@??>�;>?�HIJ

MPO>?@�QA@C?O�R�S=�HILTL

UV3-W+*2�X6-,W/3�Y�Z*2,[,0.-,W/

>\�G]̂D_G�̀]�GabGccG]F�bD̂F\dG_�GaeG_EG]bGR�ecG̀̂G�F̀fG�̀�d\dG]F�F\�Deg̀FG�h\D_�̀ìEc̀jcG�E]i\EbE]k�\eFE\]̂�̀]g�F\�iG_Elh�FmG�E]i\EbG�d̀EcE]k�̀]g�̀bb\D]F̂�

èh̀jcG�̀gg_Ĝ̂nb\]F̀bF�E]l\_d̀FE\]�oG�m̀iG�\]�lEcGp�Pl�bm̀]kĜ�̀_G�_GqDE_Gg�F\�h\D_�P]i\EbG�r̀EcE]k�\_�Abb\D]F̂�Ǹh̀jcG�̀gg_Ĝ̂Ĝ�sE]bcDgE]k�b\]F̀bF�

E]l\_d̀FE\]tR�ecG̀̂G�b\]F̀bF�h\D_�;̀cĜ�@Ge_ĜG]F̀FEiG�l\_�̀̂ Ê̂F̀]bGp

u.v�wv*+6-,W/�5-.-V3&

xyz{|x }��~������

xyz{�x ���������"������������������������������������������������������������������ xy���|x

xyz{�x ���������"����������������������������������������������������������

�]FEc�oG�_GbGEiG�̀�F̀a�GaGdeFE\]�bG_FElEb̀FG�\_�\FmG_�ìcEg�e_\\l�\l�F̀a�GaGdeF�̂F̀FD̂R�oG�oEcc�bm̀_kG�h\D�̀cc�̀eecEb̀jcG�lGgG_̀cR�̂F̀FGR�̀]g�

c\b̀c�F̀aĜp

����������������������������������������������������������xy���x

xy����x�������������������������������������������������������������������xy���x

}�����������xy��|x

�V20�.3*�X21*2&

xyz��z|xNm\]Gn?d̀Ecxyz��y|xN\_F̀c�B\]F̀bF�

xyz����|xN\_F̀c�PC�xyz���|xN\_F̀c�ÒdG�

�����������������������������������������������������������������������������xy��zx

xy��z�|x�����������������������

������������������������������������������� ����������� ��������~�������������������������������������������������xy��{x

������������������xy���x

������ !����������������������"������������������������������������������������������������xy���x

8/9W,0*�¡W2+.-&

¢£¤¥¦§̈©�ª©«¬£®¬�̄¢°�±²³¢́ µ¶·̧³¹º»̧¼±½³̧ ¢́¼º̧¾½º¶µ¿±±²¢¼¹

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

l



����������	

�����������������������������������������������	��

���� !������"#$�#$�$$�"%$�%$	�&'

()*+,+-.(/01232045�67829�:;;<0==>

��?�����@A�B�����C�D�D���E��?��F�G����?�����H����������������IH������?������������@�����������������������H�����?�������?����@��J�I��

I�����I��H�A�D����D��������KE���������B���������?��AL

()*M+(

N�OD�����J��������P���������?����@����������HJ�I����Q��?���������()*),R(

()S-TR(N�OD�����J��������P�����?����@����������H�����H������������������� �

CU���������������V������Q�����?��LF

()*),W(

X���N�OD����()*),.(

YZ[\]̂_̀�abc]de_��Y]f_[%�C�L�LJ�gP����� ���������F��

���D������A�@����������

hi98�j0724k

lmnop�qrstumouvwk40>�
x=0724ky0z0<{<004t97|1k76}829>�

���D������A�@�����������

~]�\_̀̀���_[]̀\�Yff
j50�or�

�s����v9845�j5

�2450<��8<;04������orsmst�uur

���?��������������������

~]�\_̀̀���_[]̀\�Yff
j50�or�

�s����v9845�j5

�2450<��8<;04������orsmst�uur

'��'�~�e]̂�YZ[\]̂_̀��]̀\��

}ih}�j�2=�8�1k739050�84;�1k73<0w04=2z0�=0<z210�7848{07045�5kk9�899k�24{�k�<�192045=�5k�7848{0�5w02<�hk4218�}24k958�811k�45=�t�<2{w5��<k7�5w02<�;0=x5k3�k<�

=78<53wk40|��}ih}�j�k��0<=��r�s�8110==�5k�hk4218�}24k958�=�33k<5�84;�3<k;�15�<0=k�<10=��t�899�24�k40�39810|

v908=0�3<kz2;0�8�3<278<i�1k45815��k<�}ih}�j|1k7�<0{2=5<852k4>�����

�870> �17x4��

67829> �17x0��

�1k35r� �Q���D������A
��EL����D�������������

:11k�45���> o��s�n�o

������� �¡ ¢£¤�¥£�¦�§�̈©ª�«¬®̄ª°±²̄³̈ ª́̄«�³±̄µ́±¬¶̈ ©̈�³°

�

�

�

�

�

l



�����������
	
������������������������������������������������

����� ������!"#$"#�##�!%#�%#��&'

()*+)�,-../)0�1�&22+34/52+

 ���������� 67����8+/9+

:;<=�>?@ABC<=D�EDF;G�H;A>C?C<CD>�I;<=�BHHDJCBAHD�;K�CL?>�M=ND=�O@=DDPDAC�QRST�UVVWXYWU�G?CL�NBCDZC?PD�>CBPJTV[\]̂\]V]]�V[_]V_]Y�̀ab���
�

cFDB>D�>DD�BAN�>?@A�CLD�>DJB=BCD�dDB>DZe?ABAH?A@�O@=DDPDAC�K;=�CD=P>�BAN�H;AN?C?;A>�@;fD=A?A@�CLD�K?ABAH?A@�B>>;H?BCDN�G?CL�CL?>�M=ND=�O@=DDPDACg���
��
hL?>�M=ND=�O@=DDPDAC�?>�A;C�E?AN?A@�<J;A�<>�<AC?F�>?@ADN�EI�B�i;A?HB�j?A;FCB�E=BAHL�PBAB@D=k�f?HD�J=D>?NDACk�;=�DlDH<C?fD�;KK?HD=g

mnopmSBCD�q?@ADNT

mnrpmh?CFDT

mnspmtBPDT

��
uv>wu

q?@ABC<=DT

	������
�������xy����z��y�����{|z|�|}����|

SBCD�q?@ADNT

h?CFDT m~rpm

uHNwu

m~spmtBPDT

�
uH>wu

q?@ABC<=DT

�-94�.+)

z�����������������

����������������������������������������������������������

 ¡¢£�¤¥¦§̈©ª«¬¬®̄�°±²«³

l



����������	


�
�����������������������������������������������������������������  �������!����������"��  ������ ��������������������������������� �#����$%$&���'��������� ��������������� � (���������������!����������!���������

����������!����������������������������������  �������� !���"����  ��� !��������� ��������������������������������������� � ���������)�  ��������� ���������� ���������� *�+�� �,"��  �-�� �������� ��������� �������������

��������������������������� ������������������������������� � �������� *�+�� ������ �������  ��� ���������������  ���� ���������������������������*

.�
+����������/�������������������������������������� �������������������������������� !�0�������)�����1���� ����������������� �������� ����������!��������������������������������������������� �������� ���������� �����������*�

2������� ����� �� !������������������������!���������� '��������������!������  ���������������������������������������� ����������������3���������� ��� '���� ����������������������� *

4���������)�� ��4���������5�6�� ����7877898:;<= ������>?�@����  �-�����A�0����

@��'����BCAD88E:FEDC���G+���A8HI7JI7877HK78K7F�LM

4���������$�����

NOP	Q	�R	S

4���������$����� T��������$�����

LUVWXYWZ[�\[W][�LẐ[[_[XY
+�� �4���������)�� ��4���������#̀4��������a(�� ������������̀@�����,���� �a*��B����� �4��������!��������� �bcd�����bcd̂���������������� ������#������ ���������� (!��������� �e[!�d]�����cd̂�������

���fcXghW�MgXciYW�=d]gX[]]�jcidYgcX]�kljlLlm�nXhlm�UIoIW�fcXghW�MgXciYW�p̂[_g[̂�<gXWXh[*��B������  ������� �4���������������������������  ��!�\[]]ĉ� �������������� �����������������  ���

�  �����!������������� �e[!�d]�����cd̂� ������� ������������������� ����)�  ��������� ��  ����� �� ������������� !�������� ���������������� ���������� �4�����������������T�������� ���  �����!�

���������������������� *�

qd]Yc_[̂�nXrĉ_WYgcX

0����-� ������������$���G4����  A

stuvwxxy�zw{txv�|}}
O~�����
�Q��������~�O~
���~������������N���Q�QP�SS�

��������$���G4����  A

stuvwxxy�zw{txv�|}}
O~�����
�Q��������~�O~
���~������������N����Q�QP�SS�

�����O�������������-�������$���A

��R���	�QPS��S@����
A�

�����������������P������,����A

<[U[̂Wi��W��n�.K �������

� �����~���~���O������O�����~���������

��� ~	�T������������  �����TT¡

�[̂_�WXU�pWb_[XY�nXrĉ_WYgcX

������¢d_o[̂�cr�pWb_[XY] �����pWb_[XY£pid]�L¤¤ighWoi[��W�[]¥ �����¦XU�cr��\[W][�pd̂h§W][�̈¤YgcX��[̂_�gX�McXY§] ��������pWb_[XY�<̂[©d[Xhb

R� R� ª��~«�� �¬	������ �����ª����~�����

p̂cUdhY��[]ĥg¤YgcX

B� ����������)��������&�
A�O��~�����®����~�̄������Q��������~�O~������~������������N���Q�QP�SS�
°Yb �p̂cUdhY��[]ĥg¤YgcX p̂cUdhY�qcXrgZd̂WYgcX

� ±�²«���̄�	���®�������«��

MWgXY[XWXh[�³�́̂cd¤�pcci�=giigXZ�nXrĉ_WYgcX

pcci�́̂cd¤�:

��������+??�����������@���A�µ���®�~�

pcci�
´̂cd¤�n�

�pcci�
�¢W_[

�pWZ[]�
�nXhidU[U

�̈V[̂WZ[�
�q§ŴZ[

�̈V[̂WZ[�
�<̂[©d[Xhb�

�
 �%���¶������&
 �·�������� �$G4 �$G4
��������+?�����������������������������������������������

pcci�́̂cd¤�:�;�L]][Y�jh§[Udi[

B� ����������)��������&�
A��T��������¶� ����-��!��.̧¹�2�@�����T�!��2������/�����!�0)�º»̧¼̧&.½½»

°Yb p̂cUdhY��[]ĥg¤YgcX qd]Yc_[̂�nXVcgh[�nXrĉ_WYgcX �[�Y


 ��¾����-»¿¹��¶������ ��� �%���¶���+?

ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆÇ�ÈÇÉÊËÁÌÊ�ÍÀÎ�ÏÐÑÀÒÓÔÕÖÑ×ØÙÖÚÏÛÑÖÒÀÚØÖÜÛØÔÓÝÏÏÐÀÚ×

�

l



����������	


������������
����������������������������� ������!"�#��$����%�����&�'��(�

#$)���*+&,��-�.-,+��/0���&�12�32����14��4�.�56

78��9�:;<��=;:�>?���@A;BC�:?�>��D�E�;:�?8;D�F�G��C�:?�;D�<�H�G�E�A:E�G�9�:;<��=;:�>?�ID�JAD?�C�G�KLM�NA�G�:?��O�F�<�BP����?8��NA�G�:?���<�:�Q���Q?�;:�E��
�?�P�AG�>�<�>�QG�:<8��G�QP�H;D;?;:����
�

RSTUV�5WX�YZWX[\[ZWV

]0̂*_�
̀abb"bc0�%dc0
*c_�0̂b�0ba"_�
c+�%dc+*0*dc_�_b0�'da0̂�eb�dfg�
���d'�f̂*%̂�
ab�"
+b�
�#
a0�d'�0̂*_�
̀abb"bc0�
c+�*c%da#da
0b+�*c0d�b
%̂�_%̂b+h�bij�
�

klmmk

�n�op5qp�5rspp6ptR&��u�v���������(����w����v���x��y�����(�y��y���z�������w����x�����g�����������(�y�����(�y��y���z���������w�������_$x��v(�������x���
������������
��������g�
��$��y��������x����0ba"_�
c+�%dc+*0*dc_�{z���w����$��|�w�����������������|��������{z�z�v����v��]�v$x�y��y���z�����z�vy�����g��v{����v�����g���y($������g���y������������������w������
�����}b~v�y����}j�w���{v�������yv�y�������(zi�*���x���������x���x��b~v�y�����z�v���(�$�������v���({(�����$�����{���vyy(����{z��x��_vyy(���g�z�v�������x�����$���v{����v������vy�����z�v��
��(�$���������~v�y������w��~v(�����������~v(��zg�wv�$����g�����(v�g��������������{z�_vyy(�������������(�����$������g�������������(�$�������z�vg����z�v���������$$�y���v$x��v{����v��������
vy�����vy�����(����zi�b$x�_$x��v(��������y���������{(��(���i�0���x����������x��b~v�y�������$(v����������{(��y��y���z�������$����������$����v$x���y������$���w�����(�$���������
y��y�����{����v{�$��y��������x��g��v$x�y��y���z��x((�{����w������������x���_�w�����i��u�v���������((��w��x�����������$����������$������������x���
�������������z�_$x��v(�g��x�$x�
�����x�������$��y(��������������w��v���������������������x��(�������~v�y�����]�
���������j�����vy�������((���x�����������g�$���v��$�����g�v������������g����������g�yv�$x���
������g���(�$���������$v�����������(������$v�����i��0x���
����������z�{������w������(z�{z���������
����������������{z�$�v�����w�y��w����$�i��0x���
���������{�$������(���vy���
���$v�����{z����w���v�i�0x��b~v�y���������������$$�y����{z�z�v�x���v��������v������x��yy(�${(��_$x��v(��v�(����z�v�����wz�v�����x����x����]�j��z���w���(����z��x��z�v��������$$�y���x��
b~v�y���������y�$�wz��x����w�$������(wv�$����i�*���x�������g����v����(���y����g��������v�������������((���y($���x����w�$�����������w�b~v�y���������x���
�����������((�{��$�$�(������������
�v�������������((���y��������x��b~v�y����i�u�v�������x�g�vy����v����~v���g�z�v���((�����������(��������v�g����(����z����$$�y��$��$����w�$���$��w�������z�v��$$�y��$���w��x��b~v�y�����
(��������z�vi�0x��}e�((����+��}��w��x���
�����������((�{���x����������x�]���xj��z������(���������������vy�������w�((����������((����i�u�v���������yz��y���������v����w��/���x��w��x��
����x(z�yz������������x���v�{����w��z��{��������x������((�������������x��e�((����+��i��0x���
�����������((�$�����v��w�����x��e�((����+���w����x��0�����x���������((�{�����������
v�����$((z�w����v$$�����������]�j�����x�������v�(����z�v�]j������v��������������$�g�{������������z�]��j��z���������xv������w�w�z�]���j��z��{�w�����x�������w��x�������(�����������(�������
�z��{�w�����x�������w��z������(�������x��z�v��������yv�$x���������v����x��b~v�y����g����z�v�����(z�yv�$x���������v����x��b~v�y����i�����������x���i���yv�$x����y��������((�����{��
�������i��0x��y������$������(�yz�����x��{��������{z��v�v(��������������������{��������x��$�����w��z�$��y�������w��x���(���i�R�p� 5qp�sptR5o��5�6ptR�q�5oo� p�5���qRp��
�s���sR��t5Rpo�����5s���s����t�5s������R�p�5YR�5o�Y�qR����R�p�p����6ptR�p�Ypp�q��s��q�opqq�R�5t�R�p�pqR�65Rp��s����p��R�����n��*w��z�y����������w��x���
���������
�����$(����v���w��$�{(������z��v�����$����g��x����x���y����������x�������x((����������wv((�w��$������ww�$������x���v�����$��������((���x���i��u�v�v�x������v���������������$����$����������
��w������������x���(������$(v�����z�v��y��y���(��(����g�����(��v�{���g���x����v�{�������$��{�����x��b~v�y����������x�����������w$�v(�������i��u�v���������y�������vy�������v(�
��/���~v����(z�w���$�(��������������v��vy�����~v���i�u�v�v�x������v������v�����������{����$��������y���������)��$��������~v���������������z�v����z�v��w���$�(�$���������������
y�������z�v����w�������g���$(v�����yz�����x�����zg�����v��������������x����y������x��������$�����$��������������x���
��������g��z�_$x��v(������x��b~v�y����i�

�n�sptR&��a������((�{��yz{(���������((�����g��$x�����x����v����w��x��"���x(z�#z�����]�����x���y������$�yz����j��x����y(v���z�yy(�${(���(��g�v������y��y���z���i��*w����yz��z�������
z�v��{�x(wg�z�v�������������{v����v��y���y�(z�(�������x��y��$�������w��i��_v{��~v��������((��������((�{��yz{(������x��w������z��w��$x�����(�yz�����y�������x����{���������w�����x��w�����
����(�yz�����y�������������x������������i��f����((�x����x�����x�����yy(z�((��v�����$������w����z�v�����z���v�����v�������������v��v������x���������w��x���
��������i���Z�T�Z��[��\[ZW�\Z�
U��S�����6ZW\�� ��� USW\V�¡ZT�Z\�ST�¢ST[ZX[£�¢� USW\¤��STS�WXST�[V���VZ��\S��WX��W£ZWX[\[ZW����WX� Z��£�WWZ\�¥[\��Z�X�ZT�Z¦¦VS\����[WV\��W �6ZW\�� ��� USW\V�¡ZT�Z\�ST�¢ST[ZX[£�
¢� USW\¤�¦ZT��W �TS�VZWn��u�v�������x��z�v���((�������yz���������v������x��w�����w�$��y�z�$x�$)��]���y�����(�$x�$)������x��$����w���(��y��y�������x�y�jg�����$����{��������������(zi��u�v�(���
�����$�x����$�x��~v��(������������$$�y�{(��w������w�yz�����w����x���
�������������x��z�v���((������������v$x�w������w�yz��������v�i��p� �R���tRpt��R��Y�6�o����R��5oo�
5��o�Y5 op�o5�qn�����R��q��pRps6�tp��R�5R����s��5�6ptRq��t�ps�R��q�5rspp6ptR��s��t�ps�5�qY�p��op�spq�oR��t�5t��tRpspqR��5�6ptR���r�ps�R�5t�5oo��p�� ��
5��o�Y5 op�o5���R�pt�5t��p�Ypqq��tRpspqR�Y�oopYRp����oo� p�5��o�p��R��56��tRq�R�5R�5sp�o5���oo����p�5t�����tr��t�ps�R��q�5rspp6ptR��s���oo� p�sp��t�p��R��
���n��t�t��p�ptR���oo����� p�sp���sp��R���5��5t��56��tRq��t�p�Ypqq����R�p�opr5o�56��tRn�

3n���tpsq�������p����6ptR&�f������x���������w��x��b~v�y��������x�����(�����(��]v�(����z�v�x������i���yv�$x����y����j�����x��b~v�y�����]��$(v�������w����ji��u�v���������)��y��x��
b~v�y�����w�������$(����w�((�(��������$(���i��u�v������(�(z����y����{(��w�������������z�����x���z������������x��b~v�y�����z�v����v��g���$(v�����{v������(����������x���������g����)�����������
�z���x���w�����w������zi

.n��5ss5tR����qYo5�6ps4��p�65§p�t���5ss5tR��p��spqq��s��6�o�p����tYo���tr�R�5R�R�p�p����6ptR��q���R���s�5��5sR�Y�o5s���s��qp��s�R�5R�R�p�p����6ptR��q�
6psY�5tR5 opn������5rspp�R�5R������5�p�qpopYRp��p5Y���Rp6����p����6ptR� 5qp�����t����s���t����r6ptR�5t����qYo5�6�5t��spo�5tYp����t�5t��qR5Rp6ptRq��s�
sp�spqptR5R��tq�65�p� ���qn��p�5sp�op5q�tr�R�p�p����6ptR�R������̈5q��q©n�u�v�$)���(������x������x�����������v����y����������������x��������ª�����������������w�v�����
v�x��������������wz��x���������w��x���
�������������z�_$x��v(�����x�v���x��������ª��$������i��c����y�������������������z��w��v������x����y�$������x��b~v�y�������((�{����������g�������((��z�
{��$x��x����w���(�����z�v��w��z��w�z�v���{(��������x���v����i��u�v���������w��x�������w��x����vw$�v��������vyy(�����w��$x�������w�b~v�y��������z�v���((�$���$���x����vw$�v�������
�vyy(����w�������$��y������w�z�v�������z����x��i��u�v�x���{z�$)���(��������$��w�����x��z�v�x���������$�������z���g�w���$�(g�$$�v���������(��(����$��w����v�g��x��������g��x��
��vw$�v��������vyy(�����w��x��b~v�y����i��R��q�5rspp6ptR�5t��p5Y��qY�p��op�Y�tqR�R�Rpq�5�̈��t5tYp�op5qp©�5q��p��tp���t�5sR�Yop��5����R�p��t���s6�Y�66psY�5o�Y��pn�
u�v�������x���x��%v�������d���̀v������������y�����������y��������{(��������w��v��g��x������������������������w��x����������x((�x����z��{(����������z�v����x����y�$������x��̀v������
����x��z�v���{(��������v������x���
�����������������v{��$���������wwg����xx�(����g����v$����g�$�v����$(��������w�����w����z��������x����������$(v����g����x�v��(��������g��z�$(���z�v��z�
x���������v�����x����y�$������x��%v�������d���̀v�����i�

«¬®̄°±²�³²́µ¶¬·µ�̧«¹�º»¼«½¾¿ÀÁ¼ÂÃÄÁÅºÆ¼Á½«ÅÃÁÇÆÃ¿¾Èºº»«ÅÂ

ÉÊÊËÌÍÎÎÏÐÑÌÒÏÓÔÕÖ×ÐÕÔÓØÊ×ÒÙÌÎÚÙÌÊÓÐÛÜÝÔÛÉÊÊËÌÍÎÎÏÐÑÌÒÏÓÔÕÖ×ÐÕÔÓØÊ×ÒÙÌÎÚÙÌÊÓÐÛÜÝÔÛ

l



����������	


������������
����������������������������� ������!"�#��$����%�����&�'��(�

#$)���*+&,��-�.-,+��/0���&�12�32����14��4�.�56

-7�89:5;<9=�9��>?@<A6>=;&�B�C�D�((�)��E����C����F��GHC�E�������(I���I�C����������F�D��J�������I�C���������������������C�(����D������������7��
���F�������K��F��
��������L������M��K�I�C�

�������EC�$F����F��GHC�E����M�I�C�D�((����C����F��GHC�E���������(�$�����D���E�$�KI���I�C���NE����M��������(����(J(��$���������O����(�D����������$$�E�J(�PM�KC((�D��)���������M�������

$��E(������E��7

QR�89SS�9T�U565V>&�B�C�������E����J(��K����F�����)��K�(�������K����I������C$������K�������������F��GHC�E����7��W���C$F�(��������������(������I�C�K�����F��EI������J(��������C������F���


��������7��B�C���������E���E�(I�����KI�C�����D��������K��I�(���������������I�C�D�((��F���EI����C���F��E��������(C���K��F�����(��K�((�C�E���"���F(I�#I������O�����F���E������$�EI������

�F�D�P�K����F��KC((�
��������������E(C���F�����������K�����)����(C���K��F��GHC�E��������F�������K��F��������((I��$F��C(�������M�((����$�C�������K�C��E��$����OXYP�E���I��7��
�I�E��$������K�

���C��$��D�((�J��E������C�����$�������M����C���E����M��������I�(�����������7��B�C�C�F���Z��C�������������I�C��J�F(K����EE�����C����I�C��������I����K$������N�$C������I�C�������I�

���C��$����K������$F�$)�����C����C�����(����������������F��GHC�E����7

�R�:9885;>T58�AT9;>:;<9=�5=U�<=S@T5=:>&��B�C�������E����J(��K�������((�������)��E�����F��GHC�E�������������D��)���������7�GN$�E��K���������I�D���������M�I�C�������E����J(��K���

E����$������F��GHC�E�����K������������(�����K��I�)���7�*K��F��GHC�E�����������������(���M�I�C���������$�����C�����EI��F����C�����C��������J�$�����C��F���C�����D��F�C������KK����

��K����7�+C������F��������K��F���
��������M�I�C��������F��I�C�D�((�O[P����C����F���HC�E�����������((�(������������������C����(����EI��\�O]P��J����(�J�(��I�����F����E��I�E��E���I������

���C��$��������C�������������(����C���\����ÔP���(���������K$���I�������$���K��C$F�$�������D��F�$������M��E�(�$I�K����������C����$$�E�J(�����C�7�
((�E�(�$�����C���E��������F��D��J��

�������F���I�Ô_P��I��D�����������$���K��I������(�$F�������$�$�((����7���*K�I�C��������E�������������$���K�$$�E�J(�����C��$�M�D��F����F�����F�M�JC�������F���J(������M�OP�����J�������C��$��

$���������C�����������O�����(I��C����������P�����F��GHC�E�����K����F��(��������M��������D(�����O�P��I����C��$��D���J����D�((��������C���I�C��������F����E��I����(�J�(��I�$(��������I�J��

$�$�((���JI�C�����I�����M�O��P�I�C�D�((�J����HC��������EI�C�����������(���C����$F�����F�K����F�����C��$��E����C��������������������K��M�O���P��F��$�����I�J��������F���F��$�����K�

�J�������I�C���D�����C��$�M�O��P�I�C�������F��D�M���������K��C��KK�(����M��I��)���E��K������$����$�����D��F��F�����C��$��D���J���M�O�P�I�C���������$��E�����D��F�C�M��C�����C��������C��

���������F��E($�������K�$����������D��F�$(���\����OJP�D���I�D�����F�����C��$����HC�����������$F����I�C������F(I�E��E���I�������C�$F��������F����C����K�7__̂ �̀�K��F��������(�

�HC�E�����$�������$������C��$���������)M��������������$����������F���$����M���D�C(��J��KC��F������$��J�������(������K����C�����I�C�������DF�$F�D���I��)���E��K��7�*K�I�C�(����E�������������$��

�F��I�C�F����J������$$�E�J(�����C��$�M�D��D�((�$�$�(��F�����C��$��D���J���������$����$F�������F���C�$F���7

,R�<=U>6=<;a&��b������������E����J(��K����I�(���������cC�����$C����JI��F������((��������C����K��F��GHC�E����7��B�C���������F�(��C������I��������F��(�����������JC����C������F���K���(����

��������K����C������F����������I�$(���K���(�����������cC�I�������F�$C����JI��F��GHC�E����7��de�fegefhe�ije�fklji�im�nmoifmp�ije�qereoge�soq�im�gepeni�mf�sttfmhe�qereoge�nmuogepR��;jkg�

koqevokiw�gufhkheg�ije�extkfsikmo�mf�iefvkosikmo�mr�ijkg�5lfeeveoiR�

1R�;5y>S�5=U��>>S&��B�C���������EI�DF��������$���((��N���O��$(C�����E�����(�E��E���I��NM�K��������E��(����P����K������(���������F���
�������������F��GHC�E����7��B�C���������OP�

����JC����C��K���((�E�����(�E��E���I��N���DF�$F�D�������HC��������EI����D�����K��F��GHC�E��������������������C���$F�����F��C�����������K��F������F(I��HC��(�����K��F����C(�E��E���I�

�N������J���������7��*K�I�C��������F����z[7__�EC�$F����E����M�D��D�((�K�(��((�E�����(�E��E���IM�C��������F����N����C�������I�C���������EI�C���E��$�������K���K����)�����C$F�K�(����7��B�C�

��������EI�C��CE����z[]̀7__�����F�������F��K�����EI���������C�����������������K��7��b�����������F�����F�����$F�����K���CE���������������K��F���
������������F���JI�����{CEM�JCI{�C�����

��KC(�7��
�I�K���$F�����C������F���
����������I���$(C����E��K����������CJc�$�����EE(�$J(���N��7

��R�5SS<V=6>=;&�a9@�|5}>�=9�T<V|;�;9�S>88~�;T5=S�>T~�5SS<V=~�9T�S@ 8>5S>�;|>�>?@<A6>=;�9T�;|<S�5VT>>6>=;R��b���I���((M������M��������K����F���
�����������/����F��

GHC�E�����D��F�C������$�7��B�C�������F���K�D����((M������M��������K����F���
�����������/����F��GHC�E���������������M��C$F��������D�((�F����F���������F������J���K�����F��D��F�����D����

D�((�����F������E��K�����I��K��C���J(�������7��B�C�������F���F�����F����K��C$F��������D�((�����J���CJc�$������I�$(���M���K�����M���������KK���F��I�C��I�F���������C��DF��F����������I�C����

����K�����K��C$F����������7�0F��$�����K��I�GHC�E����M���K�D��M������$��������F����(��������K��F���
���������F��J��������������J��D����I�C����C�7��W�����K�����������������L�����������D�((�

����E������(I�����KI��I��C$F�$����7������������������L�����������D�((�J��E���������KC������J��������F��EI�����I�C�F�������������D��F�C�7��B�C�������E����J(��K���������������I�C��

$$�C����������������K��F��EE��E������NM�(��(M�K���$�(����$$�C������$��E��������K��F���
��������7

��R�U>�5@8;�5=U�T>6>U<>S&�*K�OP�I�C��������EI��I�(����EI����������F����C���C�����C�������F���E��I�DF����C�����OJP��K�I�C�J��)��I��K�I�C��E������������F��
��������M��I��$F��C(������I�

��F������������D��F�C�����O$P��K�I�CM�����I��C�������K�I�C���J(��������J�$��������(��������$�����$��J�)�CE�$I������$������F�E�E��$�����������F����C$F�E��$��������$�����$���������

I�CM�I�C�D�((�J�������KC(�7��*K��I�E����K��EI��������������F���F����ÔP��I��(��M�I�C���������EI��(���$F�����K�����E��$����O[_YP��K��F��EI�����DF�$F����(�������K�(���M��F���N��C��$F����

((�D���JI�(D7��*K�I�C��������������KC(�M�D���I�����I��������((��K��F��K�((�D���\�OP�D��FF�(�������$�M�E��������CEE(�������/����������F��%C������������C�����\�OJP�������������$�$�(��F���


�����������/����I����((��$F��C(��������HC�����F��I�C�EIM�5S�8<?@<U5;>U�U565V>S��9T�89SS�9�� 5TV5<=�5=U�=9;�5S�5�A>=58;aM��F���C���K&�O�P�((�E����C�����$C������"���F(I�

#I������O�����F���E������$�EI�����P����$F������C��C������F���
�������������I��$F��C(�\�O��P��F��E��������(C���K�((����������"���F(I�#I������O�����F���E������$�EI�����P����$F�����

K����F������������K��F��������K��F���
�������������I��$F��C(��M����$�C��������F�������K�K�C��E��$����OXYP�E�����C��O����F��(�D��������E���������JI�(DM�DF�$F��������F��F��P\����O���P��F��

E��������(C��O���F���������$�C����������E�$�K�������$(C���O��P�J���P��K��F����C����K��I�EC�$F����E�����D��F����E�$������F��GHC�E�������M��K����������E�$�K���M��C�����$�E�����(C���K��F��

GHC�E��������F�������K��F�������(�������K��F���
�������������I��$F��C(���O����I�����D(��F����KP\����O$P���HC����I�C�������C����F��GHC�E��������C������(�$���������������JI�C��O���D��F�

���E�$������I���K�D��M�O�P���������(I����������I�C�����F�����C����F����K�D�����$(C������F�����J(����O��{��������JI��������$���C��$����P��K��I���K�D��\�O��P��������F��������������C������

�J����E�����������K��F����K�D��������{(�$������F����K�D������ECJ(�$����E�������(�\���/���O���P�$C����F����K�D����CEE(�����������������F����K�D���(�$����M��CEE���������F��������$���C�����

�F����K�D���(�$����P7�b���I���$������������������I�C�E���J(�$�����F�������K�K�C��E��$����OXYP�E�����C��JC��������������������F���F��(DKC(��N��C�����7�b���I�(���C����I��K��F��

�����������(J(�����C��C�����
���$(��]
��K��F�����K����%�����$�(�%��������$��������F�������DF����D������F���������F����C��E���$�E(�E($���K�JC������7��B�C���������EI��C�������J(��$�����

�K�$�((�$����������K��$�����M���$(C�����JC������(����������������IL��K�������$�C(�$�C���$�������(���������I�$(����������C������F���
�����������$(C����M�JC������(���������M��I�(��(�$��������

��K���(�K���$�((�$����7��*K�D��F�������)��E�����������K��F��GHC�E����M�I�C���������EI��F��$�����K���E���������7��0F������E��$������K��F���(���K��I���E���������GHC�E�����D�((�J��$��������������

DF��I�C��D��C����B���
��GG�0�
0�bG�b*���W�0��G��G�#�W�*��G�'���
WB�%�W�G��GW0*
�M�*W+*�G%0����*W%*+GW0
��+
"
�G��'���
WB��G
��W�b�
0��G�G�7��B�C�������F���I���(I����

K�(C��������K��$���C�����F���C������F���
������������������E�������C��K������K��$�����I����F������(��������7�
((��K��C�����F������$C�C(����7�*�����KC��F����������F��I�C�����F������������������

����������N$(C����(I�JI��F���
������������I�C�D����(�����L�����F���C�����
���$(��]
�Ò_�{̀]]P��K��F���%%7

��R�@::��<8<=VS&�B�C������C�����$C���I��������������F��GHC�E������K��F���
�������������I��$F��C(���������������$C��������$��������I�C�C�F���Z��C�������$������%%{[�K���$����������������

����(�������C������������������F�D��C���������������F��GHC�E����7��

��������������������������������� ¡�¢�£����¢ �¤£ ��¥����¢�

l



����������	


������������
����������������������������� ������!"�#��$����%�����&�'��(�

#$)���*+&,��-�.-,+��/0���&�12�32����14��4�.�56

�37�89:;<:=�=9�>5?@�ABCD;ED8=D9:�5:E�F<:B<&�0G���
����������G((�H���������IJ((K��L�$J�������M��I����������G��������I��J������G��������N��M���$�M(�M($���I�HJ�����������G((�H��

���������HK����$�����J������$$����$��O��G�����(O�P��*I�O������G���������H������K�QJ��$�(�M��$������������(���������K��������������J������G���
��������R�K�J�������$H(K�������G���K��J$G�

�������K�H���QJ�����������������������K�$�J������$�J��������G��������I��J������G��������N��M���$�M(�M($���I�HJ������R��������K�$�J������$�J�������K�J��������I��������$�R��������K���G���$�J���

G�����QJ�����$����������K�J����K�J�������R�((����G����(���(�$������I�J������G��������P��S�J�G���HK�������$H(K��JH���������((K����J�$��������((K�����G��QJ�����$������I��K��J$G�$�J�������(�$����HK�

J������G��������������(���������J$G�������P��TU0V�#
W0*XY�Z
*�X�0W*
��TS�[\WS�*]�
]S�
%0*U]�TX0ZXX]�\YP

�.7�><;;<<�̂B5C5:=<<&��S�J�����R�JM����J����_J���R�����JH�����G��������(��I��G���
�������������K�Y$G��J(������J������G�������������������G��$�J������G�������K�K�J��JH�����G��I$����(��

�����G����(�$�����$��������������I��G���������
�������������J$G�Y$G��J(��P��T��G�M������������G���G���
�������������K�Y$G��J(����������HK�K�JR�OG��G�����J((K�����(�$�����$((KR����

�JH����������J��HK�I$����(�������G����(�$�����$��������������G((R�JM����L�$J�����HK�J��̀��J((K�����(�$�����$((KR���MM(�$H(�aR�H��H�������JM����G��M�����P��0G���(�����K�H���L�$J�������

$�J����M��������K�I$����(�R�MG�����MG�$���/�����G����(�$�����$��������������I��G���(����OG�$G�G��H������J((K�����(�$�����$((K��������HK�K�J�OG�����J((K�����(�$�����$((K�

$�J�����������HK�J�������$G�������J��������(������J���$�J����M�����/�������J��M�����������G((�$������J����G����(��������(�$G���(�MM�������I���������G��\%%�I���((�MJ�M�����̀��$(J������K�

��I��$������$�����J�����M���MG�bba����O�((�H��������H(����(��(�������$���G����IP��T��G�M������O�����G�����G�����$G((��������$�J����G��J�G����$��K��I��IL��R�MG�����MG�$R������G���

�(�$�����$((K����������������(�$�����$((K��������$�MK��I��G���
�������������K�Y$G��J(��P�

�

�-7��896cB=<C�;9�=?5C<&��]��O��G���������K���G������������$�����������I��G���
��������R�K�J�������G�������Y�I�O�����(K&�a�Z��G�������G�R��������G��R�����O�((�G����K����(������J$G�

Y�I�O��R�Ha�S�J�G����L�$J�������O�((��L�$J������M������I�O���(�$�����
������������O����������M��K�������G���������M����H�(������OG����������������������J$G�(�$�����
��������R�$a�S�J�

G�����(�$�����J$G�Y�I�O���������$$����$��O��G�M���MG�d��I��G���
��������R�ZX�"
!X�]U�Z
WW
]0*XY�U'�"XW%V
]0
T*�*0SR�+
0
�
%%\W
%SR�YSY0X"�*]0XeW
0*U]�UW�'*0]XYY�'UW�

\YX�
]+�0
!X�
TYU�\0X�S�]U�WXY#U]Y*T*�*0S�'UW�0VX�'\]%0*U]�UW�+X'X%0*�X�]
0\WX�U'�Y\%V�YU'0Z
WXR�YSY0X"Y�*]0XeW
0*U]R�UW�U0VXWZ*YX�*]�WXe
W+Y�0U�Y\%V�YU'0Z
WXP��SU\W�

�X
YX�#
S"X]0Y�
]+�U0VXW�UT�*e
0*U]Y�\]+XW�0V*Y��X
YX�
eWXX"X]0�YV
���*]�]U�Z
S�TX�+*"*]*YVX+�UW�+X�
SX+�U]�
%%U\]0�U'�UW�*]�
]S�Z
S�WX�
0X+�0U�0VX�
TU�X�Y
*+�

YU'0Z
WX��*%X]YX�
eWXX"X]0�U'�'
*�\WX�*]�
]S�Z
S�U'�0VX�YU'0Z
WXP

�f7��65D:=<:5:8<�5:E�;Bcc>D<;&�X_J�M����������$���M��������J������G���
�����������$(J���(H������M������_J���������������$�������X_J�M�������������(��M�������$��������P�Z��O�((�

M�������������I���$�������X_J�M�������������������H���P�%���J�H(���JMM(�������������$(J�����M(���J�(������(�$���P�0G��$���J�H(���JMM(����M������������J��M��M���K�J���(��G�K����$���J����

������������������H��J�����L$(J����(K�����G��$�������X_J�M����P�S�J�H����G�����)��I�(����I���J�J�����JMM(��������G���������I��G�I�R���M(�K������$���J$�R�I���������G������GMP�Z�����������G�����G��

�����M($�������$�R�������������(�$�������K�JR�O��G��$��M�H(��J����OG�����M����I��G��������(�����$���������M�$��$(�����$�����$((K�I���H(�P�#��$����J������G���
������������H�������

MJH(��G������$�����$�((K������H(���LM�$��������I��JMM(K����$���J�H(���$���J�M����P�
���J�����$������R�O���K�M��I������J�����I��JMM(K/$���J�H(���$���J�M���������_J�M�����

J��������������������$���J�M�����(���(�P�*���G���������G��$�J(�$���J�M�����(���(���L$�����G��(���(��J�����������������$����$��M��$����HK�������G��ghiR�O��G����G�����G����������$��I����G��

�L$����$���J�M����P�#M����J���H����M���(K�MJ�$G����HK�K�JP�
�M��������I�����������������$(�$)����������HK�M�����j����I�((�O�&�kPlmLbbm�n�b�$(�$)R�bbmLbom�n�g�$(�$)�R�bkmLgom�n�p�$(�$)�R�

gomLpqm�n�d�$(�$)�����pqmLdom�n�l�$(�$)�P�S�J���������M�������J��$$��������G���_J�M��������O��O�((�M�������(H��������J����R�������(����M�����������������$�������$����O�((���������(�

M�����J���������(�HJ�������G�J���̀��I�������k&ph������l&hh�M�R�"���K��G��J�G�'���KR��L$(J������I�G�(��K���H�������HK�J�aP�
((�M�����M($��������G((�H��������L$G����H����O��G���O����

��IJ�H��G��������P�Z����������H(���������M������������$��������M��������G���������I�X_J�M�����HJ��/���J������$�J(�KP�UJ���I��$�M�������$��R���$(J�����I����G�J��R������R�����I�$���������

HJ��/���J���O�((�H��$G��������J��$J����������P�*I���$����KR��G�������$������JMM(K�M��������I��G���
����������K�H���������P�Z���K�$G����K�J��YJMM(K�'����G��'������$������J��$������I�

�G�MM�����JMM(�������K�JP�S�J�$)��O(������G��̀a�O��̀��������G������������������������a�����G����(��M��K����M����H(��I����K������$�R���M�������������$���I��G��X_J�M����R����̀Ha�O��̀�����G��

����������������������a�����G��M��K�����K������$���������$����������P�

��7��><<=�E<FD8<�69:D=9CD:̂4�Z���K��)�K�J��M�����������������((�����������������rH������I�O���������������G��M������������$������K�J�����O��)�̀s'(����+���$��"���������maP�ZG�����G��

J����I�'(����+���$��"������������I�O�����M����I��������M�����M������G��H������������R����O�((�H��J�����������$����O�����$����������J$G�����$�������G���
�����������M��r���H(��G���M��$��

(���(�P�0G�����������$�̀�a�O�((�H��$�������J������G���������I��G���
��������P�S�J�O�((�H������I����������(�����K���Q�$���G�����������I��G������$�̀�a�HK�$���$�����J�P�*I�K�J���������((�O�J�����

����((�����������'(����+���$��"������������I�O������K�J�����O��)R�����G����I�O���$�������(�H(K��M��������K�J��������������I����K������R�O�����������G�����G������J�M����������������

�����$���J������G���
��������P

�,7�9F<C5̂<;�5:E�89;=�5EAB;=6<:=;&�S�J���������$��M(K�O��G��K�H�((����M��$��J��������������HK�J�R���$(J���������IK����J���I��G�������������������G��T�((����+��P��*I���������������

���������$�����R�O�����������G�����G�������������K�J��J�������H�((�K�J�I����G����J��P��
���G�������I��G��I�����K����I��G���
��������������$���$G��J$$��������O�(�������G�M�����R�O���K�

��$�����K�J��MK����R�����G��M���M���$G����������G��M������$(J����̀U�����a�̀�I�MM(�$H(�a�HK���L��J���I�I�I�����M��$����̀blia��I��G���L�������$G���R�����I�(���R��G���L��J����J���

M���������HK�MM(�$H(��(OP��Z���K�H�((�K�J��M���M���$G����I���((�M����M���J$���H��O�����G�������I�K�J��I��(������$������G������OG���K�J�����IK�K�J���H(��������J������G���
���������

������G���MJ�$G���������J����G���_J�M��������J�P��]��O��G���������K�G����G����������G��$�����KR�I���M��(��������������sU���W��m�M��(�R���$(������O��G����G��������(�
��������������

���YJMM(K�'����G��'�����������MM(K������������������������_J����P��
((�
��������������JHQ�$�������$(���������K�����O(�M�����P�

�

<tu�vw�>xyzx�9{|}vtz

S�J�O�((�G����G��I�((�O�����M���������G�������I��G��������(�����R�M���������G��
������������MM(�$H(��Y$G��J(��G������������������(K��������������I���IJ(��J������G��
�����������/����K�

Y$G��J(��G���$$J�����������$�����J���P�bP�#J�$G���((��I��G��X_J�M�����������$��������G��s0�������#K�����*�I�������m���$������I��G��
�������������K�MM(�$H(��Y$G��J(��̀sI�����)���

�(J�m�MJ�$G�����J����O�((�H�������������HK�J�aP�gP�W���O��G��
�����������/���MM(�$H(��Y$G��J(��M���M���MG�b�̀���
��������aP��pP�W��J���X_J�M�������M�����������#���MG�l�̀���


��������aP

~������������������~�����~����������������~������������~��

l



�����������

	
�������������	���������������������������� ������ !�"��#����$����%�&��'


"�#(����)*%+��,�-,+*���./���%�01�21����03��3�-�45

67897�4::7;<8=:7

>?@A�@A�4�BCBD4BDE64�6E�1�@FFEGCD4�6E�4HFEE5EB>3�>?@A�4HFEE5EB>�D4BBC>��E�D4BDE6EI�CF�>EF5@B4>EIJ

 ��#��!��'���KL������M�'L�����NOMO	OP�)#OP

QRSR��T�UVW��XVU�YZ���[�\V�[�]VU�UW�

V̂�U�Z_[�̀ abcda

e�\�̀ abfda

gVZY�̀ abhda

i�Z��̂V�U�Q̀ abjda

Dk9<lm7n

�̂YZ�[[��o�p�[Z�qQQ

V̂�U�Z_[�̀ arcsa

e�\�̀ arfsa

gVZY�̀ arhsa

i�Z��̂V�U�Q̀ arjsa

atdua

vwxyz{|}�~}���w����v�����v����������������v������������v��

�����������

�

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 

  

l



Page 1 of 34 
 

SOLTERRA RESORT  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
REVISED AMENITIES RULES & POLICIES 

 
 
 
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 2 of 34 
 

CONTENTS 
 
PART 1: Rule for Amenities Rates          Page 4 

INTRODUCTION 
DEFINITIONS 
ANNUAL USER FEE 
RESERVATION RATES FOR CLUBHOUSE 
ACTIVITY AND PROGRAM RATES 
MISCELLANEOUS FEES 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 
PRIOR RULES; POLICIES 
SEVERABILITY 

 
PART 2: Amenities Policies            Page 7 

DEFINITIONS 
AUTHORIZED USERS 
ACCESS CARDS 
FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES 
COMMUNITY PROGRAMMING 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
FITNESS CENTER 
POOL, POOL SLIDE & SPA AREA 
LAZY RIVER 
TENNIS COURTS 
MULTI‐PURPOSE FIELD 
EVENT LAWN, PATIO, PICNIC AREAS, AND OUTDOOR AREAS 
LAKE OR POND AREAS 
PLAYGROUND AND TOT LOTS 
PROPERTY DAMAGE 
USE AT OWN RISK; INDEMNIFICATION 
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 
SEVERABILITY 
AMENDMENTS / WAIVERS 
ATTACHMENT A:  REGISTRATION FORM 
ATTACHMENT B:  CONSENT AND WAIVER AGREEMENT 

   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 3 of 34 
 

 
PART 3:  Amenities Disciplinary Rule          Page 29 

INTRODUCTION 
GENERAL RULE 
SUSPENSION OF RIGHTS 
AUTHORITY OF AMENITIES MANAGER 

 
Part 4: Operation Plan              Page 30 

VENDOR LIST 
LIST OF ACTIVE WARRANTIES 
HOURS OF OPERATIONS 
ROUTINE CLEANING PROCEDURES 
CLEANING RECORD FORM 

 
 
 
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 4 of 34 
 

PART 1: Rule for Amenities Rates 
 
 
  In  accordance  with  Chapters  190  and  120  of  the  Florida  Statutes,  and  on 
_______________, 2022 at a duly noticed public meeting and after a duly noticed public 
hearing,  the  Board  of  Supervisors  of  the  Solterra  Resort  Community  Development 
District adopted the following rules to govern rates for the District’s Amenities. 
 
 

1. Introduction.  This  rule  addresses  various  rates,  fees  and  charges 
associated with the Amenities. 
 

2. Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meaning ascribed  to  them  in  the Amenities Policies of Solterra Resort Community 
Development District, as amended from time to time.  
 

3. Annual User Fee. For Non‐Resident Patrons, the Annual User Fee is equal 
to the average annual operation and maintenance assessment and debt assessment as 
established by the District in connection with the adoption of the District’s annual fiscal 
year  budgets.  For  Residents,  the  Annual  User  Fee  is  paid when  the  Resident makes 
payment  for  the Resident’s  annual operation and maintenance  assessment,  and debt 
service assessment, for the property owned by the Resident.  
 

4. Reservation  Rates  for  Clubhouse.  Any  Patron  wishing  to  have  the 
exclusive  use  of  any  room  or  area within  the  clubhouse  or  pool  area must  pay  the 
appropriate fee and submit a security deposit in the amounts set forth below.  
 
Reasonable accommodation will be made for members of the association to utilize this 
amenity free of charge with 10% of the cabanas. Reservation by a member must be made 
48 hours in advance; otherwise cabana will be open for rental usage. 

 
 
Room / Area  Rental Fee  Deposit 
Multi‐Purpose Field Rental 
 

$25/hour  $300 

Covered Patio at Pool 
 

$25/hour  $300 

Club Room 
 

$50/hour  $300 

Club Room and Covered Patio 
 

$70/hour  $300 

Cabanas Pool side  Non‐electric cabanas: 
$100/daily  

$100 
 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 5 of 34 
 

Electric cabanas: 
$125/daily  
 
Members of the 
association will use 10% 
of the cabanas free of 
charge upon 
reservation. 

Reservation Fee: 
$25.00 
 

 
5. Activity and Program Rates. The following non‐clubhouse fees apply: 

 
Resort program prices charged on an activity by activity basis. 
 
Activity  Fee  Deposit  

(if applicable) 
Happy Hour  Charge per person base 

on market rate 
None 

Parents Night out/movie   Charge per person base 
on market rate 

None 

Other events as scheduled   Charge per person base 
on market rate 

None 

 
 

6. Miscellaneous Fees. 
 
Item  Fee 
Access Cards (two per Member) 
 

Free 

Additional Access Card (for additional cards) 
 

$25.00 

Replacement of Damaged, Lost, or Stolen Access Card 
 

$25.00 

Guest staying on property Fee for Clubhouse and Pool 
 

Free 

Guests not staying on property Fee for Clubhouse and Pool 
 

N/A 

Insufficient Funds Fee  (for  submitting an  insufficient  funds 
check) 
 

$30.00 

 
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 6 of 34 
 

 
7. Special Provisions.  

 
a. After‐Hours Events. All rental fees are  increased by $25 for each 

hour past normal operating hours.  
 

b. Homeowner’s  Association  and  Master  Developer  Meetings. 
Unless otherwise provided in the District’s official policies, as may 
be  amended  from  time  to  time,  each  homeowner’s  association 
located within the boundaries of the District is permitted one free 
meeting per month, subject to availability. Any events hosted by 
the Master Developer are permitted for free, subject to availability. 
 

c. Additional  Costs.  The District may  in  its  sole  discretion  require 
additional  staffing,  insurance,  cleaning,  or  other  service  for  any 
given event, and, if so, may charge an additional fee for the event 
equal to the cost of such staffing, insurance, cleaning, or service.  

 
8. Adjustment of Rates. Not more than once per year, the Board may adjust 

by resolution adopted at a duly noticed public meeting any of the fees set 
forth in paragraphs 4, 5, and 6 by not more than five percent per year to 
reflect actual costs of operation of the Amenities, to promote use of the 
Amenities, or for any other purpose as determined by the Board to be in 
the  best  interests  of  the District.  The  Board may  also  in  its  discretion 
authorize discounts for certain services. 

 
9. Prior Rules; Policies. The District’s Amenities Policies, as may be amended 

from time to time, govern all use of the Amenities. 
 

10. Severability.  The  invalidity  or  unenforceability  of  any  one  or  more 
provisions of this rule shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remaining portions of this rule, or any part of this rule not held to be invalid 
or unenforceable. 

 
Law Implemented: ss. 190.011, 190.035, Fla. Stat. (2021) 
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 7 of 34 
 

PART 2: Amenities Policies 
 
 
  In accordance with Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and on _____________, 
2022 at a duly noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Solterra Resort 
Community  Development  District  adopted  the  following  policies  to  govern  the 
operation  of  the  District’s  Amenities.  All  prior  policies  of  the  District  are  hereby 
rescinded. 
 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
  The following definitions shall apply to these policies in their entirety: 
 

“Access Card” – shall mean the identification card issued to Patrons. 
 

“Amenities” –  shall mean  the properties and areas owned by  the District and 
intended  for  recreational use and  shall  include, but not  specifically be  limited  to,  the 
District’s clubhouse,  fitness center,  swimming pool, multi‐purpose  field,  tennis courts, 
playground,  picnic  area,  and  walking  trails,  together  with  their  appurtenant  areas, 
facilities, equipment, and any other appurtenances. 
 

“Amenities Policies” or “Policies” – shall mean all policies of the District relative 
to the Amenities, as amended from time to time. 
 
  “Amenity  Manager”  –  shall  mean  the  management  company,  including  its 
employees, staff and agents, contracted by the District to manage the Amenities. 
 
  “Annual User Fee” – shall mean the base fee established by the District for the 
non‐exclusive right to use the Amenities. The amount of the Annual User Fee is set forth 
in the District’s rules and  included  in the District’s Operation & Maintenance expenses 
charged to each property owner.  
 
  “Board of Supervisors” or “Board” – shall mean the Board of Supervisors of the 
District. 
   
  “District” – shall mean the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 
 
  “District Manager”  –  shall mean  the  professional management  company with 
which the District has contracted to provide management services to the District. 
 
  “Family” –  shall mean a group of  individuals  living under one  roof or head of 
household. This can consist of individuals who have not yet attained the age of eighteen, 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 8 of 34 
 

together with their parents or legal guardians. This does not include visiting relatives, or 
extended family not residing in the home.  
 
  “Guest”  –  shall mean  any  person  or  persons,  other  than  a  Patron,  who  are 
expressly authorized by the District to use the Amenities, or invited and accompanied for 
the day by a Patron to use the Amenities. 
 
  “Non‐Resident” – shall mean any person that does not own property within the 
District. 
 
  “Non‐Resident Patron” – shall mean any person or Family not owning property in 
the District who is paying the Annual User Fee to the District. 
 
  “Patron”  or  “Patrons”  –  shall  mean  Residents,  Non‐Resident  Patrons,  and 
Renters. 
 
  “Person” – shall mean an individual, or legal entity recognized under Florida law. 
 
  “Renter” – shall mean any tenant residing in a Resident’s home pursuant to a valid 
rental or lease agreement. 
 
  “Resident” – shall mean any person or Family owning property within the District. 
 

AUTHORIZED USERS 
 

Generally. Only Patrons and Guests, as set forth herein, have the right to use the 
Amenities.  

 
Residents. A Resident must pay the Annual User Fee applicable to Residents  in 

order to have the right to use the Amenities. Such payment must be made in accordance 
with the District’s annual assessment collection resolution and typically will be included 
on the Resident’s property tax bill. Payment of the Annual User Fee entitles the Resident 
to use the Amenities for one full fiscal year of the District, which year begins October 1 
and ends September 30.  

 
Non‐Residents. A Non‐Resident Patron must pay the Annual User Fee applicable 

to Non‐Residents in order to have the right to use the Amenities for one full year, which 
year begins from the date of receipt of payment by the District. This fee must be paid in 
full before the Non‐Resident may use the Amenities. Each subsequent Annual User Fee 
shall be paid in full on the anniversary date of application.  

 
Renter’s Privileges. Residents who rent or lease residential unit(s) in the District 

shall have the right to designate the Renter of the residential unit(s) as the beneficial users 
of the Resident’s privileges to use the Amenities.  

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 9 of 34 
 

 
1. A Renter who is designated as the beneficial user of the Resident’s rights to use 

the  Amenities  shall  be  entitled  to  the  same  rights  and  privileges  to  use  the 
Amenities as the Resident.  

2. During the period when a Renter is designated as the beneficial user, the Resident 
shall not be entitled to use the Amenities. 

3. Residents  shall  be  responsible  for  all  charges  incurred  by  their  Renters which 
remain unpaid after the customary billing and collection procedure established by 
the  District.  Resident  owners  are  responsible  for  the  deportment  of  their 
respective Renter. 

4. Renters shall be subject to all rules and policies as the Board may adopt from time 
to time. 

 
Guests. Except as otherwise provided  for herein, each Resident who  is at  least 

sixteen  (16)  years of  age may bring  a maximum of  four  (4) Guests  to  the Amenities, 
provided  however  that Guests must  be  accompanied  by  the  Patron when  using  the 
Amenities and provided however that the Patron will be responsible for any harm caused 
by  the  Patron’s  Guests  while  using  the  Amenities.  For  clarification  purposes,  the 
preceding sentence shall be construed to place a four (4) Guest  limitation on the total 
number of Guests that a Patron may bring on behalf of that Patron’s particular residence 
or household – e.g., a Patron Family consisting of  four people cannot bring up to  four 
Guests each for a total of sixteen Guests, but instead can only bring a total of four Guests 
on behalf of the entire household. The District may also in its discretion invite Guests as 
part of any community programming activities. Applicable fees may apply. Guests shall 
be subject to all rules and policies as the Board may adopt from time to time. 

 
Use of Amenities Facilities at Your Own Risk  

 
Registration / Disclaimer. In order to use the Amenities, each Patron, all members 

of  a  Patron’s  Family,  and  all  Guests  shall  register  with  the  District  by  executing  a 
Registration Form, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment A, and by executing 
the Consent and Waiver Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B. 
All persons using the Amenities do so at their own risk and agree to abide by the rules 
and policies for the use of the Amenities. As set forth more fully later herein, the District 
shall assume no responsibility and shall not be liable for any accidents, personal injury, 
or damage to, or loss of property arising from the use of the Amenities or from the acts, 
omissions or negligence of other persons using the Amenities. Patrons are responsible 
for their actions and those of their Guests.  
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 10 of 34 
 

ACCESS CARDS AND CODES 
 

Use of Access Cards. Patrons can use  their Access Cards or key pad with code 
number to gain access to the Amenities. Upon arrival at the clubhouse, Patrons will scan 
their Access Cards in the card reader located outside of the main entrance doors in order 
to unlock the doors. Under no circumstance should a Patron provide an access card to 
another person to allow him or her to use the Amenities. 

 
Issuance of Access Cards.  Each Patron will  receive  two  (2) Access Cards upon 

registration with  the District.  For  Families,  each  Patron may  obtain  additional Access 
Cards  for any member of a Patron’s Family who  is over  sixteen  (16) years of age and 
eligible to use the Amenities, with a maximum of four (4) cards per Family, and subject to 
payment of any applicable fees. 

 
Non‐Transferrable. Access Cards are  the property of  the District and are non‐

transferable except in accordance with the District’s rules and policies.  
 

Lost or Stolen Cards. All lost or stolen cards need to be reported immediately to 
the District. Fees may apply to replace any lost or stolen cards. 
 

FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES 
 
  The following policies apply to the rental of the Amenities: 

 
1. Patrons Only. Unless otherwise directed by the District, only Patrons may reserve 

the portions of the Amenities for parties and events. Rental reservations may not 
be made more than four (4) months prior to the event. Please contact the Amenity 
Manager  in order  to determine availability of  the Amenities  for any particular 
reservation. Please note all policies remain in force during these events, and the 
District has final say in these matters. Patrons renting the Amenities available for 
rental are responsible  for ensuring that their attendees adhere to the District’s 
policies.  

2. Amenities Available for Rental: The following Amenities are available for rental: 
clubhouse, outdoor covered patio area, and multi‐purpose field.  

3. Rental Application  and Rental Agreement.  Patrons must  submit  a  completed 
Rental Application, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment C, no later 
than fourteen (14) days prior to the requested event  indicating the date of the 
event,  the hours when  the event will be held,  a description of  the event,  the 
number of attendees that will be attending, and whether alcohol and/or food will 
be served.  The Amenity Manager will review the Rental Application on a case‐by‐
case basis and has the authority to reasonably deny a request. Denial of a request 
may  be  appealed  to  the  Board  for  consideration.  Each  Patron  renting  the 
Amenities must sign and execute a Rental Agreement acceptable to the District 
and all documentation required therein must be received by the Amenity Manager 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 11 of 34 
 

no less than ten (10) days prior to the date of event. Regardless of whether the 
Rental Agreement  is executed,  the Patron  is bound by  the Rental Agreement, 
which is incorporated herein by this reference. 

4. Payment &  Registration. At  the  time  the  reservation  is made,  two  checks  or 
money orders (no cash), one for the deposit and one for the room rental, both 
made  out  to  District must  be  delivered  to  the  Amenity Manager  along  with 
completed paperwork and insurances, if necessary.  

5. Rates and Deposits. The rental rates and deposits for use of the Amenities are as 
set forth in the District’s rules. To receive the full refund of the deposit within ten 
(10) days after the event, the renter must: 

i. Remove all garbage, place in dumpster and replace garbage liners; 
ii. Take down all decorations or event displays; and 
iii. Otherwise clean  the  rented Amenities and  restore  them  to  their 

pre‐rented condition, and to the satisfaction of the District. 
The District may retain all or part of any deposit if the District determines, in its 
sole discretion, that it is necessary to repair any damages (including any clean‐up 
costs) arising from the rental.  

6. Computation of Rental Time. The  rental  time period  is  inclusive of  set‐up and 
clean‐up time.  

7. Duration of Events. Unless otherwise authorized by the District, each rental shall 
be for a minimum of two (2) hours but no more than four (4) hours, and no after‐
hours events shall extend past midnight.  If  the event  lasts  longer  than  four  (4) 
hours, the deposit is forfeited. 

8. Available Hours. The Amenities available for rental may be rented for parties and 
events during normal operating hours. Additionally, the clubhouse may be rented 
after hours and until midnight. All parties and events, including clean‐up, at the 
clubhouse must conclude by midnight. 

9. Capacity. The clubhouse capacity  limit shall not be exceeded at any  time  for a 
party or event. 

10. Noise.  The  volume  of  live  or  recorded music must  not  violate  applicable  Polk 
County noise ordinances, or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of 
their homes. 

11. Insurance. Additional  liability  insurance coverage will be required  for all events 
that  are  approved  to  serve  alcoholic  beverages,  or  for  other  events  that  the 
District  determines  in  its  sole  discretion  should  require  additional  liability 
insurance. The District and its supervisors, staff, and consultants/contractors are 
to be named on these policies as an additional insured party. 

12. Cancellation. If the renter wishes to cancel a reservation, the cancellation must 
be communicated to the Amenity Manager in writing no later than thirty (30) days 
prior to the scheduled event to receive 100% of the rental fee and deposit. If the 
event is cancelled less than 30 days prior to the event, 100% of the security deposit 
and 0% of the rental fee will be returned.  

 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 12 of 34 
 

COMMUNITY PROGRAMMING 
 

Resources. The District is pleased to offer a wide variety of programs and activities 
designed to meet the needs of community members of all ages, interests and skill levels. 
Each year, the Amenity Manager will evaluate and improve upon existing programs, and 
may add new activities in each category. The format of each program or activity will be 
structured to most effectively provide participants with a positive recreational experience 
of the highest caliber. Patrons can easily find information on new programs and events 
by picking up the monthly program calendars, reviewing the community bulletin board, 
or by contacting the Amenity Manager: 

 
Solterra Resort  

5200 Solterra Blvd, Davenport FL  
863‐547‐9839 

Patrons and Guests Only. Unless otherwise directed by the District, programs will 
be open  to Patrons and  their Guests only,  subject  to payment of any applicable  fees. 
Patrons may  register Guests  for programs; however,  in order  to provide Patrons with 
priority registration, Guests may be assessed a surcharge and will only be able to register 
for programs if space permits. 
 

Registration. Most programs will  require  advanced  registration or  an RSVP  to 
allow the staff to plan effectively. To avoid the unnecessary cancellation of a program, 
interest parties must register by the posted deadline. Late registrations may be accepted 
on a case‐by‐case basis. Due to the nature of some programs and the availability of space, 
late  registration  may  not  always  be  feasible.  Some  programs  will  have  maximum 
registration limitations. In the event a program is full, a waiting list will be created.  
 

Programs and Activities. All programs and services  including personal  training, 
group  exercise,  tennis  lessons,  instructional  programs,  competitive  events,  and  other 
programs must be conducted through the Amenity Manager or as directed by the Board. 
A schedule of activities for the Amenities will be posted in each area and updated by the 
Amenity Manager. No outside (i.e., third party) instructors are allowed.  
 

Cancellation by the District. The Amenity Manager will notify Patrons if there is a 
need to change or cancel a program. If a program is cancelled by the District, Patrons will 
be issued a refund or credit on their account.  
 

Refunds. Program  refunds and  credit may be granted on a  case‐by‐case basis. 
Refunds  and  credits  after  the  program  registration  deadline,  “no  shows”,  or  after  a 
program begins may not be approved.  
 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 13 of 34 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

All Patrons and Guests using the Amenities are expected to conduct themselves in 
a responsible, courteous and safe manner, in compliance with all rules and policies of the 
District.  
 

Emergencies: After contacting 911 if required, all emergencies and injuries must 
be reported to the Amenity Manager at 877‐221‐6919, and to the office of the District 
Manager at 321‐263‐0132. 

 
Hours of Operation. All hours of operation of the Amenities will be established 

and published by the District. The clubhouse will be open year‐round. The District may 
restrict access or close some or all of the Amenities for purposes of providing a community 
activity, for making improvements, for conducting maintenance, or other purposes. Any 
programs or activities of the District may have priority over other users of the Amenities.  

 
Except as otherwise stated herein, the following additional guidelines govern the 

use of the Amenities generally: 
 

1. Registration and Access Cards. Patrons and their Guests have the right to use the 
Amenities as set forth herein. In order to use the Amenities, each Patron, including 
all of Patron’s Family, and all Guests shall register with the District by executing a 
Registration Form, a copy of which  is attached hereto as Attachment A, and by 
executing the Consent and Waiver Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto 
as Attachment B.  Patrons  are  responsible  for  their  actions  and  those  of  their 
Guests. All Patrons must sign‐in and have their assigned access card or key pad 
code upon entering the clubhouse. Cards and codes are only to be used by the 
Patron to whom they are issued.  

2. Guests. Guests must be accompanied by a Patron while using the Amenities. 
3. Minors. Adult Patrons are responsible for all minor Patrons from their household 

or  visiting  the  Amenities  as Guests  of  the  Patron.  Except  as  otherwise  stated 
herein, children under sixteen (16) years of age must be accompanied by an adult 
aged eighteen (18) or older. 

4. Attire. With  the exception of  the pool  and wet  areas where bathing  suits  are 
permitted, Patrons and Guests must be properly attired with shirts and shoes to 
use the Amenities. Bathing suits and wet feet are not allowed indoors, with the 
exception of the locker room areas.  

5. Food  and Drink.  Food  and  drink will  be  limited  to  designated  areas  only  and 
purchased from the Café.  

6. Alcohol. Alcoholic beverages shall be served from the Café ONLY, except at pre‐
approved special events. For rentals and planned events, Patrons will be required 
to  hire  a  licensed  and  insured  vendor  of  alcoholic  beverages,  and  they must 
provide proof of  this  to  the Amenity Manager prior  to  the event. Anyone  that 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 14 of 34 
 

appears to be under the influence of drugs or alcohol will be asked to leave the 
Amenities.  

7. No Smoking. Smoking,  including the use of e‐cigarettes,  is not permitted  in any 
building, or enclosed or fenced area, including but not limited to the clubhouse, 
fitness  center,  swimming  pool  or  swimming  pool  deck  area,  tennis  courts,  or 
playground. All waste must be disposed of in the appropriate receptacles.  

8. Pets. With the exception of service animals, pets are not permitted, and they are 
not permitted indoors. Where service animals are permitted on the grounds, they 
must be leashed. Patrons are responsible for picking up after all pets as a courtesy 
to others and in accordance with the law. 

9. Vehicles. Vehicles must be parked  in designated areas. Vehicles  should not be 
parked on grass lawns, or in any way which blocks the normal flow of traffic. Golf 
carts,  off‐road  bikes/vehicles  (including  ATVs),  and  motorized  scooters  are 
prohibited on all property owned, maintained, and operated by the District or at 
any of the Amenities within District unless they are owned by the District. 

10. Skateboards,  Etc.  Bicycles,  skateboards,  rollerblades  and  other  similar  use  is 
limited to designated outdoor areas only.  

11. Fireworks. Fireworks of any kind are not permitted anywhere on the Amenities or 
adjacent areas.  

12. Service Areas. Only District employees and staff are allowed in the service areas 
of the Amenities. 

13. Courtesy. Patrons and their Guests shall treat all staff members and other Patrons 
and Guests with courtesy and respect.  

14. Profanity. Loud, profane or abusive language is prohibited.  
15. Horseplay. Disorderly conduct and horseplay are prohibited. 
16. Equipment. All equipment and supplies provided for use of the Amenities must be 

returned in good condition after use. Patrons are encouraged to let the staff know 
if  an  area of  the Amenities or  a piece of equipment  is  in need of  cleaning or 
maintenance.  

17. Littering. Patrons are responsible for cleaning up after themselves and helping to 
keep the Amenities clean at all times.  

18. Solicitation and Advertising. Commercial advertisements shall not be posted or 
circulated in the Amenities. Petitions, posters or promotional material shall not be 
originated, solicited, circulated or posted on Amenities property unless approved 
in writing by the District. 

19. Firearms.  Firearms  or  any  other  weapons  are  not  permitted  in  any  of  the 
Amenities. 

20. Trespassing  /  Loitering.  There  is  no  trespassing  or  loitering  allowed  at  the 
Amenities.  Any  individual  violating  this  policy  may  be  reported  to  the  local 
authorities. 

21. Compliance with Laws. All Patrons and Guests shall abide by and comply with any 
and all federal, state and  local  laws and ordinances, as well as any District rules 
and policies, while present at or utilizing the Amenities, and shall ensure that any 
minor for whom they are responsible also complies with the same. 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 15 of 34 
 

22. Surveillance. Various areas of all Amenities are under twenty‐four (24) hour video 
surveillance. 

23. Grills. Grills are not permitted on public areas, except if approved for use during 
approved events. 

24. Bounce  Houses.  Bounce  houses  and  similar  apparatus  are  permitted  only 
outdoors and at the discretion of, and in areas designated by, the District. Proof 
of liability insurance acceptable to the District shall also be required. 

25. Cellular Phones. To prevent disturbance to others, use of cellular telephones  is 
limited while in the clubhouse. Patrons and guests are asked to keep their ringers 
turned off or on vibrate while in the clubhouse.  

26. Lost  Property.  The  District  is  not  responsible  for  lost  or  stolen  items.  Staff 
members are not permitted to hold valuables or bags for Patrons or Guests. All 
found items should be turned in to the Amenity Manager for storage in the lost 
and found. Items will be stored in the lost and found for up to one month.  

 
FITNESS CENTER 

 
The following policies apply to the District’s fitness center: 

 
1. Exercise at Your Own Risk. The fitness center is not supervised during operating 

hours. All Patrons are encouraged to consult their physician before beginning an 
exercise program.  

2. Usage Restrictions. Patrons and Guests ages 16 and older may use  the  fitness 
center. Patrons and Guests between the ages of 13 – 15 must be accompanied by 
a parent/guardian at all times to use the fitness room. Patrons ages 12 and under 
may not use the fitness room.  

3. Attire.  Appropriate  attire  including  shorts,  shirts,  and  closed  toed  athletic 
footwear must be worn at all times in the fitness center. To maintain clean and 
sweat‐free equipment, clothing must cover any part of the body exposed to direct 
contact with the equipment.  

4. Courtesy. If a Patron or Guest  is waiting, cardiovascular equipment utilization  is 
limited to 30 minutes. If a Patron or Guest is waiting for the weight equipment, 
individuals should allow others to “work in” between sets. All equipment must be 
wiped down after use with the wipes and/or spray provided.  

5. Food and Drink. No food or chewing gum is permitted in the fitness center. Water 
or other sport drinks must be contained  in non‐breakable spill‐proof containers 
(no glass).  

6. Noise. Personal music devices are permitted only  if used with headphones and 
played at a volume that does not disturb others.  

7. Equipment. Weights or other  fitness equipment may not be removed  from the 
fitness  center.  Please  replace weights  to  their  proper  location  after  use.  Free 
weights  are  not  to  be  dropped  and  should  be  placed  only  on  the  floor  or on 
equipment made specifically for storage of the weights. 

8. Hand Chalk. Hand chalk is not permitted. 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 16 of 34 
 

9. Personal Training. Except as expressly authorized by the District, personal training 
for fees, or solicitation of personal training services for fees, is prohibited. 

 
POOL, POOL SLIDE & SPA AREA 

 
The following policies apply to the District’s pool, pool slide, and spa areas: 

 
1. Swim at Your Own Risk. The pool areas are not supervised during operating hours. 

There is no lifeguard on duty.  
2. Operating Hours. Swimming is permitted only during posted swimming hours. The 

pool is open from dawn until dusk only. The pool slide areas are open from noon 
to dusk only. No one is permitted in the pool or pool slide areas at any other time.  

3. Supervision  of  Children.  Children  ages  12  years  and  younger  must  be 
accompanied by an adult at least 18 years of age at all times for usage of the pool. 

4. Skateboards, Etc. No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades or skate boards 
are permitted on the pool deck. 

5. Food  and Drink.  Food  and  drink will  be  limited  to  designated  areas  only  and 
purchased from the Café. Outside alcoholic beverages and food are not permitted, 
except for pre‐approved special events and reservation events. Glass containers 
or breakable objects of any kind are not permitted in the pool area or locker rooms 
at any time.  

6. Horseplay. No jumping, pushing, running or other horseplay is allowed in the pool 
or on the pool deck area. 

7. Diving. Diving is strictly prohibited at the pool. 
8. Noise.  Except  at  pre‐approved  events,  radios,  tape  players,  CD  players, MP3 

players and televisions, and the  like are not permitted unless they are personal 
units equipped with headphones. 

9. Aquatic Toys and Recreational Equipment. Aquatic toys and equipment are not 
permitted in the pool and pool slide. Prohibited items include, but are not limited 
to, rafts, kickboards, inner tubes, scuba gear, snorkels, dive sticks, swim fins, balls, 
frisbees, inflatable objects, or other similar water play items. Exceptions are Coast 
Guard approved personal floatation devices, kickboards for  lap swimming/swim 
classes, masks, goggles, water wings, and water toys for organized special events. 
Amenities  staff has  the  final  say  regarding  the use of  any  and  all  recreational 
floatation devices, and the District reserves the right to discontinue usage of such 
play equipment during times of peak or scheduled activity at the pool, or  if the 
equipment provides a safety concern. 

10. Entrances. Pool entrances must be kept clear at all times. 
11. Railings. No swinging on ladders, fences, or railings is allowed. 
12. Pool Furniture. Pool furniture is not to be removed from the pool area and must 

returned after use. 
13. Chemicals. Chemicals used in the pool may affect certain hair or fabric colors. The 

District is not responsible for these effects. 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 17 of 34 
 

14. Pets. Pets, with the exception of service animals, are not permitted on the pool 
deck area inside the pool gates at any time. 

15. Attire. Appropriate swimming attire (swimsuits) must be worn at all times. 
16. Prevention of Disease. All  swimmers must  shower before  initially entering  the 

pool. Persons with open cuts, wounds, sores or blisters may not use the pool. No 
person with  or  suspected  of  having  a  communicable  disease which  could  be 
transmitted through the use of the pool should use the pool.  

17. Swim  Diapers.  Parents  or  legal  guardians  should  take  their  children  to  the 
restroom before entering  the pool. Children under  three  (3) years of age, and 
those who are not reliably toilet trained, must wear rubber lined swim diapers and 
a swimsuit over the swim diaper. If contamination occurs, the pool will be closed 
for twenty four (24) hours and the water will be shocked with chlorine to kill the 
bacteria. Any  individual responsible  for contamination of the pool may be held 
responsible  for  any  clean‐up  or  decontamination  expenses  incurred  by  the 
District. 

18. Pollution. No one shall pollute the pool. Anyone who does pollute the pool is liable 
for any costs incurred in treating and reopening the pool. 

19. Reservation of Tables or Chairs. Tables or chairs on  the deck area may not be 
reserved by placing towels or personal belongings on them. 

20. Pool  Closure.  The  pool may  close  due  to  weather  warnings,  fecal  accidents, 
chemical balancing, or general maintenance and repairs.  

21. Weather. The pool and pool area will be closed during electrical storms or when 
rain makes it difficult to see any part of the pool or pool bottom clearly. The pool 
will be closed at the first sound of thunder or sighting of lightning and will remain 
closed for thirty 30 minutes after the last sighting. Everyone must leave the pool 
deck immediately upon hearing thunder or sighting lightning, or when instructed 
to do so by the staff. 

22. Pool/Water Slide. Be advised that the water slide is an adventure activity and may 
expose  the rider  to possible physical  injury.  In deciding  to participate  the  rider 
assumes  full  responsibility of any  injury sustained. Patrons must be at  least 36 
inches tall and be able to swim the width of the pool in order to exit the catch pool 
area to use the slide. Patrons are not allowed to wear flotation devices to ride the 
slide; they must be able to exit the slide flume and swim to the exit by themselves. 
No metal objects, locker keys, jewelry, metal straps, watches, goggles, sunglasses, 
or eyeglasses permitted on the slide as they may cause  injury. Cutting ahead of 
others in line and rowdy play are prohibited and may result in dismissal from the 
pool area. No chain riding permitted; only one rider at a time. Enter and exit the 
flume feet first; standing, stopping, or sliding down head first is prohibited. Hands 
must be kept inside the flume at all times. No diving from the end of the flume. All 
riders must cross feet and arms when riding down the slide and enter the catch 
pool area feet first. Exit the catch pool immediately; individuals must exit the catch 
pool area before  the next  rider  can be  sent. Elderly persons and persons with 
medical conditions  should consult  their physician before using  the water  slide. 
Pregnant women will not be permitted on the water slide. Parents/ guardians of 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 18 of 34 
 

children under the age of 18 are strongly encouraged to observe the activity prior 
to deciding whether to allow their child to participate. Parents and guardians must 
abide by all children's policies 

23. Swim Instruction. Swim instruction for fees, or solicitation of swim instruction for 
fees, is prohibited. 

24. Capacity.  Pursuant to the Florida Department of Health’s operating permit for the 
District’s swimming pool, the maximum bathing load for the pool is __ individuals 
(“Capacity Limits”). The Amenity Manager will post the Capacity Limits at the pool 
and  will  periodically  monitor  the  area.  In  the  event  the  Capacity  Limits  are 
exceeded, the Amenity Manager shall request that Patrons  leave the pool area 
until the Capacity Limits are met. 

  
LAZY RIVER 

 
All pool rules identified above are applicable to the Lazy River. Additionally, the following 
policies apply to the Lazy River: 
 

1. Swim at Your Own Risk. The lazy river areas are not supervised during operating 
hours. 

2. Operating Hours. The lazy river areas are open from 11 a.m. to dusk only. No one 
is permitted  in  the  lazy  river  at  any other  time unless  a  specific event  is pre‐
approved.  

3. Supervision  of  Children.  Children  ages  12  years  and  younger  must  be 
accompanied by an adult at least 18 years of age at all times for usage of the lazy 
river. 

4. Approved Tubes. [ARE ALL TUBES ALLOWED, OR ONLY THOSE PROVIDED?] Tubes 
may not be stacked while  in the water.  [IF PROVIDING TUBES – Tubes must be 
neatly returned to the proper storage area after use.] 

5. Flow. Riders must follow the flow of the current. No jumping, pushing, running or 
other horseplay is allowed in the lazy river. 

6. Capacity.  Pursuant to the Florida Department of Health’s operating permit for the 
District’s  swimming  pool,  the maximum  bathing  load  for  the  lazy  river  is  __ 
individuals (“Capacity Limits”). The Amenity Manager will post the Capacity Limits 
at the lazy river and will periodically monitor the area. In the event the Capacity 
Limits are exceeded, the Amenity Manager shall request that Patrons  leave the 
lazy river area until the Capacity Limits are met. 

 
TENNIS COURTS 

 
The following policies apply to the tennis courts: 
 

1. First Come Basis. Courts are available for use by Patrons and Guests only on a first 
come first serve basis. When other players are waiting, tennis court use should be 
limited to 1 hour.  

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 19 of 34 
 

2. Attire. All players shall be dressed  in appropriate attire, which  includes: shirts, 
tennis shoes, shorts or warm up suits. These items must be worn at all times. Hard 
and/or black soled shoes are restricted from the tennis courts. 

3. Use. Tennis courts are for tennis only. 
4. Pets. Pets, with the exception of service animals, are not permitted on the tennis 

courts at any time. 
5. Food and Drinks. Food and gum are not permitted on the tennis courts. Drinks 

must be in a non‐breakable spill‐proof container.  
6. Glass  Containers.  No  glass  containers  or  breakable  objects  of  any  kind  are 

permitted on the tennis courts.  
7. Operating Hours. The tennis courts are open from dawn to dusk only. No one is 

permitted on the tennis courts at any other time unless a specific event  is pre‐
approved and scheduled.  

8. Skateboards, Etc. No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades or skate boards 
or similar uses are permitted on the tennis courts. 

9. Furniture. No furniture, other than benches already provided, will be allowed on 
the playing surfaces. 

10. Equipment. Patrons are responsible for bringing their own equipment.  
11. Tennis  Instruction.  Except  as  expressly  authorized  by  the  District,  tennis 

instruction for fees, or solicitation of tennis instruction for fees, is prohibited. 
12. Noise.  The  volume  of  live  or  recorded music must  not  violate  applicable  Polk 

County noise ordinances, or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of 
their homes. 

 
MULTI‐PURPOSE FIELD 

 
Our community offers a multi‐purpose field. The following policies apply: 

 
1. First Come Basis. The field is available for use by Patrons and Guests only on a first 

come first serve basis. 
2. Vehicles. No bicycles, scooters, skate boards, or other equipment or vehicles with 

wheels are permitted. 
3. Chalking. Chalking or marking the field must be approved in advance and proper 

marking materials must be used.  
4. Glass  Containers.  No  glass  containers  or  breakable  objects  of  any  kind  are 

permitted on the field. 
5. Pets. Pets must be kept on leash, and Patrons and Guests must pick up and dispose 

of pet waste in appropriate receptacles.  
6. Equipment. Patrons are responsible for bringing their own equipment.  
7. Golfing. Golfing is not permitted on the field. 
8. Sports  Instruction.  Except  as  expressly  authorized  by  the  District,  sports 

instruction for fees, or solicitation of sports instruction for fees, is prohibited. 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 20 of 34 
 

9. Noise.  The  volume  of  live  or  recorded music must  not  violate  applicable  Polk 
County noise ordinances, or unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of 
their homes.  

 
EVENT LAWN, PATIO, PICNIC AREAS, AND OUTDOOR AREAS 

 
The following policies apply to the event lawn, patio, and other outdoor areas: 

 
1. First  Come Basis.  The  pool  side  cabanas  are  available  for  use  by  Patrons  and 

Guests by reservation only. The event lawn and patio areas may only be reserved 
for a program or event approved by the District. 

2. Vehicles. No bicycles, scooters, skate boards, or other equipment or vehicles with 
wheels are permitted. 

3. Skateboards, Etc. Bikes, rollerblades, skateboards and equipment with wheels are 
prohibited.  

4. Chalking. Chalking or marking the outdoor areas must be approved  in advance 
and proper marking materials must be used.  

5. Pets. Pets must be kept on  leash and Patrons must pick up and dispose of pet 
waste in appropriate receptacles.  

6. Equipment. Patrons and Guests are responsible for bringing their own equipment. 
The staff may have some equipment available  for sign out on a  first come  first 
serve basis.  

7. Noise. Amplified sound systems and DJs are prohibited unless it is pre‐approved 
by the District for an approved program, event or rental. The volume of  live or 
recorded music must  not  violate  applicable  Polk  County  noise  ordinances,  or 
unreasonably interfere with residents’ enjoyment of their homes.  

8. Clean‐Up. Patrons and Guests must clean up after themselves and dispose of trash 
in the appropriate receptacles.  
 

LAKE OR POND AREAS 
 

The lakes and ponds throughout the community are not designed for swimming 
or boating, but may be used by Patrons and Guests for fishing as set forth herein. We ask 
that you respect your fellow landowners and access the ponds through the proper access 
points. The District has a catch and release policy  for all  fish caught  in the ponds. The 
ponds are not intended for anything but catch and release, as they are mostly retention 
ponds and man made lakes. The purpose of the ponds is to help facilitate the District’s 
natural water  system  for  run  off  and  overflow.  The  ponds  are  not  to  State  code  for 
keeping your catch, so please protect yourself and the fish population and return them to 
the water. 

 
The following additional guidelines apply: 

 
1. Please be respectful of the privacy of the residents living near the ponds. 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 21 of 34 
 

2. Children under the age of sixteen must be accompanied by adults when fishing. 
3. Parking along the county right of way or on any grassed area near the ponds  is 

prohibited. It is recommended that residents wishing to fish walk or ride bicycles 
to the ponds. 

4. Do not  leave personal property,  including but not  limited to fishing poles,  lines, 
equipment or bait, unattended. 

5. Do not leave any litter. Fishing line is hazardous to wildlife.  
6. Do not feed the wildlife anything, ever.  
7. Fish caught from the lakes may not be edible since the lakes are designed to detain 

pollutants. Catch and release is required.    
8. Swimming is prohibited in all ponds on District property.  
9. No watercrafts of any kind are allowed in any of the ponds on District property. 
10. Licensing  requirements  from other  governmental  agencies may  apply. Patrons 

and Guests are responsible for verifying  the applicable laws, statutes, rules, and 
regulations. 

 
PLAYGROUND AND TOT LOTS 

 
The community provides playground areas for Patrons and Guests to enjoy with 

their children. The following guidelines apply: 
  

1. Patrons and Guests may use the playgrounds at their own risk.  
2. Adult supervision (eighteen years and older) is required for children under the age 

of twelve. Children must remain in the sight of parents/guardians. All children are 
expected to play cooperatively with other children.  

3. Proper footwear is required and no loose clothing, especially with strings, should 
be worn.  

4. The mulch material is necessary for reducing fall impact and for good drainage. It 
is not to be picked up, thrown, or kicked for any reason.  

5. No food, drinks, or gum are permitted at the playground. 
6. No pets of any kind are permitted at the playground. 
7. No glass containers are permitted at the playground. 
8. No jumping off from any climbing bar or platform.  
9. Profanity, rough‐housing, and disruptive behavior are prohibited. 
10. If anything is wrong with the equipment or someone gets hurt, notify the District 

immediately.  
 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
 

Each Patron shall be liable for any property damage at the Amenities caused by 
him or her, his or her Guests, or members of his or her Family. The District reserves the 
right to pursue any and all legal and equitable measures necessary to remedy any losses 
due to property damage.  
 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 22 of 34 
 

Each  Patron  and  Guest,  as  a  condition  of  invitation  to  the  premises  of  the 
Amenities, assumes sole responsibility for his or her property. The District shall not be 
responsible for the loss or damage to any private property used or stored on the premises 
of the Amenities, whether in lockers or elsewhere. 
 

USE AT OWN RISK; INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Any Patron, Guest, or other person who participates in the Activities (as defined 
below), shall do so at his or her own risk, and shall  indemnify, defend, release, hold 
harmless,  and  forever  discharge  the  District  and  its  contractors,  and  the  present, 
former, and future supervisors, staff, officers, employees, representatives, agents, and 
contractors of each (together, “Indemnitees”), for any and all liability, claims, lawsuits, 
actions,  suits  or  demands,  whether  known  or  unknown,  in  law  or  equity,  by  any 
individual of any age, or any corporation or other entity,  for any and all  loss,  injury, 
damage, theft, real or personal property damage, expenses (including attorney’s fees, 
costs and other expenses for investigation and defense and in connection with, among 
other  proceedings,  alternative  dispute  resolution,  trial  court,  and  appellate 
proceedings), and harm of any kind or nature arising out of, or in connection with, the 
participation in the Activities, by said Patron, Guest, or other person, and any of his or 
her Guests and any members of his or her Family.  

Should any Patron, Guest, or other person, bring suit against the Indemnitees in 
connection with the Activities or relating in any way to the Amenities, and fail to obtain 
judgment therein against the Indemnitees, said Patron, Guest, or other person shall be 
liable to the District for all attorney’s fees, costs, and other expenses for investigation 
and  defense  and  in  connection with,  among  other  proceedings,  alternative  dispute 
resolution, trial court, and appellate proceedings. 

The waiver of liability contained herein does not apply to any act of intentional, 
willful or wanton misconduct by the Indemnitees.  

    For purposes of  this  section,  the  term  “Activities,”  shall mean  the use of or 
acceptance of the use of the Amenities, or engagement in any contest, game, function, 
exercise, competition, sport, event, or other activity operated, organized, arranged or 
sponsored by the District, its contractors or third parties authorized by the District. 
 

SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 
 
    Nothing  herein  shall  constitute  or  be  construed  as  a  waiver  of  the  Districts’ 
limitations on liability contained in Section 768.28, F.S., or other statutes or law. 
 

SEVERABILITY 
 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 23 of 34 
 

The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of these policies 
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions, or any part of 
the policies not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

AMENDMENTS / WAIVERS 
 
The Board in its sole discretion may amend these policies from time to time. The 

Board may also elect  in  its  sole discretion at any  time  to grant waivers  to any of  the 
provisions of these policies. 
 
ATTACHMENT A:    Registration Form 
ATTACHMENT B:    Consent and Waiver Agreement 
ATTACHMENT C:    Rental Application 
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 24 of 34 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A 
Registration Form 

 
 

A specific registration form will be provided for each event 
 
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 25 of 34 
 

 
ATTACHMENT B 

Consent and Waiver Agreement 
 

Solterra Resort Community Development District 
Consent and Waiver Agreement 

 
Thank you  for using  the Solterra Resort Community Development District’s  (“District”) 
Amenities  and/or  participating  in  its  community  programs.  We  appreciate  your 
understanding and cooperation in maintaining both your safety and health, and the safety 
and health of others, by reading and signing the following Consent and Waiver Agreement 
(“Agreement”).  This  Agreement  applies  to,  but  does  not  by  itself  grant  any  rights 
regarding, the use of any of the District’s Amenities, which feature among other things a 
clubhouse, fitness center, swimming pool, tennis courts, playground, multi‐purpose field, 
and  walking  trails  and  to  participation  in  any  of  the  District’s  many  community 
programming activities.  
 
Any capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the 
District’s  amenities  rules  and  policies,  as may  be  amended  from  time  to  time.  For 
purposes of this Agreement, the term “Activities,” shall mean the use of or acceptance of 
the  use  of  the  Amenities,  or  engagement  in  any  contest,  game,  function,  exercise, 
competition, sport, event, or other activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored 
by the District, its contractors or third parties authorized by the District.  
 
In consideration for Participant being allowed to participate in some or all of the Activities, 
I,  as  the  participant  identified  below  (“Participant”),  or  I,  as  the  parent  and/or  legal 
guardian  of  the  Participant,  who  is  a minor  child,  and  on  behalf  of  the  Participant 
(“Participant’s Guardian”), agree as follows. 
 

Acknowledgement of Participation 
 
Participant intends to voluntarily participate in one or more Activities. If Participant is a 
minor child, Participant’s Guardian authorizes the Participant to voluntarily participate in 
one or more Activities.  
 

Acknowledgement of Health 
 
Participant acknowledges and understands that the District recommends that Participant 
consult a physician prior  to engaging  in  the Activities, and  that  it  is Participant’s  sole 
responsibility  to  obtain  an  examination  by  a  physician  prior  to  involvement  in  the 
Activities.  Participant  certifies  that  he  or  she  is  physically  and  mentally  capable  of 
participating  in  the  Activities  and  that  Participant  is  not  under  any  kind  of medical 
treatment or has any mental or physical condition that would prevent Participant from 
participating in the Activities. Participant further acknowledges that Participant has either 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 26 of 34 
 

had a physical examination and been given a physician’s approval to participate  in the 
activities, or has elected to participate in the activities without the approval of a doctor 
and hereby assumes all risk and responsibility for participation in the activities. 
 

Role of the District 
 
Participant  acknowledges  and  understands  that  some  or  all  of  the  Activities may  be 
provided  through  third parties,  that  any  such  third parties  are not  affiliated with  the 
District in any way, that the District does not endorse any such third parties, and that the 
District makes no representations concerning the qualifications or ability of any such third 
parties to conduct, teach, or lead the Activities.  
 

Assumption of Risk 
 
Participant acknowledges and understands that participation in the Activities may have 
certain inherent risks, including, but not limited to, economic loss, significant changes in 
the  Participant’s  physical  or mental  health,  injury,  disabilities,  or  even  death  to  the 
Participant. Participant willfully and voluntarily assumes and accepts sole responsibility 
for all risks related to participation in the Activities, including, but not limited to, the risks 
mentioned above, damage to, loss or theft of real or personal property, or other loss or 
harm of any kind or nature. Participant  is voluntarily participating  in the Activities with 
knowledge of  the dangers  involved, and Participant agrees  to assume and accept sole 
responsibility for Participant’s safety and for any and all harm that may occur. 
 

Waiver and Indemnification 
 
As stated in the District’s policies, any Patron, Guest, or other person who participates 
in the Activities, including the Participant, shall do so at his or her own risk, and shall 
indemnify, defend,  release, hold harmless, and  forever discharge  the District and  its 
contractors, and the present, former, and future supervisors, staff, officers, employees, 
representatives, agents, and contractors of each (together, “Indemnitees”), for any and 
all liability, claims, lawsuits, actions, suits or demands, whether known or unknown, in 
law or equity, by any individual of any age, or any corporation or other entity, for any 
and  all  loss,  injury,  damage,  theft,  real  or  personal  property  damage,  expenses 
(including attorney’s fees, costs and other expenses for investigation and defense and 
in connection with, among other proceedings, alternative dispute resolution, trial court, 
and  appellate  proceedings),  and  harm  of  any  kind  or  nature  arising  out  of,  or  in 
connection with,  the  participation  in  the Activities,  by  said  Patron, Guest,  or  other 
person, including Participant, and any of his or her Guests and any members of his or 
her Family.  

Should any Patron, Guest, or other person, including Participant, bring suit against the 
Indemnitees in connection with the Activities or relating in any way to the Amenities, 
and  fail  to obtain  judgment  therein against  the  Indemnitees,  said Patron, Guest, or 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 27 of 34 
 

other person, including Participant, shall be liable to the District for all attorney’s fees, 
costs, and other expenses for investigation and defense and in connection with, among 
other  proceedings,  alternative  dispute  resolution,  trial  court,  and  appellate 
proceedings. 

The waiver of liability contained herein does not apply to any act of intentional, willful 
or wanton misconduct by the Indemnitees.  

Sovereign Immunity 
 
Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's limitations on 
liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute or law. 
 

Emergency Transportation and Care 
 
In the event that Participant is incapacitated and unable to respond, or in the event the 
Participant  is a minor child, the District  is authorized to seek emergency treatment, as 
required, and to transport the Participant to the appropriate medical facility in the event 
that urgent/emergency care is necessary. The medical facility and its medical staff have 
authorization to provide any treatment that a physician deems necessary for the well‐
being of the Participant. Participant shall be responsible for any resulting expenses. The 
District  is not responsible  for providing any such  treatment or  transportation, and  the 
“Waiver  and  Release  of  Liability”  provisions  set  forth  above  apply  to  any  emergency 
medical transportation and/or treatment of Participant.  
 

Rules and Policies 
 
Participant agrees to read and comply with the written rules and policies adopted by the 
District and relating to the Amenities, and further agrees to act in a safe manner when 
participating  in  the  Activities.  Participant  further  agrees  to  immediately  inform  a 
representative of  the District, and  to  stop participating  in  the Activities,  if Participant 
observes any unsafe condition or broken equipment, or  if Participant experiences any 
pain,  discomfort  or  other  symptoms  that  Participant  may  suffer  during  or  after 
participating in the Activities. Participant understands that Participant may stop or delay 
participation  in the Activities  if Participant so desires and that Participant may also be 
requested to stop and rest by a District representative who observes any symptoms of 
distress or abnormal response, and Participant agrees to comply with such directions.  
 

Insurance Coverage 
 
Participant  understands  that  Participant  is  responsible  for  obtaining  appropriate 
insurance  coverage when  participating  in  the  Activities  and  that  the  District  has  no 
obligation to provide any insurance coverage.  
   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 28 of 34 
 

Binding Effect 
 
This  Agreement  is  binding  on  the  Participant,  and  the  Participant’s  spouse,  minor 
children, heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns. 
If Participant is a minor child, this Agreement is also binding on the Participant’s parents 
and/or  legal  guardians,  including  Participant’s  Guardian,  not  only  on  behalf  of  the 
Participant  but  also  on  the  parents  and/or  legal  guardians,  including  Participant’s 
Guardian,  in  their own  rights and capacity and  to  the same extent as Participant. The 
undersigned  represents  that  he  or  she  is  authorized  to  bind  to  this  Agreement  all 
applicable parties, as set forth in this paragraph. 
 

Miscellaneous Provisions 
 
This Agreement supersedes any prior written and/or oral agreements or representations 
made  with  respect  to  the  subject  matter  contained  herein.  The  provisions  of  this 
Agreement  will  continue  in  full  force  and  effect  even  after  the  termination  of  the 
Activities.  The  provisions  of  this  Agreement  may  be  waived,  altered,  amended  or 
repealed, in whole or in part, only upon the prior written consent of the District and the 
party whose signature appears below. The  invalidity or unenforceability of any one or 
more provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remaining portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid 
or unenforceable. This Agreement shall be governed by Florida Law. Venue for any actions 
arising under this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in Polk County, 
Florida. 
 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 29 of 34 
 

I AM OF LAWFUL AGE AND LEGALLY COMPETENT TO SIGN THIS AGREEMENT.  I HAVE 
READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND UNDERSTAND THAT I 
AM GIVING UP  SUBSTANTIAL  LEGAL  RIGHTS  FOR MYSELF, MY  SPOUSE, MY MINOR 
CHILDREN,  HEIRS,  EXECUTORS,  ADMINISTRATORS,  LEGAL  REPRESENTATIVES, 
SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS.  I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT  I AM SIGNING THE AGREEMENT 
FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY, AND INTEND BY MY SIGNATURE TO BE A COMPLETE AND 
UNCONDITIONAL RELEASE OF LIABILITY AS SET FORTH HEREIN AND TO THE GREATEST 
EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW. IF PARTICIPANT IS A MINOR CHILD, I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT 
I AM THE PARTICIPANT’S PARENT AND/OR LEGAL GUARDIAN AND THAT I AM LEGALLY 
AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE PARTICIPANT. 
 
Participant Name: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Participant Signature: ________________________________________________ 
                                                          (if Participant is 18 years of age or older) 
Date: ________________ 
 
Parent/Guardian Name: _______________________________________________ 
                                                          (if Participant is a minor child) 
Parent/Guardian Signature: _________________________________________________ 
                                                          (if Participant is a minor child) 
Date: ________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________ 
     ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone Number (home/cell): ________________ 
Phone Number (alternate): _________________ 
 
Emergency Contact (Print Name): ____________________________________________ 
Emergency Contact Phone Number: _______________________________________ 
 
PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the 
information you submit on this form may become part of a public record. This means 
that,  if a citizen makes a public records request, we may be required to disclose the 
information you submit to us. Under certain circumstances, we may only be required to 
disclose part of the information submitted to us. If you believe that your records may 
qualify for an exemption under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, please notify the District 
Manager.   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 30 of 34 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
Rental Application 

 
SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

PATRON – AMENITIES RENTAL APPLICATION 
 
Today’s Date: ___/___/_____        Event Date: ___/___/_____ 
 
Amenity Requested for Rental (check box): 

 Clubhouse 
 Outdoor covered patio area 
 Multi‐purpose field 

 
Type of Event: ____________________________________________________________ 
Maximum Number of People Attending: _______________________________________ 
Patron Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
Patron Address: ___________________________________________________________ 
Patron Phone Number: _____________________________________________________ 
Patron Email Address: ______________________________________________________ 
**RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE RENTAL AND ALL DAMAGES ARE THE LIABILITY OF THE 

PATRON** 
 

CHECKS / MONEY ORDERS MUST BE WRITTEN TO: SOLTERRA RESORT CDD 
**ALL NSF & CHECKS RETURNED FOR ANY REASON WILL RESULT IN ADDITIONAL FEES 

PER RETURNED CHECK** 
 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:  
Deposit:   Check # ______________________  Amount: ___________   

Employee: ______________________ 
 
Rental:   Check # ______________________  Amount: ___________   

Employee: _____________________ 
 
Driver’s License Number: ___________________________________  STATE: ______ 
 
Were there damages / rental issues?   YES: ____  NO: ____ 
If yes, describe issues: ______________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
If no, date deposit check refund requested: ____/____/_____ 
Request by: ______________________________________________________________ 
   

   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 31 of 34 
 

PART 3:  Amenities Disciplinary Rule 
Law Implemented: ss. 190.011, Fla. Stat. (2013) 

Effective Date:  ______________ 
 
  In  accordance  with  Chapters  190  and  120  of  the  Florida  Statutes,  and  on 
__________, 2022, at a duly noticed public meeting and after a duly noticed public 
hearing,  the Board of Supervisors of the Harbor Bay Community Development District 
adopted the following rules to govern disciplinary matters at the District’s amenities. 
 
 

1. Introduction.  This rule addresses disciplinary measures governing the use of 
the  amenities  owned  and managed  by  the  Solterra  Resort  Community Development 
District. 
 

2. General Rule.   All persons using  the District’s amenities are responsible  for 
compliance with, and shall comply with, the rules and policies established for the safe 
operations of the District’s amenities.   
 

3. Suspension of Rights.   The District, through its Board, District Manager, and 
Amenities Manager, shall have the right to restrict, suspend, or terminate the amenities 
privileges of any person to use the amenities for any of the following behavior: 
 

a. Submits false information on any application for use of the amenities; 
b. Permits the unauthorized use of an amenity pass; 
c. Exhibits unsatisfactory behavior, deportment or appearance; 
d. Fails to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner; 
e. Fails to abide by any District rules or policies, including but not limited to any 

policies governing the use of the pool;  
f. Treats the District’s supervisors, staff, amenities management, contractors, or 

other  representatives,  or  other  residents  or  guests,  in  an  unreasonable  or 
abusive manner; 

g. Damages or destroys District property; or 
h. Engages in conduct that is improper or likely to endanger the health, safety, or 

welfare  of  the  District,  or  its  supervisors,  staff,  amenities  management, 
contractors, or other representatives, or other residents or guests. 

 
4. Authority  of  Amenities  Manager.    The  Amenities  Manager  or  their 

designee has  the ability  to  remove any person  from one or all amenities  if any of  the 
above‐referenced behaviors are exhibited or actions committed.  The Amenities Manager 
or their designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or causes, including but 
not limited to those described above, any person’s (and his/her family’s) privileges to use 
any or all of the amenities for a period not to exceed seven days. 

 

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 32 of 34 
 

5. Authority of District Manager.    The District Manager may  at  any  time 
restrict,  suspend, or  terminate  for cause or causes,  including but not  limited  to  those 
described above, any person’s  (and his/her  family’s) privileges  to use any or all of  the 
District amenities for any period of time. Any such person shall have the right to appeal 
the  imposition  of  the  restriction,  suspension,  or  termination  before  the  Board  of 
Supervisors.  

 
6. Enforcement of Penalties/Fines.  For any of the reasons set forth above, 

the District shall additionally have the right to impose a fine up to the amount of $1,000 
– in addition to any amounts for damages – and collect such fine, damages, and attorneys’ 
fees as a contractual lien or as otherwise provided pursuant to Florida law.  

 
7. Legal  Action;  Criminal  Prosecution.    If  any  person  is  found  to  have 

committed any of the infractions noted above, such person may additionally be subject 
to legal enforcement or other legal action, civil or criminal in nature.  

 
8. Severability.    If any  section, paragraph, clause, or provision of  this  rule 

shall be held to be invalid or ineffective for any reasons, the remainder of this rule shall 
continue  in full force and effect,  it being expressly hereby found and declared that the 
remainder of this rule would have been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness 
of such section, paragraph, clause, or provision.    

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 33 of 34 
 

Part 4: Operation Plan 
 
1. Vendor List (updated lists maintained at clubhouse and/or with District Manager) 
 
Facility  Service  Frequency  Contact  Start and 

End Date 
Pool         
Landscape         
Streetlights         
Club Room         
Fitness room 
area 

       

Clubhouse 
building 

       

Cabanas pool 
side 

       

 
2. List of Active Warranties (updated lists maintained at clubhouse and/or with 
District Manager) 
 
Item Number  Manufacturer  Warranty 

Status 
Maintenance 
Schedule 

Maintenance 
Vendor 

         
         
         
         
         
 
3. Hours of Operations 
 
Facility  Open  Closed 
Club Room  9 am  7pm 

Fitness Center  5 am  11pm 

Pool  9 am  dusk 

Pool Slide/Lazy River  11am  dusk 

   

l



Solterra Resort CDD 
Amenity Rules and Policies 

Page 34 of 34 
 

 
4. Routine Cleaning Procedures (updated lists maintained at clubhouse and/or with 
District Manager) 
 
Facility  Vendor  Service  Frequency 
       
       
       
 
5. Cleaning Record Form 
 
Maintained with the in the clubhouse and or District Manager 
 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 

  

l



RESOLUTION 2023-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOLTERRA 

RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING REVISED 

AMENITY CENTER RULES AND RATES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 

CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Solterra Resort Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit 

of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 

situated in Polk County, Florida; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Districts’ Amenity Facilities have been constructed in accordance with the 

District’s purpose and improvement plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapters 190 and 120, Florida Statutes, authorize the District to adopt rules, rates, 

charges and fees to govern the administration of the District and defray costs of operation and to adopt 

resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct of District business; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”), after providing notice pursuant to Florida law 

and holding a public hearing thereon, previously adopted Amenity Policies governing the use of the 

Amenity Facilities and establishing certain rates and fees relating to the use thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after providing notice pursuant to Florida law, and after holding a public hearing 

thereon, the Board finds that it is in the best interests of the District to adopt revised rules and rates, 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference (“Revised Amenities Rules & 

Policies”), for immediate use and application; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the imposition of user fees and related charges in accordance 

with Exhibit A for utilization of the recreation facilities and services is necessary in order to provide for 

the expenses associated with the operation and maintenance of the recreation facilities and is in the best 

interest of the District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interests of the District to adopt by resolution the 

Revised Amenities Rules & Policies contained in Exhibit A. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

 SECTION 1. The above stated recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein 

by reference. 

 

SECTION 2. The attached Revised Amenities Rules & Policies are hereby adopted pursuant to 

this resolution as necessary for the efficient use and operation of the District’s Amenity Facilities.  These 

Revised Amenities Rules & Policies shall stay in full force and effect until such time as the Board of 

Supervisors may amend these Revised Amenities Rules & Policies.  The Board of Supervisors reserves 

the right to approve such amendments by motion. 

 

 SECTION 3. If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 

provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

l



 SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 

effect unless rescinded or repealed. 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of October, 2022. 

 

 

ATTEST:     SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 

      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 

_____________________________  ____________________________________ 

Secretary     Chairperson, Board of Supervisors  

 

 

Exhibit A: Revised Amenities Rules & Policies  

 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 

  

l



Date 8/24/2022 

Quote 

Phone 

Terms Net 30

Project: Solterra Amenity Center Sidewalks

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

5196 Le Tourneau Circle, Tampa, FL 33610 
Office 813-874-3600

813-412-5151

Cell Phone Web Site

www.RoadwayConcepts.comLindsay@roadwayconcepts.com

Description Qty U/M Rate Total

11 ea 89.00 979.00
Roadway Concepts to grind concrete pad (both sides as 
needed). 

Finished product less than 1/8th inch offset.

1 150.00 150.00

$1,129.00

$0.00

Mobilization ea

$1,129.00

Solterra Resort CDD
c/o DPFG
250 International Parkway
Suite 208
Lake Mary, FL 32746

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 

  

l



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Solterra Resort Community Development District 

Attention Candice Smith 

Chairperson-Solterra Resort CDD 

 

 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 

250 International Parkway, Ste. 208 

Lake Mary, Florida 32746 

 

Re: Solterra Resort Community Development District – Updated Fee Schedule for 

District Management Services 

September 7, 2022 

 

Dear Madam Chair: 

On behalf of DPFG Management and Consulting., it is our pleasure to submit the following 

Updated Fee Schedule for District Management, Dissemination Agent, Assessment 

Methodology Consultant Services to Solterra Resort Community Development District. 

 

As previously announced, DPFG became a part of Vesta Property Services in September of 2020.  

This acquisition allows for enhanced Field Services to be offered by Vesta, as well it provides our 

clients options for additional services provided by our Amenity Division.  

 

DPFG will continue to provide limited Field Services to the District and will be preparing a separate 

proposal from the District Management Services we provide the District.  If in the future, there is 

a demand for expanded Amenity/Field Services for the District, Vesta Property Services can 

prepare the proposal and assist in developing the scope of work for Amenity and Field Services.  

At that appropriate time, DPFG’s agreement with the District can be dissolved with no disruption 

to District Management Services. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of our updated fee schedule. We very much look forward to the 

opportunity in continuing to serve the community and working with the District’s Board of 

Supervisors, and District Staff.  Should you have any questions or require additional information, 

please feel free to contact me directly at (904) 386-0186 or hmac@vestapropertyservices.com. 

 

Most respectfully,  

 
Howard McGaffney 

Vice President  

DPFG Management and Consulting, LLC. 

A Vesta Property Services Company. 

l



  

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES FOR DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
DPFG Management and Consulting, proposes the following fee structure for District 

Management, Dissemination Agent, Administration, Recording, Financial Accounting for 

General Fund, Debt Service Fund and a Reserve Fund, and the Assessment Roll Services 

provided to the Solterra Resort Community Development District (the “District”): 

SERVICES PROPOSED FEES 

District Management $43,760 annually 

Dissemination Agent $4,800 annually 

Assessment Administration Included 

Accounting Included 

Administration Services Included 

TOTAL DISTRICT MANAGEMENT  $48,560 annually 

 

District Management Services Include:  

• Payments will be made in 12 equal monthly installments beginning October 1, 2022, 

through September 30, 2023 

• Annual CPI adjustment will be presented to the Board and approved through the annual 

budget approval process by the Board.  

• Up to 12 meetings per year, 4 hours in length. 

Assessment Administration Services Include:  

• Assessment Roll Preparation and Re-amortization schedule, preparing of the assessment 

roll and the timely submittal of the roll to the tax collector. Certification, direct billing, and 

funding request processing,  

• Estoppel letters, bond payoff information and other collection related work shall be 

provided to property owner and realtors. Estoppels will be billed at state approved levels. 

Accounting Services Include: 

• Monthly accounts payable, construction accounting, monthly production of Unaudited 

Financial Statements, Filing the Annual Financial Report, Filing the Annual Independent 

Audit, and other usual and customary accounting services required of CDD’s 

Administrative Services Include: 

• Agenda Preparation, record keeping, filing of records/reports with local/state agencies 

including the Florida Commission on Ethics, administrator over the website contractor, 

providing administrative support services to the District Manager. 

• Tablets/electronic device for Supervisors use at meetings. 

Dissemination Agent Services include: 

• Payment made annually in the month of October each year.  

• Providing the ongoing disclosure requirements and duties listed in the agreements of all 

series of Bonds issued by the District, facilitating the District’s compliance with the 

Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). 

District Management Services outlined above can be terminated with 60 days written notice by 

either party. 

l



  

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Schedule of Additional Fees  
1. Additional District Meetings: The District Management fees proposed are based upon the 

District holding up to 12 regular meetings each year that each last up to 4 hours in length. 

a. $175/hour: An additional $175/hour fee will be billed to the District, for each hour past 

the initial 4-hour meeting timeframe included in this proposal.  

b. $800 per meeting: Additional meetings or workshops outside of the aforementioned 

amount will be billed to the District at a total fee of $800/per meeting. 

2. Postage and freight are not included in this proposal and will be billed upon actual costs 

incurred.  

3. Debt Service Fund Accounting & Assessment Collection Services:  If the District issues 

additional debt after September 30th, 2022, the proposed fee for these services would be 

$2,500 annually per additional series of notes or bond issuances. 

4. Assessment Methodology Consultant Services (Special Methodology Reports):  

a. Additional Bond Issuance Fee: $15,000 per additional bond issuance. 

b. Refinance Fee: $15,000 per bond refinance 

5. Long Term Capital Planning: 

a. Long Term Capital Planning: $15,000 (onetime fee) 

b. This fee includes the costs associated with DPFG providing all the Capital 

Planning, Funding, and Infrastructure Reinvestment Budgeting, producing a long 

term (10 year) financial outlook model to help the District/ Board to plan for future 

costs and identify future assessment values for Operations and Maintenance as well 

as Infrastructure/Capital Items. Note: Does not include a Reserve Study. 

6. Additional Services:  Should Vesta Property Services, Inc. be requested to provide 

additional services on behalf of the District not covered in this proposal, fees for such services 

shall negotiated in accordance with the terms mutually agreed upon by the District and Vesta 

Property Services, Inc.  

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 14 

  

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Solterra Resort Community Development District 

Attention Candice Smith 

Chairperson-Solterra Resort CDD 

 

 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 

250 International Parkway, Ste. 208 

Lake Mary, Florida 32746 

 

Re: Solterra Resort Community Development District – Updated Fee Schedule for District 

Management Services 

September 7, 2022 

 

Dear Madam Chair: 

On behalf of DPFG Management and Consulting., it is our pleasure to submit the following Updated Fee 

Schedule for Field Services to Solterra Resort Community Development District. 

 

DPFG Management & Consulting, offers to continue providing Field Services to the District, limited to 

scope of services covered in the table accompanying this letter, under the Schedule of Fees for Field 

Services.  As demand for expanded Amenity/Field Services for the District is needed, Vesta Property 

Services can prepare the proposal and assist in developing the scope of work for Amenity and Field 

Services.  At that appropriate time, DPFG’s agreement with the District can be dissolved with no disruption 

to District Management Services with only a 30-day written notice.     

     

Thank you for your consideration of our updated fee schedule. We very much look forward to the 

opportunity in continuing to serve the community and working with the District’s Board of Supervisors, 

and District Staff.  Should you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to 

contact me directly at (904) 386-0186 or hmac@vestapropertyservices.com. 

 

Most respectfully,  

 
Howard McGaffney 

Vice President  

DPFG Management and Consulting, LLC. 

A Vesta Property Services Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 l



 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF FEES FOR DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

DPFG Management and Consulting, proposes the following fee structure for District 

Management, Dissemination Agent, Administration, Recording, Financial Accounting for General 

Fund, Debt Service Fund and a Reserve Fund, and the Assessment Roll Services provided to the 

Solterra Resort Community Development District (the “District”): 

SERVICES PROPOSED FEES 

Field Services $10,000 annually 

 
Monthly Field Services Include:  

• Payable in 12 equal monthly installments 

• Oversight of vendors, submitting a written monthly Field Services Report, to be included in the 

agenda. 

• Conduct 2 site visits per month for the purpose of inspecting landscape and pond maintenance in 

accordance with District’s agreements and meeting with District vendors and contractors.   

• Execute the direction from Board Meetings related to Field Services, including soliciting proposals, 

and coordinating field services work. 

 

l



EXHIBIT 15 

l

Security Information
Distributed Under 

Separate Cover



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 16 

  

l



RESOLUTION 2023‐02 

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  SUPERVISORS  OF  THE  SOLTERRA  RESORT  
COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT  DISTRICT  RECOGNIZING  A  CONTRIBUTION  TO  OFF‐SET  
ASSESSMENTS;  PROVIDING  ADDITIONAL  AUTHORIZATION;  AND  ADDRESSING  
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS,  the  Solterra  Resort Community Development District  (“District”)  is  a  local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190,  Florida  Statutes,  authorizes  the District  to  construct,  install, operate 
and/or  maintain  systems  and  facilities  for  certain  basic  infrastructure,  including  water  and  sewer, 
roadways, water management and utilities; and 

WHEREAS, the District previously  issued  its $9,420,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018 
(“2018 Bonds”) in order to finance the District’s “2018 Project”; and 

WHEREAS, also in connection with the issuance of the 2018 Bonds, and pursuant to Resolutions 
2018‐11 and 2018‐13, the District  levied non‐ad valorem special assessments (“Debt Assessments”) to 
secure the repayment of the 2018 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS,  the  Second  Supplemental  Assessment Methodology  Report,  dated  September  20, 
2018,  which  was  adopted  by  Resolution  2018‐13,  and  attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  A,  recognizes  a 
contribution obligation (“Contribution Obligation”) from AK Oakmont LLC (“Developer”) in the sections 
titled “Enhanced Benefit  to 2018 Assessed Lots / Developer Contributions”  (identifying a Contribution 
Obligation of $432,000) and “Target Levels for 2018 Assessments / Developer Contribution” (identifying 
a Contribution Obligation of $253,992); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2020‐ 02, adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the District 
(“Board”)  on  April  23,  2020,  the  District  previously  recognized  a  contribution  in  the  amount  of 
$366,617.19  towards  the Contribution Obligation  (“Prior Contribution 1”) and pursuant  to Resolution 
2020‐09, adopted by the Board on June 25, 2020, the District previously recognized a contribution in the 
amount of $265,951.05 towards the Contribution Obligation (“Prior Contribution 2,” together with Prior 
Contribution 1, “Prior Contributions”); and   

WHEREAS, after the Prior Contributions, the remaining Contribution Obligation was $53,423.76; 
and  

WHEREAS,  it  was  subsequently  discovered  that  while  Requisition  #2018‐17  was  originally 
documented as $38,597.05,  it was actually paid to Developer  in the amount of $40,133.50, which was 
the remaining balance of the account due to interests accrued in the 2018 Construction and Acquisition 
Fund; and  

WHEREAS, due to the overpayment to Developer the remaining amount required to satisfy the 
Contribution Obligation has been adjusted to  include an additional $1,536.45 for a total of $54,960.21 
(“Remaining Contribution Obligation”); and   

l



 

 

WHEREAS,  on  or  around  September  2018,  the District  acquired  certain  public  infrastructure 
improvements  for  the  2018  Project,  as  defined  in  Resolutions  2018‐11  and  2018‐13,  and  specifically 
acquired the Amenity Expansion Improvements, as further detailed in Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the  total costs of  the Amenity Expansion  Improvements  totaled $1,600,736.67 but 

the District only paid $1,426,000 to the Developer  in Requisition #2018‐01 (attached hereto as Exhibit 
C), leaving $174,736.67 unpaid to Developer (“Unpaid Amount”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Developer requests that the District recognize the Unpaid Amount towards the 

Contribution Obligation of $54,960.21 (“Current Contribution”).   
 

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY  THE  BOARD  OF  SUPERVISORS  OF  THE 
SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
SECTION 1.  Contribution  Recognized.    The  District  acknowledges  and  declares  that  the 

Developer has contributed  infrastructure and/or monies for the Current Contribution  in the amount of 
$54,960.21.  As  of  this  Resolution,  the  Contribution  Obligation  has  been  satisfied  and  no  further 
contributions are owed to the District. 

 
SECTION 2.   Additional  Authorization.    District  Staff  is  authorized  to  take  whatever 

additional actions may be necessary to fulfill the intent of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 3.  Severability.    If any provision of  this Resolution  is held  to be  illegal or  invalid, 

the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 4.  Effective Date.    This Resolution  shall become  effective upon  its passage,  and 

shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   
                     
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of _________, 2022. 

     
ATTEST:          SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY  
            DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________    _______________________________ 
Secretary / Asst. Secretary      By:___________________________ 
            Its: __________________________ 
 
Exhibit A:  Second Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, dated September 20, 2018 
Exhibit B:   Acquisition of Amenity Expansion Improvements  
Exhibit C:   Requisition #2018‐01 
 

l



Exhibit A: 
Second Supplemental Assessment Methodology Report, dated September 20, 2018 

   

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



Exhibit B: 
Acquisition of Amenity Expansion Improvements 

   

l



l



l



l



l



l



AFFIDAVIT REGARDING COSTS PAID 
(SOLTERRA RESORT AMENITY EXPANSION — 

IMPROVEMENTS & WORK PRODUCT) 
 
STATE OF _________________ 
COUNTY OF _______________ 
 
 I, _______________, of AK Oakmont LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“AK 
Oakmont”), being first duly sworn, do hereby state for my affidavit as follows: 
 

1. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth in this affidavit.  
 
2. My name is James P. Harvey and I am employed by AK Oakmont as Vice 

President.  I have authority to make this affidavit on behalf of AK Oakmont.   
 
3. AK Oakmont has expended funds to construct certain public infrastructure 

improvements and/or work product within the Solterra Resort Community Development District, 
a special purpose unit of local government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes 
(“District”). The improvements and/or work product are described in that certain Amenity 
Center Expansion & Easement Agreement, dated February 2, 2016 (“Expansion Agreement”) 
and more specifically described in Exhibit A. The attached Exhibit A accurately identifies 
certain of those improvements and/or work product that have been completed to date and states 
the amounts that AK Oakmont has spent on those improvements and/or work product.  

 
4. In making this affidavit, I understand that the District intends to rely on this 

affidavit for purposes of documenting the acquisition of the infrastructure improvements and/or 
work product identified in Exhibit A, pursuant to the Expansion Agreement. 

 
  

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



Exhibit C: 
Requisition #2018‐01 

 

l



SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2018 
(Series 2018/Phase 2B Project) 
(Acquisition and Construction) 

 
The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of the Solterra Resort Community Development 

District (the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement under and 
pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture from the District to U.S. Bank National 
Association (the "Trustee"), dated as of March 1, 2007, as supplemented by that certain Fourth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2018 (collectively, the " Indenture") (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Indenture): 

 
(A) Requisition Number: 

 
(B) Identify Acquisition Agreement, if applicable:  2018 Acquisition Agreement 

 
(C) Name of Payee:  
 

AK OAKMONT LLC 
c/o WELLS FARGO BANK N.A. 
420 Montgomery 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
ABA #121000248 
FOR CREDIT TO: 
AK OAKMONT LLC 
ACCOUNT #4122339278 

 
(D) Amount Payable: $3,290,406.96 
 
(E) Purpose for which paid or incurred:   
 

Developer Funded Construction Requisitions $779,718.45 
Acquisition of Phase 2A-2 Utilities  $256,899.20 
Acquisition of Phase 2C1 Utilities  $551,059.97 
Acquisition of Phase 2A-2 Roadways & Drainage  $276,729.34 
Acquisition of Amenity Expansion Improvements  $1,426,000.00 

TOTAL: $3,290,406.96 
 
(E) Fund or Account and subaccount, if any, from which disbursement to be made: 

 
Series 2018 Acquisition and Construction Account 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that:  
 
1. obligations in the stated amount set forth above have been incurred by the 

District, 

l



l



l



SOLTERRA RESORT  
DEVELOPER FUNDED CONSTRUCTION REQUISITIONS 

 

 

           TOTAL: $779,718.45 

l



l



l



l



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

l



 

 

 

l



 

 

Exhibit B 
Description of Improvements 

Solterra Phase 2A2 
 

Utility Improvements – All wastewater lines, including but not limited to all pipes, structures, 
fittings, valves, pumps, laterals, equipment and appurtenances hereto; all potable water lines, 
including but not limited to all pipes, fittings, valves, services, tees, equipment and 
appurtenances thereto; and, all reclaimed water lines, pipes, fittings, valves, services, tees, 
equipment and appurtenances thereto, in each case located within or upon the right of ways 
designated as Broad Oak Drive, Oakwood Street and Oak Shadow Court identified in the 
proposed plat known as Solterra Phase 2A2, attached hereto as Exhibit B.  
 

Improvement Contractor Invoice Amount Retainage 
Wastewater The Kearney Companies, LLC Pay App #5 $76,513.22 $3,825.66 
Potable Water  The Kearney Companies, LLC Pay App #5 $116,600.46 $5,830.02 
Reclaimed Water  The Kearney Companies, LLC Pay App #5 $63,785.52 $3,189.28 
     
  TOTAL: $256,899.20 $12,844.96 
 

 
GRAND TOTAL OF IMPROVEMENTS: $256,899.20 

l



l



l



l



 

 

Exhibit A 
Description of Improvements 

Solterra Phase 2C1 
 

Utility Improvements – All wastewater lines, including but not limited to all pipes, structures, 
fittings, valves, pumps, laterals, equipment and appurtenances hereto; all potable water lines, 
including but not limited to all pipes, fittings, valves, services, tees, equipment and 
appurtenances thereto; and, all reclaimed water lines, pipes, fittings, valves, services, tees, 
equipment and appurtenances thereto, in each case located within or upon the right of ways 
designated as Oak Blossom Drive, Oak Bluff Drive, Oak Crest Street, Oak Marsh Street, and 
Oak Marsh Loop, identified in the proposed plat known as Solterra Phase 2C1, attached hereto as 
Exhibit B.  
 
Improvement Contractor Invoice Amount Balance to 

Finish 
Retainage 

Wastewater The Kearney Companies, 
LLC 

Pay App #7 $208,272.92 $662.74 $10,413.65 

Potable Water  The Kearney Companies, 
LLC 

Pay App #7 $190,361.65 $2,808.53 $9,518.08 

Reclaimed 
Water  

The Kearney Companies, 
LLC 

Pay App #7 $152,425.40 $0.00 $7,621.27 

      
  TOTAL: $551,059.97 $3,471.27 $27,553.00 
 

 
GRAND TOTAL OF IMPROVEMENTS: $551,059.97 

l



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 l



 

 l



 

 l



 

 l



 

 
 

l



l



l



l



 

Exhibit A 
Description of Improvements 

Solterra Phase 2A2 
 

Utility Improvements – All roadway improvements including paving, curb, gutter, and storm 
piping, all as located within the public rights-of-way designated as Broad Oak Drive, Oakwood 
Street and Oak Shadow Court, identified in the plat known as Solterra Phase 2A2, recorded in 
Plat Book 168, Page 36, of the Official Records of Polk County, Florida. 
 
Improvement Contractor Invoice Amount Balance to 

Finish 
Retainage 

Streets The Kearney Companies, LLC Pay App #7 $185,886.91 $2,047.55 $9,293.35 
Drainage The Kearney Companies, LLC Pay App #7 $90,842.43 $0.00 $4,542.12 
      
  TOTAL: $276,729.34 $2,047.55 $13,835.47 
 

 
GRAND TOTAL OF IMPROVEMENTS: $276,729.34 

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 17 

  

l



l



l



l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 18 

  

l



INSTR # 2022131520 
BK 12252 Pgs 1091-1098 PG(s)8 
05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM 
STACY M. BUTTERFIELD, 
CLERK OF COURT POLK COUNTY 
RECORDING FEES 69.50 

This instrument was prepared by: (This space reserved for Clerk) 

KE Law Group PLLC 

2016 Delta Boulevard, Suite 101 

Tallahassee, FL. 32303 

  

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE 

EASEMENT 

THIS CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE EASEMENT (“Easement Agreement”) is made and 

entered into to be effective the MPday of 2022 and by and between: 

SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special- purpose 

government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located in Polk County, 

Florida, and whose mailing address is c/o DPFG, 250 International Parkway, Suite 208, Lake 

Mary, Florida 32746 (“District” or “Grantor”), and 

SOLTERRA RESORT HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC., a Florida Corporation, and whose 

mailing address is 2100 S Hiawassee Rd, Orlando, Florida 32835 (“Grantee,” and together 

with the Grantor, the “Parties”); and 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Grantor was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended 

(“Act”), and is validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certain real property located in Polk County, Florida, 

as more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 

(“Easement Area”); and 

WHEREAS, Grantee has requested that Grantor grant to Grantee a non-exclusive easement over the 

Easement Area for the operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of certain hardscape and related 

improvements (“Improvements”), and Grantor is agreeable to granting such an easement on the terms and 

conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for goad and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants of the Parties, 

the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this reference are incorporated 

as a material part of this Easement Agreement. 

2. EASEMENT. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee a non-exclusive easement over, upon, under, 

through, and across the Easement Area for ingress and egress and for the operation, maintenance, repair 

and replacement of the Improvements (“Easement”). l



Grantee shall be solely responsible for all costs associated with the exercise of its rights hereunder (i.e., 

the costs of operating, maintaining, repairing and replacing the Improvements). 

Prior Approval Required - Prior to exercising any rights hereunder, Grantee shall provide copies of 

the plans and designs for the Improvements to Grantor, and Grantor shall have the right in its sole discretion 

to review and approve any such plans and designs. Notwithstanding any other language in this Easement 

Agreement to the contrary, Grantee shall not exercise any rights hereunder until Grantor provides its prior 

written consent to Grantee's plans and designs for the Improvements. Any changes to the Improvements 

must also be pre-approved in writing by Grantor. 

3. DAMAGE. Grantee shall use all due care to protect the Easement Area and adjoining 

property from damage resulting from Grantee’s use of the Easement Area. In the event that Grantee, its 

respective employees, agents, assignees, contractors (or their subcontractors, employees or materialmen), 

or representatives cause damage to the Easement Area or to adjacent property or improvements in the 

exercise of the easement rights granted herein, Grantee, at Grantee's sole cost and expense, agrees to 

promptly commence and diligently pursue the restoration of the same and the improvements so damaged 

to, as nearly as practical, the original condition and grade, including, without limitation, repair and 

replacement of any landscaping, hardscaping, plantings, ground cover, roadways, driveways, sidewalks, 

parking areas, fences, walks, utility lines, stormwater facilities, pumping facilities, pumps and other structures 

or improvements of any kind. 

4. INSURANCE. Grantee and/or any contractors performing work for Grantee on the Easement 

Area shall at all times maintain general public liability insurance to afford protection against any and all 

claims for personal injury, death or property damage arising directly or indirectly out of the exercise of the 

rights and privileges granted. Said insurance shall be issued by solvent, reputable insurance companies 

authorized to do business in the State of Florida, naming Grantor, and its employees and representatives, 

as insureds, as their interests may appear in a combined-single limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 with 

respect to bodily injury or death and property damage. 

5. INDEMNITY. To the extent permitted by law, Grantee shall indemnify and hold harmless 

Grantor, and its successors, assigns, agents, employees, staff, contractors, officers, supervisors, and 

representatives (together, “Indemnitees”), from any and all liability, loss or damage, whether monetary or 

otherwise, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs and all fees and costs of mediation or alternative 

dispute resolution, as a result of any claims, liabilities, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, 

penalties, fines, or judgments, against Indemnitees which arise out of any of the activities referred to under 

the terms of this Easement Agreement or use of the Easement Area by Grantee, its successors, assigns, 

agents, employees, contractors (including but not limited to subcontractors, materialmen, etc.), officers, 

invitees, or representatives, including but not limited to loss of life, injury to persons or damage to, or 

destruction or theft of property. 

6. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY. Nothing contained in this Easement Agreement shall constitute or 

be construed as a waiver of Grantor's limitations on liability set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, 

and other applicable law. 

7. LIENS. Grantee shall not permit (and shall promptly satisfy) any construction, mechanic's 

lien or encumbrance against the Easement Area or other Grantor property in connection with the exercise 

of its rights hereunder. 

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1092 Pgs 1021-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



8. EXERCISE OF RIGHTS. The rights and Easement created by this Easement Agreement are 

subject to the following provisions: 

(a) Grantee shall operate, maintain, repair and replace the Improvements in a sound, 

professional manner, and consistent with community standards, and shall have sole responsibility for obtaining 

any necessary permits or regulatory approvals for such work. Any rights granted hereunder shall be exercised 

by Grantee only in accordance and compliance with any and all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 

regulations, permits and approvals, and any future modifications or amendments thereto. Grantee shall not 

discharge into or within the Easement Area any hazardous or toxic materials or substances, any pollutants, 

or any other substances or materials prohibited or regulated under any federal, state or local law, 

ordinance, rule, regulation or permit, except in accordance with such laws, ordinances, rules, regulations 

and permits. 

(b) Grantor makes no representation that the Easement Area is suitable for installation 

of the Improvements. Grantee acknowledges that there are or may be existing facilities located within the 

Easement Area. Grantee shall not interfere with or cause interruption in the day to day operation of all 

existing facilities in the Easement Area. 

(c) Nothing herein shall be construed to limit in any way Grantor’s rights to (i) construct 

and maintain in the Easement Area any structures or other improvements that do not materially interfere with 

the use or enjoyment of the Easement granted herein for the purposes for which they are created as 

contemplated herein, or (ii) to use the Easement Area, or allow the use of the Easement Area by others, in 

common with Grantee, its successors and assigns. 

(d Grantee shall provide notice to Grantor at least 24 hours prior to conducting any 

work in the Easement Areas. 

9. DEFAULT. A default by the Grantor or Grantee under this Easement Agreement shall entitle 

the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of 

actual damages, injunctive relief, and specific performance (including but not limited to removal of the 

Improvements). 

10. ENFORCEMENT. In the event that the Grantor or Grantee seeks to enforce this Easement 

Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees 

and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or 

appellate proceedings. 

11. NOTICES. Any notice, demand, consent, authorization, request, approval, or other 

communication that any party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other party pursuant 

to this Easement Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing and delivered personally to the 

other Parties or sent by express 24-hour guaranteed courier or delivery service or by certified mail of the 

United States Postal Service, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party 

as follows at the addresses first set forth above (or to such other place as any party may by notice to the 

others specify). Notice shall be deemed given when received, except that if delivery is not accepted, 

notice shall be deemed given on the date of such non-acceptance. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at 

the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any 

time for giving notice would otherwise expire on a non- business day, the notice period shall be extended 

to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, 

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1093 Pgs 1021-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business 
days. Counsel for the Grantor and counsel(s) for Grantee may deliver Notice on behalf of the Grantor and 
Grantee, respectively. 

12, THIRD PARTIES. This Easement Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Grantor and 
Grantee, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of any third 
party not a formal party to this Easement Agreement. Nothing in this Easement Agreement expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, corporation, or entity other than the 
Grantor and Grantee any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Easement Agreement or any of 
the provisions or conditions of this Easement Agreement. Nothing contained in this Easement Agreement 

shall limit or impair the Grantor’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party. 

13. ASSIGNMENT. Neither of the Parties hereto may assign, transfer, or license all or any portion 

of its rights under this Easement Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. Any 
purported assignment, transfer, or license by one of the Parties absent the written consent of the other 
party shall be void and unenforceable. 

14. CONTROLLING LAW; VENUE. This Easement Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, 
and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. The Parties agree and consent to venue in Polk 
County, Florida, for the resolution of any dispute, whether brought in or out of court, arising out of this 
Easement Agreement. 

15. PUBLIC RECORDS. All documents of any kind provided in connection with this Easement 
Agreement are public records and are treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 

16. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions or part of 
a provision of this Easement Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
provisions of this Easement Agreement or any part of this Easement Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

17. BINDING EFFECT. This Easement Agreement and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, transferees, and/or licensees. 

18. AUTHORIZATION. By execution below, the undersigned represent that they have been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute this Easement Agreement, 

that the respective Parties have complied with all the requirements of law, and they have full power and 
authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 

19. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Easement 

Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the Grantor and 
Grantee. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 

the agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Easement Agreement. 

21. EFFECTIVE DATE. The Effective Date of this Easement Agreement shall be the date first 

written above. 

4 

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1094 Pgs 1021-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



22, COUNTERPARTS. This Easement Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute an original, but all taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1095 Pgs 1021-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee caused this Easement Agreement to be executed, 

to be effective as of the day and year first written above. 

WITNESS SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

  

By: 

Name: ACS 

STATE OF ol 

COUNTY OF 4Mg 

The foregoing instrument as acknowledged before me by means EEF Fhysical presence or J 
online notarization, this & day of 2022, by GArKs[f [Ae as 

chara , of SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, who appeared 
before me this day in person, and who is either personally known to me, or produced 

as identification. —_— 

  

   
oF Audi 

Name __ iow 7. A _ 
{Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or 

Typed as Commissioned) 

  

NOTARY PUBLIC, STA 

ATA A 

; a Notary Public State of Florida 
"Bryon T LoPreste 

x MyCommission GG 919288 
FoF Expires 01/27/2024 

  

         C
S
 

    

  

     

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1096 Pgs 1021-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



  

: 
# «Bryon T LoPreste 

? 1% = My Commission GG 919288 

2 oF 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOR EASEMENT AGREEMENT] 

WITNESS SOLTERRA RESORT HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION INC., 

      
By: 

Name: Dag /. Glac1I 

STATE OF # wortdn 
county of _Z/ wed otivip 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means oF Physical presence or [J 

online notarization, this day of WR , 2022, by ZA A Henk as 

NES Ir of SOLTERRA RESORT HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC., who appeared 
before me this day in person,and who is either personally known to me, or produced 

ET ——— rrr rr rm 

as identification. 

  

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF _£tedif4 

(NOTARY SEAL) Name _Jagw J. Lo A _ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or Typed as 
Commissioned) 

   

     
   

    

Notary Public State of Florida 

oF Expires 01/27/2024 
    

Exhibit A — Legal Description 

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1097 Pgs 1021-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



EXHIBIT A 

The fence would be constructed on Tract B-1, as identified on the plat for Solterra Phase 2D, recorded in Plat 

Book 177, Page 17 et seq., of the Official Records of Polk County, Florida, and as further detailed in the sketch 

below. 

8 
Stacy M. Butterfield POLK 
CFN# 2022131520 OR BK 12252 PG 1098 Pgs 1091-1098 05/13/2022 09:23:50 AM

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 19 

  

l



 

 

This instrument was prepared by and  
upon recording should be returned to: 
 
KE Law Group PLLC 
2016 Delta Boulevard, Suite 101 
Tallahassee, Florida 32303 
 

(This space reserved for Clerk) 

  

QUITCLAIM DEED 
 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED is made to be effective as of the _____ day of _________ 2022, by and 
between AK OAKMONT LLC, a Florida limited liability company, with a mailing address of 105 NE 1st Street, 
Delray Beach, Florida 33444 (“Grantor”), and SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in Polk County, Florida, and whose mailing address is c/o DPFG, Inc., 250 International Parkway, 
Suite 280, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (“Grantee”).  

 
(Wherever used herein, the terms “Grantor” and “Grantee” include all of the parties to 
this instrument, the heirs, legal representatives and assigns of individuals, and the 
successors and assigns of trustees, partnerships, limited liability companies, 
governmental entities, and corporations.) 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
THAT GRANTOR, for good and valuable consideration to it in hand paid by Grantee, the receipt 

and sufficiency whereof are hereby acknowledged, hereby remises, releases and quit-claims to Grantee 
forever, all the right, title, interest, claim and demand which the Grantor has in and to the following 
described lot, piece or parcel of land, situate, lying and being in the County of Polk, State of Florida, and 
more particularly below (“Property”): 

Tract C as shown on the plat of Oakmont Townhomes Phase 1, as recorded in Plat Book 153 
Pages 21-22, of the Public Records of Polk County, Florida; and 
 
Tract F as shown on the plat of Solterra Phase 2C-1, as recorded in Plat Book 169, Pages 30-34, 
of the Public Records of Polk County, Florida; and 
 
Tract B-2 as shown on the plat of Solterra Phase 2B Replat, as recorded in Plat Book 180, Pages 
30-31, of the Public Records of Polk County, Florida. 

 
TOGETHER with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in 

anywise appertaining, and to have and to hold the same in fee simple forever.  Such conveyance is subject 
to all matters of record; however, reference hereto shall not operate to re-impose the same.   
 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same in fee simple forever, subject to taxes for the year hereof and 
subsequent years, as applicable, and all easements, restrictions, reservations, conditions, covenants, 
limitations and agreements of record.  This reference to such matters of record shall not operate to re-
impose the same.  

 
 

l



 

 

 
 
 
 

RESERVATION OF EASEMENT 
 

 GRANTOR hereby reserves unto itself and its successors and assigns, and Grantee by acceptance 
hereby gives and grants unto Grantor and its successors and assigns, non-exclusive easements for ingress 
and egress over, upon and across the Property, together with the rights to install, maintain, repair, plant, 
mow, cultivate, irrigate, improve and care for all landscaping, hardscaping, irrigation, lighting, 
conservation and related improvements, and the right to maintain, repair and replace and improve any 
improvements now or hereafter located on the Property; provided, however, that Grantor’s reservation 
of rights hereunder shall not be deemed to impose any obligations on Grantor to maintain, repair or 
replace any part of the Property or improvements located thereon. 

 
 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 

  

l



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents to be executed to be effective as of 

the day and year first above written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered                                     AK OAKMONT LLC 
in the presence of:                                                       
 
 
 
       By:       
Print Name:      Name:       
       Title:       
 
 
       
Print Name:      
 
 
 
STATE OF ___________________ 
COUNTY OF _________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ online 
notarization, this ___ day of _____________, 2022, by _________________, as ____________ of 
________________________, on its behalf.  He [___] is personally known to me or [___] produced 
______________________________ as identification. 
 
 
                          __________________________________________ 
                           Notary Public, State of Florida 
  
                           
 
 
 
 
Note to Examiner: This instrument evidences a conveyance of an interest in unencumbered real estate as a gift and is exempt 
from Florida documentary stamp tax pursuant to Rule 12B-4.014(2)(a), Florida Administrative Code. 

 

l



EXHIBIT 20 

l



This instrument was prepared by: 
 
KE LAW GROUP 
P.O. Box 6386 
Tallahassee, Florida 32314 
 

 

  

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT is made as of the ___ day of ____________, 2022, by and among 
PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company whose address for purposes hereof is 
3350 Peachtree Road Northeast, Suite 1500, Atlanta, Georgia 30326  (“Developer” or “Grantor”), and is 
in favor of SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, whose address is c/o DPFG 
Management & Consulting, LLC, 250 International Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (“District” 
or “Grantee”). 

 
(Wherever used herein, the terms “Grantor” and “Grantee” include all of the parties to this 
instrument, the heirs, legal representatives and assigns of individuals, and the successors and 
assigns of trustees, partnerships, limited liability companies, governmental entities, and 
corporations.) 
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 

WHEREAS, the District is responsible for the drainage system serving the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Developer reserved rights to grant easements on the certain real property located in 

Polk County, Florida, more particularly described in the plat entitled, Solterra Phase 2B Replat, which is 
recorded in Plat Book 180, Pages 30 et seq., of the Official Records of Polk County, Florida (“Plat”); and 

 
WHEREAS, for the benefit of Grantee and its landowners and residents, and consistent with the 

Plat, Grantor desires to grant to Grantee easement rights to access and maintain the master drainage 
improvements (“Improvements”), located within certain easement areas identified herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantor acknowledges and agrees that the grant of easements hereunder shall not 

be interpreted as a grant of the Improvements, which may be done by separate bill of sale. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Grantor, for good and valuable consideration to it in hand paid by Grantee, the 

receipt and sufficiency whereof are hereby acknowledged, hereby grants, bargains and conveys to 
Grantee forever, the following non-exclusive, perpetual easement rights as more particularly described 
below:   

1. Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated as a material part of this Agreement. 
 

2. Grant of Non-Exclusive Easement.  Grantor hereby grants to the District, its successors, 
and assigns, the following “Easements” on the areas (“Easement Areas”) identified below: 

 

l



(a) The District shall have and is hereby granted a perpetual, non-exclusive 
drainage easement for surface and stormwater drainage, lake maintenance, 
installation, construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of 
irrigation lines and other improvements and for access over, under and across 
all portions of the Plat depicted as “Private Drainage and Access Easements.”  

(b) The District shall have and is hereby granted a perpetual, non-exclusive 
access easement for ingress and egress for the purposes of installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of drainage 
and other improvements over, under and across all portions of the Plat 
depicted as “Private Drainage and Access Easement.” 

 
3. Inconsistent Use.  Grantor agrees and covenants that it shall not exercise any rights in the 

Easement Areas inconsistent with, or which unreasonably interfere with, the rights herein afforded to 
Grantee. 

 
4. Beneficiaries of Easement Rights.  This Easement Agreement shall be for the non-

exclusive benefit and use of Grantee and its permitted employees, agents, assignees, contractors (and 
their subcontractors, employees and materialmen), or representatives for the purposes contemplated 
herein, and no third party shall have any rights under this Easement Agreement. 

 
5. Binding Effect.  This Easement Agreement and all of the provisions, representations, 

covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and shall run with the land, and be binding upon, and for the benefit of, successors and assigns in 
interest to the Easement Area. 

6. Default.  A default by any Party under this Easement Agreement shall entitle the other 
party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include but not be limited to the right of 
actual damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance. 

 
7. Enforcement of Agreement.  In the event that either Grantee or Grantor seeks to enforce 

this Easement Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, and 
expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution or appellate proceedings. 

 
8. Notices.  Any notice, demand, consent, authorization, request, approval, or other 

communication that any party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other party pursuant 
to this Easement Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing and delivered personally to the 
other Parties or sent by express 24-hour guaranteed courier or delivery service or by certified mail of the 
United States Postal Service, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party 
as follows at the addresses first set forth above (or to such other place as any party may by notice to the 
others specify).  Notice shall be deemed given when received, except that if delivery is not accepted, 
notice shall be deemed given on the date of such non-acceptance. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at 
the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any 
time for giving notice would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the notice period shall be extended 
to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United 
States government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the Grantor and counsel(s) for 
Grantee may deliver Notice on behalf of the Grantor and Grantee, respectively. 

 

l



9. Assignment.  Neither party may assign, transfer or license all or any portion of its real 
property rights under this Easement Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 
Any assignments attempted to be made by any party without the prior written approval of the other 
party are void.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent Grantee from assigning its 
maintenance obligations for the Improvements to a third party without the consent of the Grantor. 
 

10. Controlling Law; Venue.  This Easement Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and 
controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  The Parties consent to and agree that the 
exclusive venue for any dispute arising hereunder shall be in Polk County, Florida. 
 

11. Public Records.  Grantor understands and agrees that all documents of any kind 
provided to Grantee or to District staff in connection with this Easement Agreement are public records 
and are to be treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 
 

12. Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of this 
Easement Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Easement Agreement, or any part of this Easement Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 

13. Binding Effect.  This Easement Agreement and all of the provisions thereof shall inure to 
the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties set forth herein and their respective successors and 
permitted assigns, and the agents, employees, invitees, tenants, subtenants, licensees, lessees, 
mortgagees in possession and independent contractors thereof, as a covenant running with and binding 
upon the Easement Areas. 
 

14. Authorization.  By execution below, the undersigned represent that they have been 
duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute this Easement 
Agreement, and that each party has complied with all the requirements of law and has full power and 
authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 

 
15. Amendments.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 

Easement Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both Parties 
hereto. 
 

16. Entire Agreement.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 
the agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Easement Agreement. 
 
 17. Counterparts.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such counterparts together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached 
from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically form one document. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

 

 

 

 

l



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused these presents to be executed on the 
day and year first above written. 

WITNESSES 

 
By:   
 Name:    
 Title:    

PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLC 
 
 
 
By:   
 Name:    
 Title:    

 
 
By:   
 Name:    
       Title:    

 

 
 
STATE OF _______________  
COUNTY OF _____________  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or  online notarization, this 
_____ day of ______________, 2022, by ________________________ as ___________________ of Pulte Home Company, LLC a 
Florida limited liability company, on behalf of said entity, who appeared before me this day in person, and who is either personally 
known to me, or produced ______________________ as identification. 

 
 
 
 
          (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ______________ 
 
Name:_____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or Typed as 
Commissioned) 

 

 

[Signatures continue on following page] 

 

 

 

 

 
 

l



WITNESSES 

 
By:   
 Name:    
 Title:    

SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

By:   
 Name:    
 Title:    

 
 
By:   
 Name:    
       Title:    

 

 
 
STATE OF _______________  
COUNTY OF _____________  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or  online notarization, this 
_____ day of ______________, 2022, by ________________________ as ___________________ of the Solterra Resort 
Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes , on behalf of said entity, who appeared before me this day in person, and who is either personally known to me, or 
produced ______________________ as identification. 

 
 
 
 
          (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ______________ 
 
Name:_____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or Typed as 
Commissioned) 

 

Note to Examiner: This instrument evidences a conveyance of an interest in unencumbered real estate as a gift and is exempt 
from Florida documentary stamp tax pursuant to Rule 12B-4.014(2)(a), Florida Administrative Code. 

 

l



EXHIBIT 21 

l



This instrument was prepared by: 
 
KE LAW GROUP 
P.O. Box 6386 
Tallahassee, Florida 32314 
 

 

   

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT is made as of the ___ day of ____________, 2022, by and among 
AK OAKMONT LLC, a Florida  limited  liability company whose address  for purposes hereof  is 101 NE 1 
Street, Delray Beach, Florida 33444,   (“Developer” or “Grantor”), and  is  in favor of SOLTERRA RESORT 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special‐purpose government established pursuant 
to  Chapter  190,  Florida  Statutes,  whose  address  is  c/o  DPFG Management  &  Consulting,  LLC,  250 
International Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 (“District” or “Grantee”). 

 
(Wherever  used  herein,  the  terms  “Grantor”  and  “Grantee”  include  all  of  the  parties  to  this 
instrument,  the  heirs,  legal  representatives  and  assigns  of  individuals,  and  the  successors  and 
assigns  of  trustees,  partnerships,  limited  liability  companies,  governmental  entities,  and 
corporations.) 
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 

WHEREAS, the District is responsible for the drainage system serving the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Developer reserved rights to grant easements on the certain real property located in 

Polk County, Florida, more particularly described in the Plats defined herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, for the benefit of Grantee and its landowners and residents, and consistent with the 

Plats, Grantor desires to grant to Grantee easement rights to access and maintain the master drainage 
improvements (“Improvements”), located within certain easement areas identified herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, Grantor acknowledges and agrees that the grant of easements hereunder shall not 

be interpreted as a grant of the Improvements, which may be done by separate bill of sale. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Grantor, for good and valuable consideration to it in hand paid by Grantee, the 

receipt  and  sufficiency  whereof  are  hereby  acknowledged,  hereby  grants,  bargains  and  conveys  to 
Grantee forever, the following non‐exclusive, perpetual easement rights as more particularly described 
below:   

1. Recitals.    The  foregoing  recitals  are  true  and  correct  and  by  this  reference  are 
incorporated as a material part of this Agreement. 
 

2. Grant of Non‐Exclusive Easement.  Grantor hereby grants to the District, its successors, 
and assigns, the following “Easements” on the areas (“Easement Areas”) identified below in the following 
“Plats”:  

 

l



(a) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 
“Drainage  Easements,”  identified  on  the  plat  entitled Oakmont  Phase  1, 
recorded  in  Plat  Book  148,  Pages  16‐30,  of  the Official  Records  of  Polk 
County, Florida (“Oakmont Phase 1”). 

(b) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 
“Drainage Easements” and “Drainage and Utility Easements,”  identified on 
the plat entitled Oakmont Townhomes Phase 1, recorded in Plat Book 153, 
Pages  21‐22,  of  the Official  Records  of  Polk  County,  Florida  (“Oakmont 
Townhomes Phase 1”). 

(c) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 
“Drainage  Easements,”  identified  on  the  plat  entitled  Solterra  Phase  1, 
recorded  in  Plat  Book  156,  Pages  13‐14,  of  the Official  Records  of  Polk 
County, Florida (“Solterra Phase 1”). 

(d) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 
“Drainage Easements” and “Drainage and Utility Easements,”  identified on 
the plat entitled Solterra Phase 2A1, recorded in Plat Book 158, Pages 50‐53, 
of the Official Records of Polk County, Florida (Solterra Phase 2A1”). 

(e) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 
“Private Drainage and Access Easements” and “Private Drainage and Utility 
Easements,” identified on the plat entitled Solterra Phase 2C‐1, recorded in 
Plat Book 169, Pages 30‐34, of the Official Records of Polk County, Florida 
(“Solterra Phase 2C‐1”). 

(f) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 
“Private  Drainage  and  Utility  Easements,”  identified  on  the  plat  entitled 
Solterra Phase 2C‐2, recorded in Plat Book 173, Pages 44‐47, of the Official 
Records of Polk County, Florida (“Solterra Phase 2C‐2”). 

(g) The  District  shall  have  and  is  hereby  granted  a  perpetual,  non‐exclusive 
drainage  easement  for  surface  and  stormwater  drainage,  installation, 
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of irrigation lines and 
other  improvements  and  for  access  over,  under  and  across  those  certain 

l



“Private  Drainage  and  Access  Easements”  and  “Drainage  Easements,” 
identified on the plat entitled Solterra Phase 2D, recorded in Plat Book 177, 
Pages 17‐24, of the Official Records of Polk County, Florida (“Solterra Phase 
2D,” together with Oakmont Phase 1, Oakmont Townhomes Phase 1, Solterra 
Phase 1, Solterra Phase 2A‐1, Solterra Phase 2C‐1, and Solterra Phase 2C‐2 
“Plats”). 

 
 

3. Inconsistent Use.  Grantor agrees and covenants that it shall not exercise any rights in the 
Easement Areas  inconsistent with, or which unreasonably  interfere with, the rights herein afforded to 
Grantee. 

 
4. Beneficiaries  of  Easement  Rights.    This  Easement  Agreement  shall  be  for  the  non‐

exclusive benefit and use of Grantee and  its permitted employees, agents, assignees, contractors (and 
their subcontractors, employees and materialmen), or  representatives  for  the purposes contemplated 
herein, and no third party shall have any rights under this Easement Agreement. 

 
5. Binding  Effect.    This  Easement Agreement  and  all of  the  provisions,  representations, 

covenants, and conditions contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and shall run with the land, and be binding upon, and for the benefit of, successors and assigns in 
interest to the Easement Area. 

6. Default.  A default by any Party under this Easement Agreement shall entitle the other 
party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include but not be limited to the right of 
actual damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance. 

 
7. Enforcement of Agreement.  In the event that either Grantee or Grantor seeks to enforce 

this Easement Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, and 
expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution or appellate proceedings. 

 
8. Notices.    Any  notice,  demand,  consent,  authorization,  request,  approval,  or  other 

communication that any party is required, or may desire, to give to or make upon the other party pursuant 
to this Easement Agreement shall be effective and valid only if in writing and delivered personally to the 
other Parties or sent by express 24‐hour guaranteed courier or delivery service or by certified mail of the 
United States Postal Service, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other party 
as follows at the addresses first set forth above (or to such other place as any party may by notice to the 
others specify).   Notice shall be deemed given when  received, except  that  if delivery  is not accepted, 
notice shall be deemed given on the date of such non‐acceptance. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at 
the place of delivery) or on a non‐business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any 
time for giving notice would otherwise expire on a non‐business day, the notice period shall be extended 
to  the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and  legal holidays  recognized by  the United 
States government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel  for  the Grantor and counsel(s)  for 
Grantee may deliver Notice on behalf of the Grantor and Grantee, respectively. 

 
9.  Assignment.  Neither party may assign, transfer or license all or any portion of its real 

property rights under this Easement Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 
Any assignments attempted to be made by any party without the prior written approval of the other 

l



party are void.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent Grantee from assigning its 
maintenance obligations for the Improvements to a third party without the consent of the Grantor. 
 

10.  Controlling Law; Venue.  This Easement Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and 
controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  The Parties consent to and agree that the 
exclusive venue for any dispute arising hereunder shall be in Polk County, Florida. 
 

11.  Public Records.  Grantor understands and agrees that all documents of any kind 
provided to Grantee or to District staff in connection with this Easement Agreement are public records 
and are to be treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 
 

12.  Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of this 
Easement Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Easement Agreement, or any part of this Easement Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 

13.  Binding Effect.  This Easement Agreement and all of the provisions thereof shall inure to 
the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties set forth herein and their respective successors and 
permitted assigns, and the agents, employees, invitees, tenants, subtenants, licensees, lessees, 
mortgagees in possession and independent contractors thereof, as a covenant running with and binding 
upon the Easement Areas. 
 

14.  Authorization.  By execution below, the undersigned represent that they have been 
duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute this Easement 
Agreement, and that each party has complied with all the requirements of law and has full power and 
authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 

 
15.  Amendments.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 

Easement Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both Parties 
hereto. 
 

16.  Entire Agreement.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 
the agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Easement Agreement. 
 
  17.  Counterparts.  This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such counterparts together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached 
from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically form one document. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have caused these presents to be executed on the 
day and year first above written. 

l



WITNESSES 

 
By:     
  Name:     
  Title:     

AK OAKMONT LLC 
 
 
 
By:     
  Name:     
  Title:     

 
 
By:     
  Name:     
       Title:     

 

 
 
STATE OF _______________   
COUNTY OF _____________   

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or  online notarization, this 
_____ day of ______________, 2022, by ________________________ as ___________________ of AK Oakmont LLC a Florida 
limited liability company, on behalf of said entity, who appeared before me this day in person, and who is either personally known 
to me, or produced ______________________ as identification. 

 
 
 
 
          (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ______________ 
 
Name:_____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or Typed as 
Commissioned) 

 

 
[Signatures continue on following page] 

   

l



 
WITNESSES 

 
By:     
  Name:     
  Title:     

SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:     
  Name:     
  Title:     

 
 
By:     
  Name:     
       Title:     

 

 
 
STATE OF _______________   
COUNTY OF _____________   

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence or  online notarization, this 
_____  day  of  ______________,  2022,  by  ________________________  as  ___________________  of  the  Solterra  Resort 
Community Development District,  a  local  unit  of  special‐purpose  government  established  pursuant  to  Chapter  190,  Florida 
Statutes , on behalf of said entity, who appeared before me this day in person, and who is either personally known to me, or 
produced ______________________ as identification. 

 
 
 
 
          (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ______________ 
 
Name:_____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or Typed as 
Commissioned) 

 

Note to Examiner: This instrument evidences a conveyance of an interest in unencumbered real estate as a gift and is exempt 
from Florida documentary stamp tax pursuant to Rule 12B‐4.014(2)(a), Florida Administrative Code. 
 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 22 

  

l



 

 

___________, 2022 

Solterra Resort Community Development District  
c/o District Manager 
DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
 

Re: Letter Agreement for Acquisition of Solterra Resort Improvements & Work Product  
 
Dear District Manager, 
 
 Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement (2018 Bonds), dated October 4, 2018 (“Acquisition 
Agreement”), by and between the Solterra Resort Community Development District (“District”) and AK 
Oakmont LLC (“Developer”), you are hereby notified that the Developer has completed and wishes to sell 
(“Sale”) to the District certain “Improvements” and “Work Product” as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto. Subject to the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, the following terms govern the proposed Sale: 
 

• As consideration for the Sale, and subject to the availability of funds and the terms of the 
Acquisition Agreement, the District agrees to pay the amount identified in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, which represents the actual cost of constructing and/or creating the Improvements.  

 
If the District is in agreement with the terms stated herein, please execute this letter agreement 

in the space below and proceed with the necessary steps to effect the Sale. 
 

Agreed to by: 
 
SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
___________________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: ______________________________  

Sincerely, 
 
AK OAKMONT LLC  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: ______________________________ 

l



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
Description of Improvements and Work Product 

 

 CONTRACT NAME CONTRACT 
DATE 

PHASE AMOUNT 

1 Faulkner Engineering Services, Inc.  12/20/2017 Phase 2A-2, 2C-1, 2C-2, 79G 
Testing 

$66,250.00 

2 Faulkner Engineering Services, Inc.  04/30/2019 Phase 2D-1, 2D-2, 79g Testing $42,700.00 

3 Faulkner Engineering Services, Inc.  11/15/2018 Phase 2E, 79g Testing $31,000.00 

4 Bravo Fence, Inc.  01/16/2020 Phase 2E Retaining Wall Fence $11,174.00 

5 Bravo Fence, Inc. 04/24/2020 Phase 2D Retaining Wall Fence $13,370.00 

6 DS Boring, LLC 07/13/2018 Phase 2A2 Boring $42,718.75 

7 DS Boring, LLC  Phase 2E Boring $29,035.00 

8 Randy Suggs, Inc.  09/01/2020 Phase 2D2 $82,427.23 

9 Tucker Paving, Inc.  12/06/2019 Phase 2C2 $12,913.99 

10 Dewberry Engineers, Inc.  02/04/2019 Oakmont Pump Station – Standby 
Generator Design 

$24,900.00 

11 Modica & Associates 12/14/2017 Phases 2C-1, 2C-2 and 2A-2 
Gopher Tortoise Relocation 

$_________ 

12 Modica & Associates 10/23/2018 Phase 2D Gopher Tortoise 
Relocation 

$48,307.11 

13 Modica & Associates 08/20/2018 Phase 2E $18,464.00 

14 Modica & Associates 11/15/2017 Phases 2C-1, 2C-2, and 2A-2 GT 
Surveying and Permitting 

$4,300.00 

15 Heidt Design, LLC 02/11/2020 Bowen Road Design and 
Permitting  

$33,500.00 

 TOTAL:   $_________ 

 
  

l



 

 

CORPORATE DECLARATION AND AGREEMENT 
[IMPROVEMENTS & WORK PRODUCT] 

 
I, ________________________, as ______________________________of AK Oakmont LLC, a 

Florida corporation (“Developer”), do hereby state as follows: 
 

1. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth in this Declaration.  
 

2. My name is ________________________, and I am ______________________________ of 
the Developer. I have authority to make this Declaration on behalf of Developer.   

 
3. Developer is the developer of certain lands within the Solterra Resort Community 

Development District, a special purpose unit of local government established pursuant to 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (“District”). 

 
4. The District’s Report of the District Engineer, dated September 11, 2018 (“Engineer’s Report”) 

describes certain public infrastructure improvements and work product that the District 
intends to finance, fund, plan, establish, acquire, construct or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, 
equip, operate, or maintain pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 

 
5. Developer has expended funds to develop and/or acquire certain of the public infrastructure 

improvements and work product described in the Engineer’s Report and more specifically 
described in Exhibit A. The attached Exhibit A accurately identifies certain of those 
improvements and work product that have been completed to date and states the amounts 
that Developer has spent on those improvements and work product. Developer hereby 
represents that no amounts are owed to contractors and no liens are on the property and 
related to the installation and/or creation of the improvements and work product. 

 
6. Developer acknowledges that the District intends to rely on this Declaration for purposes of 

acquiring the infrastructure improvements and work product identified in Exhibit A. 
 
  

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]  

l



 

 

 Executed this __________ day of ____________________, 2022. 
 

 AK OAKMONT LLC  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Name: ______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF _______________  
COUNTY OF _____________  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ 
online notarization this _____ day of ______________, 2022, by ___________________________ as 
_______________________________________ of ________________________________, and with 
authority to execute the foregoing on behalf of the entit(ies) identified above, and who appeared before 
me this day in person, and who is either personally known to me, or produced ______________________ 
as identification. 

 
 
 
 
     (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF _____________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or 
Typed as Commissioned) 

 

 

 

Exhibit A – Description of Improvements and Work Product   

  

l



 

 

DISTRICT ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATE 
[IMPROVEMENTS AND WORK PRODUCT] 

 
 

_______________________, 2022 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Solterra Resort Community Development District 
 
Re: Acquisition of Improvements and Work Product 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

The undersigned is a representative of Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (“District Engineer”), as 
District Engineer for the Solterra Resort Community Development District (“District”) and does hereby 
make the following certifications in connection with the District’s acquisition from AK Oakmont LLC 
(“Developer”) as to certain public “Improvements” and “Work Product” as further detailed in Exhibit A.  
The undersigned, an authorized representative of the District Engineer, hereby certifies that: 

 
1. I have reviewed the Improvements and Work Product. I have further reviewed certain 

documentation relating to the same, including but not limited to certain invoices, plans, 
and other documents. 

 
2. The Improvements are within the scope of the District’s capital improvement plan as set 

forth in the District’s Report of the District Engineer, dated September 11, 2018  
(“Engineer’s Report”), and specially benefit property within the District as further 
described in the Engineer’s Report. 

 
3. The Improvements were installed in accordance with their specifications, and, subject to 

the design specifications, are capable of performing the functions for which they were 
intended.   I am not aware of any defects in the Improvements. 

 
4. The total costs associated with the Improvements and Work Product are as set forth in 

Exhibit A.  Such costs are equal to or less than each of the following: (i) what was actually 
paid by the Developer to create and/or acquire the Improvements and Work Product, and 
(ii) the reasonable fair market value of the Improvements and Work Product. 

 
5. All known plans, permits and specifications for the maintenance of the Improvements are 

on file with the District, and have been transferred, or are capable of being transferred, 
to the District for maintenance responsibilities. 

 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

  

l



 

 

 
6. With this document, I hereby certify that it is appropriate at this time for the District to 

acquire the Improvements. 
 
 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

 
 
 

       ________________________________ 
______________________, P.E. 
Florida Registration No. __________ 
District Engineer   

 
 
STATE OF _______________  
COUNTY OF _____________  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ 
online notarization this _____ day of ______________, 2022, by ___________________________ as 
_______________________________________ of ________________________________, and with 
authority to execute the foregoing on behalf of the entit(ies) identified above, and who appeared before 
me this day in person, and who is either personally known to me, or produced ______________________ 
as identification. 

 
 
 
 
     (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF _____________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or 
Typed as Commissioned) 

 
 

  

l



 

 

BILL OF SALE AND LIMITED ASSIGNMENT 
[IMPROVEMENTS & WORK PRODUCT] 

 
THIS BILL OF SALE AND LIMITED ASSIGNMENT is made to be effective as of the ___ day of _____, 

2022, by and between AK OAKMONT LLC, a Florida limited liability company, with an address of 14025 
Riveredge Drive, Suite 175, Tampa, Florida 33637 (“Grantor”), and for good and valuable consideration, 
to it paid by the SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (“District” or “Grantee”) whose 
address is c/o DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC, 250 International Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, 
Florida 32746. 
 

(Wherever used herein, the terms “Grantor” and “Grantee” include all of the parties to this instrument, the 
heirs, legal representatives and assigns of individuals, and the successors and assigns of trustees, 
partnerships, limited liability companies, governmental entities, and corporations.) 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, Grantor and Grantee, intending to be legally bound, do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Grantor hereby transfers, grants, conveys, and assigns to Grantee all right, title and 
interest of Grantor, if any, in and to the property (together, “Property”) described in Exhibit A and below 
to have and to hold for Grantee’s own use and benefit forever: 
 

a) All of the right, title, interest, and benefit of Grantor, if any, in, to and under any and 
all contracts, guaranties, affidavits, warranties, bonds, claims, lien waivers, and other 
forms of indemnification, given heretofore and with respect to the construction, 
installation, or composition of the improvements described in Exhibit A. 

 
2. Grantor hereby covenants that: (i) Grantor is the lawful owner of the Property; (ii) the 

Property is free from any liens or encumbrances and the Grantor covenants to timely address any such 
liens or encumbrances if and when filed; (iii) Grantor has good right to sell the Property; and (iv) the 
Grantor will warrant and defend the sale of the Property hereby made unto the Grantee against the lawful 
claims and demands of all persons whosoever.   

 
3. Without waiving any of the rights against third parties granted under Section 1(b), this 

conveyance is made on an “as is” basis. The Grantor represents that it has no knowledge of any latent or 
patent defects in the Property, and hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to the Grantee any and all rights 
against any and all firms or entities which may have caused any latent or patent defects, including, but 
not limited to, any and all warranties and other forms of indemnification.   

 
4. By execution of this document, the Grantor affirmatively represents that it has the 

contractual right, consent and lawful authority of any and all forms to take this action in this document 
and in this form. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of Grantee’s limitations on liability as 
provided in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, and other statutes and law. 

 
[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

l



 

 

WHEREFORE, the foregoing Bill of Sale and Limited Assignment is hereby executed and delivered 
on the date first set forth above. 

 
Signed, sealed and delivered by:  
 

WITNESSES 

By:   
Name:    

AK OAKMONT LLC  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Name: ______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

 
 
By:   
Name:    

 

 
STATE OF _______________  
COUNTY OF _____________  

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of ▢ physical presence or ▢ 
online notarization this _____ day of ______________, 2022, by ___________________________ as 
_______________________________________ of ________________________________, and with 
authority to execute the foregoing on behalf of the entit(ies) identified above, and who appeared before 
me this day in person, and who is either personally known to me, or produced ______________________ 
as identification. 

 
 
 
 
     (NOTARY SEAL) 

 
____________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF _____________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public, Printed, Stamped or 
Typed as Commissioned) 

 

  

 
 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 23 

  

l



 

 

RESOLUTION 2023‐03 
 

[PROJECT COMPLETION RESOLUTION] 
 
A  RESOLUTION OF  THE  BOARD OF  SUPERVISORS OF  THE  SOLTERRA 
RESORT  COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT  DISTRICT  ADDRESSING  REAL 
ESTATE CONVEYANCES AND PERMITS; ACCEPTING THE CERTIFICATE OF 
THE DISTRICT ENGINEER THAT THE 2013 PROJECT, 2014 PROJECT AND 
2018 PROJECT ARE COMPLETE; ACCEPTING  THE CERTIFICATE OF  THE 
ASSESSMENT  CONSULTANT  REGARDING  SPECIAL  ASSESSMENTS; 
RECOGNIZING THE SATISFACTION OF CONTRIBUTION REQUIREMENTS; 
DECLARING  THE  2013  PROJECT,  2014  PROJECT  AND  2018  PROJECT 
COMPLETE;  PROVIDING  DIRECTION  TO  THE  TRUSTEE  TO  RELEASE 
FUNDS  AND  PAY  FINAL  REQUISITIONS;  FINALIZING  THE  SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS  SECURING  THE DISTRICT’S  2013  BONDS,  2014  BONDS 
AND  2018  BONDS;  AUTHORIZING  A  MUTUAL  RELEASE;  PROVIDING 
FOR A SUPPLEMENT TO THE  IMPROVEMENT  LIEN BOOK; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Background 

 
WHEREAS, the Solterra Resort Community Development District (“District”) was established for 

the purpose of providing  infrastructure  improvements,  facilities, and  services  to  the  lands within  the 
District as provided in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 

2013 Bonds & 2013 Project 
 
WHEREAS,  on  April  23,  2013,  the  District  issued  its  $5,420,000  Taxable  Special  Assessment 

Bonds, Series 2013 (“2013 Bonds”), to finance a portion of its “2013 Project;” and 
 
WHEREAS,  the  2013  Bonds were  issued  pursuant  to  that  certain Master  Trust  Indenture,  as 

supplemented by  the Second Supplemental Trust  Indenture, each between  the District and U.S. Bank 
National Association  (“Trustee”) and dated March 1, 2007 and April 1, 2013, respectively  (collectively, 
the “2013 Indenture”); and 

 
WHEREAS,  the  2013  Project  is  described  in  the  Supplemental  Engineer’s  Report,  dated 

December 2012 (“2013 Engineer’s Report”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to secure repayment of the 2013 Bonds, and pursuant to Resolutions 2013‐

06,  2013‐07,  2013‐08,  2013‐11  and  2013‐14  (together,  “2013  Assessment  Resolution”),  the  District 
levied  and  imposed  special  assessment  lien(s)  (together,  “2013 Assessments”)  on  certain  benefitted 
lands within the District known as the “2013 Assessment Area;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2013 Assessments are further described in the Master Assessment Methodology 

Report,  dated  February  28,  2013,  as  supplemented  by  the  Supplemental  Assessment  Methodology 
Report, dated April 18, 2013 (together, “2013 Assessment Report”); and 

 

l



 

 

WHEREAS, generally stated,  the 2013 Project specially benefits certain assessable  lands  in  the 
District, as set forth  in the 2013 Assessment Resolution, and  it  is reasonable, proper,  just and right to 
assess the costs of the 2013 Project financed with the 2013 Bonds to the specially benefited properties 
within the District as set forth in the 2013 Assessment Resolution and this Resolution; and 
 

2014 Bonds & 2014 Project 
 
WHEREAS, on December 22, 2014, the District issued its $3,830,000 Special Assessment Bonds, 

Series 2014 (“2014 Bonds”), to finance a portion of its “2014 Project;” and 
 
WHEREAS,  the  2014  Bonds were  issued  pursuant  to  that  certain Master  Trust  Indenture,  as 

supplemented  by  the  Third  Supplemental  Trust  Indenture,  each  between  the  District  and  U.S.  Bank 
National  Association  (“Trustee”)  and  dated  March  1,  2007  and  December  1,  2014,  respectively 
(collectively, the “2014 Indenture”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2014 Project is described in the Report of the District Engineer, dated December 

3, 2014 (“2014 Engineer’s Report”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to secure repayment of the 2014 Bonds, and pursuant to Resolutions 2014‐

09, 2014‐10, 2015‐01 and 2015‐07  (together,  “2014 Assessment Resolution”),  the District  levied and 
imposed special assessment  lien(s)  (together, “2014 Assessments”) on certain benefitted  lands within 
the District known as the “2014 Assessment Area;” and 

 
WHEREAS,  the  2014  Assessments  are  further  described  in  the  First  Supplemental  Master 

Assessment Methodology Report, dated August 21, 2014 (revised October 6, 2014), as supplemented by 
the  Supplemental  Assessment  Methodology  Report,  dated  December  18,  2014  (together,  “2014 
Assessment Report”); and 

 
WHEREAS, generally stated,  the 2014 Project specially benefits certain assessable  lands  in  the 

District, as set forth  in the 2014 Assessment Resolution, and  it  is reasonable, proper,  just and right to 
assess the costs of the 2014 Project financed with the 2014 Bonds to the specially benefited properties 
within the District as set forth in the 2014 Assessment Resolution and this Resolution; and 

 
2018 Bonds & 2018 Project 

 
WHEREAS,  on October  4,  2018,  the District  issued  its  $9,420,000  Special Assessment  Bonds, 

Series 2018  (“2018 Bonds,”  together with  the 2013 Bonds and 2014 Bonds,  the  “Project Bonds”),  to 
finance a portion of its “2018 Project” (together with the 2013 Project and 2014 Project, the “Projects”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS,  the  2018  Bonds were  issued  pursuant  to  that  certain Master  Trust  Indenture,  as 

supplemented by  the  Fourth  Supplemental  Trust  Indenture,  each between  the District  and U.S. Bank 
National  Association  (“Trustee”)  and  dated  March  1,  2007  and  October  1,  2018,  respectively 
(collectively, the “2018 Indenture”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2018 Project is described in the Report of the District Engineer, dated September 

11, 2018 (“2018 Engineer’s Report”); and 
 

l



 

 

WHEREAS, in order to secure repayment of the 2018 Bonds, and pursuant to Resolutions 2018‐
11  and  2018‐13  (together,  “2018  Assessment  Resolution,”  together  with  the  2013  Assessment 
Resolution  and  2014  Assessment  Resolution,  the  “Assessment  Resolutions”),  the District  levied  and 
imposed special assessment  lien(s)  (together, “2018 Assessments”) on certain benefitted  lands within 
the District known as the “2018 Assessment Area;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2018 Assessments are further described in the Master Assessment Methodology 

Report,  dated  February  28,  2013,  as  supplemented  by  the  First  Supplemental  Master  Assessment 
Methodology Report, dated August 21, 2014  (revised October 6, 2014), and  the Second Supplemental 
Assessment Methodology  Report,  dated  September  20,  2018  (together,  “2018 Assessment  Report”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, generally stated,  the 2018 Project specially benefits certain assessable  lands  in  the 

District, as set forth  in the 2018 Assessment Resolution, and  it  is reasonable, proper,  just and right to 
assess the costs of the 2018 Project financed with the 2018 Bonds to the specially benefited properties 
within the District as set forth in the 2018 Assessment Resolution and this Resolution; and 
 

Completion of Projects 
 

WHEREAS, the Projects and all components thereof, have been completed; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, and  the  Indenture, the District Engineer 

has  executed  and  delivered  an  Engineer’s  Certificate  (“Engineer’s  Certificate”),  attached  hereto  as 
Exhibit A, wherein the District Engineer certified the Projects complete as of a certain date; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has also made certain determinations in connection with the completion 

of the Projects, as set forth in Exhibit B (“Assessment Consultant’s Certificate”); and 
 

WHEREAS, upon receipt of and  in reliance upon the Engineer’s Certificate, the District’s Board 
desires to certify the Projects complete in accordance with the Indenture and pursuant to Chapter 170, 
Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS,  based  on  the  Engineer’s  Certificate,  the  Board  desires  to  declare  the  Project 

complete for purposes of the Indenture and Chapter 170, Florida Statutes; 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
1. RECITALS.    The  recitals  so  stated  are  true  and  correct  and  by  this  reference  are 

incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 
2. AUTHORITY.    This  Resolution  is  adopted  pursuant  the  Indenture  and  provisions  of 

Florida law, including Chapters 170 and 190, Florida Statutes. 
 
3. ACCEPTANCE  OF  ENGINEER’S  CERTIFICATE  AND  ASSESSMENT  CONSULTANT’S 

CERTIFICATE. The Board hereby accepts  the Engineer’s Certificate, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and 
Assessment Consultant’s Certificate, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and certifies the Projects complete in 
accordance with the Assessment Resolution, the Indenture and Chapter 170 of the Florida Statutes.  The 

l



 

 

Completion Date, as that term is defined in the Master Trust Indenture, and for the Projects, shall be the 
date on which the Remaining Payment (as defined in the Engineer’s Certificate) is made.   

 
4. SATSFACTION  OF  CONTRIBUTION  REQUIREMENTS.    As  noted  in  Exhibit  B,  the 

Developer has satisfied any and all Contribution Requirements (as defined in Exhibit B), and the District 
hereby formally recognizes the satisfaction of all Contribution Requirements relating to the Projects.   

 
5. DIRECTION  TO  TRUSTEE.    The District Manager  is  directed  to  provide  a  copy  of  this 

Resolution with  its exhibits to the Trustee and direct the Trustee to effect any  final transfers of  funds 
from  the  applicable  reserve  accounts  and/or  acquisition  and  construction  accounts  for  the  Project 
Bonds, and, upon satisfaction of the Remaining Payment (as defined  in Exhibit B), close the applicable 
acquisition and construction accounts.   
 

6. FINALIZATION OF 2013 ASSESSMENTS.   Pursuant  to  Section 170.08,  Florida  Statutes, 
and the 2013 Assessment Resolution, and because the 2013 Project is complete, the 2013 Assessments 
are to be credited the difference in the assessment as originally made, approved, and confirmed and a 
proportionate  part  of  the  actual  project  costs  of  the  2013  Project.    Because  all  of  the  original 
construction  proceeds  from  the  2013  Bonds  were  used  to  construct  the  2013  Project,  and  all 
Contribution Requirements were satisfied (if any), no such credit  is due.   Accordingly, and pursuant to 
Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, and the 2013 Assessment Resolution, the 2013 Assessments are hereby 
finalized  in  the amount of  the outstanding debt due on  the 2013 Bonds  in accordance with Exhibit B 
herein,  and  are  hereby  apportioned  in  accordance with  the  2013  Assessment  Report  and  the  Final 
Assessment Lien Roll on file with the District Manager. 
 

7. FINALIZATION OF 2014 ASSESSMENTS.   Pursuant  to  Section 170.08,  Florida  Statutes, 
and the 2014 Assessment Resolution, and because the 2014 Project is complete, the 2014 Assessments 
are to be credited the difference in the assessment as originally made, approved, and confirmed and a 
proportionate  part  of  the  actual  project  costs  of  the  2014  Project.    Because  all  of  the  original 
construction  proceeds  from  the  2014  Bonds  were  used  to  construct  the  2014  Project,  and  all 
Contribution Requirements were satisfied (if any), no such credit  is due.   Accordingly, and pursuant to 
Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, and the 2014 Assessment Resolution, the 2014 Assessments are hereby 
finalized  in  the amount of  the outstanding debt due on  the 2014 Bonds  in accordance with Exhibit B 
herein,  and  are  hereby  apportioned  in  accordance with  the  2014  Assessment  Report  and  the  Final 
Assessment Lien Roll on file with the District Manager. 

 
8. FINALIZATION OF 2018 ASSESSMENTS.   Pursuant  to  Section 170.08,  Florida  Statutes, 

and the 2018 Assessment Resolution, and because the 2018 Project is complete, the 2018 Assessments 
are to be credited the difference in the assessment as originally made, approved, and confirmed and a 
proportionate  part  of  the  actual  project  costs  of  the  2018  Project.    Because  all  of  the  original 
construction  proceeds  from  the  2018  Bonds  were  used  to  construct  the  2018  Project,  and  all 
Contribution Requirements were satisfied (if any), no such credit  is due.   Accordingly, and pursuant to 
Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, and the 2018 Assessment Resolution, the 2018 Assessments are hereby 
finalized  in  the amount of  the outstanding debt due on  the 2018 Bonds  in accordance with Exhibit B 
herein,  and  are  hereby  apportioned  in  accordance with  the  2018  Assessment  Report  and  the  Final 
Assessment Lien Roll on file with the District Manager. 

 
9. REAL ESTATE CONVEYANCES; PERMITS.    In connection with the District’s Projects, the 

District:  (i) has accepted permits, approvals, right‐of‐way agreements and other similar documents from 

l



 

 

governmental  entities  for  the  construction  and/or  operation  of  the  Projects,  and  (ii)  has  accepted, 
conveyed  and/or  dedicated  certain  interests  in  real  and  personal  property  (e.g.,  roads,  utilities, 
stormwater  improvements,  and  other  systems),  and,  for  those  purposes,  has  executed  plats,  deeds, 
easements, bills of  sale, permit  transfer documents, agreements, and other documents necessary  for 
the  conveyance and/or operation of  improvements, work product and  land  ((i) and  (ii)  together,  the 
“Conveyances”).   All  such prior Conveyances are hereby  ratified, and any  remaining Conveyances are 
hereby authorized to be completed. 
 

10. MUTUAL RELEASE.   Because  the Projects are complete,  the District hereby authorizes 
execution of the Mutual Release, attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

 
11. IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK.  Immediately following the adoption of this Resolution, the 

special assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the Secretary of the Board of the District in 
the District’s “Improvement Lien Book.”  The special assessment or assessments against each respective 
parcel shall be and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien 
shall be coequal with the  lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other governmental taxes and 
superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.   

 
12. TRUE‐UP  PAYMENTS.    Pursuant  to  the  Assessment  Resolutions,  among  other 

documents, there may be required from time to time certain true‐up payments.  Nothing herein shall be 
deemed to amend or alter the requirement to make true‐up payments as and when due. 

 
13. GENERAL AUTHORIZATION. The Chairman, members of  the Board of Supervisors and 

District staff are hereby generally authorized, upon  the adoption of  this Resolution,  to do all acts and 
things  required of  them by  this Resolution or desirable or consistent with  the  requirements or  intent 
hereof. 

 
14. CONFLICTS.    All  District  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  in  conflict  herewith  are,  to  the 

extent  of  such  conflict,  superseded  and  repealed.    This  Resolution  is  intended  to  supplement  the 
Assessment  Resolutions which  remain  in  full  force  and  effect.    This  Resolution  and  the  Assessment 
Resolutions  shall  be  construed  to  the maximum  extent  possible  to  give  full  force  and  effect  to  the 
provisions  of  each  resolution.    All  District  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  in  actual  conflict  with  this 
Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 

 
15. SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution is declared invalid or 

unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a section of this Resolution 
shall not thereby be affected or  impaired unless  it clearly appears that such other section or part of a 
section of  this Resolution  is wholly or necessarily dependent upon  the section or part of a section so 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
16. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

l



 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of ______________, 2022. 
 
ATTEST:             SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________      _______________________________ 
Secretary            By:  ___________________________ 
              Its: ____________________________ 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Engineer’s Certificate 
Exhibit B:  Assessment Consultant’s Certificate 
Exhibit C:  Mutual Release 
 

l



 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATE 
 

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATE 
COMPLETION OF 2013 PROJECT, 2014 PROJECT AND 2018 PROJECT 

 
_____, 2022 

 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Solterra Resort Community Development District 
 
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee 
 
RE:  Certificate of Completion for 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project 
 

This  Certificate  is  furnished  in  accordance  Chapter  170,  Florida  Statutes,  and  regarding  the 
District’s “2013 Project,” as described in the Engineer’s Report, dated December, 2012, “2014 Project,” 
as described in the Report of District Engineer, dated August 21, 2014, and “2018 Project,” as described 
in the Report of District Engineer, dated September 11, 2018.   This Certificate  is  intended to evidence 
the  completion  of  the  2013  Project,  2014  Project  and  2018  Project  undertaken  by  the  District.    All 
capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them  in Resolution 
2022‐____.   The undersigned, as an authorized  representative of District Engineer, hereby makes  the 
following certifications upon which the District may rely: 

1. I  have  reviewed  certain  available  documentation,  including,  but  not  limited  to, 
agreements, invoices, plans, plats, deeds, bills of sale, and other documentation relating to the District’s 
2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project and have had an opportunity to inspect the improvements 
and work product comprising the 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project.   

 
2. It is my professional opinion that: 

 
a. The 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project, and all components thereof, have 

been  acquired,  constructed  and  installed  in  accordance with  their  specifications, 
and are capable of performing the functions for which they were intended.   

b. To  the  best  of my  knowledge  and  belief,  and  after  reasonable  inquiry,  all  labor, 
services, materials, and  supplies used  in  the 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 
Project  have  been  paid  for  and,  where  practicable,  acknowledgment  of  such 
payments has been obtained from all contractors and suppliers.   

c. The purchase price paid by the District for the 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 
Project  was  no  more  than  the  lesser  of:  (i)  the  fair  market  value  of  such 
improvements and work product at the time of construction, and (ii) the actual cost 
of construction of such improvements and creation of the work product. 

d. The 2013 Project  cost  at  least  the  amount of  (i)  the  acquisition  and  construction 
proceeds available from the $5,420,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2013, plus 
(ii)  applicable  assessment  contributions,  if  any,  as  set  forth  in  the  District’s 
assessment methodologies. 

l



 

 

e. The 2014 Project  cost  at  least  the  amount of  (i)  the  acquisition  and  construction 
proceeds available from the $3,830,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2014, plus 
(ii)  applicable  assessment  contributions,  if  any,  as  set  forth  in  the  District’s 
assessment methodologies. 

f. The 2018 Project  cost  at  least  the  amount of  (i)  the  acquisition  and  construction 
proceeds available from the $9,420,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018, plus 
(ii)  applicable  assessment  contributions,  if  any,  as  set  forth  in  the  District’s 
assessment methodologies.  

g. The 2013 Project, as completed, continues to provide sufficient benefit  to support 
the  2013  Assessments  on  the  2013  Assessment  Area;  the  2014  Project,  as 
completed, continues to provide sufficient benefit to support the 2014 Assessments 
on  the  2014 Assessment Area;  and  the  2018  Project,  as  completed,  continues  to 
provide sufficient benefit to support the 2018 Assessments on the 2018 Assessment 
Area. 

3. The District did not fund any improvements that generated impact fee credits or similar 
credits. 

 
4. With  respect  to  the  2018  Project,  and  pursuant  to  Section  4.01(g)  of  the  Fourth 

Supplemental Trust Indenture, all lots within the Series 2018 Assessment Area have been developed and 
platted. 

 
5. All  plans  and  specifications  necessary  for  the  operation  and  maintenance  of  the 

improvements  made  for  the  2013  Project,  2014  Project  and  2018  Project  are  complete,  in  good 
standing,  and  on  file  with  the  District  Engineer  or  have  been  transferred  to  the  appropriate 
governmental entity having charge of such operation and maintenance.   The following permits are the 
only permits necessary for the District’s operation of the 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project, 
and they have been transferred into the District’s name, or are in the process of being transferred into 
the District’s name:   
 

 That certain right‐of‐way approval, identified as _______________________________. 
 

 That certain environmental resource permit, identified as ________________________. 
 

 That certain water use permit, identified as _________________________________. 
 

6.  The Date of Completion of the 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project shall be the 
date on which the Remaining Payment is made, as defined under Resolution 2022‐__. 
 
 

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

l



 

 

WHEREFORE, the undersigned authorized representative of the District Engineer executes this 
Engineer’s Certificate. 
 
 

________________________________ 
 

________________________________ 
_______________ 
Florida Registration No. __________ 
District Engineer    

 
STATE OF _____________________ 
COUNTY OF ___________________ 
 
  The  foregoing  instrument  was  acknowledged  before  me  by  means  of    physical  presence  or    online 
notarization,  this ___ day of ___________, 2022, by ____________, P.E., District Engineer of  the  Solterra Community 
Development District, who is personally known to me or who has produced ____________________as identification, and 
did [  ] or did not [  ] take the oath. 
 
            ______________________________________ 
            Notary Public, State of ___________________ 
 
            Print Name: ____________________________ 
 
            Commission No.:________________________ 
 
            My Commission Expires: _________________ 
 

l



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
ASSESSMENT CONSULTANT’S CERTIFICATE 

 
ASSESSMENT CONSULTANT’S CERTIFICATE 

COMPLETION OF 2013 PROJECT, 2014 PROJECT AND 2018 PROJECT 
 

May __, 2022 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Solterra Resort Community Development District 
 
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee 
 
RE:  Completion of 2013 Project, 2014 Project and 2018 Project 
 

This Certificate is furnished in accordance with Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, and section 5.01(c) 
of the Master Trust Indenture, between the Solterra Resort Community Development District (“District”) 
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, and in connection with the District’s $5,420,000, Special 
Assessment  Bonds,  Series  2013  (“2013  Bonds”),  $3,830,000  Special  Assessment  Bonds,  Series  2014 
(“2014 Bonds”) and  $9,420,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018 (“2018 Bonds”).  This Certificate 
is  intended  to  address  certain matters  in  connection with  the  completion of  the  2013  Project,  2014 
Project and 2018 Project, as defined in the applicable trust indentures for the 2013 Bonds, 2014 Bonds 
and 2018 Bonds.  All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to 
them in Resolution 2022‐____. 
 

The  undersigned,  as  an  authorized  representative  of  the  District’s  Assessment  Consultant, 
hereby makes the following certifications upon which the District may rely: 

 
1. Finalization of 2013 Assessments 

 
a. The District has spent all monies from the applicable construction account for the 2013 

Project, with the exception of $_________________. 
b. The Developer  has  satisfied  any  and  all  requirements,  if  any,  to make  Contributions 

(defined below) of infrastructure in connection with the reduction of 2013 Assessments 
to meet target levels, and/or to repay any impact fee credits.   

c. As of the date hereof, no rebate amount  is due and owing to  the  federal government 
with respect to the 2013 Bonds.   

d. Accordingly,  and  pursuant  to  Section  170.08,  Florida  Statutes,  no  credit  is  due  in 
connection with finalizing the 2013 Assessments.  The benefit to the lands subject to the 
2013 Assessments  from  the  completed 2013 Project  is  sufficient  to  support  the 2013 
Assessments, and the 2013 Assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated consistent 
with the Assessment Report.   

e. Further, the 2013 Assessments are sufficient to pay the remaining debt service on the 
2013 Bonds. 

f. Based on a review of the applicable plats for all  lands within the District, no true‐up  is 
presently due and owing at this time under the Assessment Resolutions. 
 
 

l



 

 

2. Finalization of 2014 Assessments 
 

a. The District has spent all monies from the applicable construction account for the 2014 
Project, with the exception of $_________________. 

b. The Developer has satisfied any and all requirements,  if any, to make Contributions of 
infrastructure  in  connection with  the  reduction  of  2014  Assessments  to meet  target 
levels, and/or to repay any impact fee credits.   

c. As of the date hereof, no rebate amount  is due and owing to  the  federal government 
with respect to the 2014 Bonds.   

d. Accordingly,  and  pursuant  to  Section  170.08,  Florida  Statutes,  no  credit  is  due  in 
connection with finalizing the 2014 Assessments.  The benefit to the lands subject to the 
2014 Assessments  from  the  completed 2014 Project  is  sufficient  to  support  the 2014 
Assessments, and the 2014 Assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated consistent 
with the Assessment Report.   

e. Further, the 2014 Assessments are sufficient to pay the remaining debt service on the 
2014 Bonds. 

f. Based on a review of the applicable plats for all  lands within the District, no true‐up  is 
presently due and owing at this time under the Assessment Resolutions. 

 
3. Finalization of 2018 Assessments 

 
a. The District has spent all monies from the applicable construction account for the 2018 

Project, with the exception of $_________________. 
b. The Developer has satisfied any and all requirements,  if any, to make Contributions of 

infrastructure  in  connection with  the  reduction  of  2018  Assessments  to meet  target 
levels, and/or to repay any impact fee credits.   

c. As of the date hereof, no rebate amount  is due and owing to  the  federal government 
with respect to the 2018 Bonds.   

d. Accordingly,  and  pursuant  to  Section  170.08,  Florida  Statutes,  no  credit  is  due  in 
connection with finalizing the 2018 Assessments.  The benefit to the lands subject to the 
2018 Assessments  from  the  completed 2018 Project  is  sufficient  to  support  the 2018 
Assessments, and the 2018 Assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated consistent 
with the Assessment Report.   

e. Further, the 2018 Assessments are sufficient to pay the remaining debt service on the 
2018 Bonds. 

f. Based on a review of the applicable plats for all  lands within the District, no true‐up  is 
presently due and owing at this time under the Assessment Resolutions. 

 
4. With respect to the 2018 Project, and pursuant to Section 4.01(g) of the Fourth Supplemental 

Trust Indenture, all lots within the Series 2018 Assessment Area have been sold to builders, and 
all such sales have closed, and there  is not an event of default under the Fourth Supplemental 
Trust Indenture. 
 

5. The project developer, AK Oakmont,  LLC, has provided  to  the District  in  improvements, work 
product, real property or funds an amount in excess of $__________________ to satisfy certain 
“Contributions”  as  described  above  (and  as  set  forth  in  the  applicable  assessment 
methodologies),  plus  $_____________  (“Remaining  Payment”).    Such  Contributions  and 
Remaining Payment are above and beyond the proceeds from the 2013 Bonds, 2014 Bonds, and 

l



 

 

2018 Bonds, and the Remaining Payment is due and owing to the project developer pursuant to 
the applicable acquisition agreement(s) for the Projects. 

 
[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE] 

 

l



 

 

WHEREFORE, the undersigned authorized representative of the District’s Assessment Consultant 
executes this Assessment Consultant’s Certificate. 
 

DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC 
 
 
              ________________________________ 
              By: _____________________________ 
              Its:_____________________________ 
                 
 
             
     
STATE OF _____________________ 
COUNTY OF ___________________ 
 
  The foregoing  instrument was acknowledged before me by means of  physical presence 
or    online  notarization,  this  ___  day  of  ___________,  2022,  by 
______________________________________________,  on  behalf  of  DPFG  Management  & 
Consulting, LLC as Assessment Consultant for the Solterra Resort Community Development District, 
who is personally known to me or who has produced ____________________as identification, and 
did [  ] or did not [  ] take the oath. 
 
 
            ______________________________________ 
            Notary Public, State of ___________________ 
 
            Print Name: ____________________________ 
 
            Commission No.:________________________ 
 
            My Commission Expires: _________________ 

 
 

l



 

 

  
EXHIBIT C 

MUTUAL RELEASE 

l



 

 

MUTUAL RELEASE 
 
  This Mutual Release (“Release”) is made and entered into by and between: 

 
SOLTERRA  RESORT  COMMUNITY  DEVELOPMENT  DISTRICT,  a  local  unit  of  special‐
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and located 
in Polk County, Florida ("District"), and 
 
AK OAKMONT, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, with a mailing address of 14025 
Riveredge Drive, Suite 175, Tampa, Florida 33637 (“Developer”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS,  the  District  was  established  by  ordinance  adopted  by  the  Board  of  County 
Commissioners  in  and  for  Polk  County,  Florida,  pursuant  to  the  Uniform  Community  Development 
District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (“Act”), and is validly existing under the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Act  authorizes  the District  to  issue  bonds  for  the  purpose,  among  others,  of 

planning,  financing,  constructing,  operating  and/or  maintaining  certain  infrastructure,  roadways, 
stormwater management,  utilities  (water  &  sewer),  offsite  improvements,  landscaping/lighting,  and 
other infrastructure within or without the boundaries of the District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Developer is the primary developer of certain lands  in within the boundaries of 
the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2013, the District issued its $5,420,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 
2013 (“2013 Bonds”), to finance a portion of its “2013 Project;” and 
 

WHEREAS,  the  2013  Project  is  described  in  the  Supplemental  Engineer’s  Report,  dated 
December, 2012 (“2013 Engineer’s Report”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the 2013 Bonds, the District entered into certain agreements with 

the Developer,  including  the  Agreement  Regarding  the  Completion  of  Certain  Improvements  By  and 
Between the Oakmont Grove Community Development District and AK Oakmont, LLC (“2013 Completion 
Agreement”), and the Agreement Regarding the Acquisition of Certain Work Product, Infrastructure, and 
Real Property By and Between Oakmont Grove Community Development District and the AK Oakmont, 
LLC, dated April 23, 2013 (“2013 Acquisition Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 22, 2014, the District issued its $3,830,000 Special Assessment Bonds, 

Series 2014 (“2014 Bonds”), to finance a portion of its “2014 Project;” and 

WHEREAS, the 2014 Project is described in the Report of the District Engineer, dated August 21, 
2014 (“2014 Engineer’s Report”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the 2014 Bonds, the District entered into certain agreements with 

the Developer,  including  the  Completion Agreement  (2014 Bonds), dated December  22,  2014  (“2014 

l



 

 

Completion Agreement”), and the Acquisition Agreement, dated December 22, 2014 (“2014 Acquisition 
Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS,  on October  4,  2018,  the District  issued  its  $9,420,000  Special Assessment  Bonds, 

Series 2018 (“2018 Bonds”), to finance the second portion of its “2018 Project;” and 

WHEREAS, the 2018 Project originally was estimated to cost approximately $19,495,000 and  is 
described in the Report of the District Engineer, dated September 11, 2018 (“2018 Engineer’s Report”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with the 2018 Bonds, the District entered into certain agreements with 

the  Developer,  including  the  Completion  Agreement  (2018  Bonds),  dated  October  4,  2018  (“2018 
Completion  Agreement”  together  with  the  2013  Completion  Agreement  and  2014  Completion 
Agreement, “Completion Agreements”), and the Acquisition Agreement (2018 Bonds), dated October 4, 
2018  (“2018  Acquisition  Agreement,”  together  with  the  2013  Acquisition  Agreement  and  2014 
Acquisition Agreement, “Acquisition Agreements”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2022‐___ (“Project Completion Resolution”), the District is in 
the process of declaring the Projects complete; and  
 

WHEREAS,  in  order  to  ensure  that  certain  target  assessment  levels  were  achieved  at  the 
Developer’s request and  for the debt assessments securing the Bonds, the Developer was required to 
make  contributions  to  the District  (“Contribution Requirements”)  for  certain  series of bonds,  and  in 
infrastructure and/or work product; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the  Developer  has  satisfied  the  Contribution  Requirements,  and,  as  part  of  the 
project  completion  process,  the  District  desires  to  formally  recognize  the  satisfaction  of  such 
Contribution Requirements; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the  Developer  not  only  provided  the  Contribution  Requirements  but  additionally 
provided  additional  funds  and/or  work  product  and  improvements  to  the  District  at  no  cost  and 
pursuant to the Acquisition Agreements; and 

 
WHEREAS, also in connection with the project completion process, the District intends to make 

payment  for  these  additional  costs  of  the  Projects  using  any  remaining  monies  available  in  the 
acquisition  and  construction  accounts,  and  reserve  accounts  to  the  extent  authorized  under  the 
applicable indentures, for the Bonds, and in the amount of $____________ (“Remaining Payment”); and 

 
WHEREAS,  in exchange  for  the Remaining Payment,  the Developer  and  the District desire  to 

enter into a mutual release agreement relating to the completion of the Projects;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of mutual promises and obligations, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the District and the Developer agree as follows: 
 

1. RECITALS.   The recitals so stated above are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated as a material part of this Release. 

 

l



 

 

2. REMAINING PAYMENT; MUTUAL RELEASES.   The Developer and District hereby agree 
that, subject to the District’s payment of the Remaining Payment, the Developer has been paid in full for 
any amounts owed in connection with the Projects, and that there are no amounts of any kind due now 
or in the future, whether as construction proceeds, deferred costs, or otherwise, and whether pursuant 
to  the  Acquisition  Agreements,  Completion  Agreements,  applicable  Trust  Indentures  or  any  other 
agreement,  to  the Developer and  relating  in any way  to  the Projects or  the Bonds. Accordingly, and 
subject  to  the  District’s  payment  of  the  Remaining  Payment,  the  Developer  hereby  acknowledges 
receipt of  all payments due  and owing  for work  product,  infrastructure, or  land  conveyance, or  any 
other amount owed relating in any way to the Projects or Bonds; certifies that there are no outstanding 
requests  for  payment  and  that  there  is  no  disagreement  as  to  the  appropriateness  of  any  such 
payments; and further waives and releases any claim, entitlement, or right it presently has or may have 
in the future to any additional payment of amounts due and owing related to the Projects or Bonds.   

 
In consideration therefor, and with the exception that the Developer shall reasonably cooperate 

to  transfer  to  the District  the  remaining permits  identified  in  the Project Completion Resolution,  the 
District  does  hereby  release,  release,  remit,  acquit,  and  forever  discharge  from  any  and  all  claims, 
demands, damages, attorney’s fees (including appellate attorney’s fees), costs, debts, actions, causes of 
action, and suits of any kind or nature whatsoever all claims it presently has or may have  in the future 
against  the  Developer  and  its  assigns,  successors,  predecessor  and  successor  corporations,  parent 
corporations,  subsidiaries,  affiliates,  officers  (past  and  present),  employees  (past  and  present), 
independent agents (past and present), agents (past and present, attorneys (past and present, partners 
(past and present), members  (past and present),  insurers  (past and present), and any and all sureties 
and  other  insurers,  on  account  of  all  damages,  including  compensatory,  economic,  non‐economic, 
punitive, and all other damages, known and unknown, foreseen and unforeseen, and any and all rights, 
claims and demands of whatsoever kind or nature,  in  law or  in equity, which  it ever had, now have or 
may  hereafter  acquire  against  such  parties  arising  out  of  or  with  respect  to  the  construction, 
implementation, equipping, ownership and operation of the Projects, or any portions thereof, and any 
of  the  Acquisition  Agreements  or  Completion  Agreements.    The  District  further  agrees  that  the 
Developer has satisfied any and all Contribution Requirements.  

 
3. ASSESSMENTS  AND  TRUE‐UP  PAYMENTS.    Nothing  in  this Mutual  Release  shall  be 

construed  to waive or otherwise apply  to  the Developer’s obligation  to pay assessments owed  to  the 
District and levied on lands owned by the Developer, or to waive or otherwise apply to any future true‐
up obligations. 

 
4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The releases contained herein shall take effect upon execution of this 

Release. 
 
 

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

l



 

 

WHEREFORE,  the parties below execute  this Release  to be effective as of  the __ day of ____, 
2022. 
 
            SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY      
            DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
               
 
            _________________________________ 
            By: ______________________________   
            Its: ______________________________     
                       
                   
 

AK OAKMONT, LLC 
 
_________________________________ 

            By: ______________________________   
            Its: _____________________________ 
 
 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 24 

  

l



1

Shirley M. Conley

Subject: FW: Solterra CDD resignation

From: Jim Harvey <jharvey@kolter.com> 
Date: September 15, 2022 at 4:39:19 PM EDT 
Subject: Solterra CDD resignation 

  
Please accept this email as my resignation as of today. Thanks  
 
Jim Harvey 
President  
Kolter Land 
14025 Riveredge Dr Suite 175 
Tampa, FL 33637 
O) 813‐615‐1244 ext 201 
M) 813‐784‐6398 

 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 25 

  

l



Solterra Resort Community Development District 

Board of Supervisors Oath of Office 

 

I, _______________________________________, a citizen of the United States of America, and 

a resident of the State of Florida, having been appointed as a Supervisor of the Solterra Resort 

Community Development District (the “District”) and a recipient of public funds on behalf of the 

District, do hereby solemnly swear or affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United 

States and the Constitution of the State of Florida, and will faithfully, honestly, and impartially 

discharge the duties devolving upon me in the office of Supervisor of the Solterra Resort 

Community Development District, located in Polk County, Florida. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Signature 

 

________________________ 

Date 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF POLK 

 The foregoing oath was administered before me by means of physical presence, this 

______ day of ___________________, 20___ by _______________________________, who is 

 personally known to me or  who has produced ______________________ as identification, 

and is the person described in and who took the aforementioned oath as a Member of the Board of 

Supervisors of the Solterra Resort Community Development District and acknowledged to and 

before me that she/he took said oath for purposes therein expressed. 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal the date aforesaid. 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public State of Florida 

 

________________________ 
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of  

Notary Public and the Date the Commission Expires) 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 26 

  

l



Solterra Resort
Community Development District 

NEW SUPERVISOR INFORMATION SHEET 
Please return completed forms to

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
Records Management 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 

Phone: 321-263-0132, EXT-742 

1) Name:

2) Address:

3) County of Residence

4) Phone or Cell

5) Email Address

6) I  Waive /  Accept compensation of the statutorily allowed $200
per meeting.

If you have elected to receive compensation, then please forward the attached 
W-9 along with this New Supervisor Information Sheet.

Payroll Information 

*Form 1 provided as a courtesy.  File Form 1 with the Supervisor of Election for
the County in which you permanently reside within 30 days of your appointment.

1) Date of Birth:

2) Drivers License Number:

l



Form    W-9
(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

 Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the  

requester. Do not 

send to the IRS.

P
ri

n
t 

o
r 

ty
p

e
. 

S
ee

 S
p

e
c

if
ic

 I
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

3.

1  Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2  Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

3  Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 
following seven boxes. 

Individual/sole proprietor or 
single-member LLC

 C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership)  

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.  Do not check 
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

Other (see instructions)  

4  Exemptions (codes apply only to 
certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

 code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

5  Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

6  City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

7  List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

– –

or
Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 

U.S. person Date 

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)l



**** THIS SECTION MUST BE COMPLETED ****
DISCLOSURE PERIOD:
THIS STATEMENT REFLECTS YOUR FINANCIAL INTERESTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2021. 

MANNER OF CALCULATING REPORTABLE INTERESTS:
FILERS HAVE THE OPTION OF USING REPORTING THRESHOLDS THAT ARE ABSOLUTE DOLLAR VALUES, WHICH REQUIRES 
FEWER CALCULATIONS, OR USING COMPARATIVE THRESHOLDS, WHICH ARE USUALLY BASED ON PERCENTAGE VALUES 
(see instructions for further details).  CHECK THE ONE YOU ARE USING (must check one):
  COMPARATIVE (PERCENTAGE) THRESHOLDS  OR  DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLDS

FORM 1

PART A -- PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME  [Major sources of income to the reporting person - See instructions]   
(If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

NAME OF SOURCE SOURCE'S DESCRIPTION OF THE SOURCE'S
OF INCOME ADDRESS PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY

PART B --  SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME 
      [Major customers, clients, and other sources of income to businesses owned by the reporting person - See instructions]
      (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

NAME OF NAME OF MAJOR SOURCES ADDRESS PRINCIPAL BUSINESS
BUSINESS ENTITY OF BUSINESS' INCOME OF SOURCE ACTIVITY OF SOURCE

You are not limited to the space on the 
lines on this form. Attach additional 
sheets, if necessary.

FILING INSTRUCTIONS for when 
and where to file this form are 
located at the bottom of page 2.

INSTRUCTIONS on who must file 
this form and how to fill it out 
begin on page 3.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

PART C -- REAL PROPERTY  [Land, buildings owned by the reporting person - See instructions] 
     (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022   (Continued on reverse side) PAGE 1
Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202(1), F.A.C.

NAME OF OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT :

NAME OF AGENCY :

CHECK ONLY IF     CANDIDATE     OR        NEW EMPLOYEE OR APPOINTEE

MAILING ADDRESS :

LAST NAME -- FIRST NAME -- MIDDLE NAME :

Please print or type your name, mailing 
address, agency name, and position below: 

CITY : ZIP : COUNTY :

STATEMENT OF
 FINANCIAL INTERESTS

2021

l



FILING INSTRUCTIONS:

IF ANY OF PARTS A THROUGH G ARE CONTINUED ON A SEPARATE SHEET, PLEASE CHECK HERE    

PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY [Stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, etc. - See instructions] 
      (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

TYPE OF INTANGIBLE BUSINESS ENTITY TO WHICH THE PROPERTY RELATES

PART E — LIABILITIES  [Major debts - See instructions]
 (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

NAME OF CREDITOR ADDRESS OF CREDITOR

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES   [Ownership or positions in certain types of businesses - See instructions]  
      (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a") 

    BUSINESS ENTITY # 1       BUSINESS ENTITY # 2

NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY 

ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY

POSITION HELD WITH ENTITY

I OWN MORE THAN A 5% INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS

NATURE OF MY OWNERSHIP INTEREST

If you were mailed the form by the Commission on Ethics or a County 
Supervisor of Elections for your annual disclosure filing, return the 
form to that location. To determine what category your position falls 
under, see page 3 of instructions.  
Local officers/employees file with the Supervisor of Elections 
of the county in which they permanently reside. (If you do not 
permanently reside in Florida, file with the Supervisor of the county 
where your agency has its headquarters.) Form 1 filers who file with 
the Supervisor of Elections may file by mail or email. Contact your 
Supervisor of Elections for the mailing address or email address to 
use. Do not email your form to the Commission on Ethics, it will be 
returned. 
State officers or specified state employees who file with the 
Commission on Ethics may file by mail or email. To file by mail, 
send the completed form to P.O. Drawer 15709, Tallahassee, FL  
32317-5709; physical address: 325 John Knox Rd, Bldg E, Ste 200, 
Tallahassee, FL 32303. To file with the Commission by email, scan 
your completed form and any attachments as a pdf (do not use any 
other format), send it to CEForm1@leg.state.fl.us and retain a copy 
for your records. Do not file by both mail and email. Choose only one 
filing method. Form 6s will not be accepted via email.

Candidates file this form together with their filing papers.  
MULTIPLE FILING UNNECESSARY: A candidate who files a Form 
1 with a qualifying officer is not required to file with the Commission 
or Supervisor of Elections.
WHEN TO FILE: Initially, each local officer/employee, state officer, 
and specified state employee must file within 30 days of the 
date of his or her appointment or of the beginning of employment.  
Appointees who must be confirmed by the Senate must file prior to 
confirmation, even if that is less than 30 days from the date of their 
appointment.
Candidates must file at the same time they file their qualifying 
papers.
Thereafter, file by July 1 following each calendar year in which they 
hold their positions.
Finally, file a final disclosure form (Form 1F) within 60 days of 
leaving office or employment. Filing a CE Form 1F (Final Statement 
of Financial Interests) does not relieve the filer of filing a CE Form 1 
if the filer was in his or her position on December 31, 2021.

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. PAGE 2
Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202(1), F.A.C.

SIGNATURE OF FILER: 

Signature: 

  ____________________________________________

Date Signed:

  ____________________________________________

    CPA or ATTORNEY SIGNATURE ONLY
If a certified public accountant licensed under Chapter 473, or attorney 
in good standing with the Florida Bar prepared this form for you, he or 
she must complete the following statement:  

I, _______________________________________, prepared the CE 
Form 1 in accordance with Section 112.3145, Florida Statutes, and the 
instructions to the form. Upon my reasonable knowledge and belief, the 
disclosure herein is true and correct. 

CPA/Attorney Signature: ______________________________

Date Signed:  _______________________________________

PART G — TRAINING  For elected municipal officers, appointed school superintendents, and commissioners of a community redevelopment 
agency created under Part III, Chapter 163 required to complete annual ethics training pursuant to section 112.3142, F.S. 

 I CERTIFY THAT I HAVE COMPLETED THE REQUIRED TRAINING.

l



NOTICE 
Annual Statements of Financial Interests are due July 1. If the annual form is not filed or postmarked by September 1, 
an automatic fine of $25 for each day late will be imposed, up to a maximum penalty of $1,500.  Failure to file also can 
result in removal from public office or employment. [s. 112.3145, F.S.]

In addition, failure to make any required disclosure constitutes grounds for and may be punished by one or more of the 
following:  disqualification from being on the ballot, impeachment, removal or suspension from office or employment, 
demotion, reduction in salary, reprimand, or a civil penalty not exceeding $10,000. [s. 112.317, F.S.]

1) Elected public officials not serving in a political subdivision of the 
state and any person appointed to fill a vacancy in such office, unless 
required to file full disclosure on Form 6.

2) Appointed members of each board, commission, authority, or 
council having statewide jurisdiction, excluding members of solely advisory 
bodies, but including judicial nominating commission members; Directors 
of Enterprise Florida, Scripps Florida Funding Corporation, and Career 
Source Florida; and members of the Council on the Social Status of Black 
Men and Boys; the Executive Director, Governors, and senior managers of 
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation; Governors and senior managers 
of Florida Workers' Compensation Joint Underwriting Association; board 
members of the Northeast Fla. Regional Transportation Commission; board 
members of Triumph Gulf Coast, Inc; board members of Florida Is For 
Veterans, Inc.; and members of the Technology Advisory Council within the 
Agency for State Technology.

3) The Commissioner of Education, members of the State Board 
of Education, the Board of Governors, the local Boards of Trustees and 
Presidents of state universities, and the Florida Prepaid College Board.

4) Persons elected to office in any political subdivision (such as 
municipalities, counties, and special districts) and any person appointed to 
fill a vacancy in such office, unless required to file Form 6.

5) Appointed members of the following boards, councils, 
commissions, authorities, or other bodies of county, municipality, school 
district, independent special district, or other political subdivision: the 
governing body of the subdivision; community college or junior college 
district boards of trustees; boards having the power to enforce local code 
provisions; boards of adjustment; community redevelopment agencies; 
planning or zoning boards having the power to recommend, create, or 
modify land planning or zoning within a political subdivision, except for 
citizen advisory committees, technical coordinating committees, and similar 
groups who only have the power to make recommendations to planning 
or zoning boards, and except for representatives of a military installation 
acting on behalf of all military installations within that jurisdiction; pension 
or retirement boards empowered to invest pension or retirement funds 
or determine entitlement to or amount of pensions or other retirement 
benefits, and the Pinellas County Construction Licensing Board.

6) Any appointed member of a local government board who is 
required to file a statement of financial interests by the appointing authority 
or the enabling legislation, ordinance, or resolution creating the board.

  7) Persons holding any of these positions in local government: 
mayor; county or city manager; chief administrative employee or finance 
director of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision; county or 
municipal attorney; chief county or municipal building inspector; county 

or municipal water resources coordinator; county or municipal pollution 
control director; county or municipal environmental control director; county 
or municipal administrator with power to grant or deny a land development 
permit; chief of police; fire chief; municipal clerk; appointed district school 
superintendent; community college president; district medical examiner; 
purchasing agent (regardless of title) having the authority to make any 
purchase exceeding $35,000 for the local governmental unit.

8) Officers and employees of entities serving as chief administrative 
officer of a political subdivision.

9) Members of governing boards of charter schools operated by a 
city or other public entity. 

10) Employees in the office of the Governor or of a Cabinet member 
who are exempt from the Career Service System, excluding secretarial, 
clerical, and similar positions.

11) The following positions in each state department, commission, 
board, or council: Secretary, Assistant or Deputy Secretary, Executive 
Director, Assistant or Deputy Executive Director, and anyone having the 
power normally conferred upon such persons, regardless of title.

12) The following positions in each state department or division: 
Director, Assistant or Deputy Director, Bureau Chief, and any person 
having the power normally conferred upon such persons, regardless of 
title.

13) Assistant State Attorneys, Assistant Public Defenders, criminal 
conflict and civil regional counsel, and assistant criminal conflict and civil 
regional counsel, Public Counsel, full-time state employees serving as 
counsel or assistant counsel to a state agency, administrative law judges, 
and hearing officers.

14) The Superintendent or Director of a state mental health institute 
established for training and research in the mental health field, or any major 
state institution or facility established for corrections, training, treatment, or 
rehabilitation.

15) State agency Business Managers, Finance and Accounting 
Directors, Personnel Officers, Grant Coordinators, and purchasing agents 
(regardless of title) with power to make a purchase exceeding $35,000.

16) The following positions in legislative branch agencies: each 
employee (other than those employed in maintenance, clerical, secretarial, 
or similar positions and legislative assistants exempted by the presiding 
officer of their house); and each employee of the Commission on 
Ethics.

17) Each member of the governing body of a “large-hub commercial 
service airport,” as defined in Section  112.3144(1)(c), Florida 
Statutes, except for members required to comply with the financial 
disclosure requirements of s. 8, Article II of the State Constitution.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FORM 1:
INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION (Top of Form): If your 
name, mailing address, public agency, and position are already 
printed on the form, you do not need to provide this information 
unless it should be changed.  To change any of this information, 
write the correct information on the form, and contact your 
agency's financial disclosure coordinator.  You can find your 
coordinator on the Commission on Ethics website: www.ethics.
state.fl.us. 
NAME OF AGENCY: The name of the governmental unit 
which you serve or served, by which you are or were employed, 
or for which you are a candidate. 
DISCLOSURE PERIOD: The “disclosure period” for your 
report is the calendar year ending December 31, 2021.

OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT: The title of 
the office or position you hold, are seeking, or held during the 
disclosure period even if you have since left that position. If you 
are a candidate for office or are a new employee or appointee, 
check the appropriate box.
PUBLIC RECORD: The disclosure form and everything 
attached to it is a public record. Your social security number, 
bank account, debit, charge, and credit card numbers are not 
required and you should redact them from any documents you 
file. If you are an active or former officer or employee listed in 
Section 119.071, F.S., whose home address is exempt from 
disclosure, the Commission will maintain that confidentiality if 
you submit a written and notarized request.  

WHO MUST FILE FORM 1:

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 6 CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 3

Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from 
which you received more than 10% of your gross income—an 
amount that was more than $1,500. If only one customer, a uniform 
rental company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning 
business, you must list the name of the uniform rental company, its 
address, and its principal business activity (uniform rentals). 
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping 
mall and your partnership income exceeded the thresholds listed 
above. You should list each tenant of the mall that provided more 
than 10% of the partnership’s gross income, and the tenant’s 
address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in 

Florida in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during the 
disclosure period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You are not 
required to list your residences. You should list any vacation homes, if 
you derive income from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a beneficiary 
of a trust that owns the property, as well as situations where you own 
more than 5% of a partnership or corporation that owns the property. 
The value of the property may be determined by the most recently 
assessed value for tax purposes, in the absence of a more accurate 
fair market value. 

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to 
enable anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street 
address should be used, if one exists.
PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
 Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time during 
the disclosure period, was worth more than 10% of your total assets, 
and state the business entity to which the property related. Intangible 
personal property includes things such as cash on hand, stocks, 
bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle leases, interests in businesses, 
beneficial interests in trusts, money owed you (including, but not 
limited to, loans made as a candidate to your own campaign), Deferred 
Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the Florida Prepaid 
College Plan, and bank accounts in which you have an ownership 
interest. Intangible personal property also includes investment products 
held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and the Florida College Investment 
Plan.  Note that the product contained in a brokerage account, IRA, or 
the Florida College Investment Plan is your asset—not the account or 
plan itself. Things like automobiles and houses you own, jewelry, and 
paintings are not intangible property.  Intangibles relating to the same 
business entity may be aggregated; for example, CD’s and savings 
accounts with the same bank. 
 Calculations: To determine whether the intangible property 
exceeds 10% of your total assets, total the fair market value of all of 
your assets (including real property, intangible property, and tangible 
personal property such as jewelry, furniture, etc.). When making this 
calculation, do not subtract any liabilities (debts) that may relate to 
the property. Multiply the total figure by 10% to arrive at the disclosure 
threshold. List only the intangibles that exceed this threshold amount. 
The value of a leased vehicle is the vehicle’s present value minus the 
lease residual (a number which can be found on the lease document). 
Property that is only jointly owned property should be valued according 
to the percentage of your joint ownership. Property owned as tenants 
by the entirety or as joint tenants with right of survivorship, including 
bank accounts owned in such a manner, should be valued at 100%. 
None of your calculations or the value of the property have to be 
disclosed on the form. 

Example: You own 50% of the stock of a small corporation that 
is worth $100,000, the estimated fair market value of your home 
and other property (bank accounts, automobile, furniture, etc.) 
is $200,000. As your total assets are worth $250,000, you must 
disclose intangibles worth over $25,000. Since the value of the 
stock exceeds this threshold, you should list “stock” and the name 
of the corporation. If your accounts with a particular bank exceed 
$25,000, you should list “bank accounts” and bank’s name.

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]

 List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed 
any amount that, at any time during the disclosure period, exceeded 
your net worth. You are not required to list the amount of any debt 
or your net worth. You do not have to disclose: credit card and retail 
installment accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), 
indebtedness on a life insurance policy owed to the company of 
issuance, or contingent liabilities. A “contingent liability” is one that will 
become an actual liability only when one or more future events occur 
or fail to occur, such as where you are liable only as a guarantor, 
surety, or endorser on a promissory note. If you are a “co-maker” and 
are jointly liable or jointly and severally liable, it is not a contingent 
liability. 
 Calculations: To determine whether the debt exceeds your 
net worth, total all of your liabilities (including promissory notes, 
mortgages, credit card debts, judgments against you, etc.). The 
amount of the liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due 
payments and all unpaid prospective lease payments. Subtract 
the sum total of your liabilities from the value of all your assets as 
calculated above for Part D. This is your “net worth.” List each creditor 
to whom your debt exceeded this amount unless it is one of the types 
of indebtedness listed in the paragraph above (credit card and retail 
installment accounts, etc.). Joint liabilities with others for which you 
are “jointly and severally liable,” meaning that you may be liable for 
either your part or the whole of the obligation, should be included in 
your calculations at 100% of the amount owed.

Example: You owe $15,000 to a bank for student loans, $5,000 
for credit card debts, and $60,000 (with spouse) to a savings 
and loan for a home mortgage. Your home (owned by you and 
your spouse) is worth $80,000 and your other property is worth 
$20,000. Since your net worth is $20,000 ($100,000 minus 
$80,000), you must report only the name and address of the 
savings and loan.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145(7), F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state 

and federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan 
associations; cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage 
companies; credit unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage 
licensees; pari-mutuel wagering companies, utility companies, entities 
controlled by the Public Service Commission; and entities granted a 
franchise to operate by either a city or a county government.

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the 
disclosure period an interest in, or held any of certain positions with, 
the types of businesses listed above. You are required to make this 
disclosure if you own or owned (either directly or indirectly in the 
form of an equitable or beneficial interest) at any time during the 
disclosure period more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock 
of one of the types of business entities listed above. You also must 
complete this part of the form for each of these types of businesses 
for which you are, or were at any time during the disclosure period, 
an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or agent (other than a resident 
agent solely for service of process).

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in 
one of these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its 
address and principal business activity, and the position held with 
the business (if any). If you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the 
business,  indicate that fact and describe the nature of your interest.

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]

 If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer, 
appointed school superintendent, or a commissioner of a community 
redevelopment agency created under Part III, Chapter 163  whose 
service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, 
you are required to complete four hours of ethics training which 
addresses Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code of 
Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records and 
open meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on this 
form that you have taken such training. l



PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal 

sources of income during the disclosure period. You do not have to 
disclose any public salary or public position(s). The income of your 
spouse need not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income to 
you and your spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest 
or dividends from a bank account or stocks), you should disclose the 
source of that income if it exceeded the threshold.

 Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and 
principal business activity of each source of your income which 
exceeded $2,500 of gross income received by you in your own name 
or by any other person for your use or benefit.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive 
share of partnership gross income, and alimony if considered gross 
income under federal law, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than $2,500, list the name of the 
company, its address, and its principal business activity (computer 
manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded $2,500, list the name of 
the firm, its address, and its principal business activity (practice of 
law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and your 
gross income from the business exceeded $2,500, list the name 
of the business, its address, and its principal business activity 
(retail gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and bonds, 
list each individual company from which you derived more than 
$2,500. Do not aggregate all of your investment income.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was gain from the 
sale of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of 
income the purchaser’s name, address and principal business 
activity. If the purchaser’s identity is unknown, such as where 
securities listed on an exchange are sold through a brokerage 
firm, the source of income should be listed as "sale of (name of 
company) stock," for example.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was in the form 
of interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating 
interest from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the 
name of the institution, its address, and its principal business 
activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, 

clients, and other sources of income to businesses in which you own an 
interest. It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind of income 
should be reported in Part A "Primary Sources of Income," if it meets the 
reporting threshold. You will not have anything to report unless, during the 
disclosure period:

(1)  You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an equitable 

or beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets or capital 
stock of a business entity (a corporation, partnership, LLC, limited 
partnership, proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, etc., doing 
business in Florida); and,
(2)  You received more than $5,000 of your gross income during the 
disclosure period from that business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then for that 
business entity you must list every source of income to the business entity 
which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross income (computed on 
the basis of the business entity's most recently completed fiscal year), the 
source’s address, and the source's principal business activity.

Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from which 
you received more than $5,000. If only one customer, a uniform rental 
company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning business, you 
must list the name of the uniform rental company, its address, and its 
principal business activity (uniform rentals).  
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping mall 
and your partnership income exceeded the above thresholds. List each 
tenant of the mall that provided more than 10% of the partnership's 
gross income and the tenant's address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in Florida 

in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during the disclosure 
period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You are not required to list 
your residences. You should list any vacation homes if you derive income 
from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a beneficiary of a 
trust that owns the property, as well as situations where you own more than 
5% of a partnership or corporation that owns the property. The value of the 
property may be determined by the most recently assessed value for tax 
purposes, in the absence of a more accurate fair market value. 

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to 
enable anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street 
address should be used, if one exists. 

PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time during the 

disclosure period, was worth more than $10,000 and state the business 
entity to which the property related. Intangible personal property includes 
things such as cash on hand, stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle 
leases, interests in businesses, beneficial interests in trusts, money owed 
you (including, but not limited to, loans made as a candidate to your own 
campaign), Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the 
Florida Prepaid College Plan, and bank accounts in which you have an 
ownership interest. Intangible personal property also includes investment 
products held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and the Florida College 
Investment Plan.  Note that the product contained in a brokerage account, 
IRA, or the Florida College Investment Plan is your asset—not the account 
or plan itself. Things like automobiles and houses you own, jewelry, and 
paintings are not intangible property.  Intangibles relating to the same 
business entity may be aggregated; for example, CDs and savings 
accounts with the same bank. Property owned as tenants by the entirety or 
as joint tenants with right of survivorship, including bank accounts owned in 
such a manner, should be valued at 100%.  The value of a leased vehicle 
is the vehicle’s present value minus the lease residual (a number found on 
the lease document). 

PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal 

sources of income during the disclosure period. You do not have 
to disclose any public salary or public position(s), but income from 
these public sources should be included when calculating your gross 
income for the disclosure period. The income of your spouse need 
not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income to you and your 
spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest or dividends 
from a bank account or stocks), you should include all of that income 
when calculating your gross income and disclose the source of that 
income if it exceeded the threshold.

Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and 
principal business activity of each source of your income which 
exceeded 5% of the gross income received by you in your own name 
or by any other person for your benefit or use during the disclosure 
period.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive 
share of partnership gross income, and alimony if considered gross 
income under federal law, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than 5% of your gross income 
from the company, list the name of the company, its address, 
and its principal business activity (computer manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded 5% of your gross income, 
then list the name of the firm, its address, and its principal 
business activity (practice of law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and 
your gross income from the business exceeded 5% of your 
total gross income, list the name of the business, its address, 
and its principal business activity (retail gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and 

bonds, list each individual company from which you derived 
more than 5% of your gross income. Do not aggregate all of 
your investment income.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was gain from the sale 
of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of income 
the purchaser’s name, address, and principal business activity. 
If the purchaser's identity is unknown, such as where securities 
listed on an exchange are sold through a brokerage firm, the 
source of income should be listed as "sale of (name of company) 
stock," for example.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was in the form of 
interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating 
interest from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the 
name of the institution, its address, and its principal business 
activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, 

clients, and other sources of income to businesses in which you own 
an interest. It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind 
of income should be reported in Part A, "Primary Sources of Income," 
if it meets the reporting threshold. You will not have anything to report 
unless  during the disclosure period:

(1)  You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an 
equitable or beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets 
or capital stock of a business entity (a corporation, partnership, 
LLC, limited partnership, proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, 
etc., doing business in Florida); and,
(2)  You received more than 10% of your gross income from that 
business entity; and, 
(3)  You received more than $1,500 in gross income from that 
business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then 
for that business entity you must list every source of income to the 
business entity which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross 
income (computed on the basis of the business entity’s most recently 
completed fiscal year), the source’s address, and the source’s 
principal business activity.

Filers have the option of reporting based on either thresholds that are comparative (usually, based on percentage values) or thresholds 
that are based on absolute dollar values.  The instructions on the following pages specifically describe the different thresholds. Check 
the box that reflects the choice you have made. You must use the type of threshold you have chosen for each part of the form. In 
other words, if you choose to report based on absolute dollar value thresholds, you cannot use a percentage threshold on any part 
of the form.

MANNER OF CALCULATING REPORTABLE INTEREST

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY 

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN COMPARATIVE (PERCENTAGE) THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 5CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C.. PAGE 4

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]
List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed more 

than $10,000 at any time during the disclosure period. The amount of the 
liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due payments and all 
unpaid prospective lease payments. You are not required to list the amount 
of any debt. You do not have to disclose credit card and retail installment 
accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), indebtedness on 
a life insurance policy owed to the company of issuance, or contingent 
liabilities. A “contingent liability” is one that will become an actual liability 
only when one or more future events occur or fail to occur, such as where 
you are liable only as a guarantor, surety, or endorser on a promissory 
note. If you are a “co-maker” and are jointly liable or jointly and severally 
liable, then it is not a contingent liability.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145(7), F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state and 

federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan associations; 
cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage companies; credit 
unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage licensees; pari-mutuel 
wagering companies, utility companies, entities controlled by the Public 
Service Commission; and entities granted a franchise to operate by either a 
city or a county government. 

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the disclosure 

period an interest in, or held any of certain positions with the types of 
businesses listed above. You must make this disclosure if you own or 
owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an equitable or beneficial 
interest) at any time during the disclosure period more than 5% of the total 
assets or capital stock of one of the types of business entities listed above. 
You also must complete this part of the form for each of these types of 
businesses for which you are, or were at any time during the disclosure 
period, an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or agent (other than a resident 
agent solely for service of process).  

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in one of 
these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its address and 
principal business activity, and the position held with the business (if any). If 
you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the business, indicate that fact and 
describe the nature of your interest.  

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]

 If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer, 
appointed school superintendent, or a commissioner of a community 
redevelopment agency created under Part III, Chapter 163  whose 
service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, 
you are required to complete four hours of ethics training which 
addresses Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code 
of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records 
and open meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on 
this form that you have taken such training.

l



PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal 

sources of income during the disclosure period. You do not have to 
disclose any public salary or public position(s). The income of your 
spouse need not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income to 
you and your spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest 
or dividends from a bank account or stocks), you should disclose the 
source of that income if it exceeded the threshold.

 Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and 
principal business activity of each source of your income which 
exceeded $2,500 of gross income received by you in your own name 
or by any other person for your use or benefit.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive 
share of partnership gross income, and alimony if considered gross 
income under federal law, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than $2,500, list the name of the 
company, its address, and its principal business activity (computer 
manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded $2,500, list the name of 
the firm, its address, and its principal business activity (practice of 
law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and your 
gross income from the business exceeded $2,500, list the name 
of the business, its address, and its principal business activity 
(retail gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and bonds, 
list each individual company from which you derived more than 
$2,500. Do not aggregate all of your investment income.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was gain from the 
sale of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of 
income the purchaser’s name, address and principal business 
activity. If the purchaser’s identity is unknown, such as where 
securities listed on an exchange are sold through a brokerage 
firm, the source of income should be listed as "sale of (name of 
company) stock," for example.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was in the form 
of interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating 
interest from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the 
name of the institution, its address, and its principal business 
activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, 

clients, and other sources of income to businesses in which you own an 
interest. It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind of income 
should be reported in Part A "Primary Sources of Income," if it meets the 
reporting threshold. You will not have anything to report unless, during the 
disclosure period:

(1)  You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an equitable 

or beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets or capital 
stock of a business entity (a corporation, partnership, LLC, limited 
partnership, proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, etc., doing 
business in Florida); and,
(2)  You received more than $5,000 of your gross income during the 
disclosure period from that business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then for that 
business entity you must list every source of income to the business entity 
which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross income (computed on 
the basis of the business entity's most recently completed fiscal year), the 
source’s address, and the source's principal business activity.

Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from which 
you received more than $5,000. If only one customer, a uniform rental 
company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning business, you 
must list the name of the uniform rental company, its address, and its 
principal business activity (uniform rentals).  
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping mall 
and your partnership income exceeded the above thresholds. List each 
tenant of the mall that provided more than 10% of the partnership's 
gross income and the tenant's address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in Florida 

in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during the disclosure 
period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You are not required to list 
your residences. You should list any vacation homes if you derive income 
from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a beneficiary of a 
trust that owns the property, as well as situations where you own more than 
5% of a partnership or corporation that owns the property. The value of the 
property may be determined by the most recently assessed value for tax 
purposes, in the absence of a more accurate fair market value. 

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to 
enable anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street 
address should be used, if one exists. 

PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time during the 

disclosure period, was worth more than $10,000 and state the business 
entity to which the property related. Intangible personal property includes 
things such as cash on hand, stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle 
leases, interests in businesses, beneficial interests in trusts, money owed 
you (including, but not limited to, loans made as a candidate to your own 
campaign), Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the 
Florida Prepaid College Plan, and bank accounts in which you have an 
ownership interest. Intangible personal property also includes investment 
products held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and the Florida College 
Investment Plan.  Note that the product contained in a brokerage account, 
IRA, or the Florida College Investment Plan is your asset—not the account 
or plan itself. Things like automobiles and houses you own, jewelry, and 
paintings are not intangible property.  Intangibles relating to the same 
business entity may be aggregated; for example, CDs and savings 
accounts with the same bank. Property owned as tenants by the entirety or 
as joint tenants with right of survivorship, including bank accounts owned in 
such a manner, should be valued at 100%.  The value of a leased vehicle 
is the vehicle’s present value minus the lease residual (a number found on 
the lease document). 

PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal 

sources of income during the disclosure period. You do not have 
to disclose any public salary or public position(s), but income from 
these public sources should be included when calculating your gross 
income for the disclosure period. The income of your spouse need 
not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income to you and your 
spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest or dividends 
from a bank account or stocks), you should include all of that income 
when calculating your gross income and disclose the source of that 
income if it exceeded the threshold.

Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and 
principal business activity of each source of your income which 
exceeded 5% of the gross income received by you in your own name 
or by any other person for your benefit or use during the disclosure 
period.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive 
share of partnership gross income, and alimony if considered gross 
income under federal law, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than 5% of your gross income 
from the company, list the name of the company, its address, 
and its principal business activity (computer manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded 5% of your gross income, 
then list the name of the firm, its address, and its principal 
business activity (practice of law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and 
your gross income from the business exceeded 5% of your 
total gross income, list the name of the business, its address, 
and its principal business activity (retail gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and 

bonds, list each individual company from which you derived 
more than 5% of your gross income. Do not aggregate all of 
your investment income.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was gain from the sale 
of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of income 
the purchaser’s name, address, and principal business activity. 
If the purchaser's identity is unknown, such as where securities 
listed on an exchange are sold through a brokerage firm, the 
source of income should be listed as "sale of (name of company) 
stock," for example.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was in the form of 
interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating 
interest from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the 
name of the institution, its address, and its principal business 
activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, 

clients, and other sources of income to businesses in which you own 
an interest. It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind 
of income should be reported in Part A, "Primary Sources of Income," 
if it meets the reporting threshold. You will not have anything to report 
unless  during the disclosure period:

(1)  You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an 
equitable or beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets 
or capital stock of a business entity (a corporation, partnership, 
LLC, limited partnership, proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, 
etc., doing business in Florida); and,
(2)  You received more than 10% of your gross income from that 
business entity; and, 
(3)  You received more than $1,500 in gross income from that 
business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then 
for that business entity you must list every source of income to the 
business entity which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross 
income (computed on the basis of the business entity’s most recently 
completed fiscal year), the source’s address, and the source’s 
principal business activity.

Filers have the option of reporting based on either thresholds that are comparative (usually, based on percentage values) or thresholds 
that are based on absolute dollar values.  The instructions on the following pages specifically describe the different thresholds. Check 
the box that reflects the choice you have made. You must use the type of threshold you have chosen for each part of the form. In 
other words, if you choose to report based on absolute dollar value thresholds, you cannot use a percentage threshold on any part 
of the form.

MANNER OF CALCULATING REPORTABLE INTEREST

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY 

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN COMPARATIVE (PERCENTAGE) THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 5CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C.. PAGE 4

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]
List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed more 

than $10,000 at any time during the disclosure period. The amount of the 
liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due payments and all 
unpaid prospective lease payments. You are not required to list the amount 
of any debt. You do not have to disclose credit card and retail installment 
accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), indebtedness on 
a life insurance policy owed to the company of issuance, or contingent 
liabilities. A “contingent liability” is one that will become an actual liability 
only when one or more future events occur or fail to occur, such as where 
you are liable only as a guarantor, surety, or endorser on a promissory 
note. If you are a “co-maker” and are jointly liable or jointly and severally 
liable, then it is not a contingent liability.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145(7), F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state and 

federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan associations; 
cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage companies; credit 
unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage licensees; pari-mutuel 
wagering companies, utility companies, entities controlled by the Public 
Service Commission; and entities granted a franchise to operate by either a 
city or a county government. 

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the disclosure 

period an interest in, or held any of certain positions with the types of 
businesses listed above. You must make this disclosure if you own or 
owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an equitable or beneficial 
interest) at any time during the disclosure period more than 5% of the total 
assets or capital stock of one of the types of business entities listed above. 
You also must complete this part of the form for each of these types of 
businesses for which you are, or were at any time during the disclosure 
period, an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or agent (other than a resident 
agent solely for service of process).  

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in one of 
these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its address and 
principal business activity, and the position held with the business (if any). If 
you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the business, indicate that fact and 
describe the nature of your interest.  

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]

 If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer, 
appointed school superintendent, or a commissioner of a community 
redevelopment agency created under Part III, Chapter 163  whose 
service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, 
you are required to complete four hours of ethics training which 
addresses Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code 
of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records 
and open meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on 
this form that you have taken such training.

l



NOTICE 
Annual Statements of Financial Interests are due July 1. If the annual form is not filed or postmarked by September 1, 
an automatic fine of $25 for each day late will be imposed, up to a maximum penalty of $1,500.  Failure to file also can 
result in removal from public office or employment. [s. 112.3145, F.S.]

In addition, failure to make any required disclosure constitutes grounds for and may be punished by one or more of the 
following:  disqualification from being on the ballot, impeachment, removal or suspension from office or employment, 
demotion, reduction in salary, reprimand, or a civil penalty not exceeding $10,000. [s. 112.317, F.S.]

1) Elected public officials not serving in a political subdivision of the 
state and any person appointed to fill a vacancy in such office, unless 
required to file full disclosure on Form 6.

2) Appointed members of each board, commission, authority, or 
council having statewide jurisdiction, excluding members of solely advisory 
bodies, but including judicial nominating commission members; Directors 
of Enterprise Florida, Scripps Florida Funding Corporation, and Career 
Source Florida; and members of the Council on the Social Status of Black 
Men and Boys; the Executive Director, Governors, and senior managers of 
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation; Governors and senior managers 
of Florida Workers' Compensation Joint Underwriting Association; board 
members of the Northeast Fla. Regional Transportation Commission; board 
members of Triumph Gulf Coast, Inc; board members of Florida Is For 
Veterans, Inc.; and members of the Technology Advisory Council within the 
Agency for State Technology.

3) The Commissioner of Education, members of the State Board 
of Education, the Board of Governors, the local Boards of Trustees and 
Presidents of state universities, and the Florida Prepaid College Board.

4) Persons elected to office in any political subdivision (such as 
municipalities, counties, and special districts) and any person appointed to 
fill a vacancy in such office, unless required to file Form 6.

5) Appointed members of the following boards, councils, 
commissions, authorities, or other bodies of county, municipality, school 
district, independent special district, or other political subdivision: the 
governing body of the subdivision; community college or junior college 
district boards of trustees; boards having the power to enforce local code 
provisions; boards of adjustment; community redevelopment agencies; 
planning or zoning boards having the power to recommend, create, or 
modify land planning or zoning within a political subdivision, except for 
citizen advisory committees, technical coordinating committees, and similar 
groups who only have the power to make recommendations to planning 
or zoning boards, and except for representatives of a military installation 
acting on behalf of all military installations within that jurisdiction; pension 
or retirement boards empowered to invest pension or retirement funds 
or determine entitlement to or amount of pensions or other retirement 
benefits, and the Pinellas County Construction Licensing Board.

6) Any appointed member of a local government board who is 
required to file a statement of financial interests by the appointing authority 
or the enabling legislation, ordinance, or resolution creating the board.

  7) Persons holding any of these positions in local government: 
mayor; county or city manager; chief administrative employee or finance 
director of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision; county or 
municipal attorney; chief county or municipal building inspector; county 

or municipal water resources coordinator; county or municipal pollution 
control director; county or municipal environmental control director; county 
or municipal administrator with power to grant or deny a land development 
permit; chief of police; fire chief; municipal clerk; appointed district school 
superintendent; community college president; district medical examiner; 
purchasing agent (regardless of title) having the authority to make any 
purchase exceeding $35,000 for the local governmental unit.

8) Officers and employees of entities serving as chief administrative 
officer of a political subdivision.

9) Members of governing boards of charter schools operated by a 
city or other public entity. 

10) Employees in the office of the Governor or of a Cabinet member 
who are exempt from the Career Service System, excluding secretarial, 
clerical, and similar positions.

11) The following positions in each state department, commission, 
board, or council: Secretary, Assistant or Deputy Secretary, Executive 
Director, Assistant or Deputy Executive Director, and anyone having the 
power normally conferred upon such persons, regardless of title.

12) The following positions in each state department or division: 
Director, Assistant or Deputy Director, Bureau Chief, and any person 
having the power normally conferred upon such persons, regardless of 
title.

13) Assistant State Attorneys, Assistant Public Defenders, criminal 
conflict and civil regional counsel, and assistant criminal conflict and civil 
regional counsel, Public Counsel, full-time state employees serving as 
counsel or assistant counsel to a state agency, administrative law judges, 
and hearing officers.

14) The Superintendent or Director of a state mental health institute 
established for training and research in the mental health field, or any major 
state institution or facility established for corrections, training, treatment, or 
rehabilitation.

15) State agency Business Managers, Finance and Accounting 
Directors, Personnel Officers, Grant Coordinators, and purchasing agents 
(regardless of title) with power to make a purchase exceeding $35,000.

16) The following positions in legislative branch agencies: each 
employee (other than those employed in maintenance, clerical, secretarial, 
or similar positions and legislative assistants exempted by the presiding 
officer of their house); and each employee of the Commission on 
Ethics.

17) Each member of the governing body of a “large-hub commercial 
service airport,” as defined in Section  112.3144(1)(c), Florida 
Statutes, except for members required to comply with the financial 
disclosure requirements of s. 8, Article II of the State Constitution.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FORM 1:
INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION (Top of Form): If your 
name, mailing address, public agency, and position are already 
printed on the form, you do not need to provide this information 
unless it should be changed.  To change any of this information, 
write the correct information on the form, and contact your 
agency's financial disclosure coordinator.  You can find your 
coordinator on the Commission on Ethics website: www.ethics.
state.fl.us. 
NAME OF AGENCY: The name of the governmental unit 
which you serve or served, by which you are or were employed, 
or for which you are a candidate. 
DISCLOSURE PERIOD: The “disclosure period” for your 
report is the calendar year ending December 31, 2021.

OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT: The title of 
the office or position you hold, are seeking, or held during the 
disclosure period even if you have since left that position. If you 
are a candidate for office or are a new employee or appointee, 
check the appropriate box.
PUBLIC RECORD: The disclosure form and everything 
attached to it is a public record. Your social security number, 
bank account, debit, charge, and credit card numbers are not 
required and you should redact them from any documents you 
file. If you are an active or former officer or employee listed in 
Section 119.071, F.S., whose home address is exempt from 
disclosure, the Commission will maintain that confidentiality if 
you submit a written and notarized request.  

WHO MUST FILE FORM 1:

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 6 CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2022. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 3

Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from 
which you received more than 10% of your gross income—an 
amount that was more than $1,500. If only one customer, a uniform 
rental company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning 
business, you must list the name of the uniform rental company, its 
address, and its principal business activity (uniform rentals). 
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping 
mall and your partnership income exceeded the thresholds listed 
above. You should list each tenant of the mall that provided more 
than 10% of the partnership’s gross income, and the tenant’s 
address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in 

Florida in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during the 
disclosure period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You are not 
required to list your residences. You should list any vacation homes, if 
you derive income from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a beneficiary 
of a trust that owns the property, as well as situations where you own 
more than 5% of a partnership or corporation that owns the property. 
The value of the property may be determined by the most recently 
assessed value for tax purposes, in the absence of a more accurate 
fair market value. 

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to 
enable anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street 
address should be used, if one exists.
PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
 Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time during 
the disclosure period, was worth more than 10% of your total assets, 
and state the business entity to which the property related. Intangible 
personal property includes things such as cash on hand, stocks, 
bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle leases, interests in businesses, 
beneficial interests in trusts, money owed you (including, but not 
limited to, loans made as a candidate to your own campaign), Deferred 
Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the Florida Prepaid 
College Plan, and bank accounts in which you have an ownership 
interest. Intangible personal property also includes investment products 
held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and the Florida College Investment 
Plan.  Note that the product contained in a brokerage account, IRA, or 
the Florida College Investment Plan is your asset—not the account or 
plan itself. Things like automobiles and houses you own, jewelry, and 
paintings are not intangible property.  Intangibles relating to the same 
business entity may be aggregated; for example, CD’s and savings 
accounts with the same bank. 
 Calculations: To determine whether the intangible property 
exceeds 10% of your total assets, total the fair market value of all of 
your assets (including real property, intangible property, and tangible 
personal property such as jewelry, furniture, etc.). When making this 
calculation, do not subtract any liabilities (debts) that may relate to 
the property. Multiply the total figure by 10% to arrive at the disclosure 
threshold. List only the intangibles that exceed this threshold amount. 
The value of a leased vehicle is the vehicle’s present value minus the 
lease residual (a number which can be found on the lease document). 
Property that is only jointly owned property should be valued according 
to the percentage of your joint ownership. Property owned as tenants 
by the entirety or as joint tenants with right of survivorship, including 
bank accounts owned in such a manner, should be valued at 100%. 
None of your calculations or the value of the property have to be 
disclosed on the form. 

Example: You own 50% of the stock of a small corporation that 
is worth $100,000, the estimated fair market value of your home 
and other property (bank accounts, automobile, furniture, etc.) 
is $200,000. As your total assets are worth $250,000, you must 
disclose intangibles worth over $25,000. Since the value of the 
stock exceeds this threshold, you should list “stock” and the name 
of the corporation. If your accounts with a particular bank exceed 
$25,000, you should list “bank accounts” and bank’s name.

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]

 List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed 
any amount that, at any time during the disclosure period, exceeded 
your net worth. You are not required to list the amount of any debt 
or your net worth. You do not have to disclose: credit card and retail 
installment accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), 
indebtedness on a life insurance policy owed to the company of 
issuance, or contingent liabilities. A “contingent liability” is one that will 
become an actual liability only when one or more future events occur 
or fail to occur, such as where you are liable only as a guarantor, 
surety, or endorser on a promissory note. If you are a “co-maker” and 
are jointly liable or jointly and severally liable, it is not a contingent 
liability. 
 Calculations: To determine whether the debt exceeds your 
net worth, total all of your liabilities (including promissory notes, 
mortgages, credit card debts, judgments against you, etc.). The 
amount of the liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due 
payments and all unpaid prospective lease payments. Subtract 
the sum total of your liabilities from the value of all your assets as 
calculated above for Part D. This is your “net worth.” List each creditor 
to whom your debt exceeded this amount unless it is one of the types 
of indebtedness listed in the paragraph above (credit card and retail 
installment accounts, etc.). Joint liabilities with others for which you 
are “jointly and severally liable,” meaning that you may be liable for 
either your part or the whole of the obligation, should be included in 
your calculations at 100% of the amount owed.

Example: You owe $15,000 to a bank for student loans, $5,000 
for credit card debts, and $60,000 (with spouse) to a savings 
and loan for a home mortgage. Your home (owned by you and 
your spouse) is worth $80,000 and your other property is worth 
$20,000. Since your net worth is $20,000 ($100,000 minus 
$80,000), you must report only the name and address of the 
savings and loan.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145(7), F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state 

and federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan 
associations; cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage 
companies; credit unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage 
licensees; pari-mutuel wagering companies, utility companies, entities 
controlled by the Public Service Commission; and entities granted a 
franchise to operate by either a city or a county government.

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the 
disclosure period an interest in, or held any of certain positions with, 
the types of businesses listed above. You are required to make this 
disclosure if you own or owned (either directly or indirectly in the 
form of an equitable or beneficial interest) at any time during the 
disclosure period more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock 
of one of the types of business entities listed above. You also must 
complete this part of the form for each of these types of businesses 
for which you are, or were at any time during the disclosure period, 
an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or agent (other than a resident 
agent solely for service of process).

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in 
one of these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its 
address and principal business activity, and the position held with 
the business (if any). If you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the 
business,  indicate that fact and describe the nature of your interest.

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]

 If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer, 
appointed school superintendent, or a commissioner of a community 
redevelopment agency created under Part III, Chapter 163  whose 
service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, 
you are required to complete four hours of ethics training which 
addresses Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code of 
Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records and 
open meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on this 
form that you have taken such training. l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 27 

  

l



RESOLUTION 2023-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOLTERRA 
RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING 
THE OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Solterra Resort Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within Lake County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District desires to designate the 
Officers of the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board: 

SECTION 1. is appointed Chairman. 

SECTION 2. is appointed Vice Chairman. 

SECTION 3. Larry Krause is appointed Secretary. 

Johanna Lee is appointed Treasurer. 

Howard McGaffney is appointed Assistant Treasurer. 

Bridgett Alexander is appointed Assistant Treasurer. 

is appointed Assistant Secretary. 

is appointed Assistant Secretary. 

is appointed Assistant Secretary. 

Shirley Conley is appointed Assistant Secretary. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022 

ATTEST SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 28 

  

l



RESOLUTION 2023-05 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DESIGNATING SIGNATORIES FOR THE DISTRICT’S 

OPERATING BANK ACCOUNT(S); AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Solterra Resort Community Development District (the “District”) is a local 

unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 

being situated entirely within Polk County, Florida;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statues, the funds of the District shall be 

disbursed by the Treasurer and by other such person(s) as may be authorized by the Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously established a local operating bank account for the 

District; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously designated authorized signatories on the bank account; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to rescind and repeal the prior designation and designate new 

signatories on the account.  

NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:   

Section 1.  The Chair of the District’s Board of Supervisors, and Howard McGaffney and 

Johanna Lee and Bridgett Alexander of DPFG Management and Consulting, LLC, are hereby 

designated as authorized signatories on the District’s operating bank account.  

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in effect 

unless rescinded or repealed. Further, upon its passage, any previously adopted resolution designating 

signatories on bank accounts for the District is rescinded and repealed. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of October, 2022. 

ATTEST: 

SOLTERRA RESORT COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair, Board of Supervisors 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 29 

  

l



 

 
SOLTERRA RESORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

October 2022 
FIELD INSPECTION REPORT 

 

L. Krause, District Manager 

 

 

l



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

 

• Maintenance Map 
 

• Pine Tree Blvd. 
 

• Solterra Blvd. 
 

• Entrance/Exit 
 

• Amenity Center 
 

• Ponds  
 
 
 
 

l



Maintenance Map 
 

 

l



Pine Tree and Solterra Blvd. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ponds, trees, and other 
foliage look good; sidewalk 
work looks to be still 
underway by county. 

l



Pine Tree and Solterra Blvd. 
 

 

Street signs and some trees are 
leaning…street signs are being 
worked on… plantings look 
strong…roundabout stump needs 
to be removed. 

l



Entrances / Exit 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community and sub-
community entrances look 
well-manicured… 

l



Amenity Center 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

l



Ponds  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Ponds look full 
and clean… 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 30 

  

l



Phase Permit # Transfer to Opp
2A 26971.007 6/13/2018
2A Parking 26971.019 Minor Mod - SOC not reqd
2A-2 Lot Size Mod 26971.010 Minor Mod - SOC not reqd
2B 26971.014 Minor Mod - SOC not reqd.
2B Mass Gradng 26971.012 12/30/2019
2C 26971.008 7/12/2019
2C 26971.018 Minor Mod - SOC not reqd.
2D Mass Grading 26971.015 4/27/2020
2D-1 and 2D-2 26971.016 Minor Mod - SOC not reqd
2E 26971.011 Minor Mod - SOC not reqd.
2E Mass Grading 26971.013 2/20/2020

Solterra Phase 2A, 2B, 2C, 2D & 2E

l



Solterra Resort Community Development District
Attn: James P. Harvey
1060 Maitland Center Commons Blvd., Suite 340
Maitland, FL 32751

l



June 13, 2018 

Solterra Resort Community Development District
Attn: James P. Harvey
1060 Maitland Center Commons, Suite 340
Maitland, FL 32751
 

Subject: Transfer to Operation Phase
  Project Name: Solterra Phase 2A
  Permit No.: 43026971.007
  Compliance No.: 398733
  County: Polk
  Sec/Twp/Rge: S10/T26S/R27E

Dear Mr. Harvey:

The request to transfer the subject permit to the operation phase has been approved. District staff have 
reviewed the submitted information and determined that the stormwater management system was in 
compliance at the time of our inspection. The District reserves the right to inspect the project in the future to 
ensure continued compliance with State law and District rules. The permit, approved drawings and other 
documents are available for viewing through the District's Application and Permit Search Tools at http://
watermatters.org/wmiserp.

The subject permit contains a condition requiring periodic inspection and maintenance. The inspections 
are required every five (5) years. A record of each inspection (including the date of inspection, the name 
and contact information of the inspector, whether the system was functioning as designed and permitted) 
must be maintained, and must be made available to the District upon request. Within 30 days of any 
failure of a stormwater management system or deviation from the permit, an inspection report shall be 
submitted using Form 62-330.311(1), Operation and Maintenance Inspection Certification available on the 
District's website, http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp, describing the remedial actions taken to 
resolve the failure or deviation. 

As outlined in Subsection 62-330.340, F.A.C., "A Permittee shall notify the Agency in writing within 30 
days of a change in ownership or control of the entire real property, project, or activity covered by the 
permit. This notification can be submitted on Form 62-330.340(1) – Request To Transfer Permit available 
on the District's website, http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp.

If you have questions, please contact Paul D. Tanke, P.E. at the Bartow Service Office.

Sincerely, 

Michelle K. Hopkins, P.E.
Bureau Chief
Environmental Resource Permit Bureau
Regulation Division

cc: Heidt Design, LLC
Attn: Boyan Pargov, P.E.

 

l

http://watermatters.org/wmiserp
http://watermatters.org/wmiserp
http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/files/database/site_file_sets/2476/62-330_311_1_-_Operation_and_Maintenance_Certification.pdf
http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp
http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/files/database/site_file_sets/2476/62-330_340_1_-_Request_to_Transfer_Permit.pdf
http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp


Heidt Design, LLC
Attn: Boyan Pargov, P.E.
5904-A Hampton Oaks Pkwy.
Tampa, FL 33610

 

l



l



l



l



Solterra Resort Community Development District
Attn: James P. Harvey
14025 Riveredge Drive, Suite 175
Tampa, FL 33637

l



February 20, 2020 

Solterra Resort Community Development District
Attn: James P. Harvey
14025 Riveredge Dr., Suite 175
Tampa, FL 33637

 

 

Subject: Transfer to Operation Phase
  Project Name: Solterra Resort Phase 2E - Mass Grading
  Permit No.: 43026971.013
  Compliance No.: 406303
  County: Polk
  Sec/Twp/Rge: S15/T26S/R27E

Dear Mr. Harvey:

The request to transfer the subject permit to the operation phase has been approved. District staff have 
reviewed the submitted information and determined that the stormwater management system was in 
compliance at the time of our inspection. The District reserves the right to inspect the project in the future 
to ensure continued compliance with State law and District rules. The permit, approved drawings and 
other documents are available for viewing through the District's Application and Permit Search Tools at 
http://watermatters.org/wmiserp.

The subject permit contains a condition requiring periodic inspection and maintenance. The inspections 
are required every five (5) years. A record of each inspection (including the date of inspection, the name 
and contact information of the inspector, whether the system was functioning as designed and permitted) 
must be maintained, and must be made available to the District upon request. Within 30 days of any 
failure of a stormwater management system or deviation from the permit, an inspection report shall be 
submitted using Form 62-330.311(1), Operation and Maintenance Inspection Certification available on the 
District's website, http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp, describing the remedial actions taken to 
resolve the failure or deviation. 

As outlined in Subsection 62-330.340, F.A.C., "A Permittee shall notify the Agency in writing within 30 
days of a change in ownership or control of the entire real property, project, or activity covered by the 
permit. This notification can be submitted on Form 62-330.340(1) – Request To Transfer Permit available 
on the District's website, http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp.

If you have questions, please contact Paul D. Tanke, P.E. at the Bartow Service Office.

Sincerely, 

David Kramer, P.E.
Bureau Chief
Environmental Resource Permit Bureau
Regulation Division

cc: Boyan Pargov, P.E., Heidt Design, LLC
 

l

http://watermatters.org/wmiserp
https://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/sites/default/files/medias/documents/04.10R-023.pdf
http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp
http://www.swfwmd.state.fl.us/files/database/site_file_sets/2476/62-330_340_1_-_Request_to_Transfer_Permit.pdf
http://www.watermatters.org/permits/erp


 

l



 
Heidt Design, LLC
Attn: Boyan Pargov, P.E.
5904-A Hampton Oaks Parkway
Tampa, FL 33610

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 31 

  

l



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

SOLTERRA RESORT 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Solterra Resort Community Development 4 

District was held on Thursday, August 25, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. at the Solterra Resort Amenity Center, 5200 5 

Solterra Boulevard, Davenport, Florida 33837, with Zoom Conference Call Available. 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 7 

Mr. Krause called the meeting to order at 9:31 a.m. and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Candice Smith Board Supervisor, Vice Chairwoman 10 

Brad Walker Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 11 

Jon Seifel Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 

Sharon Harley (joined in progress) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 

Also present were: 14 

Larry Krause District Manager, DPFG Management and Consulting 15 

Brent Henman Field Operations, DPFG Management and Consulting 16 

Shirley Conley (via phone) DPFG Management and Consulting  17 

Meredith Hammock KE Law Group 18 

Kyla Semino Amenity Manager, Evergreen Lifestyles 19 

Dana Bryant Yellowstone 20 

Gary Von Behren Resident 21 

Regina Seabrook Resident 22 

Anthony Crawford Resident 23 

Antonio Treyorbill Resident 24 

Nageeze Humush Resident 25 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the August 25, 2022 Solterra Resort 26 

CDD Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting. 27 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes on agenda items) 28 

Mr. Von Behren requested to know whether the pond debris was caused by builder debris and 29 

whether this needed to be recollected. He additionally suggested that the Board meet less 30 

frequently.  31 

Ms. Seabrook asked for information on CDDs and PUDs. She commented on the front gate 32 

frequently being broken and on the long lines to enter the community. She additionally mentioned 33 

that her car and her daughter-in-law’s cars had been towed and requested white lines to clearly 34 

mark where parking was permitted. 35 

Mr. Crawford commented on pond tree trimming and requested for the flower beds to be addressed.  36 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – FY 2022-2023 Budget Adoption 37 

A. Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Public Hearing 38 

1. Open the Public Hearing 39 

l



Solterra Resort CDD  August 25, 2022 

Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 7

   

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Walker, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board recessed 40 

the Regular Meeting and opened the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Public Hearing for the Solterra Resort 41 

Community Development District. 42 

2. Presentation of FY 2022-2023 Budget 43 

Ms. Smith noted that the budget had been discussed at the July Workshop Meeting and that 44 

some adjustments had been made as the result of resident feedback.  45 

a. Exhibit 1: Approved Preliminary Budget 46 

b. Exhibit 2: Budget As Revised 47 

3. Public Comments 48 

In response to a comment from Mr. Crawford, Mr. Krause reviewed the changes between 49 

the approved preliminary budget and the revised budget.  50 

Ms. Seabrook requested information on the CDD. Ms. Hammock explained that the CDD 51 

was a governmental entity. Ms. Smith reviewed structures and property owned and 52 

maintained by the CDD.  53 

Mr. Von Behren provided a handout to the supervisors and the District Manager. He 54 

inquired about the priorities for the community over the next year. He indicated that he felt 55 

the Board should focus more on security and the gate, rather than amenities. He stated that 56 

insurance from homeowners should pay for damages to the gate. He additionally inquired 57 

about the increase for supervisor expenses. Mr. Krause explained that the Board had the 58 

option to accept $200.00 per meeting and that the future Board may choose to do so. Ms. 59 

Smith noted that the security line item had been increased due to resident feedback at the 60 

Workshop Meeting. Mr. Von Behren expressed dissatisfaction with communication from 61 

the Board.  62 

An audience member asked how much impact residents had on adjusting the budget. He 63 

requested that the Board focus on obtaining the lowest bid options.  64 

Mr. Treyorbill indicated that he felt the Board was doing its best but mentioned that he had 65 

noticed a disconnect between the sellers and the community. He suggested creating a color-66 

coded map of what areas were owned by the HOA and what areas were owned by the CDD 67 

to provide on the District’s website.  68 

An audience member suggested a more gradual increase for staffing and indicated that he 69 

felt spending money on the gate and security was more important. He advised looking at 70 

other options in the community to reduce costs.  71 

Mr. Crawford asked how many individuals were on staff for the guard house. A 72 

representative from the security company stated that there were approximately 5 people on 73 

the team. Discussion ensued regarding the budget. Mr. Crawford requested a breakdown 74 

of security and staffing. Mr. Walker clarified that this was meant to be a budget discussion 75 

and not a breakdown on the services. Ms. Smith explained that staffing costs had previously 76 

been split but were now fully the responsibility of the CDD, which had contributed to the 77 

high increase. Mr. Krause reminded the audience that this was a high-water mark budget.  78 

An audience member indicated that he felt the Board needed to improve on 79 

communication, particularly with new owners. In response to an audience member 80 

comment, Mr. Walker noted that full agenda package was not included on the website due 81 

to ADA requirements but could be obtained upon request by contacting Shirley Conley.  82 

l



Solterra Resort CDD  August 25, 2022 

Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 7

   

Mr. Humush stated that the majority of people stuck in line in the road outside of the 83 

community were non-residents. He additionally mentioned that he felt the grass was being 84 

cut too low.  85 

In response to a question from Mr. Crawford, Ms. Hammock and Ms. Smith provided 86 

clarification on security for the Springs and Villatel. Discussion ensued regarding revenue 87 

and the amounts paid by the builders.  88 

4. Close the Public Hearing 89 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Walker, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board closed the 90 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Meeting for the Solterra 91 

Resort Community Development District. 92 

B. Exhibit 3: Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2022-13, Adopting the Fiscal Year 2022-93 

2023 Budget 94 

Ms. Smith recommended the approval of the revised budget.  95 

On a MOTION by Ms. Harley, SECONDED by Ms. Smith, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 96 

Resolution 2022-13, Adopting the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, as revised from the July Workshop, 97 

for the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 98 

(Mr. Walker left the meeting at 10:38 a.m.) 99 

C. Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Assessment Public Hearing 100 

1. Open the Public Hearing 101 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board recessed 102 

the Regular Meeting and opened the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Assessment Public Hearing for the Solterra 103 

Resort Community Development District. 104 

2. Presentation of FY 2022-2023 General Fund Assessment Allocation  105 

a. Exhibit 4: Approved Preliminary Budget 106 

b. Exhibit 5: Budget As Revised 107 

3. Public Comments 108 

In response to a comment from Mr. Crawford, Ms. Smith stated that Solterra Springs was 109 

within the HOA and restricted from short-term rentals.  110 

Mr. Von Behren distributed a handout on the assessments. He asked the Board to consider 111 

refinancing the District’s bonds. He indicated that he would like for the Board to address 112 

and confirm that properties were being fairly assessed. Ms. Smith explained that bonds 113 

were done through the Bond and Trustee Counsel and validated in court. Ms. Hammock 114 

stated that refinancing of the bonds was typically done when residents take over the Board, 115 

if financially advantageous. Ms. Smith noted that the assessment process as set up during 116 

the bond issuance could not be changed. Ms. Hammock additionally noted that the cost to 117 

refinance was significant. A brief discussion ensued regarding meeting schedules.  118 

4. Close the Public Hearing 119 

l



Solterra Resort CDD  August 25, 2022 

Regular Meeting  Page 4 of 7

   

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board closed the 120 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Assessment Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Meeting for the Solterra 121 

Resort Community Development District. 122 

D. Exhibit 6: Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2022-14, Providing for the Collection and 123 

Enforcement of Special Assessments for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 124 

In response to an audience member comment, Ms. Hammock clarified that the assessments that 125 

fund the budget and the corresponding values would be required to be approved in order to fund 126 

the budget.  127 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 128 

Resolution 2022-14, Providing for the Collection and Enforcement of Special Assessments for Fiscal 129 

Year 2022-2023, as revised, for the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 130 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items 131 

A. Vendor Reports 132 

1. Exhibit 7: Steadfast Environmental – Waterway Inspection 133 

Mr. Krause noted that the pond water levels were low.  134 

a. Exhibit 8: One-time Pond Debris Cleaning (12 waterways) - $11,040.00 135 

Ms. Smith clarified that this cost was cumulative of a year of cleanings and that the 136 

per visit cost would be $920.00. An audience member noted that he had encountered 137 

individuals who had attempted to leave debris in a pond. Ms. Hammock requested 138 

for information on this encounter to be emailed to Mr. Krause. Ms. Smith suggested 139 

approving debris cleaning for 3 months.  140 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Seifel, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 141 

the Steadfast Pond Debris Cleaning, in the amount of $920.00 per month for 3 months, for the Solterra 142 

Resort Community Development District. 143 

2. Yellowstone Landscape – Landscape Report 144 

Mr. Bryant reviewed his report, noting that the outside of the perimeter was currently an 145 

issue. He stated that the Bahia was allowed to go to seed in June, as Bahia had the tendency 146 

to dry up in May. He clarified that Yellowstone was not responsible for the Springs, with 147 

the exception of a few small areas.  148 

a. Exhibit 9: Palm Trimming - $13,801.74 149 

In response to a question from Ms. Smith, Mr. Bryant stated that the trees were 150 

last trimmed approximately a year ago.  151 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 152 

the Yellowstone Palm Trimmings Proposal, in the amount of $13,801.74, for the Solterra Resort 153 

Community Development District. 154 

3. Exhibit 10: DPFG Field Operations Report 155 

Mr. Krause stated that some of the sidewalks around the Amenity Center had been grinded 156 

and that grinding for other sidewalks was still likely needed. He reviewed his report, noting 157 

l



Solterra Resort CDD  August 25, 2022 

Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 7

   

that the entrance at Pine Tree and Solterra Blvd. was in need of attention. He additionally 158 

mentioned that a palm tree had been struck by lightning.  159 

4. Exhibit 11: Amenity Manager Report  160 

Ms. Smith commented positively on the report and the calendar. Ms. Semino noted that the 161 

Thursday Aqua Class would not continue due to low attendance.  162 

B. Exhibit 12: Consideration of LLS Tax Solutions Inc. Engagement Letter to Perform FY 2022 and 163 

FY 2023 Arbitrage Reporting for Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018 164 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 165 

the LLS Tax Solutions Inc. Engagement Letter to Perform FY 2022 and FY 2023 Arbitrage Reporting for 166 

Special Assessment bonds, Series 2018, for the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 167 

C. Exhibit 13: Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2022-15, Setting the Designating FY 2023 168 

Meeting Dates, Times and Location 169 

Ms. Smith asked if residents would like to change the meeting time from 9:30 a.m. An alternative 170 

time was not proposed.  171 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Seifel, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 172 

Resolution 2022-15, Setting the Designating FY 2023 Meeting Dates, Times and Location for the 173 

Solterra Resort Community Development District. 174 

D. Exhibit 14: Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2022-16, Setting the Public Hearing on 175 

Amendment of Amenity Facility Rules  176 

Ms. Hammock suggested holding the Public Hearing during the October Regular Meeting, to which 177 

there were no objections.   178 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adopted 179 

Resolution 2022-16, Setting the Public Hearing on Amendment of Amenity Facility Rules, for the 180 

Solterra Resort Community Development District. 181 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 182 

A. District Manager 183 

Mr. Krause stated that there was a false alarm notice in the amount of $508.00 and indicated that 184 

he would approve the payment.  185 

B. District Attorney 186 

Ms. Hammock stated that she had nothing to report.  187 

C. District Engineer 188 

The District Engineer was not present.  189 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Administrative Items 190 

A. Exhibit 15: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular 191 

Meeting Held July 28, 2022 192 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Seifel, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 193 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Held July 28, 2022, for the Solterra Resort 194 

Community Development District. 195 

l



Solterra Resort CDD  August 25, 2022 

Regular Meeting  Page 6 of 7

   

B. Exhibit 16: Consideration for Acceptance – The July 2022 Unaudited Financial Report 196 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Seifel, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board accepted 197 

the July 2022 Unaudited Financial Report for the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 198 

C. Exhibit 17: Ratification of Spies Slide Pump Repair Proposal - $2,595.00 199 

Ms. Hammock noted that the proposal included tax and that the District was not subject to tax. Ms. 200 

Smith requested that Mr. Krause ensure that tax would not be included.  201 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Ms. Harley, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 202 

Ratification of Spies Slide Pump Repair Proposal, in the amount of $2,595.00, with the District Manager 203 

to ensure that there would be no tax for this repair, for the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 204 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments - New Business/Non Agenda – (limited to 205 

3 minutes per individual) 206 

In response to a question from Mr. Treyorbill, Mr. Krause stated that issues should be reported to 207 

the District Manager and the HOA. Mr. Treyorbill mentioned an issue with streetlights. Mr. Krause 208 

confirmed the street light issue should be reported to the street light company.   209 

Ms. Seabrook requested for the white lines for parking to be added and asked for more disabled 210 

parking spaces. Mr. Krause advised the use of the contact form on the CDD website for this request.  211 

Mr. Von Behren recalled that the prior meeting had a contract to look for improvements for design 212 

work to be done on Pine Tree for the queueing lane. He requested for the $95,000.00 to be spent 213 

on widening the entrance. Ms. Smith stated that a study of the entrance and queueing lane would 214 

be done. 215 

Mr. Crawford expressed dissatisfaction with the delay in signage for the front gates. He inquired 216 

about fencing between Solterra Springs and the District. Ms. Smith stated that easements needed 217 

to be granted and that the HOA would install the fence. Mr. Crawford reiterated that he would like 218 

for a map showing which areas were owned by the CDD and which areas were owned by the HOA 219 

on the District website.  220 

An audience member expressed concerns regarding a resident in the Springs approaching an 221 

alligator and suggested signage. Mr. Seifel clarified that any signage for the Springs would be an 222 

HOA matter. The audience member additionally suggested leaving the back gate open for resident 223 

access. Ms. Smith explained that this would take approximately 3 years of permitting and upgrading 224 

for all of Bowen Rd. Ms. Hammock noted that the future Board had the option of considering this. 225 

Mr. Krause encouraged residents to reach out to County Commissioners if they would like to 226 

request a study to be done on a County road.   227 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests (Includes Next Meeting Agenda Item 228 

Requests) 229 

There being none, the next item followed.  230 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Action Items Summary 231 

Mr. Krause indicated that the Action Items Summary would be emailed to the Board.  232 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Next Meeting Quorum Check: Thursday, August 25 at 9:30 a.m. 233 

for the Next Regular Meeting and Budget/Assessment Public Hearings 234 

Mr. Krause reminded the Board of the next meeting date and time.  235 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 236 

l



Solterra Resort CDD  August 25, 2022 

Regular Meeting  Page 7 of 7

   

Mr. Krause asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 237 

adjourn the meeting. There being none, Ms. Harley made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 238 

On a MOTION by Ms. Harley, SECONDED by Mr. Seifel, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adjourned 239 

the meeting for the Solterra Resort Community Development District. 240 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 241 

at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 242 

including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 243 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 244 

meeting held on ________________________. 245 

 246 

Signature  Signature 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chair 247 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 32 

  

l



Solterra Resort
Community Development District

Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Period Ending
30-Sep-22

Page 1 of 17 l



DEBT SVC DEBT SVC DEBT SVC CAPITAL
GF SERIES 2013 SERIES 2014 SERIES 2018 PROJECTS TOTAL

1 ASSETS:  
2
3 CASH - Operating Account $         956,161 $                      - $                     - $                    - $                    7 $           956,169
4 CASH - Debit Card                        -                         -                        -                       -                        -                          - 
5 INVESTMENTS:
6 REVENUE                        -             330,125            185,229           343,677                        -              859,031
7 RESERVE                        -             346,791            129,372           463,833                        -              939,995
8 INTEREST FUND                        -                         -                        0                        -                        -                         0 
9 PREPAYMENT FUND                        -                         -                        -                       0                        -                         0 

10 SINKING FUND                        -                         -                        0                        -                        -                         0 
12 2013 ACQ./CONSTRUCTION                        -                         -                        -                        -              15,150                15,150 
13 2014 ACQ./CONSTRUCTION                        -                         -                        -                        -                5,652                  5,652 
14 2018 ACQ./CONSTRUCTION                        -                         -                        -                        -                1,951                  1,951 
15 PHASE 2B                        -                         -                        -                        -              40,883                40,883 
16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE                1,997                         -                        -                        -                        -                  1,997 
17 ASSESSEMENTS RECEIVABLE-ON ROLL                        - $                      -                        -                        -                        -                          - 
18 ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS                       0                         -                        -                        -                        -                         0 
19 RECEIVABLE-OFF ROLL (Pk. Square)                        -                         -                        -                        -                        -                          - 
20 DEPOSITS -UTILITIES                3,530                         -                        -                        -                        -                  3,530 
21 PREPAID ITEMS              38,848                         -                        -                        -                        -                38,848 
22 DUE FROM GEN FUND                        -                        -                        -                       -                        -                          - 
23 TOTAL  ASSETS $      1,000,537 $          676,915 $         314,601 $        807,510 $           63,643 $        2,863,206
24
25
26 LIABILITIES:
27
28 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $           99,301 $                      - $                     - $                    - $                     - $             99,301
29 DUE TO DEVELOPER                        -                         -                        -                       -                        -                           -
30 DUE TO OTHER FUNDS                         -                         -                        -                       -                        -                           -
31 ACCRUED EXPENSES                3,961                         -                        -                       -                        -                  3,961 
32 MATURED BONDS PAYABLE                        -                         -                        -                       -                        -                          - 
33 DEFERRED REVENUE (ON ROLL )                        -                         -                        -                        -                        -                          - 
34 DEFERRED REVENUE (OFF ROLL )                        -                         -                        -                        -                        -                          - 
35                        -                          - 
36 FUND BALANCE:                           -
37                           -
38 NONSPENDABLE:                         -                           -
39 PREPAID AND DEPOSITS                        -                         -                        -                        -                        -                           -
40 RESTRICTED FOR:                           -
41 DEBT SERVICE                        -                        -                       -                           -
42 CAPITAL PROJECTS                        -                         -                        -                        -                        -                           -
43 ASSIGNED:              24,689                24,689 
44 UNASSIGNED:            872,586            676,915            314,601           807,510              63,643           2,735,256
45
46 TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE $      1,000,537

                       -
$        807,510 $           63,643 $        2,863,206$         676,915 $         314,601

Solterra Resort CDD
Balance Sheet

9/30/2022

Page 2 of 17 l



FY2022
 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL % OF

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET
 

1 REVENUE
2 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON  ROLL $           2,038,961              2,038,961              2,079,804 102%
3 SPECIAL ASSMTS - OFF ROLL - AK OAKMONT                             -                            -                            -                              - 
4 SOLTERRA RESORT HOA                   30,000                   30,000                     1,275 4%
5 MISCELLANEOUS                             -                            -                   41,185                     41,185

103%6 TOTAL REVENUE              2,068,961              2,068,961              2,122,264
7                 573,007 
8 EXPENDITURES
9
10 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE:
11 SUPERVISOR FEES                     2,000                     2,000                     1,400 70%
12 DISTRICT MANAGEMENT                   42,000                   42,000                   42,400 101%
13 MASS MAILING & PRINTING                     1,500                     1,500                     1,652 110%
14 LEGAL ADVERTISING                     1,500                     1,500                     1,668 111%
15 BANK FEES                        250                        175                        839 336%
16 REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES                        175                        175                        200 114%
17 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES                             -                            -                     1,457 100%
18 AUDITING SERVICES                     2,600                     2,600                             - 0%
19 DISTRICT ENGINEER                   10,000                   10,000                     8,542 85%
20 LEGAL SERVICES                   22,000                   22,000                   36,005 164%
21 COUNTY ASSESSMENT COLLECTION  FEE                   25,000                   25,000                   46,246 185%
22 WEB SITE SETUP & ADMINISTRATION                     2,015                     2,015                     2,015 100%
23 TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE                 109,040                 108,965                 142,424 131%
24
25 INSURANCE:                             -
26 GENERAL, PROPERTY & P OFFICIALS LIABILITY INSURANCE                   32,663                   32,663                   33,311 102%
27 TOTAL INSURANCE                   32,663                   32,663                   33,311 102%
28
29 DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION:                
30 ARBITRAGE REPORTING                        750                        750                        650 87%
31 BOND AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE FEE                        500                        500                             - 0%
32 DISSEMINATING AGENT                     3,000                     3,000                     6,000 200%
33 TRUSTEE FEES                   12,337                   12,337                   12,337 100%
34 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION                   16,587                   16,587                   18,987 114%
35
36 UTILITIES:                
37 UTILITIES - ELECTRICITY - Guardhouse Pump Stations                     2,500                     2,500                     4,397 176%
38 UTILITIES - GAS                   69,000                   69,000                   58,227 84%
39 UTILITIES - STREET LIGHTS                 145,000                 145,000                 157,259 108%
40 UTILITIES - WATER - Guardhouse                     2,400                     2,400                        729 30%
41 RECLAIMED WATER                    45,000                   45,000                   31,884 71%
42 ELECTRICITY - AMENITY CENTER                   85,000                   85,000                   98,910 116%
43 POTABLE WATER - AMENITY CENTER                   48,000                   48,000                   85,395 178%
44 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL                             -                            -                             -
45 TOTAL UTILITIES                  396,900                 396,900                 436,800 110%
46
47 SECURITY:
48 SECURITY SYSTEM - MAIN ENTRANCE & POOL                   31,200                   31,200                   79,372 254%
49 SECURITY MONITORING -OTHER                             -                            -                             -
50 SECURITY - PENALTY FALSE ALARM                     8,500                     8,500                     6,495 76%
51 SECURITY AT GUARDHOUSE COMM. WATCH SOLUTIONS                 190,000                 190,000                 176,298 93%
52 GATEHOUSE - PHONE/INTERNET                     5,100                     5,100                     1,788 35%
53 SECURITY - GUARDHOUSE MANAGEMENT                     4,800                     4,800                     4,400 92%
54 GATE MAINTENANCE & REPAIR                   10,000                   10,000                     5,602 56%
55 OFF DUTY OFFICE                   60,000                   60,000                             - 0%
56 TOTAL SECURITY                 309,600                 309,600                 273,955 88%
57
58 CLUBHOUSE/AMENITY ADMINISTRATION:
59 AMENITY MANAGEMENT                   99,000                   99,000                   63,500 64%
60 CLUBHOUSE FACILITY MAINTENANCE (Cleaning)                   37,860                   37,860                   40,585 107%
61 CLUBHOUSE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   15,000                   15,000                   10,745 72%
62 CLUBHOUSE & LIFESTYLE SUPPLIES                   14,000                   14,000                   37,515 268%

Solterra Resort CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 3 of 17 l



FY2022
 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL % OF

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET
 

63 CLUBHOUSE PHONE & INTERNET                     4,500                     4,500                   11,455 255%
64 CLUBHOUSE STAFF AFTER HOURS EMERGENCY RESPONSE & CODE                        500                        500 0%
65 PEST CONTROL & TERMITE BOND                     1,380                     1,380                   14,412 1044%
66 POOL MONITORS/LIFEGUARDS                 125,000                 125,000                 141,661 113%
67 COFFEE, WATER & VENDING SERVICES                     7,000                     7,000                        620 9%
68 DRUG/BACKGROUND CHECKS (Greeters, lifeguards)                        750                        750                             - 0%
69
70

TOTAL CLUBHOUSE/AMENITY ADMINISTRATION                 304,990                 304,990                 320,493 105%

71 LANDSCAPE/PROPERTY MAINTENANCE:
72 POND & WETLAND MAINTENANCE                   28,800                   28,800                   33,236 115%
73 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - CONTRACT                 194,400                 194,400                 197,135 101%
74 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - SPRINGS EXTERIOR LANDSC.                             -                            -                               -
75 LANDSCAPE REPLENISHMENT                 106,667                 106,667                   41,375 39%
76 IRRIGATION REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   20,000                   20,000                   19,508 98%
77 ASPHALT PAVEMENT REPAIR & MONITORING                   25,000                   25,000                   16,690 67%
78 LANDSCAPE/PROPERTY CONTINGENCY                 122,000                 122,000                        857 1%
79 COMPREHENSIVE FIELD SERVICES                   10,000                   10,000                   10,000 100%
80
81

TOTAL LANDSCAPE/PROPERTY MAINTENANCE                 506,867                 506,867                 318,801 63%

82 FACILITY MAINTENANCE:
83 POOL & LAZY RIVER REPAIR & MAINTENANCE                   40,000                   40,000                 114,344 286%
84 POOL PERMIT                        850                        850                        700 82%
85 SLIDE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT                     2,500                     2,500 0%
86 SIGNAGE                        500                        500                     1,082 216%
87 ATHLETIC FACILITIES MAINT. & FITNESS EQUIP REPAIR                     5,000                     5,000                     2,920 58%
88 REFUSE DUMPSTER SERVICE                   38,425                   38,425                   65,182 170%
89 MISCELLANEOUS -INCLUDES PRESSURE WASHING                     3,000                     3,000                     3,000 100%
90 CONTINGENCY                     6,000                     6,000                     1,541 26%
91 TOTAL FACILITY MAINTENANCE                   96,275                   96,275                 188,769 196%
92
93 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
94
95 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT                 296,039                 296,039                   17,000 6%
96 TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS                 296,039                 296,039                   17,000 6%
97
98
99 TOTAL EXPENDITURES              2,068,961              2,068,886              1,750,541                              9

100
101 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                             -                          75                 371,724                            10
102 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
103 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                   87,112                 525,551                   525,551
104
105 FUND BALANCE - ENDING $                87,112 $                       75                 897,276 $                897,201

Solterra Resort CDD
General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 4 of 17 l



FY 2022 FAVORABLE
  ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE VARIANCE
1 REVENUE
2
3 ASSESSMENTS ON-ROLL (Net ) $         497,191 $              472,331 $                471,650 $                       (682)
4 ASSESSMENTS OFF-ROLL                       -                            -                              -                                -
5 INTEREST - INVESTMENT                                                           -                            -                       1,117                        1,117
6 DISCOUNTS
7 TOTAL REVENUE

           (19,888) 
           477,303

                           - 
                472,331

                             - 
                  472,767 

                               -
                          436

8
9 EXPENDITURES

10 COUNTY ASSESSMENT TAX COLLECTION FEES              14,916                            -                              -                               - 
11 INTEREST EXPENSE                                    182,531                            -                   185,456                   (185,456)
12 INTEREST EXPENSE                                             182,531                            -                   182,531                   (182,531)
13 PRINCIPAL 
14 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
15

             95,000
           474,977

                           - 
                           -

                    90,000 
                  457,988 

                    (90,000)
                  (457,988)

16 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                2,326                 472,331                     14,780                   (457,552)
17
18 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
19 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                       -                            -                              -                               - 
20 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT
21 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

                      - 
                      - 

                           - 
                           - 

                     (1,113)
                     (1,113)

                       1,113
                       1,113

22
                     13,66723 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                       -                            -                     13,667 

24
25 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                       -                            -                   663,249 
26
27 FUND BALANCE - ENDING

                      - 
$             2,326 $              472,331 $                676,915 $                (457,552)

Solterra Resort CDD
DS Series 2013

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 5 of 17 l



FY 2022 FAVORABLE
  ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE VARIANCE
1 REVENUE
2
3 ASSESSMENTS ON-ROLL (Net ) $         267,092 $              253,737 $               263,927 $                    10,189
4 ASSESSMENTS OFF-ROLL                        -                             -                              -                                 -
5 INTEREST - INVESTMENT                                                            -                             -                         417                            417

                      10,6076 TOTAL REVENUE            267,092                 253,737                  264,344
7

8 EXPENDITURES

9 COUNTY ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS                8,347                             -                             -                                - 
10 INTEREST EXPENSE                                             88,697                   88,697                    90,572                       (1,875) 
11 INTEREST EXPENSE                                              88,697                   88,697                    88,697                                0
12 PRINCIPAL EXPENSE                                             80,000                   80,000                    75,000                         5,000
13 TOTAL EXPENDITURES            265,741                 257,394                  254,269                         3,125
14
15 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                1,351                    (3,657)                    10,075                       13,732
16
17 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
18 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                        -                             -                              -                                - 
19 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT
20 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

                       
                       

- 
- 

                            - 
                            - 

                      (415) 
                      (415) 

                           415
                           415

21
22 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                1,351                    (3,657)                      9,660                       13,317
23
24 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                  304,941                     304,941
25 FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

26 FUND BALANCE - ENDING $             1,351 $                 (3,657) $               314,601

                                -

$                  331,990

Solterra Resort CDD
DS Series 2014

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 6 of 17 l



FY 2022 FAVORABLE
 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE VARIANCE
1 REVENUE
2
3 ASSESSMENTS ON-ROLL (Net ) $         665,853 $              652,536 $                631,648 a) $                  (20,888)
4 ASSESSMENTS OFF-ROLL                       -                            -                              -                                -
5 INTEREST - INVESTMENT                                                           -                            -                       1,495                        1,495
6 DISCOUNTS
7 TOTAL REVENUE
8

           (26,634) 
           639,219

                           - 
                652,536

                             - 
                  633,144 

                               -
                    (19,392)

9 EXPENDITURES
10 COUNTY ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS              19,976                            -                               -                               - 
11 INTEREST EXPENSE                                      232,672                 232,672                   232,541                           131
12 INTEREST EXPENSE                                            229,572                 229,572                   232,541                      (2,969) 
13 PRINCIPAL            155,000                 155,000                   155,000                               - 
14 TOTAL EXPENDITURES            637,219                 617,243                   620,081                      (2,837) 
15
16 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                2,000                   35,293                     13,062                     (22,231)
17
18 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
19 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                       -                            -                               - 
20 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT
21 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

                      - 
                      - 

                           - 
                           - 

                     (1,488)
                     (1,488)

                       1,488
                       1,488

22
23 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                       -                            -                     11,574                      11,574
24
25 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                       -                            -                   795,936 
26
27 FUND BALANCE - ENDING

                      - 
$             2,000 $                35,293 $                807,510 $                  (22,231)

Solterra Resort CDD
DS Series 2018

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 7 of 17 l



 ACTUAL
 YEAR-TO-DATE

1 REVENUE
2 BOND PROCEEDS $                              -
3 INTEREST-INVESTMENT                                                                  46

                             464 TOTAL REVENUE 
5
6 EXPENDITURES
7 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS                                 -
8                                 -

                                -9 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
10
11 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                              46
12
13 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
14 BOND PROCEEDS                                 -
15 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                         1,113
16 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT                                 -

                        1,11317 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
18
19 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                         1,159
20
21 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                       13,991
22
23 FUND BALANCE - ENDING $                    15,150

Solterra Resort CDD
Construction Fund 2013

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 8 of 17 l



 ACTUAL
 YEAR-TO-DATE

1 REVENUE
2 BOND PROCEEDS $                              -
3 INTEREST-INVESTMENT                                                                  17

                             174 TOTAL REVENUE 
5
6 EXPENDITURES
7 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS                                 -
8                                 -

                                -9 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
10
11 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                              17
12
13 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
14 BOND PROCEEDS                                 -
15 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                            415
16 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT                                 -

                           41517 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
18
19 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                            432
20
21 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                         5,220
22
23 FUND BALANCE - ENDING $                      5,652

Solterra Resort CDD
Construction Fund 2014

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 9 of 17 l



 ACTUAL
 YEAR-TO-DATE

1 REVENUE
2 BOND PROCEEDS $                              -
3 INTEREST-INVESTMENT                                                                    3

                               34 TOTAL REVENUE 
5
6 EXPENDITURES
7 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS                                 -
8                                 -

                                -9 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
10
11 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                                3
12
13 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
14 BOND PROCEEDS                                 -
15 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                         1,488
16 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT                                 -

                        1,48817 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
18
19 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                         1,491
20
21 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                            460
22
23 FUND BALANCE - ENDING $                      1,951

Solterra Resort CDD
Construction Fund 2018

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 10 of 17 l



 ACTUAL
 YEAR-TO-DATE

1 REVENUE
2 BOND PROCEEDS $                              -
3 INTEREST-INVESTMENT                                                                131

                           1314 TOTAL REVENUE 
5
6 EXPENDITURES
7 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS                                 -
8                                 -

                                -9 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
10
11 EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES                            131
12
13 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
14 BOND PROCEEDS                                 -
15 INTERFUND TRANSFER-IN                                 -
16 INTERFUND TRANSFER-OUT                                 -

                                -17 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
18
19 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE                            131
20
21 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING                       40,752
22
23 FUND BALANCE - ENDING $                    40,883

Solterra Resort CDD
Construction Fund 2018 Phase 2B

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes in Fund Balance
For The Period Starting October 1, 2021 and Ending September 30, 2022

Page 11 of 17 l



 NEW
BANK UNITED

Balance Per Bank Statement $       992,395.44

Plus: Deposits $                    -

Less: Outstanding Checks

Adjusted Bank Balance  

Beginning Bank Balance Per Books

($36,234.00)

$       956,161.44

$    1,887,311.02

Add: Cash Receipts                       -

Less:  Cash Disbursements 

Balance Per Books

        (931,149.58)

$       956,161.44

Solterra Resort CDD
Cash Reconciliation (GF)

9/30/2022

Page 12 of 17 l



CHECK REGISTER
FY 2022

DATE CK NO. PAYEE DESCRIPTION DEPOSIT DISBURSMT BALANCE
EOY Balance 9-30-2021 547,662.67

10/01/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021
10/05/2021
10/06/2021
10/06/2021
10/06/2021
10/07/2021
10/07/2021
10/07/2021
10/07/2021
10/07/2021
10/07/2021
10/12/2021
10/12/2021
10/12/2021
10/13/2021
10/22/2021
10/22/2021
10/24/2021
10/26/2021
10/26/2021
10/29/2021

4790
4771
ACH17181432
4772
4773
4774
4775
100621ACH
4776
4777
4778
4779
4780
4781
4782
4783
4797
4784
4795
4796
4792
4786
4787
4789

YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE
DUKE ENERGY
DUKE ENERGY
DUKE ENERGY
JR Clean Team LLC
DUKE ENERGY
EXERCISE SYSTEMS, INC.
DUKE ENERGY
Brighthouse Networks
Enhanced Maintenance Solutions
I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc.
LocalIQ
POLK COUNTY UTILITIES
SPIES POOL, LLC
IPFS Corporation
DPFG M&C
SPIES POOL, LLC
DUKE ENERGY
ACTION SECURITY, INC.
Cintas
CRYSTAL SPRINGS
Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors
DUKE ENERGY
DUKE ENERGY

Monthly Landscape October 2021

4000 Oakmont Blvd - There was a $8.50 service fee so total 
7900 Oak Reflection Loop, Irrigation 08/24 -09/24
Cleaning Service - August

Quarterly preventive maintenance fro fitness center 8.3.21
4000 Oakmont Blvd (NEED TO GET BILL)

Dump and return compactor, disposal, Fuel and Enviro
The ledger new Chief
Various Accounts

Insurance - Payment 01 of 11
CDD Mgmt - Oct
Roller Assembly

Service Call - 10/27/21
Cleaning Supplies 10/20/21
Crystal Springs 5G springs Water 5.0 Gallon Bottle Deposit
Renew Policy
0 Oakmont Blvd. Lite @ Pine Tree Trail 9/8-10/8

paid is 61.38

16,166.00
1,681.73

52.88
19.04

2,445.00
2,895.68

295.00
61.38

804.77
845.00
566.01

2,070.72
12,409.57
1,414.00
2,609.29
4,733.33

306.82
1,559.72
1,340.00

167.57
281.80

3,073.30
5,726.20
1,489.78

531,496.67
529,814.94
529,762.06
529,743.02
527,298.02
524,402.34
524,107.34
524,045.96
523,241.19
522,396.19
521,830.18
519,759.46
507,349.89
505,935.89
503,326.60
498,593.27
498,286.45
496,726.73
495,386.73
495,219.16
494,937.36
491,864.06
486,137.86
484,648.08

0.00 63,014.59 484,648.08
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/01/2021
11/02/2021
11/09/2021
11/16/2021
11/17/2021
11/18/2021
11/19/2021
11/22/2021
11/22/2021
11/22/2021
11/22/2021
11/22/2021
11/22/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/30/2021
11/30/2021

4813
4812
4811
4810
4809
4808
4807
4806
4805
4803
4802
4801
ACH110121
4794
4793
4798
4791
4799
ACH111621
111721ACH

4816
4817
4815
4814
4818
4819
4820
4821
4822

COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC
Dale Cooper LLC
Enhanced Maintenance Solutions
ENVERA
I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc.
Innersync
KE Law Group, PLLC
MASSEY SERVICES, INC.
Power Pool Services, LLC
SPIES POOL, LLC
Steadfast Environmental LLC
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES
Steadfast Environmental LLC
Steadfast Environmental LLC
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE
DPFG M&C
DUKE ENERGY
Brighthouse Networks
POLK COUNTY UTILITIES

4th Element Fire & Safety, Inc.
COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC
Enhanced Maintenance Solutions
Fausnight Stripe & Line Inc
Florida Pest Control
SPIES POOL, LLC
DUKE ENERGY
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.
Steadfast Environmental LLC

Gelcoat Repair
General Repairs- Basic labor to repair pool corner coping paver
Burglar Alarm, Data management, Active Video Monitoring

ADA Website Hosting
Legal Services

Pool Maintenance - September

Monthly Landscape October 2021
Account Number- 0397513-3
Clean up grounds for trash - Nov 2021
Clean up grounds for trash - Nov 2021
Monthly Landscape Nov  2021
CDD Mgmt - Nov

Various Accounts
Deposit
Deposit
Semi-Annual Maintenance
Main Gate Officer - Dec 2021
General Repairs- Basic labor
Thermoplastic Pavement markings
invoice 8672875

0 Solterra Blvd Lite 10/18-11/15
2021 FY General Consulting

Deposit
Deposit
Deposit

8,485.38
75,145.05

2,873.42
221,108.22

6,803.23

28,315.28
8,500.00

389.00
2,510.87
3,321.54
1,515.00

949.15
230.00

2,100.00
1,614.00
3,113.00

16,166.00
2,304.90
2,393.00

720.00
16,166.00
4,733.33
1,524.11

804.48
3,215.64

243.37
14,673.35

275.00
4,000.00

160.50
1,949.35
1,137.16
1,624.50
3,113.00

456,332.80
447,832.80
447,443.80
444,932.93
441,611.39
440,096.39
439,147.24
438,917.24
436,817.24
435,203.24
432,090.24
415,924.24
413,619.34
411,226.34
410,506.34
394,340.34
389,607.01
388,082.90
387,278.42
384,062.78
392,548.16
467,693.21
467,449.84
452,776.49
452,501.49
448,501.49
448,340.99
446,391.64
445,254.48
443,629.98
440,516.98
443,390.40
664,498.62
671,301.85

11/30/2021 314,415.30 127,761.53 671,301.85
12/01/2021
12/03/2021
12/03/2021
12/03/2021
12/03/2021
12/03/2021
12/03/2021
12/06/2021
12/07/2021
12/08/2021
12/09/2021
12/10/2021
12/14/2021
12/14/2021
12/15/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/16/2021
12/17/2021
12/17/2021
12/17/2021
12/17/2021
12/17/2021
12/18/2021
12/18/2021
12/18/2021

4823
4824
4825
4826
4827
4829
4800
4831
4833
4834
4835
4837
4838

4839
4836
4841
4842
4843
4844
4846
4847
4837

4840
4848
4850
4851
4852

4853
4854
4855

I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc.
Brighthouse Networks
DUKE ENERGY
ENVERA
I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc.
I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc.
Pro-Tech Air Conditioning & Plumbing Svc.
DPFG M&C
I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc.
SPIES POOL, LLC
POLK COUNTY UTILITIES
DUKE ENERGY
Ivan Navarro

SITE MASTERS OF FLORIDA, LLC
Brighthouse Networks
FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNIT
Heather Allen
Wanda Texas
SPIES POOL, LLC
Florida Pest Control
Paradise Property Solutions & Services
JR Clean Team LLC

Brighthouse Networks
SITE MASTERS OF FLORIDA, LLC
JR Clean Team LLC
JR Clean Team LLC
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE

Florida Pest Control
Florida Pest Control
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

5200 Solterra Blvd AHMS 11/03/21-12/02/21
4000 Oakmont Blvd
Burglar Alarm, Data management, Active Video Monitoring

Dump and return compactor, disposal, Fuel and Enviro
Past due
CDD Mgmt - Dec

Various Accounts
0 Solterra Blvd Lite 10/26/21-11/23/21
Contribution to Polk Cty Sheriff's Office
Deposit

Oaktree Dr Davenport , FL 11/22-12/21
Annual Filing - FY 21/22
Reimbursement
Wanda Texas Reimbursement

Repair pool Pavers
CH Cleaning - December
Deposit
Oaktree Dr Davenport , FL 11/22-12/21
repaired damaged grate seat

Cleaning - Jan 22
Monthly Landscape Dec  2021
Deposit

N132956
2022 FY General Consulting

220,433.50

175.00

1,561,901.01

2,675.51
429.51
55.45

2,510.87
1,312.19

704.63
2,007.57
4,733.33
1,415.04
4,487.00

15,682.24
1,231.40

300.00

4,000.00
104.98
200.00
133.98

1,044.85
7,667.80
1,555.00

150.00
2,445.00

104.98
300.00

6,206.70
2,445.00

16,166.00

610.00
5,765.00
3,115.75

668,626.34
668,196.83
668,141.38
665,630.51
664,318.32
663,613.69
661,606.12
656,872.79
655,457.75
650,970.75
635,288.51
634,057.11
633,757.11
854,190.61
850,190.61
850,085.63
849,885.63
849,751.65
848,706.80
841,039.00
839,484.00
839,334.00
836,889.00
837,064.00
836,959.02
836,659.02
830,452.32
828,007.32
811,841.32

2,373,742.33
2,373,132.33
2,367,367.33
2,364,251.58

Page 13 of 17 l



CHECK REGISTER
FY 2022

DATE CK NO. PAYEE DESCRIPTION DEPOSIT DISBURSMT BALANCE
12/18/2021 4856 Dale Cooper LLC Gelcoat Repair 8,500.00 2,355,751.58
12/18/2021 4857 Asphalt Restoration Technology Systems Application Of pavement dressing conditioner oli based penetrating 6,495.00 2,349,256.58
12/20/2021 4859 CRYSTAL SPRINGS Crystal Springs 5G springs Water 5.0 Gallon Bottle Deposit 28.45 2,349,228.13
12/20/2021 4860 LERNER REPORTING SERVICES, INC Annual Disclosure fee 6,000.00 2,343,228.13
12/21/2021 4861 DPFG M&C Annual Website Svc Fee 500.00 2,342,728.13
12/21/2021 4862 CRYSTAL SPRINGS Crystal Springs 5G springs Water 5.0 Gallon Bottle Deposit 56.90 2,342,671.23
12/21/2021 4911 Cheney Brothers food products 1,051.00 2,341,620.23
12/21/2021 4912 Cintas Cleaning Supplies 1/7/22 182.58 2,341,437.65
12/21/2021 4913 CRYSTAL SPRINGS Crystal Springs 5G springs Water 5.0 Gallon Bottle 28.45 2,341,409.20
12/21/2021 4914 Evergreen Lifestyles Mgmt Dec 2021 Management 25,634.08 2,315,775.12
12/21/2021 4915 Florida Pest Control 1,005.00 2,314,770.12
12/21/2021 4917 Paradise Property Solutions & Services painting/install lighting 3,010.00 2,311,760.12
12/22/2021 4863 ONSIGHT SIGNAGE & VISUAL SOLUTION Labor/ Installation 1,082.25 2,310,677.87
12/22/2021 12/22/21 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 02 of 11 2,739.75 2,307,938.12
12/23/2021 4864 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool 543.00 2,307,395.12
12/23/2021 4866 SPIES POOL, LLC Bulk Bleach and 15 gallons of Sulfuric Acid 139.90 2,307,255.22
12/27/2021 4867 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool 939.00 2,306,316.22
12/28/2021 4870 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool 2,295.00 2,304,021.22
12/30/2021 4871 Steadfast Environmental LLC Clean up grounds for trash - Jan 2021 2,393.00 2,301,628.22
12/30/2021 4872 Steadfast Environmental LLC Clean up grounds for trash - Jan 2021 720.00 2,300,908.22
12/30/2021 4873 Cintas Cleaning Supplies 12/3021 167.57 2,300,740.65
12/31/2021 Deposit 543,681.27 2,844,421.92

12/31/2021 2,326,190.78 153,070.71 2,844,421.92
01/04/2022 4874 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt - Jan 2022 4,733.33 2,839,688.59
01/05/2022 Deposit 2,876.00 2,842,564.59
01/06/2022 Deposit 7,325.23 2,849,889.82
01/06/2022 Deposit 201,258.98 3,051,148.80
01/07/2022 4877 Cintas 335.14 3,050,813.66
01/07/2022 010722ACH IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 03 of 11 2,739.75 3,048,073.91
01/11/2022 4883 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Dump and return compactor, disposal, Fuel and Enviro12/20/2021 674.01 3,047,399.90
01/11/2022 4886 ENVERA 4,327.00 3,043,072.90
01/11/2022 4885 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Dump and return compactor, disposal, Fuel and Enviro12/27/21 728.30 3,042,344.60
01/11/2022 4884 Paradise Property Solutions & Services Clubhouse Bathroom Painting, Patch drywall holes and cracks. Caulk around windows 1,367.00 3,040,977.60
01/11/2022 4888 Brighthouse Networks 5200 Solterra Blvd AHMS 01/03/22-02/02/22 536.40 3,040,441.20
01/12/2022 4889 AAA Garage Door Repairs double spring installation 612.92 3,039,828.28
01/12/2022 4890 Asphalt Restoration Technology Systems Asphalt repair using 3 types Hot mix 3,995.00 3,035,833.28
01/12/2022 4891 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. legal svcs 190.00 3,035,643.28
01/13/2022 4895 FIREMAN TOM'S PRESSURE WASHING CO. chemically treated and pressure wash river pool deck 2,100.00 3,033,543.28
01/13/2022 4896 Florida Pest Control 1,860.00 3,031,683.28
01/13/2022 4897 Florida Pest Control 1,093.00 3,030,590.28
01/13/2022 4898 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Monthly Landscape Jan  2021 16,166.00 3,014,424.28
01/13/2022 4899 JR Clean Team LLC Cleaning - Jan 22 2,445.00 3,011,979.28
01/14/2022 4900 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC Main Gate Officer -Feb 2022 15,061.50 2,996,917.78
01/18/2022 4902 US BANK 8,189.01 2,988,728.77
01/18/2022 4903 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,380.10 2,987,348.67
01/18/2022 4904 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 19,610.12 2,967,738.55
01/18/2022 011822ACH POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 54.54 2,967,684.01
01/19/2022 4905 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 6,371.09 2,961,312.92
01/19/2022 4908 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 300.00 2,961,012.92
01/19/2022 4907 KE Law Group, PLLC Legal Services 2,804.00 2,958,208.92
01/19/2022 4906 SPIES POOL, LLC 1,498.60 2,956,710.32
01/20/2022 4910 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 7,756.41 2,948,953.91
01/20/2022 012022ACH COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC  Main Gate Officer -Jan 2021 16,111.42 2,932,842.49
01/24/2022 022422ACH DUKE ENERGY 3,846.68 2,928,995.81
01/24/2022 012422ACH1 DUKE ENERGY 00000 Oakmont Blvd Lite 11/24/21-12/27/21 1,855.60 2,927,140.21
01/24/2022 012422ACH DUKE ENERGY 0 Solterra Blvd Lite 11/6/21-12/07/21 8.50 2,927,131.71
01/24/2022 4918 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Dump and return compactor, disposal, Fuel and Enviro 691.69 2,926,440.02
01/24/2022 4919 DUKE ENERGY 673.96 2,925,766.06
01/25/2022 4920 DUKE ENERGY 0 Solterra Blvd Lite 11/16/21-12/15/21 1,137.16 2,924,628.90
01/25/2022 4921 Cintas Cleaning Supplies and office items 182.58 2,924,446.32
01/26/2022 4922 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Irrigation repairs Q4 3,816.54 2,920,629.78
01/26/2022 012622ACH BankUnited Box of Checks ordered with Brenda 183.91 2,920,445.87
01/27/2022 4923 POLK COUNTY WATER RESOURCE ENFORCEMENT 1,139.20 2,919,306.67
01/28/2022 4924 Steadfast Environmental LLC 3,113.00 2,916,193.67
01/28/2022 Funds Transfer 300.00 2,915,893.67
01/31/2022 4925 Brighthouse Networks 5200 Solterra Blvd AHMS 1/25-2/24 2,129.61 2,913,764.06
01/31/2022 4926 ENVERA 2,787.00 2,910,977.06
01/31/2022 4927 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 2,647.92 2,908,329.14
01/31/2022 4928 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 7,942.13 2,900,387.01
01/31/2022 4929 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool and Lazy River 771.65 2,899,615.36
01/31/2022 Service Charge 431.00 2,899,184.36

01/31/2022 211,460.21 156,697.77 2,899,184.36
02/01/2022 4930 Evergreen Lifestyles Mgmt 39,115.48 2,860,068.88
02/02/2022 4931 Asphalt Restoration Technology Systems Asphalt Striping 1,500.00 2,858,568.88
02/02/2022 4932 DUKE ENERGY 0 Solterra Blvd Lite 12/16/21-01/18/22 1,921.85 2,856,647.03
02/02/2022 4933 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 561.25 2,856,085.78
02/03/2022 4934 FIREMAN TOM'S PRESSURE WASHING CO. Pressure washed:  Guard shack, and 3 entry wall signs. 450.00 2,855,635.78
02/03/2022 4935 Pro-Tech Air Conditioning & Plumbing Svc. Quarterly billing for HVAC 651.75 2,854,984.03
02/03/2022 020322ACH1 FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES Service 10/20-11/18 4,114.73 2,850,869.30
02/03/2022 020322ACH2 FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES Service 11/18-12/20 10,216.25 2,840,653.05
02/07/2022 020722ACH FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES Service 12/20-01/21 8,425.17 2,832,227.88
02/07/2022 4936 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 5,485.17 2,826,742.71
02/08/2022 4937 DUKE ENERGY 8,148.29 2,818,594.42
02/08/2022 4938 EXERCISE SYSTEMS, INC. Quarterly preventive maintenance fro fitness center 1.31.22 295.00 2,818,299.42
02/10/2022 4939 Brighthouse Networks 5200 Solterra Blvd  02/03/22-03/02/22 262.96 2,818,036.46
02/10/2022 4940 Power Pool Services, LLC Pool Maintenance - February 2,100.00 2,815,936.46
02/11/2022 021122ACH1 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 04 of 11 2,739.75 2,813,196.71
02/15/2022 4941 DUKE ENERGY 14,556.51 2,798,640.20
02/15/2022 4942 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,542.17 2,797,098.03
02/15/2022 4943 LLS TAX SOLUTIONS, INC Arbitrage 10/3/21 650.00 2,796,448.03
02/18/2022 4944 4th Element Fire & Safety, Inc. Annual Maintenance Service at Oaktree Drive 228.39 2,796,219.64
02/18/2022 4945 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC  Main Gate Officer -March 2021 16,506.47 2,779,713.17
02/18/2022 4946 ENVERA 7,875.51 2,771,837.66
02/18/2022 4947 Florida Pest Control 1,093.00 2,770,744.66

    

Page 14 of 17 l



CHECK REGISTER
FY 2022

DATE CK NO. PAYEE DESCRIPTION DEPOSIT DISBURSMT BALANCE
02/18/2022 4948 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool and Lazy River 972.00 2,769,772.66
02/18/2022 4949 US BANK Trustee Fees - Series 2014 4,148.38 2,765,624.28
02/18/2022 4950 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Monthly Landscape Maintenance 2/22 16,166.00 2,749,458.28
02/18/2022 Deposit 263,660.63 3,013,118.91
02/24/2022 4951 DUKE ENERGY 36,835.74 2,976,283.17
02/24/2022 4952 ENVERA Alarm Monitoring Services 2,510.87 2,973,772.30
02/24/2022 4953 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,534.56 2,972,237.74
02/24/2022 4954 KE Law Group, PLLC Legal Services 1,807.50 2,970,430.24
02/24/2022 4955 POLK COUNTY WATER RESOURCE ENFORCEMENT Water Violation (02/22) 569.60 2,969,860.64
02/24/2022 4956 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Quarterly Date Palm Injections W/ Fertilizer and Queen Palm Fertilizer 2022 1/4 845.00 2,969,015.64

02/28/2022 263,660.63 193,829.35 2,969,015.64
03/02/2022 4957 CANDICE SMITH BOS MTG 2/25/22 200.00 2,968,815.64
03/03/2022 4758 Brighthouse Networks 5200 Solterra Blvd  02/25/22-03/24/22 743.64 2,968,072.00
03/03/2022 4759 DUKE ENERGY 000 Oakmont blvd LITE PH2C 01/20/22-02/16/22 7,631.15 2,960,440.85
03/03/2022 4760 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 219.76 2,960,221.09
03/03/2022 4761 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 629.17 2,959,591.92
03/03/2022 4762 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 669.59 2,958,922.33
03/03/2022 4963 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 7,739.11 2,951,183.22
03/03/2022 4964 Pro-Tech Air Conditioning & Plumbing Svc. Rusty Diffuser- Completed Diagnostic Testing 153.37 2,951,029.85
03/03/2022 4965 SITE MASTERS OF FLORIDA, LLC repaired pothole on Oakbourne Ave, Repaired gate latch at playground 400.00 2,950,629.85
03/03/2022 4966 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool and Lazy River 444.90 2,950,184.95
03/03/2022 4967 Steadfast Environmental LLC Routine Aquatic Maintenance - March 2022 2,393.00 2,947,791.95
03/04/2022 4968 Power Pool Services, LLC Pool Maintenance - March 2,100.00 2,945,691.95
03/04/2022 4969 DUKE ENERGY 7900 Oak Reflection Loop Jan 28 to Feb 24 35.88 2,945,656.07
03/08/2022 4970 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt - Feb 2022 4,733.33 2,940,922.74
03/08/2022 4971 JR Clean Team LLC Cleaning - Feb 22 2,445.00 2,938,477.74
03/08/2022 4972 Power Pool Services, LLC Pool Maintenance 1,241.20 2,937,236.54
03/08/2022 030822ACH1 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 5 of 11 2,739.75 2,934,496.79
03/09/2022 4974 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt - March 22 4,733.33 2,929,763.46
03/11/2022 Deposit 975.00 2,930,738.46
03/14/2022 031822ACH DUKE ENERGY 000 Oakmont Blvd Lite PH2A-SL PASS DUE 2/11-3/11 12,832.99 2,917,905.47
03/15/2022 4975 Brighthouse Networks 5200 Solterra Blvd  03/03-04/02 267.96 2,917,637.51
03/15/2022 4976 DUKE ENERGY 581.91 2,917,055.60
03/15/2022 4977 ENVERA Alarm Monitoring Services 2,510.87 2,914,544.73
03/15/2022 4978 Greenway Property Services, Inc. Drain Services 525.00 2,914,019.73
03/15/2022 4979 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Dump and Return Compactor 604.91 2,913,414.82
03/15/2022 4980 Paradise Property Solutions & Services Repair Pool Pavers in multiple locations 525.00 2,912,889.82
03/15/2022 4981 Power Pool Services, LLC 8,400.00 2,904,489.82
03/15/2022 4982 SPIES POOL, LLC 2,368.10 2,902,121.72
03/15/2022 4983 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. 2022 FY General Consulting 1,264.00 2,900,857.72
03/15/2022 4984 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Monthly Maintenance March 2022 16,166.00 2,884,691.72
03/16/2022 4985 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC  Main Gate Officer - April 2022 15,831.27 2,868,860.45
03/16/2022 4986 DUKE ENERGY 159.41 2,868,701.04
03/16/2022 Deposit 66,080.52 2,934,781.56
03/17/2022 4987 Steadfast Environmental LLC Routine Aquatic Maintenance - April 2022 2,393.00 2,932,388.56
03/21/2022 4988 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 2,519.33 2,929,869.23
03/22/2022 4989 Evergreen Lifestyles Mgmt 50,175.19 2,879,694.04
03/22/2022 4990 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 300.00 2,879,394.04
03/24/2022 4991 DUKE ENERGY 000 Solterra Blvd Lite 436.55 2,878,957.49
03/25/2022 4992 JR Clean Team LLC Cleaning - March 22 2,445.00 2,876,512.49
03/25/2022 032522ACH1 DUKE ENERGY 5290 SOLTERRA BLVD 1/27-2/23 161.78 2,876,350.71
03/25/2022 032522ACH2 DUKE ENERGY 5456 MISTY OAK CIR PUMP 2/5-3/7 186.75 2,876,163.96
03/25/2022 032522ACH3 DUKE ENERGY 4000 OAKMONT BLVD 2/5-3/7 261.29 2,875,902.67
03/25/2022 032522ACH4 DUKE ENERGY 4000 OAKMONT BLVD GATEHSE 2/5-3/7 929.51 2,874,973.16
03/25/2022 032522ACH5 DUKE ENERGY 5200 OAKMONT BLVD 1/28-2/24 43,162.81 2,831,810.35
03/30/2022 033022ACH Brighthouse Networks Oaktree Dr 3/22-4/21 329.76 2,831,480.59
03/31/2022 4993 BUSINESS OBSERVER Legal Ad 3/25/22 109.38 2,831,371.21
03/31/2022 4994 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Dump and Return compactor, Disposal, Fuel and Enviro 560.71 2,830,810.50
03/31/2022 4995 KE Law Group, PLLC Legal Services 1,404.50 2,829,406.00
03/31/2022 4996 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 7,908.93 2,821,497.07
03/31/2022 4997 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool and Lazy River 1,059.50 2,820,437.57
03/31/2022 4999 DUKE ENERGY 0 Oakmont blvd LITE @ Pine Tree 2/8-3/8 4,491.51 2,815,946.06
03/31/2022 5000 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,184.49 2,814,761.57

03/31/2022 67,055.52 221,309.59 2,814,761.57
04/01/2022 5001 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 3/25-4/24 743.64 2,814,017.93
04/01/2022 5002 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,490.02 2,812,527.91
04/01/2022 5015 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC  Main Gate Officer - May 2022 16,570.86 2,795,957.05
04/01/2022 5016 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 300.00 2,795,657.05
04/01/2022 5017 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Monthly Maintenance April 2022 16,166.00 2,779,491.05
04/04/2022 5003 SPIES POOL, LLC Labor for main pool and Lazy River 235.00 2,779,256.05
04/05/2022 5003 DUKE ENERGY 505.45 2,778,750.60
04/05/2022 5004 ENVERA 5,021.74 2,773,728.86
04/06/2022 5005 SPIES POOL, LLC 3,452.35 2,770,276.51
04/06/2022 5006 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 783.07 2,769,493.44
04/07/2022 040722ACH1 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 6 of 11 2,739.75 2,766,753.69
04/08/2022 5007 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt - April 22 4,733.33 2,762,020.36
04/11/2022 5008 DUKE ENERGY 5200 OAKMONT BLVD 2/25-3/28 7,985.17 2,754,035.19
04/12/2022 5009 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd  04/03 -05/02 267.96 2,753,767.23
04/12/2022 5010 DUKE ENERGY 5300 Solterra Blvd Lift 2/24-3/25 170.51 2,753,596.72
04/12/2022 5011 ENVERA Alarm Monitoring Services 2,510.87 2,751,085.85
04/12/2022 5012 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,342.40 2,749,743.45
04/13/2022 5014 SPIES POOL, LLC 1,152.50 2,748,590.95
04/13/2022 5013 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. 2022 FY General Consulting-March 1,156.00 2,747,434.95
04/13/2022 Deposit 2,005.73 2,749,440.68
04/19/2022 Deposit 111,337.46 2,860,778.14
04/20/2022 042022ACH1 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 105.57 2,860,672.57
04/20/2022 042022ACH2 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 160.92 2,860,511.65
04/20/2022 042022ACH3 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 14.03 2,860,497.62
04/20/2022 042022ACH4 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 483.03 2,860,014.59
04/20/2022 042022ACH5 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 502.75 2,859,511.84
04/20/2022 4/20/22 -13 SOLTERRA RESORT CDD c/o US BANK Due to Debt Service 142,023.43 2,717,488.41
04/20/2022 4/20/22 -14 SOLTERRA RESORT CDD c/o US BANK Due to Debt Service 2014 78,967.60 2,638,520.81
04/20/2022 4/20/22-18 SOLTERRA RESORT CDD c/o US BANK Due to Debt Service 288,639.99 2,349,880.82
04/22/2022 5018 DUKE ENERGY 5,977.68 2,343,903.14

Page 15 of 17 l



CHECK REGISTER
FY 2022

DATE CK NO. PAYEE DESCRIPTION DEPOSIT DISBURSMT BALANCE
04/25/2022 5021 POLK COUNTY WATER RESOURCE ENFORCEMENT Water Violation (02/22) 500.00 2,343,403.14
04/25/2022 5019 FLOCK SAFETY  8A800498-0001 Sparrow Real Time 03/10-22-03/09/23 2,750.00 2,340,653.14
04/25/2022 5022 FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES 33,027.14 2,307,626.00
04/25/2022 5023 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 2,842.18 2,304,783.82
04/26/2022 5024 CLERK OF COURT 716.00 2,304,067.82
04/27/2022 5025 KE Law Group, PLLC Legal Services for March 2,244.00 2,301,823.82
04/27/2022 5026 Spectrum Business OakTree Dr.  04/22-5/21 114.97 2,301,708.85
04/27/2022 5027 DUKE ENERGY 000 Solterra Blvd Lite 3/17-4/18 789.02 2,300,919.83
04/27/2022 5028 GREENBERG TRAURIG Special Assessment Bond Series 2018- Legal services through 1/31/22 3,375.90 2,297,543.93
04/27/2022 5029 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 8,373.62 2,289,170.31
04/29/2022 5030 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 4/25-5/24 743.39 2,288,426.92

04/30/2022 113,343.19 639,677.84 2,288,426.92
05/03/2022 5031 CLERK OF COURT False Alarm - 4/26 408.00 2,288,018.92
05/03/2022 5032 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt -May22 4,733.33 2,283,285.59
05/03/2022 5033 DUKE ENERGY 505.44 2,282,780.15
05/04/2022 Funds Transfer 2,063.55 2,284,843.70
05/05/2022 5034 Florida Pest Control Pest control service 4/12 855.00 2,283,988.70
05/05/2022 5035 SPIES POOL, LLC 3,166.70 2,280,822.00
05/05/2022 5036 DUKE ENERGY 5300 Solterra Blvd Lift 3/26-4/26 222.74 2,280,599.26
05/06/2022 5037 Power Pool Services, LLC 4,200.00 2,276,399.26
05/06/2022 5038 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Irrigation Repairs Q3 3,028.86 2,273,370.40
05/06/2022 5039 SPIES POOL, LLC 7,367.00 2,266,003.40
05/11/2022 051122ACH1 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 7 of 11 2,739.75 2,263,263.65
05/12/2022 5040 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 5/3-6/2 277.96 2,262,985.69
05/12/2022 5041 CLERK OF COURT 1,016.00 2,261,969.69
05/12/2022 5042 DUKE ENERGY 00 Solterra Blvd 4/2-5/2 581.77 2,261,387.92
05/12/2022 5043 ENVERA Alarm Monitoring Services 2,510.87 2,258,877.05
05/12/2022 5044 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 823.25 2,258,053.80
05/12/2022 5045 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 804.84 2,257,248.96
05/12/2022 5046 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. legal svcs- April CDD meeting 352.00 2,256,896.96
05/13/2022 5047 FLORIDA DEPT OF HEALTH IN POLK COUNTY 420.00 2,256,476.96
05/13/2022 ACH051322 CRYSTAL SPRINGS  Filtration system rental 95.35 2,256,381.61
05/13/2022 5048 FLORIDA DEPT OF HEALTH IN POLK COUNTY Pool Permit 53-60-1514804 280.00 2,256,101.61
05/16/2022 5049 CLERK OF COURT False Alarm Citation - 5/6/22 508.00 2,255,593.61
05/16/2022 5050 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC  Main Gate Officer - June2022 16,523.30 2,239,070.31
05/16/2022 5051 EXERCISE SYSTEMS, INC. 362.90 2,238,707.41
05/17/2022 5052 DUKE ENERGY 1,486.36 2,237,221.05
05/17/2022 5053 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,717.00 2,235,504.05
05/17/2022 01ACH051722 DUKE ENERGY 000 Oakmont Blvd Lite 3/12-4/12 & 4/13-5/11 2,137.09 2,233,366.96
05/17/2022 Deposit 68,184.97 2,301,551.93
05/18/2022 5054 Duke Energy- Florida 7704 Oakmoss Loop Davenport FL 334.63 2,301,217.30
05/18/2022 5055 Egis Insurance & Risk Advisors Policy #E381749 4/9/22-4/9/23 (Utility Bond - Renew Policy) 492.00 2,300,725.30
05/18/2022 5056 KE Law Group, PLLC Legal Services for April 4,792.48 2,295,932.82
05/18/2022 5057 SPIES POOL, LLC Bulk Bleach main pool and Lazy River 1,114.00 2,294,818.82
05/19/2022 5058 SPIES POOL, LLC 1,218.40 2,293,600.42
05/20/2022 5059 DUKE ENERGY 0 Oakmont blvd LITE @ Pine Tree 4/8-5/6 4,492.94 2,289,107.48
05/20/2022 5060 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 665.49 2,288,441.99
05/23/2022 5061 CANDICE SMITH BOS MTG 3/24 & 4/28/22 400.00 2,288,041.99
05/23/2022 ACH1052322 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 109.27 2,287,932.72
05/23/2022 ACH2052322 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 450.77 2,287,481.95
05/23/2022 ACH4052322 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 450.77 2,287,031.18
05/24/2022 02ACH052422 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 450.77 2,286,580.41
05/25/2022 5062 CLERK OF COURT False Alarm Citation - 5/12 508.00 2,286,072.41
05/25/2022 5063 EXERCISE SYSTEMS, INC. Knee rest, cable, chest rest and labor 5.23.22 744.50 2,285,327.91
05/25/2022 01ACH052522 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 55.27 2,285,272.64
05/25/2022 Deposit 22,521.00 2,307,793.64
05/27/2022 5064 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 9,738.45 2,298,055.19
05/27/2022 5065 Amenity Services LLC Cleaning of Clubhouse 3,500.00 2,294,555.19
05/27/2022 5066 Heaven's Best Carpet cleaning and upholstery cleaning 250.00 2,294,305.19
05/27/2022 5067 Steadfast Environmental LLC Routine Aquatic Maintenance - May 2022 2,393.00 2,291,912.19
05/27/2022 01ACH052722 DUKE ENERGY 5290 SOLTERRA BLVD -past due 99.81 2,291,812.38
05/27/2022 5068 BUSINESS OBSERVER Legal Ad 5/27/22 45.94 2,291,766.44
05/27/2022 5069 SPIES POOL, LLC 2,332.90 2,289,433.54
05/27/2022 5070 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 269.97 2,289,163.57

05/31/2022 92,769.52 92,032.87 2,289,163.57
06/01/2022 5071 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 5/22-6/21 109.98 2,289,053.59
06/01/2022 5072 CANDICE SMITH BOS MTG 5/26/22 200.00 2,288,853.59
06/02/2022 5073 DUKE ENERGY 618.96 2,288,234.63
06/02/2022 5074 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,206.72 2,287,027.91
06/02/2022 5075 SPIES POOL, LLC 1,682.65 2,285,345.26
06/02/2022 5076 Steadfast Environmental LLC Routine Aquatic Maintenance - June 2022 2,393.00 2,282,952.26
06/02/2022 ACH060222 DUKE ENERGY 000 Solterra Blvd Lite 4/19-5/16 789.13 2,282,163.13
06/02/2022 5077 Power Pool Services, LLC Service call 5/28- back wash and shock pool and lazy river 160.00 2,282,003.13
06/03/2022 5078 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 5/25-6/24 743.39 2,281,259.74
06/03/2022 5079 DUKE ENERGY 5300 Solterra Blvd Lift 4/27-5/24 136.49 2,281,123.25
06/06/2022 5080 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt -June 22 4,733.33 2,276,389.92
06/07/2022 060722ACH01 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 8 of 11 2,739.75 2,273,650.17
06/09/2022 5081 DPFG M&C Duke Energy Electric Payment 138.53 2,273,511.64
06/10/2022 5082 POLK COUNTY WATER RESOURCE ENFORCEMENT administrative costs for the hearing 69.60 2,273,442.04
06/14/2022 5083 CANDICE SMITH BOS MTG 5/26/22 Continuation on 06/09/22 200.00 2,273,242.04
06/14/2022 Deposit 31,824.08 2,305,066.12
06/15/2022 5084 CRYSTAL SPRINGS  Filtration system rental 28.45 2,305,037.67
06/15/2022 5085 POLK COUNTY WATER RESOURCE ENFORCEMENT Water Violation (06/06/22) 500.00 2,304,537.67
06/15/2022 5086 SPIES POOL, LLC 1,427.50 2,303,110.17
06/15/2022 5087 Stanley Steemer Fitness Room Carpet cleaning 328.00 2,302,782.17
06/15/2022 5088 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Irrigation Repairs Q1 2022 4,884.22 2,297,897.95
06/17/2022 5089 Steadfast Environmental LLC Routine Aquatic Maintenance - July 2022 2,393.00 2,295,504.95
06/17/2022 5090 DUKE ENERGY 0 Oakmont blvd LITE @ Pine Tree 5/7-6/7 4,492.94 2,291,012.01
06/17/2022 5091 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,346.93 2,289,665.08
06/17/2022 100000 Envera Systems 2,510.87 2,287,154.21
06/20/2022 5092 DUKE ENERGY 1,486.37 2,285,667.84
06/22/2022 5093 KE Law Group, PLLC Legal Services for May 4,686.55 2,280,981.29
06/22/2022 5094 SPIES POOL, LLC 2,646.75 2,278,334.54
06/22/2022 5095 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Clubhouse parking lot fill in- Plant installation 1,971.41 2,276,363.13

Page 16 of 17 l



CHECK REGISTER
FY 2022

DATE CK NO. PAYEE DESCRIPTION DEPOSIT DISBURSMT BALANCE
06/27/2022 062722ACH DUKE ENERGY 00 Solterra Blvd 5/3-6/2 1,039.91 2,275,323.22
06/27/2022 5096 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 493.77 2,274,829.45
06/27/2022 5097 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. District Engineer- general consulting 208.00 2,274,621.45
06/27/2022 5098 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 32,332.00 2,242,289.45
06/27/2022 062722EFT2 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 06/3-07/02 277.96 2,242,011.49
06/28/2022 5100 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,569.66 2,240,441.83
06/28/2022 5101 SPIES POOL, LLC 3,170.00 2,237,271.83
06/29/2022 ACH062922 DUKE ENERGY 5456 MISTY OAK CIR PUMP 05/06-06/06/22 91.53 2,237,180.30
06/29/2022 ACH1062922 DUKE ENERGY 4000 OAKMONT BLVD 5/6-6/6/22 144.11 2,237,036.19
06/29/2022 6/29/22 Spectrum Business Oaktree Dr 6/22-7/21. 109.98 2,236,926.21
06/30/2022 5102 ACTION SECURITY, INC. 1,925.00 2,235,001.21
06/30/2022 5104 SPIES POOL, LLC 2,143.75 2,232,857.46
06/30/2022 5105 POLK COUNTY UTILITIES Various Accounts 11,750.19 2,221,107.27
06/30/2022 5106 Spectrum Business Oaktree Dr 6/22-7/21. 109.98 2,220,997.29
06/30/2022 5107 DUKE ENERGY 000 Solterra Blvd Lite 5/17-6/15 789.13 2,220,208.16
06/30/2022 5108 Evergreen Lifestyles Mgmt 78,556.71 2,141,651.45
06/30/2022 5109 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,208.74 2,140,442.71

06/30/2022 31,824.08 180,544.94 2,140,442.71
07/01/2022 5110 Power Pool Services, LLC Pool Maintenance - July 2,100.00 2,138,342.71
07/01/2022 5111 Pro-Tech Air Conditioning & Plumbing Svc. 886.92 2,137,455.79
07/01/2022 Deposit 64,457.23 2,201,913.02
07/05/2022 5112 CRYSTAL SPRINGS  Filtration system rental 28.45 2,201,884.57
07/06/2022 5113 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 6/25-7/24 743.39 2,201,141.18
07/06/2022 5114 DUKE ENERGY 000 Oakmont Blvd Lite 5/26-6/27 876.73 2,200,264.45
07/06/2022 5115 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 579.43 2,199,685.02
07/07/2022 5116 DUKE ENERGY 8,734.93 2,190,950.09
07/07/2022 5117 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC  Main Gate Officer - July 2022 18,055.31 2,172,894.78
07/07/2022 01ACH070722 DUKE ENERGY 4000 OAKMONT BLVD GATEHSE 5/6-6/6 73.82 2,172,820.96
07/08/2022 ACH9070822 IPFS Corporation Insurance - Payment 9 of 11 2,739.75 2,170,081.21
07/11/2022 01ACH071122 DUKE ENERGY 000 Oakmont Blvd Lite 5/12-7/10 1,068.74 2,169,012.47
07/13/2022 5118 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,252.72 2,167,759.75
07/13/2022 5119 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. Compactor Rental 579.35 2,167,180.40
07/14/2022 Deposit 1,275.00 2,168,455.40
07/14/2022 5120 Spectrum Business 5200 Solterra Blvd. 07/03-08/02 277.96 2,168,177.44
07/14/2022 5121 ENVERA Alarm Monitoring Services 2,510.87 2,165,666.57
07/15/2022 5122 SPIES POOL, LLC 2,301.95 2,163,364.62
07/15/2022 5123 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Monthly Maintenance July 2022 16,166.00 2,147,198.62
07/15/2022 Deposit 4,500.00 2,151,698.62
07/15/2022 100002 DUKE ENERGY 1,031.41 2,150,667.21
07/18/2022 7/18/22 BankUnited Box of Checks ordered with Brenda 198.67 2,150,468.54
07/20/2022 5124 DPFG M&C CDD Mgmt -July 22 4,733.33 2,145,735.21
07/20/2022 100003 Power Pool Services, LLC 4,270.00 2,141,465.21
07/20/2022 100004 Pro-Tech Air Conditioning & Plumbing Svc. 886.92 2,140,578.29
07/20/2022 100005 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 16,166.00 2,124,412.29
07/20/2022 7/20/22 FLORIDA DEPT OF REVENUE Florida Tax Payment 1,443.34 2,122,968.95
07/25/2022 100006 DUKE ENERGY 5,979.32 2,116,989.63
07/25/2022 100007 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 300.00 2,116,689.63
07/25/2022 100008 SPIES POOL, LLC 2,077.00 2,114,612.63
07/27/2022 100009 BUSINESS OBSERVER 102.81 2,114,509.82
07/27/2022 100010 COMMUNITY WATCH SOLUTIONS, LLC 16,564.02 2,097,945.80
07/27/2022 100011 DUKE ENERGY 235.77 2,097,710.03
07/27/2022 100012 I-Deal Refuse Savings, Inc. 1,131.13 2,096,578.90
07/27/2022 100013 KE Law Group, PLLC 3,449.31 2,093,129.59
07/27/2022 100014 SPIES POOL, LLC 651.95 2,092,477.64
07/27/2022 100015 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE 1,948.55 2,090,529.09

07/31/2022 70,232.23 120,145.85 2,090,529.09
08/01/2022 Deposit 886.92 2,091,416.01

Page 17 of 17 l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 33 

  

l



 
Proposal for Repair 

 

16181962-1 LIC # FL: EG13000626, B2700191; TX: B09431501   Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Client/Community Solterra Resort Proposal Date: 8/25/2022 

 
 

 
 

 Qty. Equipment to Be Repaired/Replaced  Unit Cost Extended Cost 

 - Miscellaneous parts (includes concrete and additional bolts) 50.00 $50.00 

 6 Hourly Service Charge 85.00 $510.00 

 1 Trip Charge 42.00 $42.00 

     

     

     

     

     

        
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                    Total Charges $602.00                                                                                                                                                                                                    
(Plus any applicable taxes) 

 
 

 

Scope of Work:   
Repair damaged post and continue troubleshooting Reader.  

 

 

HIDDEN EYES, LLC d/b/a Envera Systems: 

Signature  

Print Name Daphnee Eyma 

Title / Position Service Coordinator 

Date 8/25/2022 

 
 

CLIENT: 

Signature  

Print Name  

Title / Position  

Date  

l



TECHNO GYM DUAL COLUMN 
MB43ONO

TECHNO GYM BIKES- UPRIGHT & 
RECUMBENT

Larry Krause Digitally signed by Larry Krause 
Date: 2022.10.04 14:01:36 -04'00'

l



Proposal for Repair

16181962-1 LIC # FL: EG13000626, B2700191; TX: B09431501 Page 1 of 1

Qty. Equipment to Be Repaired/Replaced Unit Cost Extended Cost

1 936.00 $ 936.00

1 884.00 $ 884.00

1 95.00 $ 95.00

2 Hourly Labor 85.00 $ 170.00

1 Trip 42.00 $ 42.00

 Total Charges $ 2127.00

   (Plus any applicable taxes)

Scope of Work:  

Main Gate - Replace the exit overall and resident tag cameras

HIDDEN EYES, LLC d/b/a Envera Systems:

Signature

Print Name Tiffany Knighton

Title / Position Service Coordinator

Date 10/5/2022

CLIENT:

Signature

Print Name

Title / Position

Date

Client/Community Solterra Proposal Date: 10/5/2022

Larry Krause Digitally signed by Larry Krause
Date: 2022.10.10 09:26:40 -04'00'

l

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Submitted to

Items

CONTACT

ADDRESS

PHONE FAX

EMAIL

PRICE EACH QTY

Project Detail - Page 1
LOCATION

PROJECT NAME

DISTANCESOLTERRA

KYLA SEMINO
C/O DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING
250 INTERNATIONAL PARKWAY SUITE 208
LAKE MARY FL  32746

ESTIMATE #

DATE
001-22-327403
10/7/2022

REFERENCE

KSemino@Evergreen-LM.com

TOTAL

50 COORDINATES

STORM DAMAGE - STREET SIGN REPAIR/REVIEW

WRITTEN BY LISA JIMENEZ

PROPOSAL 327403
SOLTERRA RESORT CDD

STREET SIGNAGE, CUSTOM $99.95 4 $399.80
(3/5/8) D/S STREET BLADES

1

LABOR / INSTALLATION, INSTALL, ORLANDO, LOCAL 45+ $1,795.00 1 $1,795.00
ESTIMATED INSTALLATION - ACTUAL TBD

2

900 CENTRAL PARK DR., SANFORD, FL  32771-6634
P: 407.830.8861 • F: 407.830.5569

Terms & Conditions
- All agreements are contingent upon delays and material cost increases beyond our control.  Manufacturing cost increases incurred after quotation and prior to a work order being submitted to production will be
passed through to the customer. In this scenario, the project will be requoted for customer approval.
- Pricing in this proposal is subject to acceptance within 14 days and is void thereafter.
- Depending upon the agreed credit terms, a deposit may be required before work is to commence.
- If a deposit is to be paid by credit card, you authorize OnSight Industries, LLC to charge 50% of the total project cost upfront and the balance of the project upon completion.
- Any labor and installation pricing is approximate and subject to change based upon actual time incurred.
- Delivery/installation postponement will result in the client being progress billed for completed product. At this time, title for the product will transfer to the client. Client agrees to pay progress bill invoice upon
receipt. Product will be warehoused until the client is ready for installation, at which time installation labor will be invoiced upon completion. Product that is warehoused for over 6 months will be assessed a
$100/month/pallet storage fee beginning on the 7th month.
- Sales tax is estimated and subject to change based upon the actual rate at time of invoicing.
- Unless otherwise noted, client assumes all responsibility for permitting and utility locator services as necessary.
- Customer is responsible for variations from customer supplied architectural drawings & hardscapes.
- Signature on this proposal constitutes approval from the client on supplied artwork/graphics.
- Any credit balance(s) resulting from overpayment that remains on a credit account over 30 days will be applied to the oldest invoice(s) or to upcoming active order(s) and reflected on the following month’s
statement.
- Invoices are due upon receipt. Any unpaid invoices are subject to late fees equal to 1.5% of the balance due per month (18% per year), collection fees and/or court costs.

NAME DATE

SIGNATURE NAME DATE

THE ABOVE PRICES, SPECIFICATIONS AND CONDITIONS ARE HEREBY ACCEPTED. ONSIGHT INDUSTRIES, LLC IS AUTHORIZED TO PROCEED WITH THE PROJECT AS STATED.
PAYMENT WILL BE MADE AS OUTLINED ABOVE.

ONSIGHT INDUSTRIES, LLC.

PRE-TAX TOTAL $2,194.80
EST TAX (.07) $0.00

------------
TOTAL $2,194.80

RON SILVEIRA 10/12/2022

Proposal Acceptance

Larry Krause Digitally signed by Larry Krause 
Date: 2022.10.13 12:38:42 -04'00'

l


	@1CL
	@2022-10-27 Draft Agenda - Solterra Resort Revised 10-25-2022
	1 EXHIBIT cover 1
	1a Steadfast- September 2022 Waterway Inspection Report
	1b Solterra Resort CDD October 2022 Waterway Inspection Report
	2 EXHIBIT cover 2
	2a Yellowstone - SR Mulch 2022
	3 EXHIBIT cover 3
	3a Admiral Furniture Cabana Curtain Replacement ACFQ60531- $20,343.25
	4 EXHIBIT cover 4
	4a One Day Masterpieces Sign Replacement - $6,432.19
	5 EXHIBIT cover 5
	5a New Pool Maintenance Vendors
	6 EXHIBIT cover 6
	6a Existing Equipment List
	7 EXHIBIT cover 7
	7a icemakers-all
	8 EXHIBIT cover 8
	8a fryers-all
	9 EXHIBIT cover 9
	9a Amenity Mgr Printer lease
	10 EXHIBIT cover 10
	10a CLEAN_Revised Amenity Facilities Rules and Policies - Solterra Resort
	11 EXHIBIT cover 11
	11a SR Res 2023-01 Adopting Revised Amenity Rules & Rates (2022)
	12 EXHIBIT cover 12
	12a Top Guard Sidewalk Grinding $1,129.00
	13 EXHIBIT cover 13
	13a DPFG Updated Fee Schedule for District Management Services-Solterra Resort
	14 EXHIBIT cover 14
	14a DPFG Updated Fee Schedule for Field Services-Solterra Resort
	15 EXHIBIT cover 15
	15a Envera contract recommendations
	15b Security Monitoring - Envera - SR - Addendum
	15c Security Monitoring - Envera - SR Resign Agreement_2022-07
	15d Security Monitoring - Tekwave (Software License Terms) without Cover Page
	15e Security Monitoring - Tekwave (Managed Services Agreement)
	15f Security Monitoring - Tekwave (Installation Services Agreement)
	16 EXHIBIT cover 16
	16a SR Res 2023-02 Recognizing Contribution in Lieu of Assessments
	17 EXHIBIT cover 17
	17a Quit Claim Deed (2D Rights of Way & Easement Tracts) (05.12.22) - Solterra Resort 4880-8392-4255 v.1
	18 EXHIBIT cover 18
	18a Construction & Maintenance Easement (2D Hardscape) (05.13.22) - Solterra Resort 4862-1223-2223 v.2
	19 EXHIBIT cover 19
	20 EXHIBIT cover 20
	21 EXHIBIT cover 21
	22 EXHIBIT cover 22
	22a Acquisition of Miscellenous Improvements & Work Product - Solterra Resort
	23 EXHIBIT cover 23
	23a SR Res 2023-03 Project Completion Resolution All Projects
	24 EXHIBIT cover 24
	24a Harvey Resignation
	25 EXHIBIT cover 25
	25a Solterra Resort - Oath of Office - appointment
	26 EXHIBIT cover 26
	26a New Supervisor Information Sheet
	27 EXHIBIT cover 27
	27a Res. 2023-04 - Designating Officers - SR
	28 EXHIBIT cover 28
	28a Res. 2023-05 - Designating Signatories - SR
	29 EXHIBIT cover 29
	29a Solterra Resort FIELD INSPECTION_October 2022
	30 EXHIBIT cover 30
	30a WMD Permit List in Phase Order
	30aa Ph 2A_WMD Transfer to Operation Phase Appl_26971-007_2018-06-18
	30b Ph 2B MG_SWFWMD .012 Transfer to Op Phase Approval_2019-12-30
	30c Ph 2C_WMD_Transfer to Operation Phase_26971.008_2019-07-12
	30d Ph 2D MG_WMD_Transfer to Opperation Phase 26971.015_2020-04-27
	30e Ph 2E MG_WMD Transfer to Operation Phase 26971.013_2020-02-20
	31 EXHIBIT cover 31
	31a SR 08-25-2022 Meeting Minutes sent-LK
	32 EXHIBIT cover 32
	32a Solterra 2022 Fin
	Cover
	BSHEET
	GFUND 
	2013
	2014
	2018
	CF 2013
	CF 2014
	CF 2018
	CF 2018 Phase 2B
	BANK REC
	CK REGISTER

	33 EXHIBIT cover 33
	33a Ratify Envera $602 - Replace Card Reader at Main Gate
	33b Ratify - Exercise Systems - $1,095.50 - dual column and bike repair Prop#049023
	33c Ratify - Envera SR Repair- replace Main Entrance & Tag cameras 10.5.22 $2,127.00
	33d Ratify Onsight - Street Sign Repairs Prop# 327403 $2,194.80

	LAST NAME FIRST NAME MIDDLE NAME: 
	MAILING ADDRESS Row 1: 
	MAILING ADDRESS Row2: 
	CITY: 
	ZIP: 
	County: 
	NAME OF AGENCY: 
	NAME OF OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT: 
	CANDIDATE: Off
	NEW EMPLOYEE OR APPOINTEE: Off
	COMPARATIVE PERCENTAGE THRESHOLDS: Off
	DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLD: Off
	NAME OF SOURCE OF INCOME Row 1: 
	ADDRESSRow1: 
	DESCRIPTION OF THE SOURCES PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVE Row 1: 
	NAME OF SOURCE OF INCOME Row 2: 
	ADDRESSRow2: 
	DESCRIPTION OF THE SOURCES PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVE Row 2: 
	NAME OF SOURCE OF INCOME Row 3: 
	ADDRESSRow3: 
	DESCRIPTION OF THE SOURCES PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVE Row 3: 
	NAME OF SOURCE OF INCOME Row 4: 
	ADDRESSRow4: 
	DESCRIPTION OF THE SOURCES PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVE Row 4: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY Row 1: 
	NAME OF MAJOR SOURCES OF BUSINESS INCOMERow1: 
	OF SOURCERow1: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF SOURCE Row 1: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY Row 2: 
	NAME OF MAJOR SOURCES OF BUSINESS INCOMERow2: 
	OF SOURCERow2: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF SOURCE Row 2: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY Row 3: 
	NAME OF MAJOR SOURCES OF BUSINESS INCOMERow3: 
	OF SOURCERow3: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF SOURCE Row 3: 
	REAL PROPERTY Row 1: 
	REAL PROPERTY Row 2: 
	REAL PROPERTY Row 3: 
	REAL PROPERTY Row 4: 
	TYPE OF INTANGIBLE Row 1: 
	BUSINESS ENTITY TO WHICH THE PROPERTY RELATESRow1: 
	TYPE OF INTANGIBLE Row 2: 
	BUSINESS ENTITY TO WHICH THE PROPERTY RELATESRow2: 
	NAME OF CREDITOR Row 1: 
	ADDRESS OF CREDITORRow1: 
	NAME OF CREDITOR Row 2: 
	ADDRESS OF CREDITORRow2: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY 1: 
	ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY: 
	POSITION HELD WITH ENTITY: 
	I OWN MORE THAN A 5 INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS: 
	NATURE OF MY OWNERSHIP INTEREST: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY 2: 
	ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY_2: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY_2: 
	POSITION HELD WITH ENTITY_2: 
	I OWN MORE THAN A 5 INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS_2: 
	NATURE OF MY OWNERSHIP INTEREST_2: 
	agency created under Part III Chapter 163 required to complete annual ethics training pursuant to section 1123142 FS: Off
	IF ANY OF PARTS A THROUGH G ARE CONTINUED ON A SEPARATE SHEET PLEASE CHECK HERE: Off
	Signature: 
	Date Signed: 


